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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 06 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Mr Notshe,  good morning 

everybody.   Your mic is not  on Mr Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Good morning Chairperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you ready? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson we are ready to proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us just  place on record Mr 

Wakeford ’s legal  representat ives.   You can do i t  f rom where 10 

you are i f  your mic is work ing.  

ADV WILLIS:   Good morning Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.  

ADV WILLIS:    I  conf i rm my appearance once again on 

behal f  of  Mr Wakeford.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson we also have Mr Witz who is 

the representat ive of  Mr Agrizzi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:  Can he put  himsel f  on record Mr 20 

Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes – yes ja p lease yes.  

ADV WITZ :   Yes morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.  

ADV WITZ:    ( Inaudible)  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank – thank you.   Thank you.   Okay I  

th ink then Mr Notshe for the benef i t  of  the publ ic you could 

just  out l ine what  Mr Wakeford’s evidence wi l l  – wi l l  cover 

then we can start .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Thank you Chair.   Chai r  the genesis of  

Mr Wakeford’s appearance today is the ev idence of  Mr 

Angelo Agrizzi  which he gave where in he made references to 

the act iv i t ies of  Mr Wakeford so far as BOSASA is  

concerned.  

 The three main issues Chai r  that  are involved there is  10 

1 .  Mr Agrizzi ’s  ev idence was to the effect  that  when 

BOSASA had problems with SARS Mr Gavin – the late 

Mr Gavin Watson suggested that  services of  Mr 

Wakeford should be obtained so that  he can assist  

BOSASA in that  regard.    

2 .  Secondly there was the issue of  the renewal of  the 

contract  of  BOSASA with Home Affai rs – Department  of  

Home Affai rs regard ing the Lindela Repatr iat ion Cent re.  

Chair  you wi l l  remember L indela is – was a BOSASA was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink I  do remember what Lindela 20 

was ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   And then the – when they were – 

when they were negot iat ing thei r  contract  there i t  was then 

suggested that  again Mr Wakeford should be – his serv ices 

should be obtained and then he then got  in contact  wi th Mr 
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Aniel  Radhakrishna who was then working for a company 

who was charged by Home Affai rs to negot iate wi th BOSASA.  

And then thi rdly there was the issue of  – st i l l  w i th the issue 

of  SARS Mr Wakeford – the evidence of  Mr Agrizzi  that  Mr 

Wakeford then brought in Mr Papadakis who was working for 

SARS and the purpose was that  he would then assist  

BOSASA in problems with SARS. 

 The evidence of  Mr Agrizzi  to the effect  that  al l  these 

people were paid Mr Wakeford was paid by BOSASA, Mr 

Papadakis was paid and a lso Mr Aniel  Radhakr ishna was 10 

also paid by BOSASA.  

 Chair  you wi l l  see in the – in f ront  of  you there is a  

f i le.   The f i le  is –  is BOSASA Bundle 4 and i t  is Exhibi t  33.   

In i t  Chai r  you wi l l  f ind what has happened – and then Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the f i les could not  be an exhibi t .   The 

exhibi t  should be Mr Wakeford ’s aff idavi t  or statement .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   But  th is is the bundle,  Bundle – 

BOSASA Bundle 4.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Cha i r  a f te r  Mr  Agr i zz i  had 

tes t i f ied  Mr  Wake ford  then gave –  app l ied  to  c ross-examine 

Mr  Agr izz i  and then he brought  an  app l i ca t ion  suppor ted  by 

a  found ing  a f f idav i t .  Mr  Agr izz i  answered to  tha t  and then 
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Mr  Wakeford  rep l i ed  to  tha t .   And a lso  Mr  Vors ter  f i led  a lso  

the  a f f idav i t  to  wh ich  Mr  Wakefo rd  answered and there  was  

a  rep l y  to  tha t .  

 Th is  –  they are  a lso  conta ined in  th is  bund le  tha t  i s  

in  f ron t  o f  you.   Cha i r  you w i l l  f ind  then – then in  the  end in  

p repara t ion  fo r  today ’s  hear ings and Mr  Wakeford  f i led  an  

a f f idav i t .   I t  was  f i led  yeste rday a f te rnoon.  The a f f idav i t  

w i l l  –  i t  w i l l  appear  on  i tem 12 o f  the  bund le  in  f ron t  o f  you.  

 Unhapp i ly  Cha i r  the  –  there  was a  p rob lem wi th  

p r in t ing  the  annexures to  the  i tem to  the  a f f idav i t  by  our  10 

o f f i ce  bu t  the  –  t he  a t to rneys o f  Mr  Wakeford  had p rov ided 

me wi th  a  hard  cop ies  o f  the  a f f idav i t  and the  annexures.   I  

have g iven the  –  the  Cha i r ’s  secre tary  tha t  –  so  tha t  in  the 

meant ime wh i ls t  we are  wa i t ing  fo r  the  bund les  to  be  pu t  

in to  the  f i le  we can go on w i th  the  pr in ted  copy.   Your  

secre tary  has them.  

 A t  leas t  tha t  i s  where  we are .   And then Cha i r  I  

have a l so  exp la ined to  Mr  Wi ts  tha t  what  i s  go ing  to  

happen is  we w i l l  p roceed w i thout  the  answer  f rom Mr  

Agr izz i  to  th is  a f f idav i t .  20 

 Then Mr  Agr izz i  i s  a t  l iber ty  to  f i le  an  answer  

there to  i f  he  so  w ishes.   Mr  Wi ts  unders tands tha t .   He was 

a lso  –  I  have a lso  sent  h im the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Wake ford  the  

one tha t  was f i led  yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .    
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Mr  Wakeford  i s  he re  now to  

tes t i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th .   Good 

morn ing  Mr  Wakeford .  Good morn ing .   P lease admin is te r  

the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  names –  p lease s ta te  your  

fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Kev in  Peter  Edwin  Wakeford .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:   No ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

MR WAKEFORD:    So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   You may be seated .   I  just  20 

want  to  say th is  fo r  what  i t  i s  wor th .   As  the  commiss ion  

t r ies  to  wrap up i t s  work  and w i th  the  t ime const ra in ts  tha t  

i t  has  there  may mat te rs  where  by  the  t ime the  commiss ion  

wraps up i t s  work  where  i t  fee ls  tha t  i t  has  no t  had the  

benef i t  o f  a l l  the  ev idence i t  m igh t  have w ished to  have or  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 8 of 318 
 

where  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  may  need to  –  may have 

needed to  be  done and in  those c i r cumstances i t  i s  

poss ib le  tha t  the  commiss ion  may in  i t s  repor t  no t  make  

any f ind ings in  regard  to  those mat te rs  on  the  bas i s  tha t  

more  invest iga t ion  need to  be  done or  more  w i tnesses – 

cer ta in  w i tnesses  maybe were  no t  heard  in  wh ich  case i t  

m igh t  leave i t  to  law enforcement  agenc ies  to  see whethe r  

they want  to  take  cer ta in  mat te rs  fu r the r.    

So I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  there  is  tha t  poss ib i l i t y  

o f  tha t  happen ing  because o f  t ime const ra in ts  and  10 

par t i cu la r l y  in  mat te rs  tha t  fa l l  ou ts ide  what  we have ca l led  

pub l i c  p ro tec to r  i ssues.  

 The mat te rs  tha t  we ca l l  pub l i c  p ro tec to r  i ssues a re  

the  issues tha t  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  had ident i f ied  as  the  

mat te rs  tha t  shou ld  have –  shou ld  be  invest iga ted  by  th is  

commiss ion .  

 Now those mat te rs  a re  mat te rs  tha t  a re  la rge ly  

re la ted  to  the  Gupta ’s  and the  fo rmer  Pres ident .   But  as 

some o f  you wou ld  know when the  te rms o f  re fe rence o f  the  

commiss ion  were  fo rmula ted  by  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  they 20 

went  much w ider  than the  issues tha t  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  

had ident i f ied  as  the  issues tha t  shou ld  be  invest iga ted  by  

th is  commiss ion .  

 So as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  a t  the  end  o f  2019 when I  

app l ied  to  the  H igh  Cour t  fo r  the  ex tens ion  o f  th is  
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commiss ion ’s  t ime I  ind ica ted  tha t  f rom then on we  wou ld  

t ry  and focus more  on  what  I  ca l l  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  

i ssues because i f  one were  to  invest iga te  a l l  the  mat te rs  

tha t  fa l l  under  the  w ide  Terms o f  Refe rence we wou ld  take  

ten  years  or  so .   

 So –  so  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  i t  seems tha t  we 

may have s i tua t ions where  in  regard  to  some mat te rs  we  

have run  out  o f  t ime –  we have not  you know heard  

everybody or  the  invest iga t ions were  no t  comple te  so  we 

might  have s i tua t ions where  I  cons ide r  tha t  i t  was not  10 

appropr ia te  to  make any f ind ings bu t  maybe leave i t  to  the 

law enforcement  agenc ies  i f  they  th ink  they want  take  

whatever  we have done fu r the r  and invest iga te  fu r the r.  

 So I  jus t  thought  I  wou ld  men t ion  tha t  fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  everybody.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Now Mr  Wakeford  

you wou ld  have made a  number  o f  a f f idav i t s .   You app ly  – 

when you app l ied  to  c ross-examine Mr  Agr izz i  then Mr  

Agr izz i  answered  and rep l i ed .   There  was an add i t iona l  

a f f idav i t  you rep l ied  there to  bu t  the  la tes t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  20 

tha t  you f i led  yesterday.   That  was f i led  on  your  beha l f  

yes terday.  

 Now in  f ron t  o f  you there  is  a  f i le  and in  tha t  f i l e  i f  I  

can  ask  you to  tu rn  to  what  i s  marked as  I tem 12 and do  

you conf i rm tha t  what  you are  –  what  appears  the re  on  –  
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there  i s  –  i f  you  look a t  the  top  of  tha t  page where  a t  the  

top  o f  the  le f t  –  or  the  le f t  top  o f  the  page – top  -  top  o f  the  

page i t  i s  BOSASA 04852,  you see  tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  con f i rm Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes tha t  i s  where  th is  a f f idav i t  beg ins  

and you w i l l  see  be low tha t  there  is  content  –  there  is  a  

content  page and on the  o ther  s ide  then there  is  your  – 

your  fu l l  names.   R igh t .   Now before  we go any fu r ther  le t  

us  do  some housekeep ing .   When we re fer  to  pages  I  say  i t  

i s  BOSASA 04852  I  am re fer r ing  to  the  b lack  numbers  and I  10 

m ight  no t  re fe r  you to  read the  who le  i ssue I  m ight  jus t  

re fe r  to  the  number  –  I  am re fer r i ng  the  number.  

 And then Cha i r  we –  Mr  Wake ford  has go t  h i s  

a f f idav i t  –  the  or ig ina l  –  h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  he  had pr in ted  –  

he  has made some marks  on  the  a f f idav i t  and then I  have 

ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  we might  do  so  tha t  we can – i t  does 

not  ge t  los t  he  can re fer  us  when he is  re fe r r ing  to  h is  

a f f idav i t  to  what  is  p r in ted  in  h is  a f f idav i t  and then I  w i l l  be 

ab le  to  d i rec t  i t  where  i t  s i t s  in  the  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now Mr  Wakeford  you heard  me when I  

was address ing  the  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  hang on one second Mr  Notshe I  am 

jus t  t ry ing  to  th ink  whether  tha t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be 

confus ing  to  those who read the  t ranscr ip ts  la te r  a f te r  the 
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commiss ion  has f in ished i t s  work  because idea l l y  when you  

re fer  to  a  par t i cu la r  document  the  page number  shou ld  be  

the  same fo r  everybody.   So –  bu t  I  th ink  you a re  do ing  

tha t  because you  are  s t i l l  wa i t ing  fo r  the  annexures,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   We are  s t i l l  wa i t ing  fo r  the  annexures  

bu t  second ly  Cha i r  Mr  Wakefo rd  in  h is  p repara t ion  he  

prepared on h is  own –  on  h is  own a f f idav i t  –  the  copy a t  

home.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He d id  no t  p repare  on  th is .   He has 

made marks  on  h is  own copy and he has marked  i t .   Bu t  

what  I  was suggest ing  Cha i r  i s  tha t  in  the  ins tance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  want  –  what  I  want  i s  whether  i t  

i s  you o r  h im when you say page so  and so  we must  a l l  be  

on  the  same page.   From what  you are  say ing  I  go t  the  

impress ion  tha t  he  m ight  g ive  a  page but  on  m ine i t  wou ld  

be  a  d i f fe ren t  one  or  yours .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  tha t  i s  what  I  am . .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   What  I  have gu ided h im to  do  Cha i r  i s  

tha t  I  have gu ided h im and to ld  h im tha t  the  – he  w i l l  have 

the  typed page on h is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Bu t  in  the  le f t  hand corner  o f  what  –  on  
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our  f i l e  i s  number  –  tha t  number  has go t  a  page.   That  i s  

what  then he might  say  to  you Cha i r  can I  take  you to  page  

19 but  BOSASA 8704 fo r  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  no  I  do  no t  want  to  hear  the  o the r  

page tha t  I  do  no t  have.   I  want  to  hear  on ly  the  one I  

have.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  there  i s  no  reason why he cannot  do  

tha t .   Mr  Wakeford  because you wou ld  know what  you have  

in  te rms o f  your  own document  bu t  you wou ld  know what  10 

page so  you jus t  te l l  us  on ly  the  page tha t  we a lso  have.   

I s  tha t  a l r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes –  yes Cha i r  I  w i l l  opera te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  i t  can  be done.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  i s  f ine  then.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Then tha t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now Mr  Wakeford  the  –  you heard  me 

when I  summar ised to  the  Cha i rperson –  to  the 

Cha i rperson why you are  here  and  the  issues tha t  you are  

dea l ing  w i th .  

 Can you in  your  own words jus t  respond to  those  
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i ssues tha t  a re  be fore  the  commiss ion  and then we can 

then go to  de ta i l s  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ac tua l l y  tha t  –  tha t  –  I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  

good suggest ion .  I t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  m igh t  be  qu icker  the  

way you suggest ing .   So in  e f fec t  i f  I  unders tand cor rec t  –  

you co r rec t l y  Mr  Notshe and you must  te l l  me i f  I  

m isunders tood you what  you wou ld  l i ke  i s  tha t  on  the  

top ics  wh ich  you have g iven Mr  Wakeford  can g ive  h is  s ide  

o f  the  s to ry.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes,   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And f in ish  and then you can then  

quest ion  h im on the  mat te rs  and i t  i s  the  quest ion  o f  e i ther  

we take one top i c  and he g ives  h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  you  

quest ion  h im,  he  f in ishes o r  whether  he  g ives  h is  s ide  o f  

the  s to ry  on  a l l  the  top ics  and the reaf te r  you quest i on  h im.   

Which  one is  the  ( ta lk ing  over  one another ) .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  i t  i f  he  g ives  us  the  

who le  s to ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The who le  s to ry.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes because then. .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   No tha t  i s  f ine  –  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then –  and  then we go in to  de ta i l s  

on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   O f  –  o f  the  a f f idav i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So  bas ica l l y  Mr  Wakefo rd  i t  i s  an  

oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  you r  s to ry  w i thout  quest ions and 

quest ions come la te r.   I t  m igh t  make th ings to  go  fas te r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you very  much Cha i r.   Cha i r  I  

th ink  what  I  am go ing  to  do  is  to  f i rs t l y  g ive  you my h igh  

leve l  response.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR WAKEFORD:   And then we can  get  in to  the  mea t  o f  the  10 

( ta lk ing  over  one another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In to  –  okay.   Tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR WAKEFORD:   I f  tha t  i s  okay w i th  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  a lways impor tan t  fo r  

w i tnesses to  speak to  the i r  unders tand ing  o f  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:   So  my unders tand ing  is  th is  Cha i r  tha t  

there  were  a  bunch o f  fa lse  a l legat ions made  aga ins t  

myse l f  and I  am sure  many o the r  peop le .    20 

 The one a l legat ion  and i f  I  can  re fer  you Cha i r  

because I  am go ing  to  go  to  par t  o f  the  –  the  document  to  

page i t  says  BOSASA 04902 –  902.   The top  le f t  hand  

number  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have –  ja  I  have got  i t  –  I  have got  
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tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:   So i t  says :  

“A l legat ions and mandate  o f  the  

commiss ion . ”  

 So the  a l legat ions and I  am go ing  to  read th is  Cha i r  

because th is  i s  p robab ly  the  nexus o f  what  I  th ink  you need  

to  hear  in  par t i cu la r  and the  b roader  cour t  o f  pub l i c  

op in ion .  

 The a l legat ions  made aga ins t  me can on ly  be  

assessed w i th in  the  scope o f  the  mandate  o f  the  10 

commiss ion  in  o rder  to  es tab l i sh  whethe r  I  am imp l ica ted  

w i th in  the  mandate  as  a l leged or  no t .  

 The mandate  o f  the  commiss ion  is  to  invest iga te  

a l legat ions o f  s ta te  captu re ,  cor rup t ion  and f raud  in  the  

pub l i c  sec tor  inc lud ing  the  organs o f  s ta te .  

 The a l legat ions made aga ins t  me by  Agr izz i  and 

Vors ter  have been fabr ica ted  and the  fac ts  tw is ted  so  as  to  

suggest  cor rup t ion  and f raud in  the  pub l i c  sec tor  and to  

b r ing  me wi th in  the  mandate  o f  the  commiss ion  however  

there  i s  no  ev idence to  suppor t  these fabr ica t ions.  20 

 And Cha i r  I  th ink  you w i l l  f ind  w i th in  my pack I  am 

probab ly  cer ta in l y  w i th  regard  to  the  BOSASA work  s t ream 

one o f  the  few wi tnesses who  speaks to  fac ts  and 

substance w i th  ev idence back ing  i t  up .  

 However  there  is  no  suppor t  –  no  ev idence to  
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suppor t  these fab r ica t ions.   On a  cor rec t  assessment  o f  the 

a l legat ions the  main  i ssues in  d ispute  in  respect  o f  the 

a l legat ions made aga ins t  me and w i th in  the  mandate  o f  the  

commiss ion  are  cor rec t l y  ident i f ied  as  

1 .  When Mr  George Papadak is  I  w i l l  re fe r  to  h im as 

Papadak is  in  fu tu re  reso lved a  major  tax  invest iga t ion  

a t  SARS between the  10 t h  o f  March 2008 when  

Papadak is  was f i r s t  employed a t  SARS and the  26 t h  o f  

February  2009 when the  f i rs t  o rde r  o f  cement  a l leged  

to  have been p laced w i th  WG Wearne fo r  de l i very  to  10 

Meyersda l  Eco Esta te .    

ADV WILLIS:   Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:   I  beg your  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:   Fo r  in te r rup t ing  Mr  Wakeford  I  am fo l low ing  

h im in  the  a f f idav i t  bu t  he  –  I  heard  the  f i rs t  word  tha t  he 

read wrong wh ich  changes the  con tex t .   The f i rs t  word  was 

whethe r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  20 

ADV WILLIS:   So  i t  poses the  quest ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV WILLIS:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   You go t  tha t  Mr  Wakeford?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Whether  I  in f luence the  Depar tment  o f  

Home Affa i rs  to  ex tend the  in i t ia l  L inde la  cont rac t  be tween  

BOSASA and the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i r s  wh ich  I  w i l l  

re fe r  to  as  DHA beyond the  tenure  per iod  end ing  the  31s t  o f  

October  2015 or  ex tend o the r  f inanc ia l  benef i t s  embod ied 

in  the  addendums re la t i ve  to  the  in i t ia l  cont rac t .  

 The second issue  –  the  secondary  i ssues in  d ispute  

Cha i r  can be summar i sed as  

1.  Whether  payments  o f  R100 000.00 per  month  were  10 

pa id  to  me as a  fee  fo r  p rov id ing  serv i ce  in  re la t ion  to  

the  par t i cu la r  SARS invest iga t ion  tha t  Papadak is  i s  

a l leged to  have reso lved a t  SARS between the  10 t h  o f  

March 2008 and  the  26 t h  o f  February  2009 or  as  

ca tch-up payments  o f  my month ly  consu l tancy fee  o f  

R50 000.00 inc lud ing  VAT as I  say  they were .  

And then the  second one.  

2.  Whethe r  cement  to  the  va lue  o f  R600 000.00 was 

prov ided by  BOSASA to  Papadak is  in  exchange fo r  

h im in f luenc ing  the  a l leged major  SARS invest iga t ion  20 

in  be tween the  10 t h  o f  March 2008 and the  26 t h  o f  

February  2009.  

3.  Whethe r  payments  were  made  by  BOSASA to 

Radhakr ishna in  exchange fo r  h im  award ing  BOSASA 

wi th  a  f i ve-year  ex tens ion  to  the  in i t ia l  L inde la  
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cont rac t .  

And Chai r  le t  me just  expla in  the in i t ia l  L indela 

cont ract  was in  2005 before my t ime at  Home Affa i rs  as the 

Min is ter ’s  Pro jec t  Turnaround Advisor  and before Anie l  

Radhakr ishna had arr i ved.   So i t  was a good two years  

before that  had happened.  

 Based on the  evidence in  the commission ’s 

possession the main i ssues in  d ispute can immediate ly  be  

d ispensed wi th  on  the basis of  the fo l lowing:  

 Sor ry Chai r  my mouth is  get t ing dry.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine .   That  is  f ine.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Based on the evidence in  the 

commission’s possession the main issues in  d ispute can be 

immediate ly  d ispensed wi th  and Chai r  I  th ink you wi l l  f ind 

th is  in terest ing.  

1 .  Papadakis could  never  have assis ted BOSASA in  

resolv ing any major  invest igat ion at  SARS before the 

26 t h  o f  February 2009 as i t  is  common cause between 

a l l  par t ies that  no SARS invest igat ion ex is ted before 

the 23r d  o f  March 2011 wi th  the f i rs t  not i f icat ion of  an  20 

impending audi t  be ing made on the 18 t h  o f  August  

2010 thus the f i rs t  SARS invest igat ion in to BOSASA 

commenced two years subsequent  to  th is  February 

2009 t imef rame.  

2.  No f ive-year  extension to  the 2005 L indela cont ract  
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between BOSASA and the DHA was awarded to 

BOSASA wi th in  the second and th i rd  addendums to the  

cont ract  whi le  me and or  Radhakr ishna were aff i l ia ted  

wi th  the DHA.   No other  f inancia l  benef i ts  to  BOSASA 

appear wi th in  the  second and th i rd  addendums to the  

or ig ina l  L indela cont ract .  

So Chai r  the important  po int  is  2  – 202.2.   No f ive year  

extension to  the  2005 L indela cont ract  between BOSASA 

and the DHA was awarded at  a l l  and we have the evidence 

and the cont ract  addendums to prove that .  10 

We a lso have done some number  crunching to  prove 

that  in  fact  a  lo t  o f  money was saved for  the f i scus post  the 

turnaround in tervent ion.  

The secondary  issues Chai r  in  d ispute can 

immediate ly  be d ispensed wi th  on the basis of  the fo l lowing.  

1 .  My banking records,  BOSASA f inancia l  records and 

emai l  records between mysel f  and Agr izz i  a l l  conf i rm 

that  I  was employed as a consul tant  to  BOSASA f rom 

2006 to Apr i l  2015 on a month ly  re ta iner  of  R57 000.00 

inc lud ing VAT or  R50 000.00 excluding VAT.  This  20 

amount  never  changed.   The only occasions on which I  

was paid R100 000.00 per  month for  –  were – when I  

had not  been paid my reta iner  in  previous months.   I t  

is  for  these reasons that  the average of  my receip ts 

f rom BOSASA for  the 107-month per iod was only  
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R58 461.57 as an average.  

2.  Papadakis could not  have received cement  in  2009 as  

compensat ion for  in f luencing  a major  SARS 

invest igat ion as no SARS invest igat ion occurred over  

th is  per iod and indeed the f i rs t  audi t  conducted only  

commenced two years la te r  in  2011.  

And Chai r  I  th ink  the invest igators  of  the commission  

have done a very good job in  assembl ing a lo t  o f  the 

ev idence for  us which speaks to  exact ly  when cement  was 

del i vered.  10 

 I  remain s i lent  in  p revious aff idavi t  because I  was 

advised by  Advocate Wi l l is  to  do so because Mr Papadakis  

had not  responded and he d id not  be l ieve i t  was necessary  

to  cooperate wi th  th is  commission as – whereas my v iew is  I  

had to  cooperate and we had to get  to  the bot tom of  th is .  

 I  could not  have fac i l i ta ted any payments to  

Radhakr ishna in  return fo r  award ing a f i ve-year  extension to  

the L indela cont ract  when ver i f iab ly  no such extension was 

ever  awarded.  

 So Chai r  –  20 

ADV WILLIS:   So r ry  Mr  Cha i r  cou ld  I  aga in  in te r rup t  a t  that  

junc tu re .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:   I t  is  necessary  w i th  your  leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  
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ADV WILLIS:   Mr  Cha i r  Mr  Wakeford  has re fe r red  to  bo th  

Mr  Radhakr ishna  and Mr  Papadak is  he  jus t  re fe r red  to  the 

fac t  tha t  we awai ted  par t i cu la r l y  Mr  Papadak is ’ vers ion  

wh ich  was promised to  us  as  Mr  Notshe w i l l  con f i rm some 

t ime ago –  la te  –  th is  –  the  las t  ha l f  o f  las t  year  in  fac t .   

We rece ived as  was submi t ted  to  you yesterday in fo rmed – 

you were  in fo rmed by  Mr  Notshe we rece ived the  a f f idav i t s  

o f  Mr  Papadak is ,  Mr  Radhakr i shna fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime as  we l l  

as  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  response to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Radhakr ishna yesterday morn ing  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.   They 10 

had not  been worked in to  these a f f idav i t s  bu t  they  w i l l  be  

be fore  you and I  hope you w i l l  have regard  to  them but  

they a re  bo th  very  power fu l  a f f idav i t s  wh ich  en t i re l y  

suppor t  what  Mr  Wakeford  w i l l  tes t i f y  to  you today we are  

no t  go ing  to  be  mak ing  oh he w i l l  no t  be  mak ing  much  

re ference to  them because o f  the  t ime const ra in t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:     Cha i r  jus t  on  tha t  never  m ind any  20 

wrong impress ion  be  crea ted the  a f f idav i t s  were  no t  made 

ava i lab le  to  Mr  Wakeford ’s  a t to rneys because the  

invest iga to rs  were  awai t ing  the  response o f  Mr  Agr izz i  to  

those two a f f idav i t s .   We f ina l l y  we got  the  response o f  Mr  

Agr izz i  hence then we gave  them the  a f f idav i t s  a t  th is  
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s tage.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV WILLIS:   Yes indeed so  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  I  shou ld  have  

maybe ind ica ted  to  Mr  Notshe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    So there  is  no  b lame imputed  to  the  

Commiss ion ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may cont inue,  s i r.  

MR WAKEFORD :    So ,  Cha i r  wha t  I  have done is .   I  have 

spoken to  what  I  be l ieve  is  the  nexus o f  every th ing  tha t  I  10 

am go ing  to  say today but  mere ly  t o  unpack i t  more  and to  

–  some consu l tan ts  wou ld  re fer  to  i t  as  a  deep d ive  and to 

have a  good look a t  eve ry th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    And I  am happy to  be  s topped  a t  any 

s tage,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD :    I f  you  fee l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR WAKEFORD :    And Cha i r  I  am go ing  to  a t tempt  no t  to  20 

ramble  on .   So I  am go ing  r igh t  back to  the  beg inn ing  o f  

th is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  s ta r ts  on  page 85 – BOSASA 04852 but  

I  –  Cha i r,  w i th  your  pe rmiss ion .   I  am go ing  to  d ispense  

w i th  the  fo rmal i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  
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MR WAKEFORD :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    What  I  deposed to ,  the  in t roduct ion . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Because I  have spoken to  a  lo t  o f  tha t  

a l ready.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    And even in  the  den ia l .   Cha i r,  jus t  to  

say tha t  fo r  the  record  I  deny what  has been sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR WAKEFORD :    Then I  move on Cha i r.   I  am not  go ing  to  

go  in to  the  pro logue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Pure ly  because,  I  th ink  as  we get  in to  

the  meat  o f  i t ,  a  lo t  o f  the  substance there  wou ld  be  

covered and I  do  no t  want  to  wh inge and wh ine  about  my 

Ru le  3  r igh ts  tha t  had been abused .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Because we a re  a l l  adu l ts  and  we a l l  

have to  somet imes –  I  th ink  Advocate  Pre tor ius  re fe r red  to  20 

as  the re  is  a lways co l la te ra l  damage.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Bu t  in  the  in te res t  o f  the  na t ion  Cha i r  

and the  t ru th ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  on  –  I  w i l l  g ive  you the  

exact  page number  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  Mr  Notshe,  you must  remember  

when Mr  Wakeford  has f in ished  before  you s ta r t  you r  

quest ions tha t  we shou ld  have h is  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  as  an  

exh ib i t .    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   You may cont inue.  

MR WAKEFORD :    So ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . fo r  the  reco rd .  

MR WAKEFORD :    A t  page –  BOSASA 04865 and  i t  re fe rs  

to  the  -  my re la t i onsh ip  w i th  Gav in  Watson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD :    So  –  the  la te  Gav in  Watson,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    So  I  s ta r t  o f f .   Cha i r,  jus t  to  qua l i f y  

someth ing  because my pr imary  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Watson fami ly  was w i th  Ronn ie  and Va lence Watson.   In  

fac t ,  Cha i r  I  met  them as a  youngste r.   I  was a  s tudent  a t  

the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Por t  E l i zabeth  in  the  m id-80 ’s .   I  was  

rec ru i ted  in to  an  ANC underground ce l l ,  a  s t ruc ture  tha t  

u l t imate ly  repor ted  in to  Mpom-swaye-po l i so (?)  20 

[phonet ica l l y ]  and I  was r i gorous l y  schoo led  in  the  po l i t i cs  

o f  the  underg round a t  tha t  t ime.    

 And o f  course ,  as  you wou ld  know Cha i r,  be ing  –  

as  the  Xhosa [speak ing  vernacu la r ] .   I t  i s  no t  very  easy a t  

t imes to  opera te  w i th in  a  soc ie ty  tha t  was heav i l y  
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b ra inwashed in  par t i cu la r  aga ins t  the  Watson fami l y.   And 

you w i l l  remember  Cha i r  the i r  house was burn t  down,  the i r  

bus inesses went  bankrupt ,  the i r  bank –  the  banks pu l led  

the  loans and requ i red  them to  pay back and o f  course  i t  

was a  d isas ter  fo r  the  fami ly.    

 Bu t  dur ing  tha t  t ime,  Cha i r,  le t  me say tha t  and I  

am speak ing  o f f  the  scr ip t  bu t  le t  me say tha t  as  a  fami ly  

one cou ld  never  quest ion  the i r  commi tment  to  the  s t rugg le  

and democracy and non- rac ia l i sm and the  huge abuse tha t  

the  fami ly  su f fe red  both  a t  the  hands o f  fe l low wh i te  10 

c i t i zens and a t  the  hands o f  the  s ta te .    

 I  remember  them c lo th ing  and resourc ing  

youngste rs  who were  leav ing  the  count ry  jus t  a f te r  the  76 

r igh ts  and onward .   They owned c lo th ing  shops,  they  

prov ided shoes,  c lo th ing  and usua l ly  a  b i t  o f  money to  ge t  

ou t  o f  the  count ry  fo r  cer ta in  ANC recru i t s .   I  do  a l so  

remember  tak ing  them through Cha i r  as  a  fami ly  because 

they had l i te ra l l y  ran  ou t  o f . . .    

 So  dur ing  the  pe r iod  Cha i r,  1999 to  2002 I  was 

the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  the  SA Chamber  o f  Bus iness and  20 

dur ing  tha t  t ime Cha i r,  you w i l l  a lso  remember,  I  am sure ,  

because I  am sure  you know Judge Myburgh,  I  was a  

wh is t le -b lower  in  the  rap id  deprec ia t ion  o f  our  cu r rency.   I  

had rece ived in fo rmat ion  f rom a  source  whom I  never  

d isc losed and I  never  w i l l .    
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 Bu t  you w i l l  remember  tha t  as  a  consequence o f  

tha t  wh is t le -b lowing ac t iv i t y,  my l i fe  took a  very  d i f fe ren t  

tu rn  and as  Cees Bruggemans o f  FNB sa id  on  Moneyweb  

Rad io ,  he  sa id :   Wakeford  i s  now unemployed.   So i t  was 

as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  ac t ion  and maybe one day around a  f i re  

we can ta lk  abou t  those th ings i f  I  ever  have tha t  p r iv i lege  

o f  meet ing  you persona l ly,  bu t  I  w i l l  no t  ex t rapo la te  on  tha t  

now but  jus t  to  say th is  tha t  I  had to  become a  consu l tan t  

because I  wou ld  never  had su rv i ved and my ha rmony(?)  

wou ld  never  have  surv ived.    10 

 And one o f  the  consu l tanc ies  tha t  I  d id  ge t  and  

in  fac t  was as  a  resu l t  o f  an  in te rvent ion  o f  Va lence  

Watson who spoke to  Gav in  Watson and sa id :   Sure ly,  you  

can make use o f  the  fo rmer  SACOP’s  CEO.   Sure ly,  he  can 

add some va lue  to  your  bus iness.   And tha t  i s  when I  was  

cont rac ted  mid-2006 to  p rov ide  consu l tancy serv ices  wh ich  

were  var ied  and  I  am su re  i f  you  read the  body  o f  the 

ev idence rang ing  f rom bus iness oppor tun i t ies  submi t ted  

th rough to  po l i t i ca l  economic  ana lyses bu t  rea l l y  look ing  a t  

the  th rea ts  tha t  the  bus iness was encounter ing .    20 

 Cha i r,  le t  me jus t  qu ick ly  g i ve  you an ove ra l l  

p ic tu re  o f  BOSASA because i t  i s  un for tunate ly  in  my v iew i t  

became the  v ic t im o f  a  w i tch  hunt  and i t  s ta r ted  long  

before  the  Zondo  Commiss ion .   And dur ing  tha t  t ime Cha i r  

i t ,  in  my v iew,  was probab ly  a t  a  p rac t i t ioner  leve l .   I t  was 
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a  company tha t  led  the  pack in  te rms o f  unders tand ing  the  

essence o f  b lack  economic  empowerment  and b r ing ing  

d ign i ty  to  peop le .    

 So i t  was a  company in  te rms o f  i t s  ba lance 

scorecard ,  top  per fo rmer  leve l  one.   And I  heard  the  

counter  d iscuss ions around tha t  bu t  the  t ru th  i s ,  i f  you  

went  there  everyone was proud o f  what  they were  do ing .   I t  

was managed essent ia l l y  w i th  the  acceptance o f  what  I  ca l l  

the  f i f th  co lumn o r  a  few Whi t ley ’s .    

 I t  was managed,  as  many peop le  wou ld  say by  10 

[speak ing  vernacu lar ] .   And i t s  board  was b lack  w i th  the  

except ion  o f  Gav in  Watson.   The shareho ld ing  was 70/75% 

b lack .   The s ta f f ing  th roughout  f rom bot tom to  top  was 

b lack ,  A f r i can and i t  was not  abou t  nomina l  jobs  e i the r.   I t  

was about  peop le  becoming heav i l y  invo l ved in  the  day to  

day economic  ac t iv i t ies  o f  tha t  company.    

 And yes they want  some s ta te  cont rac ts  bu t  to  

say and I  f ind  i t  abso lu te ly  absurd ,  some peop le  in  the 

press  c la im ing tha t  b i l l i ons  o f  rands o f  cont rac ts .   The t ru th  

i s  tha t  i f  you  had to  take  B idvest  as  an  example  Cha i r  and I  20 

am not  ta rge t ing  B idvest  bu t  B idvest  was a  mains t ream 

company w i th  I  am sure  a  l o t  o f  wh i te  managed but  they  

masses s ta te  cont rac t  and they s t i l l  do  to  th is  day,  f rom 

garden ing  r igh t  th rough to  secur i t y,  to  ca ter ing ,  to  

log is t i cs ,  huge s ta te  cont rac ts .    
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 I  am su re  BOSASA wou ld  be  a  l i t t le  p imp le  in  

te rms o f  what  B idvest  had in  the  b roader  po l i t i ca l  economy 

and I  am sure  tha t  I  can re fer  to  o ther  examples  as  we l l  bu t  

fo r  the  sake o f  t ime,  I  w i l l  no t .   But  to  say Cha i r  tha t  I  

be l ieve  th is  company and tha t  i s  what  mot iva ted  me as a  

person and as  a  pro fess iona l  to  see where  we were  under  

th rea t .    

 Bu t  why were  we  a t  th rea t?   We were  a t  th rea t ,  

and I  say  we because I  was mere ly  a  par t - t ime consu l tan t  

bu t  I  had o the r  c l ien ts .   But  I  s tuck  w i th  them wi thout  an  10 

increase fo r  n ine  years ,  I  s tuck  w i th  them because I  

be l ieved in  the i r  v is ion  o therwise  I  wou ld  have  wa lked 

away.   And the  v i s ion  was put t ing  to  p rac t ise  and the  v is ion  

was empowerment  cannot  be  about  pass ive  shareho ld ing  

by  A f r i can peop le .    

 Empowerment  has go t  to  be  about  the  work force  

hav ing  a  share  and about  b lack  ownersh ip  who a t  leas t  

b lack  cont ro l  o f  the  company and tha t  i s  what  i t  d id  have.   

Cha i r,  I  met  a  youngster  the  o ther  day who was Fac i l i t i es  

Manager  a t  the  Krugersdorp  Campus,  the  HQ o f  BOSASA 20 

and he recogn ised me a t  a  ho te l  in  Houghton.   He was the  

Fac i l i t i es  Manager,  today is  a  wa i te r.    

 I t  g ives  you an idea o f  what  Gav in  Watson and  

o thers  d id  to  up l i f t  peop le .   He took youngsters  ou t  o f  the 

juven i le  c r im ina l  p rogramme and brought  them eventua l l y  
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be fore  judges and had them exonera ted  or  g ive  them some 

fo rm o f  re l ieve  and employed them Cha i r.   Employed them.   

And they became leaders  w i th in  the  organ isa t ion .    

 So you know th is  p ic tu re  pa in ted  o f  the  Watson ’s  

genera l l y  and o f  Gav in  in  par t i cu la r  i s  no t  t rue .   And I  must  

say  th is  because  I  be l ieve  a t  some s tage there  w i l l  be  a  

more  ba lanced v iew in  our  soc ie t i es  bu t  the  Watson ’s  g ive  

wh i te  peop le  c red ib i l i t y  and leg i t imacy in  th i s  coun t ry.   I f  i t  

were  no t  fo r  peop le  l i ke  tha t  and I  am su re  the re  are  o thers  

and one can name them,  Ne i l  A rgo t ,  Joe S lovo.    10 

 One can go on and on but  the  po in t  i s ,  i t  i s  those  

peop le  who p layed townsh ip  rugby and then bu i l t  

compan ies  tha t  were  empowered  and tha t  t rea ted  b lack  

peop le  as  equa ls  no t  as  economic  s laves,  no t  as  

subord ina tes .   I t  is  peop le  l i ke  tha t  tha t  we shou ld  t reasure  

and g ive  na t iona l  awards to  no t  t rea t  them l i ke  they have  

so ld  ou t  the  bagg ing(?)  sys tem o f  the  f reedom char t .   They 

have not .    

 So  Cha i r,  i f  I  cou ld  then leap in to  my re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Agr i zz i  because i t  g ives  contex t  and tha t  i s  –  i t  s ta r ts  20 

on  page 04866.   Cha i r,  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  th is  man was  

ten  years  and unproduct ive  f rom the  very  s ta r t .   My 

appo in tment  has  been suggested  –  had been suggested  

d i rec t l y  by  Gav in  Watson and by  the  Watson fami ly  i n  2006  

due to  h is  persona l  exper ience w i th  me wh ich  I  be l ieved  
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angered Agr i zz i  as  he  saw anyone who had a  d i rec t  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Watson as  a  th rea t  to  Agr izz i ’s  own  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Watson and cont ro l  o f  the  bus iness and I  

w i l l  ta lk  about  cont ro l  o f  the  bus iness jus t  now Cha i r.    

 Somet ime a f te r  meet ing  Agr i zz i  I  expressed to  

Watson my concerns about  Agr izz i ’s  character  and a t t i tude.   

BOSASA was a  growing b lack  economic  empowerment  

bus iness wh ich  cou ld  be  become a  benchmark  fo r  how 

b lack  economic  empowerment  p r inc ip les  cou ld  be  

successfu l l y  imp lemented.   Agr izz i ,  on  the  o ther  hand,  10 

appeared to  v iew economic  i nc lus ion  and A f rocent r ic i t y  as  

a  burden ra ther  than a  necess i ty.    

 I  remember  go ing  to  –  and I  am not  go ing  to  read 

th is  d i rec t  –  I  remember  go ing  to  the  S i l vers tar  Cas ino  

Conference Cent re  in  my ear l y  days as  a  consu l tan t .   I  had 

to  speak about  corpora te  governance and my exper ience a t  

the  commiss ion  in to  rap id  deprec ia t ion  o f  the  rand,  e t  

ce te ra ,  and Agr i zz i  came to  me a f te rwards and sa id  to  me,  

and I  cannot  remember  h i s  exact  words bu t  tha t  he  d id  no t  

rea l l y  be l ieve  tha t  o r  have conf idence in  b lack  management  20 

or  leadersh ip  in  sp i te  o f  t ry ing  to  pu t  po r t ray  h imse l f  as  

o therwise  to  Watson and the  board  o f  d i rec to rs  a t  the  t ime.    

 And le t  me a lso  say,  he  ingra t ia ted  h imse l f  to  

such an ex ten t  tha t  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Watson was 

tenuous as  we l l  because I  cha l lenged h im on a  number  o f  
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mat te rs  and h is  accused was:   Oh,  i t  i s  the  ra inbow nat ion .   

Now,  Kev in ,  eve ryone –  you got  to  g ive  everyone a  chance  

to  t ransfo rm.   S t range ly  enough Cha i r,  he  admi t ted  to  you 

in  o ra l  ev idence tha t  –  he  sa id :   Cha i r,  I  am a  rac is t .   But  

he  concea led  i t  fo r  a  long t ime.   For  a  long t ime.    

 S t range ly  enough ,  Agr izz i  in  h i s  a f f idav i t  to  the  

Commiss ion  on  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019 den ied  my c la ims as  to  h is  

rac i sm in  an  a t tempt  to  repos i t ion ,  and tha t  i s  in te res t ing .    

Cha i r,  when you see my found ing  a f f idav i t ,  my response to  

h is  a l legat ions and then a l l  o f  a  sudden he must  have had 10 

an oppor tun i ty  to  read i t  bu t  h is  s to ry  changed s ign i f i can t ly  

and in  h is  second a f f idav i t  in  re la t ion  to  the  ev idence,  the 

t imef rames and in  re la t ion  to  some o f  the  th ings  tha t  he  

admi t ted  to  in  th is  Commiss ion  inc lud ing  rac i sm.    

 He says in  h i s  second a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  no t  in  

the  pub l i c  domain :  

“ I  was one o f  the  persons who imp lemented 

and managed a  d ive rse  mul t i - cu l tu ra l  ba lance 

o f  competent  b lack  management  and s ta f f  in  

my ro le  a t  BOSASA.  20 

In  fac t ,  no t  on ly  ass is ted  in  b lack  management  

and leadersh ip  bu t  I  devoted many years  in  no t  

on ly  t ra in ing  bu t  ass i s t ing  the  competent  

ind iv idua ls  tha t  were  employed. . . ”  

 On the  2n d  o f  September,  Cha i r,  2018,  however,  
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C i ty  Press had pub l i shed a  23-minute  reco rd ing  o f  Agr izz i  

on  the i r  webs i te ,  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  wh ich  they had  

ver i f ied .   Shor t  exce rp ts  o f  th is  record ing  were  p layed  

dur ing  Agr i zz i ’s  ev idence befo re  th is  Commiss ion .   Agr izz i  

a t tempted to  suggest  tha t  the  excerp ts  o f  the  record ing  

were  no t  ind i ca t ive  o f  the  who le  record ing  wh ich  Advocate  

Pre tor ius  sa id  was not  in  the  possess ion  o f  the  

Commiss ion  a t  the  t ime.    

 I  had,  there fore ,  p rov ided a  t ransc r ip t ion  o f  the  

fu l l  23-minute  record ing  in  my bund le  Cha i r  and I  am sure  10 

you w i l l  have a  copy soon under  EA-18 and tender (?)  

p rov id ing  the  Commiss ion  w i th  the  au thent ica ted  record ing  

i t se l f .   So Cha i r,  i f  i t  i s  requ i red ,  one o f  my team have i t  fo r  

you.   In  the  record ing  wh ich  was made by  Agr i zz i  a t  h is  

home on the  24 t h  o f  August  2018 he sa id  about  b lack  

peop le  and A f r i cans,  Cha i r.  

“They s tea l ,  they  loo t ,  they  rape,  they  

dest roy. . . ”   

 In  re fe rence to  the  b lack  communi t y  co l lec t i ve ly.   

Agr izz i  then re fe r red  a  f r iend –  to  a  f r iend o f  h is ,  Romano,  20 

say ing  tha t  he  was not  a  rac i s t ,  he  is  a  rea l i s t  fo r  h is  v iew 

on b lack  economic  empowerment  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  led  a  

b ledd ie  K**** r.   K* -word  Cha i r,  run  h is  bus iness.   Th is  

conf i rmed Agr izz i ’s  own v iew on b lack  economic  

empowerment  Cha i r.    
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 Th is  i s  i n  s ta rk  cont ras t  to  what  Agr izz i  sa id  a t  

the  Commiss ion  on  the  16 t h  o f  January  2019 when  Agr izz i  

sa id :  

“The count ry  was  chang ing  fo r  the  be t te r  and 

we saw tha t  BEE credent ia l s  p layed a  majo r  

ro le . . . ”  

 Cha i r,  in  the  same record ing  o f  Agr izz i  on  the  

21 s t  o f  August  2018,  Agr izz i  says ,  one,  re fe r red  to  the 

b lack  d i rec tors  o f  BOSASA as monkeys,  by  re fer r ing  to  

b lack  d i rec tor,  Trevo r  Mathen jwa as  h is  pe t  monkey,  10 

Romeo.    

 And Cha i r,  you –  when you see  the  ev idence 

la te r,  you w i l l  a lso  see tha t  he  has a  monkey a t  home tha t  

he  ca l l s  Romeo.   Two,  re fe r red  to  the  b lack  d i rectors  o f  

BOSASA as dys funct iona l .   Th ree:  

“ I  w i l l  persona l ly  go  in to  tha t  company w i th  o r  

w i thout  permiss ion  and I  w i l l  F** *  each o f  

those K**** ’s*  ou t  o f  there . . . ”    

 Refe r r ing  to  the  b lack  d i rec tors  o f  the  company.   

S ta ted  tha t :    20 

“That  K*** * r  needs a  good h id ing . . . ”    

 Refe r r ing  to  respected a t to rney,  Peter  Tsh iseve.    

 And s ta ted :    

“ “ I  w i l l  teach each one o f  those K**** ’s*  where  

to  ge t  o f f . . . ”    
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 Once aga in  re fer r ing  to  the  b lack  d i rec to rs  o f  the  

company.   And s ix ,  s ta ted  tha t  the  b lack  d i rec to rs  o f  the  

company were  no t  competent .   I t  is  c lear l y  a  l ie  by  Agr izz i  

to  suggest  to  the  Commiss ion  and  h is  representa t ion  to  i t  

on  the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019 tha t  he  is  no t  a  rac i s t  and tha t  h is  

be l ie f  i s  tha t  these very  same peop le  he  re fer red  to  as  

monkeys,  dys funct iona l ,  rap is t ,  th ieves and loo ters  a re  

sudden ly  a  competent  b lack  management  and s ta f f  in  h is  

v iew and tha t  he ,  in  fac t ,  worked very  we l l  and had a  good 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  b lack  d i rec tors .    10 

 Indeed,  there  cou ld  be  no greater  p roo f  o f  

Agr izz i  purge- r i ng  h imse l f  in  h is  a f f idav i t  to  the 

Commiss ion  on  the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019 by  deny ing  my c la ims 

as  to  h is  rac ism than Agr i zz i  spec i f i ca l l y  s ta t ing  to  

Cha i rman on the  29 t h  o f  January  2019 in  h is  o ra l  ev idence:   

“Cha i r,  I  am a rac is t . ”   So Cha i r,  the  o ther  th ing  and I  am 

not  go ing  to  ta lk  to  sc r ip t  now.    

 The –  bu t  the  same page,  the  o ther  th ing  tha t  I  

th ink  i s  ve ry  impor tan t  fo r  the  –  i s  tha t  th is  man was the  

day fac to  CEO of  the  company.   He had bu i l t  an  20 

ins t i tu t iona l  mode o f  cont ro l  a round Gav in  Watson.   He 

even re fer red  to  and responded a t  –  cer ta in ly  a t  tha t  po in t  

in  t ime to  Gav in  Watson ’s  emai ls .    

 There  are  board- reso lu t ions wh ich  you w i l l  see  

in  the  ev idence where  –  even in  te rms o f  some o f  these 
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c r im ina l  ac t i v i t ies  where  Henn ing  van Tonder,  the  CFO,  

were  –  the  so le (?)  –  tha t  they were  the  guys who s igned  

a lmost  every th ing  and they were  empowered to  by  the  

board  in  te rms –  a l though there  were  o ther  peop le  who  

cou ld  have s igned,  there  was a  l i s t  o f  peop le ,  they were  

the  two s ignato r ies  in  the  main .    

 I  am dea l ing  w i th  the  banks,  to  dea l ing  w i th  

i ssues o f  f inance,  to  dea l ing  w i th  i ssues o f  p rocurement  

approva ls  and s ign ing  o f f  payments .   Gav in  Watson,  as  we 

a l l  know,  was not  a  de ta i led  man.   In  a  char ismat ic  f igure ,  10 

someone who loved the  peop le ,  spent  t ime a t  the  youth  

cent res  w i th ,  you know,  juven i le  de l inquents .    

 He jus t  loved peop le  and he managed by  wa lk ing  

around.   He d id  no t  have a  desk or  an  o f f i ce  and he very  

ra re ly  used a  compute r.   Agr izz i  was the  CEO here  Cha i r.   

As  much as  he  den ies  i t  and there  is  ev idence to  back i t  up  

bu t  he  was not  ca l led  the  CEO,  he  was ca l led  the  Ch ie f  

Opera t ing  Off i cer  and i t  i s  my v iew tha t  i f  any th ing  went  

wrong tha t  he  was inexp l i cab le  pa r t  o f  what  went  wrong a t  

BOSASA.    20 

 And I  warned Gav in  Watson about  h im on severa l  

occas ions to  say  th is  man is  up  to  someth ing  because I  

wou ld  b r ing  oppor tun i t ies  fo r  the  company,  none o f  them 

were  cons ide red.   Not  one.   You cannot  te l l  me every  

s ing le  oppor tun i ty  was not  a  s t rong bus iness case.    
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 Cha i r,  on to  the  next  page.   Agr izz i  ac tua l l y  says 

he  den ies .   He says:    

“ I  deny tha t  I  cont ro l led  Gav in  Watson ’s  emai l  

account  and tha t  on ly  emai l s  tha t  I  rece ived  

f rom Kev in  Wake ford ,  I  had g i ven  examples  o f  

the  same wh ich  had been a t tached  here to . . . ”  

 But  Cha i r  i f  you  look a t  a  lo t  o f  the  ev idence tha t  

can be cons idered here ,  ce r ta in ly  i n  my pack and I  do  re fe r  

to  where  one shou ld  go  in  te rms  o f  the  re ferences,  i t  i s  

very,  ve ry  c lear  t ha t  there  is  p roo f  where  he  even responds 10 

in  one emai l  to  say :  

“Do not  bo ther  about  emai l ing  Gav in  because I  

am respond ing  to  i t  anyway. . . ”  

 He ac tua l l y  says  i t .   S i r  o r  Cha i r,  you w i l l  a lso  

know and I  am sure  you have read my pr io r  a f f idav i t s  bu t  

there  is  su f f i c ien t  ev idence to  p rove tha t  -  and the  

invest iga to rs  even had s igh t  o f  my bank deta i l s  bu t  –  

where  he  says I  was pa id  a  hundred thousand .   The  

ev idence speaks to  a  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  scenar io .   F i r s t l y,  way 

outs ide  o f  the  t imef rame o f  the  so-ca l l ed  SARS 20 

Invest iga t ion  and second ly,  Cha i r,  those payments  are  

proven captured  payments  where  he ,  to  f rus t ra te  me,  

de l ibe ra te l y  d id  no t  pay me fo r  months  a t  t imes Cha i r.    

 Bu t  because o f  my commi tment  in  par t i cu la r  to  

the  fami ly  and what  they be l ieved  in ,  I  cont inued to  ass i s t  
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and then –  and i f  one looks a t  the  741 –  the  Sect ion  7-  417  

minutes  where  h im and Van Tonder  cont rad i c t  eve ry th ing ,  

and Foste r,  tha t  they sa id  in  f ron t  o f  you.   Every th ing  is  

cont rad i c ted .    

 They have purge- red  themse lves  Cha i r.   They 

have commi t ted  a  c r im ina l  ac t  and those –  bo th  those 

ac t iv i t ies ,  the  one took p lace i n  f ron t  o f  you as  a  judge and  

the  o ther  took f ron t  –  took p lace  in  f ron t  o f  Judge Jo f fe  

who was the  Commiss ioner  a t  the  Sect ion  417.   So Cha i r,  I  

am worr ied  about  you r  t ime.   So I  am t ry ing  to  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

MR WAKEFORD :    A re  you okay w i th  the  way I  am do ing  i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  we jus t  wanted you –  you were  

go ing  to  g ive  an  overv iew . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .over  the  h igh- leve l  and  then le t  

Mr  Notshe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .d i rec ted  ques t ions to  you in  regard  to  20 

more  de ta i l s .   Do you need anothe r,  what ,  15-minutes  or  

how do you fee l?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Oh,  Cha i r.   No,  I  wou ld  need more  than  

5-minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  
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MR WAKEFORD :    I  wou ld  need more  than 15-minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay how much t ime do you need? 

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  you  cou ld  g ive  me an 

hour,  hour  and a  ha l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then you w i l l  have comple ted?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Le t  us  see how –  where  you are  

by  quar te r  past  e leven . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .when we take the  tea  break.   10 

Pre ferab le  when  we come back maybe we cou ld  look a t  

quest ions because you wou ld  s t i l l  be  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  

o ther  i ssues.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Notshe,  i s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    I  am happy w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Counse l  fo r  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  do  you 

th ink  tha t  i s  f ine?  

ADV REG WILLIS :    . . .Mr  Wakeford  cou ld  -  may  need a  

l i t t le  b i t  more  t ime but  you are  –  Mr  Cha i rman,  you are  20 

cor rec t .   Le t  us  see how i t  goes.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV REG WILL IS :    Cha i rman ,  can I  jus t  take  the  

oppor tun i ty  o f  –  because you do not  have the  bund le  o f  

annexure  be fo re  you . . . [ in te rvenes ]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV REG WILLIS :    Mr  Wakeford  i s  no t  re fe r r ing  to  i t  bu t  

because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    La ter  on .  

ADV REG WILLIS :    . . . i f  you  canno t  see i t ,  every th ing  he  is  

speak ing  to  i s  re fe renced w i th  annexures and there  is  

about  330 odd pages . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV REG WILLIS :    . . .o f  ev idence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV REG WILLIS :    . . . tha t  he  is  no t  speak ing  d i rec t l y  to  

because o f  t ime const ra in ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV REG WILLIS :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .    

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  I  am see ing  what  I  can sk ip  i f  I  

can.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on.   I  th ink  the  ev idence leader  i s  

d is tu rb ing  eve rybody w i th  the  gestures  bu t  he  was t ry ing  to  

a r range fo r  water  fo r  you Mr  Wakeford .  20 

MR WAKEFORD :    Oh.   I t  i s  very  k ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The Commiss ion  s ta f f  w i l l  make su re  

tha t  he  has go t  water.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Thank you,  s i r.   Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.  
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MR WAKEFORD :    Okay.   In  h is  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion  

on  the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  2019,  he  sa id :  

“ I  d id  no t  have a  bad work ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Kev in  Wakeford .  

There  was no [word  cu t ]  be tween  us .   I t  was the  

d i re  s i tua t ion  o f  Kev in  Wakeford ’s  f inanc ia l  sys tem. ”  

And tha t  there  was one f inanc ia l  h iccup in  my  sys tem,  

Cha i r,  and tha t  was i t  and tha t  I  p rove and I  p rov ide  you  

w i th  the  ev idence .    

“The Commiss ion ’s  invest iga to rs  had however  10 

conf ron ted Agr i zz i  w i th  an  emai l  da ted  the  7  March  

2012 where  he  says:  

“Car los ,  th is  was done as  agree  when I  reduced  

Kev in  Wakeford…” 

Ta lk ing  to  the  amount  I  rece ived.   

“…for  March and  R50 000 fo r  Feb.   We a re  we l l  

beh ind  i t  bu t  I  w i l l  manage expecta t ions  on  h is  s ide .   

The consu l tan t  i s  us ing  the  a t tached veh ic le  t o  

channe l  payments . ”  

And I  am not  exact ly  sure  bu t  c lea r ly  he  reduced –  he  was 20 

the  person who was ad jus t ing  and p lay ing  the  foo l  w i th  my 

payments ,  Cha i r.    

“When asked fo r  comment  I  was  in fo rmed by  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  Agr izz i  responded dur ing  th is  

per iod  the  company was under  cash f low pressure  
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and Mr  Gav in  Watson ins t ruc ted  me not  to  make 

fu r ther  payments  to  Kev in  Wakefo rd . ”   

 So,  Cha i r,  i f  you  go to  page –  BOSASA 04/873,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I t  re fe rs  to  the  Sect ion  417 t ranscr ip t s  

where  Advocate  Lourens i s  ques t ion ing  Van  Tonder  the 

fo rmer  CFO of  BOSASA.    

ADV WITZ:    So r ry,  Cha i r,  i f  I  can  make a  submiss ion  in  

th is  regard?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WITZ:    My unders tand ing  is  –  so r ry,  Cha i r,  I  have jus t  

been to ld  jus t  to  move so  you can hear  me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV WITZ:    I f  I  can  jus t  make a  submiss ion  a t  th is  s tage 

w i th  the  u tmost  o f  respect ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV WITZ:    The  second 417 inqu i ry  wh ich  is  he ld  be fore  

the  learned re t i red  Judge Jo f fe  a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  MacRober t  

Adams,  was a  secre t  inqu i ry.   In  te rms o f  tha t  secre t  20 

inqu i ry,  I  am not  sure  how Mr  Wakeford  and h i s  lega l  team 

are  now in  possess ion  o f  what  i s  supposed to  be  a  secre t  

inqu i ry.   That  i s  the  who le  purpose o f  the  Companies  Act .   

So re ference to  th is ,  in  o rder  to  t ry  and substant i a te  the  

who le  promot ion  tha t  Mr  Wakeford ,  w i th  respect ,  i s  g iv ing  
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o f  the  la te Watson fami ly  and a l l  the i r  BEE credent ia ls  and 

what  they d id  and now us ing  secre te  inqu i ry  documents  

wh ich  shou ld  no t  be  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  or  in  the  

pub l i c  because the  learned judge  on many occas ions in  

tha t  mat te r  made i t  c lear  tha t  i t  i s  a  secre t  inqu i ry  and 

those documents  cannot  be  re leased to  anybody.   So I  am 

now sure  how they have come in to  possess ion ,  perhaps my 

learned f r iend who appears  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Wake ford  can  

exp la in  how they have come in to  possess ion  o f  secre t  

inqu i ry  documents  and I  th ink  the  s lan t  tha t  Mr  Wakeford ,  10 

w i th  re spe c t ,  i s  t r y i ng  to  pu t  on  th i s  in  o rde r  to  bo l s te r  

and  t r y  a nd  p ro m o te  h i s  re la t io n sh ip ,  h i s  un i ve rs i t y  da ys ,  

the  wh o le  scen a r io  tha t  h e  ha s  g i ven  m igh t  ha ve  a  

se r io u s  impa c t  i n  re ga rd s  to  t he  e f fe c t  o f  h i s  e v ide n ce .   

So  i f  we  co u ld  j u s t  dea l  w i t h  th a t  a spe c t  an d  I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  ju s t  ra i se  tha t  a t  t h i s  s tag e .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WITZ:    Because on many occas ions in  tha t  inqu i ry  I  

was present  the  learned judge made i t  c lear  tha t  –  and he  

put  i t  on  record  be fore  we s ta r ted ,  i t  i s  a  secre t  inqu i ry,  20 

there  were  on ly  one or  two peop le  tha t  were  pr ivy  to  i t  and  

none o f  th is  can be put  in  the  pub l i c  domain .   That  i s  the  

very  purpose o f  Sect ion  417,  so  i f  we can jus t  dea l  w i th  

tha t  and get  some c la r i f y  as  to  how th is  i s  now in  the  

pub l i c  domain  f rom what  h i s  –  t hen i t  de fea ts  the  who le  
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purpose o f  Sect ion  417.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WITZ:    So  i f  we cou ld  jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  w i th  

respect .   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Would  you l i ke  to  respond?  

MR WAKEFORD :    As  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i rman.   Cha i r,  

indeed we have put  up  ex t rac t s ,  a  number  o f  ex t rac ts ,  I  

th ink  seven or  e igh t ,  tha t  come f rom the  417 t ranscr ip t .   In  

each ins tance we put  them up because they show Mr  

Agr izz i  and Mr  Vors ter  to  have per ju red  themselves and  10 

l ied  under  oa th  be fore  Judge Jo f fe ,  i s  –  there  a re  ex t rac ts  

in  re la t ion  to  ev idence by  Mr  van Tonder  who  in  fac t  

suppor ts  the  proper  unders tand ing  o f  h is  ev idence,  Mr  

Wakeford ’s  ev idence.   We asked the  Commiss ion  to  ob ta in  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am sor ry,  tha t  i s  the  –  you a re  

dea l ing  w i th  the  purpose o f  re fe r r i ng  to  i t .   I  th ink  counse l  

fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  ra ises  the  lega l i t y  o f  pu t t ing  i t  in  the  pub l i c  

domain  and …[ in tervenes]  

ADV WITZ:    Indeed so .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  the  issue he is  ra is ing .    

ADV WITZ:    Indeed so ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  i s  the  re levance  

o f  the  in fo rmat ion ,  f i rs t l y.   We f i rs t  approached the  

Commiss ion  las t  year  in  October,  asked them to  ob ta in  a  

copy o f  the  t ranscr ip t  and we p laced tha t  re levance  before  
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the  Commiss ion ,  the  secre tar ia t .   Of  course  we  d id  so  

because th is  Commiss ion  has powers  to  ob ta in  tha t  

t ranscr ip t .   We obta ined no response.   There  may have  

been one response,  Mr  Notshe sa id  to  me yeste rday tha t  

he  be l ieved tha t  there  had been a  wr i t ing  to  say tha t  we 

shou ld  ob ta in  i t  ourse lves.   I  look  th rough the  

cor respondence,  I  d id  no t  f ind  tha t  bu t  cer ta in ly  f rom Mr 

Notshe ’s  s ide  he  be l ieved he had dea l t  w i th  the  issue.   Of  

course  f rom ours  i t  had not  been dea l t  w i th .  

 We fo l lowed up in  a  number  o f  wr i t ten  i tems both  to  10 

the  Commiss ion  and d i rec t l y  to  yourse l f  ask ing  fo r  a  

meet ing  to  sor t  these th ings ou t  and obta in ing  the  –  there  

were  o ther  documents ,  ob ta in ing  in  par t i cu la r  th is  

t ranscr ip t  because o f  i t s  re levance .  

 In  the  meant ime  we t r ied  to  ob ta in  tha t  document  

ourse l ves th rough the  Master ’s  o f f i ce ,  the  Hawks t r ied  to  

ob ta in  a  copy o f  tha t  document  too ,  we know,  and fo r  

whatever  reason,  i t  was not  fo r thcoming.  

 What  the  person who has g iven tha t  document  to  us  

i s  Mr  Jared Watson.   He i s  the  nephew o f  Mr  Gav in  20 

Watson,  he  is  a lso  the  rep resenta t i ve  o f  the  shareho lders  

in  BOSASA l iqu ida t ion .   He,  as  o f  r igh t ,  i s  en t i t led  to  the 

t ranscr ip t  and obta ined tha t  t ransc r ip t .   He in fo rmed our  

c l ien t  who in fo rmed us  tha t  there  were  these 

cont rad i c t ions .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That . .?  

ADV WITZ :    There  were  these cont rad i c t ions ,  these 

per ju r ious[s i c ]  cont rad ic t ions  tha t  I  have re fe r red  to  

in i t ia l l y  and the  suppor t  by  Mr  van Tonder  o r  the  suppor t  o f  

h is  ev idence,  shou ld  I  say.   And he was not  w i l l i ng  to  

sur render  the  documenta t ion  to  us  to  p lace  or  the  ex t rac ts  

to  p lace  in  the  pub l i c  domain .   He wanted us  to  ob ta in  the  

–  no t  the  pe rmiss ion ,  bu t  a  subpoena.    

You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  th is  i ssue came before  you 

yesterday and  your  a t t i tude  was tha t  under  the  10 

c i rcumstances o f  p ressure  w i th  us  ad journ ing  yeste rday 

you were  no t  a t  tha t  s tage p repared to  i ssue a  subpoena.   

When we re t i red  f rom here ,  Cha i rman,  we went  back to  my  

chambers  and there  I  asked –  I  ca l led  fo r  Mr  Watson to  

a t tend a t  my chambers  and out  o f  Mr  Wakeford ’s  respect  

fo r  h im,  he  asked h im one more  t ime to  cons ider  h is  

pos i t ion .  

 We took the  pos i t ion  tha t  no tw i ths tand ing  prev ious  

adv ice  he  had taken or  h is  own be l ie f  and unders tand ing  

tha t  there  i s  no  rea l  reason fo r  h im and tha t  he  is  no t  20 

proper ly  p roh ib i ted ,  he  is  no t  ac tua l ly  p roh ib i ted  on  a  

proper  unders tand ing  o f  Sect ion  417.   I  mean,  the  law in  

re la t ion  the re to ,  he  is  no t  ac tua l l y  p roh ib i ted  f rom g iv ing  i t  

to  us .   In  fac t  anybody can use  i t  in  c r im ina l  and c i v i l  

p roceed ings and I  say  tha t  sub jec t  to  the  qua l i f i ca t ions tha t  
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a re  conta ined in  Sect ion  417 and a  commentary  in  the  

var ious au thor i t ies  tha t  dea l  w i th  i t  and w i thout  p reva i l ing  – 

w i thout  p ressur i s ing  h im,  we d id  preva i l  on  h im to 

recons ide r.   He le f t  us  fo r  a  number  o f  hours  and he went  

and consu l ted  h is  a t to rneys and  whoever  e lse  and took  

adv ice .    

 He came back to  us  and he made the  e lec t ion  to  

then a l low us to  pub l i sh  i t  and tha t  i s  why you f ind  i t  in  th is  

fo rmat  in  the  a f f idav i t  no tw i ths tand ing  us  no t  ob ta in ing  a  

subpoena f rom yourse l f .   The nub o f  the  – sor ry,  m ight  I  10 

jus t  take  an ins t ruc t ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV WITZ :    What  had been  tak ing  p lace beh ind  the  

scenes was an e f fo r t  –  an  a t tempt  to  ge t  th rough the  r igh t  

channe ls  w i th in  the  Master ’s  o f f i ce  and I  am go ing  to  read 

to  you tha t  we have jus t  rece ived tha t  permiss ion  f rom the  

Master ’s  o f f i ce .    

So as  I  s i t  now before  you and as  I  l i f t  th is  phone 

and g ive  you my  assurance as  counse l  in  th is  mat te r,  on  

my ins t ruc t ion ,  as  I  have not  read i t ,  th is  i s  the  au thor i t y  by  20 

the  Master ’s  o f f i ce .   But  the  nub  o f  the  mat te r  where  we  

not  to  have rece ived th is ,  the  nub  o f  our  v iew is  t ha t  the  

Commiss ioner  in  a  417 inqu i ry  does not  have power  to  

e i ther  p roh ib i t  o r  to  en t i t le  anybody to  use i t  and pub l i sh  i t .   

Whatever  po r t ions  and warn ings were  g iven by  Judge Jo f fe  
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and the  Commiss ion ,  no  doubt  were  g i ven pursuant  to  

Sect ion  417 and obv ious ly  genera l  unders tand ings o f  417,  

e tce te ra .    

 However,  we ho ld  the  v iew tha t  some o f  those 

unders tand ings are  somet imes misconst rued.   I  am not  

say ing  tha t  Judge Jo f fe  m isconst rues them but  cer ta in l y  

o ther  persons o f ten  do .   I t  i s  the  Maste r  who ho lds  the  

power  to  o rde r.    

Yes,  somet imes tha t  can be and in  many ins tances  

spec i f i c  powers  are  de legated to  Commiss ioners ,  such as  10 

Judge Jo f fe ,  bu t  there  was no rea l  p roh ib i t ion  in  our  v iew.   

We asked Mr  Watson to  go  and have tha t  cons idered by  h is  

lega l  rep resenta t i ves ,  i t  was,  he  came back,  I  do  no t  know 

what  adv ice  they gave h im,  I  d id  no t  want  to  know tha t .    

But ,  nonethe less ,  an  urgent  le t te r  was aga in  

d ispatched yeste rday and de l i vered to  the  Master ’s  o f f i ce .   

Yesterday both  the  Master  and the  ass i s tan t  Master  were  

no t  ava i lab le ,  e i the r.   And we can  p lace th is  be fore  you as  

soon as  we can have i t  p r in ted  up .    

We now have  the  permiss ion  o f  the  Master.   20 

Nonethe less ,  the  mat te r  i s ,  in  our  submiss ion ,  now moot .   

Thank you,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Obv ious l y  bo th  Mr  Notshe and counse l  

fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  wou ld  need to  see the  pe rmiss ion  bu t  I  th ink  

tha t  i t  may be tha t  i t  m igh t  be  be t te r  tha t  we do no t  –  tha t  
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Mr  Wakeford  does not  re fe r  to  these ex t ract s  fo r  now.   

Maybe la te r  un t i l  I  am a lso  sa t is f ied  tha t  i t  i s  in  o rder  to  do  

so  bu t  a lso  un t i l  counse l  fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  has looked a t  the 

permiss ion  and re f lec ted  and Mr  Notshe.   So I  suggest  tha t  

Mr  Wakefo rd  sk ips  th is  par t  fo r  now and then we can look  

a t  la te r  in  the  day.  

ADV WITZ :    Might  I  jus t  –  thank you,  Mr  Cha i rman,  w i th  

your  leave might  I  jus t  say  tha t  there  is  an  in t roductory  

parag raph tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  he  has been re l iab ly  

in fo rmed wi th  the  br ie fes t  o f  summary and then he can s top  10 

a t  tha t  po in t .   I f  I  cou ld  suggest  tha t ,  fo r  h is  ears ,  and then 

not  quote  f rom the  quota t ions wh ich  are  se t  ou t  and o f  

course  the  ex t rac ts  a re  a t tached but  he  w i l l  no t  quo te  f rom 

i t .   Thank you,  as  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  one a t  –  i s  tha t  parag raph 84 

tha t  you a re  ta lk ing  about?   

“However,  I  am in fo rmed…” 

ADV WITZ :    Cha i rman,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ge t  there .  

“However,  I  am in fo rmed  tha t  Agr izz i ’s  

accompl ice…”  20 

E tce tera ,  e tce te ra .   So he wou ld  read tha t  paragraph,  then 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  what  I  wou ld  pre fer  i s  tha t  le t  h im 

not  read i t  now,  le t  h im – i f  la te r  on  I  say  no ,  he  can go  

ahead and read  the  ex t rac ts  then he can in t roduce the  
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ex t rac ts  by  f i rs t  read ing  i t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.  

ADV WITZ :   Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  w i th  your  leave p lease 

preva i l  on  you and a lso  tes t  my unders tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV WITZ :    In  the  next  paragraph 85 is  the  ac tua l  ex t rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WITZ :    84 ,  to  wh ich  I  have a l luded is  mere ly  the  

br ie fes t  o f  summary in  wh ich  he  says:  

“However,  I  in fo rmed…” 

And he is  en t i t led  to  p lace  tha t  ev idence before  you as  10 

what  he  i s  in fo rmed in  the  br ie fes t  o f  te rms.   He is  t hen not  

p lace  the  ex t rac t  be fore  you.   I  wou ld ,  w i th  your  leave,  

p reva i l  on  you to  a l low to  read the  pa ragraphs before  bu t  

no t  the  paragraphs w i th  the  ex t rac ts .   As  you p lease,  Mr  

Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  my d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t  i s  tha t  I  must  

jus t  look  a t  the  re levant  p rov i s ions f i rs t ,  you know,  even 

w i th  the  summary,  i t  i s  be t te r  tha t  I  look  a t  the  re levant  

p rov is ions.   You have ind ica ted  tha t  the  Maste r  must  g ive  

permiss ion .  20 

ADV WITZ :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And not  the  Commiss ioner  a t  the  417 

Inqu i ry.   Counse l  fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  seemed to  proceed on the  

bas is  e i the r  tha t  the  s ta tue  does  not  a l low i t  o r  the  once 

the  Commiss ioner  has sa id  i t  i s  secre t  tha t  shou ld  be  the  
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pos i t ion .   So before  Mr  Wakeford  says –  even i f  i t  i s  no t  

the  ex t rac ts  he  says what  he  unders tands has been  

tes t i f ied  to  a t  the  inqu i ry  I  wou ld  jus t  have a  look a t  the  

re levant  s ta tu tory  p rov i s ions and the  pe rmiss ion  so  I  

sa t i s fy  myse l f  tha t  even say ing  what  has been sa id  there  in  

your  own words is  okay.  

ADV WITZ :    As  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i rman.   Thank you fo r  

your  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  al r ight .   So,  Mr  Wakeford ,  fo r  

now le t  us  keep  th is  par t  –  le t  us  keep th is  par t ,  you  10 

proceed and then  a t  some s tage we w i l l  come back to  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  can I  a lso  make a  suggest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can I  a lso  make a  suggest ion  to  Mr  

Wakeford?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  Wakeford ,  I  th ink  you have 

demonst ra ted  w i th  the  ex t rac ts  you have re fer red  the  Cha i r  

your  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Agr izz i ,  h is  a t t i tude to  race 20 

re la t ions .   Can we move – or  be fore  I  even ask  you to  

move,  th is  a f f idav i t ,  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  go ing  to  be  admi t ted ,  

the  Cha i r  i s  go ing  to  have the  a f f idav i t .   You have to ld  h im 

tha t  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  you was -  you re fer red  

h im to  the  ex t rac ts .   You have to ld  h im Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  race  
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re la t ions .   Now the  Cha i rman has  got  tha t  and i f  I  may ask  

you,  bu t  I  do  no t  want  you to  sk ip  what  you want  to  p lace  –  

move -  fo r  ins tance,  your  next  top ic  i s  go ing  to  be  your  

pos i t ion  as  the  CEO of  Armscor,  to  move to  tha t .   A re  you  

happy w i th  tha t  –  I  w i l l  ask  you to  move to  page 877 .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Notshe,  what  you mean is  

tha t  when you look a t  what  appears  a f te r  the  ex t rac ts  up  to  

jus t  be fo re  the  next  top ic  i t  seems tha t  a  l o t  o f  tha t  i s  

about  Agr i zz i ’s  a t t i tude to  b lack  peop le  and so  on? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing ,  wh ich  10 

po in t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you a re  say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Which  po in t  has been made.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  i f  I  cou ld  jus t ,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  speak to  the  end o f  my re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Agr izz i ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  fo r  the  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  wou ld  be  on page – BOSASA 

04/876.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Ja .   Cha i r,  th is  a l l  came to  a  head  

before  he  was ex i ted ,  fo r  want  o f  a  be t te r  word ,  ou t  o f  the 

company.   I  was a t  tha t  t ime a  CEO of  Armscor  bu t  I  s t i l l  

re ta ined a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Watson fami ly,  I  mean,  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 52 of 318 
 

some o f  the i r  ch i ld ren  are  godch i ld ren  to  me as we l l .   So ,  

you know,  one cont inues w i th  re la t ionsh ips ,  one does not  

jus t  move on when you do not  have a  consu l tancy bu t  save 

to  say,  Cha i r,  tha t  in  la te  2016 we  were  hav ing  co f fee  –  i t  

was myse l f ,  Va lence Watson,  Gav in  Watson,  Ja red Watson,  

Dan ie l  Watson jun io r,  no t  Cheeky and Gav in  go t  a  ca l l  f rom 

Agr izz i  to  say can he  pop in  and a t  tha t  co f fee  sess ion ,  fo r  

want  o f  a  be t te r  word .   In  the  course  o f  d iscuss ions Agr i zz i  

began vent i la t ing  h is  anger  w i th  the  board  o f  d i rec tors  o f  

BOSASA and then made the  fo l low ing joke .   There  are  on ly  10 

two th ings I  ha te  –  th is  i s  h is  words –  the  one is  a  rac i s t  

and the  o ther  i s  a  b lood K .   I  immedia te ly  conf ron ted 

Agr izz i  ob jec t ing  tha t  he  speak –  he  is  speak ing  o f  our  

b ro thers ,  you do  not  speak o f  our  b ro thers  l i ke  tha t  to  

wh ich  he  sa id  do  not  be  so  sens i t i ve ,  i t  i s  jus t  a  joke .   

Then Agr i zz i  le f t .   

When he le f t ,  we d iscussed the  inc ident .   Th is  was 

aga in  conf i rmat ion  what  I  suspec ted o f  Agr izz i  a l l  these 

years ,  tha t  he  was a  rac is t .   I  be l ieve  tha t  i t  was shor t l y  

a f te r  th is  tha t  Agr izz i ’s  employment  w i th  BOSASA was 20 

te rm inated in  ea r ly  2017.   Among the  reasons Agr izz i ’s  

employment  was te rm inated in  March 2017 were :  

1 .   H is  o f fens ive  and rac is t  language towards the  

b lack  board  o f  d i rec to rs .  

2 .  H is  au toc ra t i c  behav iou r  and comple te  d is regard  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 53 of 318 
 

fo r  the  au thor i t y  o f  the  board  o f  d i rec tors .   

I t  had come to  l igh t  tha t  Agr izz i  had employed numerous 

f r iends o f  h is  w i th in  BOSASA wi thout  go ing  th rough 

ord inary  human resources processes and two,  he  had 

awarded substan t ia l  sa la ry  increases to  aco ly tes  o f  h is  

w i th in  BOSASA wi thout  go ing  th rough the  Remco o r  

remunera t ion  commi t tee .   Th is  i s  ev ident  f rom the  minutes  

o f  the  BOSASA board  meet ing  o f  the  9  March 2017  where  

i n te r  a l ia  the  re t renchment  o f  these employees is  

d iscussed.   H is  c rony ism and c landest ine  deve lopment  o f  a  10 

f i f th  co lumn wi th in  the  BOSASA group.  

 And,  Cha i r,  as  I  go  on  you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  no t ion  

o f  a  f i f th  co lumn is  no t  consp i ra tor ia l ,  i t  i s  about  

deve lop ing  a  group ing  w i th in  an  o rgan isa t ion  tha t  

techn ica l l y  pursue the i r  own agenda w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  

and as  we go th rough th is ,  a  lo t  o f  tha t  w i l l  be  uncovered 

as  we l l .  

 Cha i r,  bu t  i f  I  can  move on to  page where  Adv  

Notshe has asked me to  speak to  my pos i t ion  as  CEO of  

Armscor  and some o f  the  po l i t i ca l  mach ina t ions  there .   20 

Cha i r,  jus t  to  summar i se  a  lo t  o f  us .   I  was appo in ted  on  

the  1  May 2015 and cont rary  to  some pub l ic  commentary,  

the  appo in tment  was a  r i gorous p rocess.   I ,  fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime in  many years ,  had to  do  competency tes ts ,  e tce te ra ,  

and I  was to ld  once I  had been appo in ted  tha t  I  in  fac t  
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ou tper fo rmed a l l  the  o ther  app l i can ts .  

 A t  no  s tage du r ing  my employment  d id  Watson or  

BOSASA t ry  to  exp lo i t  the i r  h is to r ica l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  us  

and I  th ink  have a t tes ted  to  the  fac t  tha t  dur ing  my  tenure  

we had th ree  c lean aud i ts  as  we l l  as  an  unqua l i f ied  aud i t .    

 Bu t  th is  was no t  the  case Agr i zz i  and h is  son  

Giancar lo  who a t tempted  to  musc le  in  a  company o f  

G iancar lo ’s  on  de fence and secur i t y  mat te rs ,  po l i cy  

ana lys is ,  e tce te ra .   Even though he was a  s tuden t  a t  the 

t ime and Agr izz i  speaks about  tha t  ad nauseam tha t  h is  10 

son was a  s tudent  bu t  you w i l l  see  the  CIPC records and  

the  L inkedIn  adver ts  and the  soc ia l  med ia  adver ts  where  

the  company had  been in  ex is tence fo r  qu i te  a  wh i l e  a lbe i t   

w i th  s tudent ’s  popu la t ing  the  shareho ld ing  and the  board ,  

e tce te ra .  

 In te res t ing ly  enough,  as  we l l ,  tha t  company ’s  

d i rec tors  were  a l l  l i nked to  the  Democra t ic  A l l iance and 

there  is  p roo f  o f  tha t  a lbe i t  tha t  G iancar lo  who a t tacked –  

and the  company ’s  name,  Cha i r,  Ind la la ,  t rad ing  as  Ind la la .   

But  the  po in t  tha t  I  am rea l l y  t ry ing  to  make,  Cha i r,  was 20 

tha t  eve ry  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  th is  man had was exp lo i tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  g ive  tha t  spe l l ing  o f  Ind la la  fo r  the 

benef i t  o f  the  t ranscr ibers .   Ind la la ,  the  spe l l ing  i s  I -n -d- l -

a - l -a .   That  i s  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  t ransc r ibe rs .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you,  S i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  al r ight ,  cont inue?  

MR WAKEFORD:    So ,  Cha i r,  I  am not  go ing  to  go  in to  a l l  

the  de ta i l  o f  the  ev idence …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ind la la  o f  course  means famine or  

hunger,  s ta rva t ion .   That  i s  what  i t  means.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  know tha t .   

But  the  rea l  po in t ,  Cha i r,  i s  t ha t  Mr  G iancar lo  a f te r  

accept ing  a  post  w i th in  the  ANC for  a  wh i le  susta ined tha t  

company and sus ta ined h is  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  h is  fe l low DA 

d i rec tors .   I  am not  sure  whether  the  Af r ican Nat ional  10 

Congress was aware  o f  tha t  bu t  tha t  jus t  g ives  an  –  you get  

an  idea o f  the  va lue  sys tem,  the  dup l i c i tous  na ture  o f  the 

peop le  invo l ved but  more  so ,  Cha i r,  tha t  G iancar lo  came 

fo rward  be fo re  the  democra t ic  e lec t ions o f  2019 and made  

cer ta in  c la ims to  d iscred i t  Gav in  Watson as  we l l  as  the  

ANC even though  he had worked there  and then a  number  

o f  months  la te r  re t rac ted  eve ry th ing  w i th  the  C i t i zen ,  the  

C i t i zen  newspaper.  

 Cha i r,  i t  qu i te  a  lo t  tha t  I  say  there  bu t  even 

Agr izz i ’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  DA,  there  are  v ideos  o f  h im 20 

be ing  v is i ted  by  G lynn is  Brey tenbach,  Werner  Horn ,  I  th ink  

Breytenbach was the   -  o r  i s  the  shadow Min is te r  o f  Jus t ice  

and Werner  Horn  the  deputy  shadow Min i s te r  o f  Jus t ice  

and Agr i zz i  o f ten  used to  b rag about  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  

he  had w i th  cer ta in  ind i v idua ls  inc lud ing  G lynn is  
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B rey tenbach and  Werner  Horn  bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  ge t  

in to  more  o f  the  de ta i l  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Save to  say tha t  cou ld  I  move on  to  why  

wou ld  th is  man per ju re  h imse l f  to  the  po in t  o f  ex t inc t ion  by  

a t tack ing  me so  v ic ious ly?   Why wou ld  he  –  and I  th ink  you  

have asked o ther  wi tnesses in  o ther  work  s t reams as we l l ,  

why wou ld  th is  person l ie  about  you,  why wou ld  they say  

a l l  these th ings?   So,  Cha i r,  I  have t r ied  to  –  and I  am 

go ing  to  read f rom par t  o f  i t  and then f rom par t  o f  i t  I  w i l l  10 

summar ise .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:    But  jus t  to  say –  and tha t  i s  on  page  

BOSASA 04/884,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

MR WAKEFORD:     

“Fur ther  to  what  I  have ment ioned above,  wh ich  

ev ident ly  mot iva ted  Agr izz i  to  fa lse l y  imp l ica te  me 

in  the  a l leged cor rup t ion  a t  BOSASA,  namely :  

1 .  Our  content ious re la t ionsh ip  g iven my h i s to r ica l  20 

re la t ionsh ip  o f  Watson and the  b roader  Watson 

fami ly.  

2 .  My non- rac ia l  va lues versus is  rac is t  va lues and 

my quest ion ing  o f  h is  cha racter  and va lue  sys tem 

f rom the  onset .  
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3 .  H is  percept ion  o f  my par t  in  the  te rm inat ion  o f  

h is  employment  w i th  BOSASA.  

4 .  My usefu lness to  Agr izz i  in  a l l  the  c i rcumstances 

to  p romote  the  in te res ts  o f  the  Democra t ic  

A l l iance.    

There  is  an  overa rch ing  contex t  inc lud ing  how,  

when and why in  fac t  Agr izz i  manufac tu red these 

a l legat ions and  impor tan t  t ime l ines to  be  

unders tood and fac to red i n ,  in  o rder  to  cons ider  and 

we igh  Agr i zz i ’s  a l legat ions be fore  the  Commiss ion .   10 

He conf i rmed in  h is  o ra l  ev idence on the  18  January 

2019 tha t  a  meet ing  was he ld  w i th  a l leged wh is t le  

b lowers…”  

And,  Cha i r,  none  o f  them are  wh is t le  b lowers ,  in  my v iew.   

They use the  te rm very  l ibera l l y.  

“…at  Agr i zz i ’s  home on the  12  November  2017.   The  

fo l low ing must  be  no ted,  ca l l i ng  them whis t le  

b lowers  i s  a  m isnomer  a t  the  ve ry  least  because 

they were  e i the r  be ing  coerced by  Agr izz i  to  make  

fa lse  s ta tements  or  were  in  cahoots  w i th  Agr izz i ,  h is  20 

ne far ious p lans and/or  were  ac t i ng  pure l y  ou t  o f  

se l f - in te res t .   Th is  was conf i rmed to  the  

Commiss ion  on  the  26  March in  h is  o ra l  ev idence  

and the  o ra l  ev idence o f  Pet rus  S tephanus Vente r,  a  

fo rmer  employee  o f  the  BOSASA aud i to rs  Darcy  
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Herman and Co Incorpora ted  and who a t tended tha t  

meet ing  a t  Agr izz i ’s  home when  he sa id  he  has 

made to  prepare  a  s ta tement . ”  

So he came here  and to ld  you I  was coerced,  i t  was wr i t ten  

fo r  me by  Agr i zz i  and I  had to  f i l l  i t  and s ign .  

“ In  h is  a f f idav i t  o f  the  11  November  2018 Venter  

sa id  tha t  Agr izz i  in  fac t  had d ra f ted  h is  s ta tement  

on  h is  beha l f  and  tha t  Venter  mere ly  had to  type in  

h is  persona l  in fo .   Venter  says in  the  same a f f idav i t  

Ange lo  made var ious th rea ts  per ta in ing  to  my  10 

caree r  and persona l  we l lbe ing  in  an  a t tempt  to  

in t im ida te  and b lackmai l  me and  to  ge t  me to  s ign  

th is  s ta tement  tha t  he  dra f ted  on  my beha l f  and I  

s igned the  s ta tement  under  du ress and due to  the  

constant  in t im ida t ion  and b lackmai l  f rom Agr izz i . ”  

And Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  peop le  who v is i ted  tha t  day in  

o rder  to  b low the  so-ca l led  wh is t le ,  the i r  a f f idav i t s  

apparent ly  were  prepared fo r  them by Agr izz i .    In  Venter ’s  

a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion  annexed,  and I  have go t  i t  here  

Cha i r,  revea led ,  as  he  d id  on  Car te  B lanche on the  3 r d  o f  20 

February  2019:  

“Agr i zz i ’s  cor rup t  ac t i v i t ies ,  coerc ion  and cont ro l  o f  

peop le ,  inc lud ing  Venter  and h is  p lan  to  dest roy  

Watson and BOSASA,  I  re fe r  to  Venter ’s  a f f idav i t  to  

the  Commiss ion  and in  pa r t i cu la r  the  Master  P lan . ”  
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So  Cha i r  to  summar i se  the  Master  P lan  a f te r  a  ser ies  o f  

engagements  pos t  h im leav ing  where  he  t r ied  to  take  over  

cont rac ts  o f  BOSASA,  and engaged them on tha t ,  then he  

t r ied  to  go  back  to  BOSASA and  engaged them –  th is  i s  

a f te r  h is  damic ian [? ]  exper ience,  th is  i s  a f te r  hav ing  h is  

tumour  cu t  ou t ,  where  he  sa id  I  sa t  w i th  my fami ly  and I  

wanted to  come c lean.    

 Wel l  i t  took  h im more  than two years  to  come c lean  

Cha i r,  i t  was on ly  a f te r  Papa Leshabane and Joe Gumede  

went  to  the  po l i ce  s ta t ion  to  f i le  c r im ina l  charges aga ins t  10 

h im tha t  he  dec ided tha t  he  was go ing  to  i n te rac t  w i th  the  

Commiss ion .   

So fu r thermore ,  Cha i r  Foste r ' s  a f f idav i t  was  

Commiss ioned the  fo l low ing day on  the  13 t h  o f  November  

2017.  The very  a f f idav i t  he  brought  he re  in  2019,  was 

prepared two years  pr io r  to  tha t  o r  was p repared to  be  

exact  Cha i r,  on  the  13 t h  o f  November  2017.   So Cha i r,  I  am 

go ing  to  sk ip  qu i te  a  b i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  I  jus t  want  to  say Mr  Wakeford  

tha t  un for tunate l y,  most  o f  the  d i rec tors  o f  BOSASA who  20 

cou ld  have come here  and sa id  what  they may have  to  say 

about  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  ev idence d id  no t  coopera te .   They were  

g iven -  inc lud ing  the  la te  Mr  Watson,  they were  g iven what  

we re fer  to  as  Ru le  33  not ices ,  as  we l l  as  o ther  peop le  l i ke  

Mr  Leshabane and o thers ,  Mr  Gumede.  
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One,  they d id  no t  respond but  in  a way one can say  

in  regard  to  respond ing  to  33  no t ices ,  they were  no t  

ob l iged to  bu t  the  Commiss ion  was ve ry  keen to  hear  what  

they have to  say.   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  i ssued what  we ca l l  

the  Regu la t ion  10 .6  D i rec t i ves  aga ins t  them,  inc lud ing  Mr  

Gav in  Watson,  to  say come and dea l  w i th  th is  mat te rs .  

Unfo r tunate ly,  they d id  no t  respond and then re  Mr  

Gav in  Watson passed away there  were  some d iscuss ions  

f rom the  repor ts  tha t  I  was g iven f rom h is  lawyers ,  bu t  the  

approach was not  rea l l y  one o f  a  be ing  keen to  come 10 

before  the  Commiss ion ,  so  tha t  they cou ld  dea l  w i th  th is  

i ssue.   

So i t  i s  good tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you may be 

aware  o f  some o f  the  mat te rs  yourse l f  because o f  you r  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  BOSASA and w i th  Mr  Gav in  Watson,  you 

are  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  to  say th is  i s  the  pos i t ion  bu t  I  

jus t  thought  I  wou ld  say tha t ,  you know,  i t  i s  a  s t range 

s i tua t ion  where  peop le  ou t  there  who cou ld  come and say,  

tha t  i s  no t  t rue  what  she sa id  abou t  us here  bu t  they  do  not  

want  to  come.  So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you in te rac ted  w i th  20 

BOSASA and w i th  Mr  Gav in  Watson and you know cer ta in  

th ings,  i t  i s  good  tha t  you are  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  them and 

put  be fore  the  Commiss ion  what  you know.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r,  Cha i r  i f  I  cou ld  

respond to  your  s ta tement?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Look,  there  are  two schoo ls  o f  thought  

in  South  A f r i ca  about  th is  Commiss ion .   The one schoo l  o f  

thought  i s ,  i s  tha t  i t  i s  po l i t i ca l l y  weapon ised and i t  i s  

go ing  fo r  a  par t icu la r  caucus.   The o ther  one is  tha t  i t  i s  

here  to  seek the  t ru th  and to  es tab l i sh  the  t ru th .   I  have  

opted fo r  the  second,  fo r  the  la t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  be l ieve  you  are  a  good man and I  

be l ieve  tha t  you are  someone who  is  jus t  t ry ing  to  c lean up  10 

soc ie ty  in  Sou th  A f r i ca ,  in  par t i cu la r,  our  pub l i c  

ins t i tu t ions .   But  I  am sure  tha t  you a lso  wou ld  want  to  

c lean up some o f  our  p r i va te  sec tor  ins t i tu t ions .   Cha i r  I  

have not  had con tac t  w i th  the  Board  o f  d i rec to rs  fo r  a  long 

t ime and sa fe  to  say pe rhaps we have a  d i f fe ren t  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I t  i s  a  p i t y  because -  and perhaps me 

appear ing  he re  w i l l  encourage some to  come fo rward  i f  

there  i s  enough t ime o f  course  bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  p i t y  tha t  

there  a re  these two schoo ls  o f  thought .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  i t  i s  a  p i t y  –  and I  mean,  obv ious l y  I  

know about  the  two schoo ls  o f  thought  genera l l y  in  soc ie ty  

and obv ious ly,  peop le  a re  en t i t led  to  fo rm an op in ion  about  

a  pub l i c  body such as  th is  bu t  I  a lways have d i f f i cu l t y  

unders tand ing  th is  par t ,  i f  I  –  i f  the  Commiss ion  wants  to  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 62 of 318 
 

make f ind ings aga ins t  you Mr  Wakeford ,  i t  wants  a  cer ta in  

ou tcome about  you.   Why wou ld  i t  t ry  so  much to  hear  your  

s ide  o f  the  s to ry  because is  i t  no t  eas ie r  to  come to  tha t  

ou tcome,  w i thout  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   

Because you might  come here  and  g ive  a  very  good ,  

p laus ib le  exp lanat ions fo r  th ings  and there fo re  spo i l  the  

p lan .   I  have no t  unders tood tha t  par t  and a l so ,  I  have 

heard  –  I  have been to ld  tha t  I  th ink  i t  i s  more  than 250 

w i tnesses,  i f  I  am not  m is taken over  the  past  two and a  

ha l f  years  or  so .  10 

Of  those maybe  there  a re  1 ,2  or  3  who have 

expressed unhapp iness,  tha t  they  have not  been t rea ted  

fa i r l y,  the  overwhe lm ing major i t y  have not  exp ressed any 

unfa i rness and I  cont inue to  hear  some o f  the  peop le  who 

are  imp l ica ted ,  ser ious ly  imp l ica ted  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

be l ieve  tha t  I  g ive  them enough t ime to  pu t  the i r  s ide  o f  the  

s to ry.   

And when they ar t i cu la te  the i r  concerns,  I  say  le t  us  

look  a t  those concerns.   Le t  us  look a t  those -  some o f  

them might  have mer i t  o thers  m igh t  no t  have but  le t  us  look  20 

a t  look  a t  those and when they say here  is  some ev idence 

about  tha t  w i tness who sa id  A ,  B ,  C about  me,  I  say  le t  us  

look a t  tha t ,  you know.  

So but  obv ious ly,  you know,  peop le  w i l l  have the i r  

v iews a t  the  end and there  is  no th ing  one can do f rom our  
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s ide ,  we must  jus t  cont inue to  do  what  we be l ieve  is  r igh t .  

Try  to  be  as  fa i r  as  poss ib le ,  i t  does not  mean tha t  we w i l l  

no t  make mis takes a long the  way but  le t  us  keep on t ry ing  

to  do  the  best  we  can,  so  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r,  and you know Cha i r  

jus t  to  respond to  -  fo r  me,  I  was incred ib l y  f rus t ra ted  

because I  responded fa i r l y  qu ick l y  w i th  my f i rs t  my 

a f f idav i t ,  my app l i ca t ion  was to  c ross  quest ion  and I  

unders tand the  process tha t  tes t imony f i s t  then cross  

quest ion ing .   10 

I  am not  sure  whether  I  w i l l  ever  ge t  an  oppor tun i ty  

to  c ross  quest ion  Agr izz i ,  a lbe i t  tha t  he  was recent ly  seen 

in  Franschhoek w i thout  an  oxygen tank or  a  mask and w i th  

no  wa lke r,  and the  Ins tagram v ideos f l y ing  a round South  

A f r i ca  on  tha t  a t  the  moment .   But  even i f  I  do  no t  Cha i r,  I  

have got  to  do  th is  and I  have wa i ted  28  months .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you have got  the  oppor tun i ty  now.  

MR WAKEFORD:    And I  have got  now my oppor tun i ty  and I  

am go ing  to  use i t  I  am not  go ing  to  w ince and wh ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay ja ,  thank you.   20 

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   

MR WAKEFORD:    So ,  Cha i r…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  we are  a t  quar te r  past ,  wh ich  is  

when we normal l y  take  the  tea  break,  maybe le t  us  go  to  
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pas t  and then take  the  tea  break then,  okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  cont inue  

w i th  my mot iva t ion ,  wh ich  I  have summar ised because i t  i s  

qu i te  long.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    And but  to  say th is ,  tha t  on  page 888  

w i thout  ment ion ing  BOSASA for  every  t ime.   You  see h is  

p lan ,  when he cou ld  no t  -  when he was exorc i sed as  the  

de- fac to  CEO then he t r ied  to  come back,  and  i t  was 

upp ing  and downing and i t  i s  a l l  in  my ev idence.  10 

H is  p lan  was,  we w i l l  pu t  you under  p ressure  and 

even i f  we have to  see you l iqu ida ted ,  and I  was no t  there  

a t  the  t ime Cha i r,  bu t  the  ev idence speaks fo r  i t se l f .   The  

p lan  was to  t r igger  the  med ia ,  to  t r igger  the  aud i to rs ,  you 

know what  aud i t o rs  do  when they,  even i f  they  hear  o f  

someth ing  susp ic ious,  even the  banks in  th i s  coun t ry  they 

jus t  c lose  your  accounts ,  w i th  a  person be ing  potent ia l l y  

innocent ,  bu t  thank God my bank  d id  no t  c lose  m ine but  

there  are  many peop le  who had the i r  bank accounts  c losed  

w i thout  any ev idence to  the  e f fec t  tha t  i t  was jus t  rumour  20 

monger ing  and fea r.   And soc ie ty  in  South  A f r i ca  tends to  

respond a t  t imes,  very  s im i la r  to  the  Sa lem wi tches s to ry,  

you know where  innocent  woman were  hung in  Sa lem 

because they were  deemed to  be  gu i l t y  by  the  pub l i c  

ga l le ry.   
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And we need to  manage these th ings ve ry,  ve ry  

care fu l l y  in  Sou th  A f r i ca ,  because,  un for tunate ly,  these  

th ings caused more  po lar i sa t ion  in  soc ie ty.   But  h is  p lan  

was a t  the  ve ry  wors t ,  the  wors t  op t ion  fo r  h im,  o f  course ,  

was l iqu ida t ion  bu t  he  go t  h is  l iqu ida t ion ,  he  got  i t .   

And 6500 fami l ies  ou t  o f  work  and  Venter  conf i rmed  

a l l  o f  th is  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.   Agr izz i ’s  p lan  was  

premedi ta ted ,  ca lcu la ted  and executed to  ins t iga te  the  

l iqu ida t ion  o f  BOSASA so tha t  he  persona l l y  wou ld  be  ab le  

to  take  over  BOSASA’s  cont rac ts ,  and no longer  be  bound 10 

by  h i s  res t ra in t  o f  t rade.  Indeed,  BOSASA went  in to  

l iqu ida t ion  in  February  2019 as per  h is  p lan .  

Th is  was not  the  man who was b lowing the  wh is t le ,  

Cha i r  w i th  a l l  due  respect ,  th is  was  a  man who was greedy,  

he  was narc iss is t i c  and he wanted to  be  back i n  the  seat  o f  

the  k ing ,  tha t  i s  what  he  wanted.   

Cha i r,  I  mean,  even the  banks pan icked,  the  banks  

pan icked dur ing  tha t  t ime,  the  aud i to rs  pan icked,  even I  

th ink  Gav in  Watson pan icked and went  in to  vo lun ta ry  

l iqu ida t ion .   I  am not  sure  whethe r  I  wou ld  have done the  20 

same th ing ,  Cha i r.  I  wou ld  have come here  as  qu ick l y  as  

poss ib le  bu t  the  po in t  i s ,  I  t r ied  and I  cou ld  no t  and  

perhaps we cou ld  have saved a  b i t  o f  tha t  company.   

Cha i r,  I  am not  go ing  to  read some o f  the  quotes  

because those quotes  you have not  au thor i sed tha t  ye t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    So  Cha i r,  h is  f i f th  co lumn even went  

w i th  h im to  Crear is  when he le f t  BOSASA,  same peop le  

fo l lowed h im and  what  they say about  h im fo r  an  I ta l ian 

bus inessman o f  the  year  -  jus t  to  g ive  you an idea  o f  how 

he saw h imse l f  as  the  de- fac to  CEO.  

On the  webs i te  o f  Crear is  the  company tha t  Agr izz i  

fo rmed in  2017 a f te r  be ing  te rm inated f rom BOSASA he 

desc r ibed h is  in f luence w i th in  BOSASA as fo l lows:  

“Ange lo 's  most  recent  accompl i shments  can be  10 

noted in  the  pe r fo rmance o f  the  BOSASA group now 

known as A f r i can  G loba l  tha t  he  deve loped f rom a  

Greenf ie ld  opera t iona l  un i t  employ ing  on ly  322  

peop le  to  a  mul t ina t iona l  g roup w i th  6515 

employees.  The  webs i te  fu r ther  revea ls  the  

management  team o f  the  company,  th is  i s  Crear i s ,  

was compr ised exc lus i ve l y  o f  fo rmer  employees o f  

BOSASA. ”  

Once aga in  the  f i f th  co lumn Cha i r.   Las t ly  Agr izz i  sa id  in  

an  emai l  on  the  7 t h  o f  March  2018 to  Darcy  Herman,  the  20 

aud i to rs  o f  BOSASA tha t  when he le f t  BOSASA in  August  

2016,  he  was inundated w i th  requests  f rom Gav in  Watson 

to  ensure  Agr izz i  re take cont ro l  o f  the  BOSASA group o f  

compan ies  and there  i t  i s  a l l  in  the  ev idence,  Cha i r.    

But  jus t  to  speak  to  some o f  the  cont ro l  tha t  he  had 
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when he po in t s  f inge rs  a t  the  res t  o f  the  wor ld .   He says 

here…[ in te rvene]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    What  page are  you on?  

MR WAKEFORD:    We are  now on so r ry,  Cha i r  I  am gu i l t y  

as  charged.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am not  cha rg ing  you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  shou ld  have to ld  you as  we moved on,  

we a re  now on page 895.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    He says here ;  he  te l l s  the  Commiss ion :  10 

“The payment  reg imes and pro toco ls  requ i red  

numerous s ignatures .   So you wou ld  have a t  leas t  

four  to  s i x  s ignatures  on  a  document  to  be  ab le  to  

ge t  a  payment  th rough and to  ge t  an  order  th rough.   

So i t  wou ld  requ i re  no  less  than two o the r  

s ignatures .  So you wou ld  need the  or ig ina to r  

s ignature  the  pe rson who is  p lac ing  the  order  p lus  i t  

wou ld  need two o thers ,  one o f  wh ich  had to  be  the  

ch ie f  accountant  and d i rec to r. ”  

Cha i r  th is  i s  ve r i f iab ly  fa lse  and I  have prov ided the  20 

BOSASA company reso lu t ions wh ich  demonst ra te  tha t  

Agr izz i  cou ld  approve any t ransact ion  i f  i t  was  counter  

s igned by  Van Tonder,  someone who he worked very  

c lose ly  w i th  and who le f t  and jo ined h im a t  Crear i s  as  fa r  

as  I  unders tand.  
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Unt i l  2017,  when Agr izz i ’s  employment  was  

te rm inated Agr izz i  and Van Tonder  had the  co l lec t i ve  power  

to ,  one,  s ign  any documents  and do a l l  th ings as  may  

a f fec t  and o r  b ind  the  company and  or  any o f  i t s  subs id ia ry  

compan ies  in  any mat te r  whatsoever.  And open bank  

accounts  and dea l  w i th  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions  in  any  mat te r  

regard ing  the  f inance and to  s ign  cheques fo r  and on 

beha l f  o f  the  company i t s  subs id ia r ies  and assoc ia tes .   

Venter  in  h is  parag raph 10 o f  h is  a f f idav i t  o f  the  

11 t h  o f  November  2018 conf i rmed:  10 

“Andr ies  Van Tonder  and Ange lo  Agr izz i  had fu l l  

con t ro l  o f  the  company and nobody quest ioned i t . ”  

Except  me Cha i r,  and I  th ink  there  is  su f f i c ien t  on  the  

record  fo r  tha t  a l ready.   

“ I t  i s  th rough th is  au thor i t y  tha t  Agr izz i  and Van 

Tonder  were  co l l ec t i ve ly  ab le  to  s iphon substant ia l  

amounts  o f  funds out  o f  BOSASA by way o f  an  

example  Cha i r  Agr izz i  and Van Tonder  were  the  so le  

members  o f  Syncrop rop number  8  c lose coopera t ion  

commonly  known as CC. ”  20 

And you can see  the  CIPC ent i t y  search  in  the  annexures,  

as  the  so le  members ,  they wou ld  prepare  f i c t i t ious  

invo i ces,  send these f i c t i t ious  invo ices to  BOSASA and  

then author i se  them for  payment  in  the i r  capac i t ies  as  

Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Off i cer  and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  o f  the 
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g roup.   

In  the  invo ice  example  a t tached you can see tha t  

the  invo i ce  is  approved w i th  on ly  two s ignator ies  Agr izz i  

and Van Tonder.   Venter  in  paragraph 8  and 11 o f  h is  

a f f idav i t  o f  the  11 t h  o f  November  2018 conf i rmed h is  own  

par t i c i pa t ion  in  one such scheme where  Agr izz i  and Van  

Tonder  w i th  ins t ruc t ion  to  f i c t i t ious ly  in f la te  invo ices,  wh ich  

Agr izz i  and Van Tonder  wou ld  then  approve.  

The th ree  par t i es  wou ld  then  share  in  these 

proceeds o f  c r ime and Agr i zz i  and Van Tonder  wou ld  10 

thereaf te r  ins t ruc t  Venter  where  to  pay the i r  commiss ion 's  

as  he  re fer red  to  them.    

“ In  th is  regard  payments  were  made to  or  on  beha l f  

o f  Agr izz i ,  Van Tonder  and Agr izz i ’s  w i fe  Debb ie  

Agr izz i . ”  

I t  i s  because o f  schemes such as  these tha t  the  BOSASA 

l iqu ida ted  to  serve  Agr i zz i  and Van Tonder  w i th  le t te rs  o f  

demand fo r  R91mi l l ion  and R21mi l l ion  respect ive ly.   In  

June 2020 -  th i s  however  came a f te r  c r im ina l  cha rges had  

a l ready been f i led  by  A f r i can G loba l  Ho ld ings  aga ins t  20 

Agr izz i  and Van Tonder  and Venter  in  November  2019 fo r  

the f t ,  f raud and  money launder ing  o f  R37.5mi l l ion  and  

apparent ly  there  is  more  to  come Cha i r.   These cr im ina l  

charges fu r the r  made re ference to  compan ies  tha t  Agr izz i  

used BOSASA to  make payments  to  where  h is  w i fe  Deborah  
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Agr izz i  was the  d i rec to r.  Th i s  invo lvement  o f  Agr izz i ’s  w i fe  

in  these schemes was fu r ther  conf i rmed by  Co lone l  

Bernardus Lazarus,  who opposed  Agr izz i ’s  ba i l  app l i ca t ion  

a t  the  Pa lm Ridge Magis t ra tes  Cour t  in  October  las t  yea r.   

Here  Lazarus conf i rmed tha t  Agr izz i  and h i s  w i fe  

moved mi l l ions  o f  rands o f fshore  and in to  c ryp to  cur rency  

accounts  w i th  Deborah t ransfe r r ing  11 .9…[ in te rvene]  

ADV M WITZ:    Sor ry,  sor ry,  Cha i r  i f  I  can  jus t  ra ise  two  

issues he re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV M WITZ:    In  re la t ion  to  th is ,  f i rs t l y,  a l l  tha t  has been  

ver i f ied  and conf i rmed tha t  i t  was a l l  done w i th  Reserve  

Bank approva l .   There  was noth ing  i l l ega l  about  the  

t ransfer.  Second ly,  I  rece ived or  I  apo log i se  I  had to  leave  

the  room,  I  rece ived an urgent  request  the  l iqu ida tors  o f  

the  BOSASA and  A f r i can G loba l  Group say they are  very,  

very  per tu rbed in  regards to  the  fac t  tha t  re fe rence is  

be ing  made to  what  happened a t  a  417 inqu i ry.  

They can be here  a t  2  o 'c lock  and they wou ld  l i ke  

permiss ion ,  i f  necessary  to  dea l  w i th  i t  because they say  20 

as  fa r  as  they are  concerned,  no  input  o r  permiss ion  was  

sought  f rom them.   The master  has no t  asked fo r  

submiss ions inpu t  and they wou ld  l i ke  i f  necessary  to  make 

submiss ions in  regards to  re fe rences tha t  Mr  Wakefo rd  is  

mak ing  in  th is  regard  to  t ry  and  bo ls te r  and sus ta in  h is  
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a t tack  on  var ious  issues and cred ib i l i t y.    

And i f  he  knew the  co r rec t  fac ts ,  and h i s  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves  wou ld  have approached my ins t ruc t ing  

a t to rney o r  myse l f  we wou ld  have to ld  them tha t  whatever  

Co lone l  Lazarus sa id  a l l  th is  was  done and the  t rue  fac t s  

were  p laced befo re  a  H igh  Cour t  Judge w i th  regards to  the 

ba i l  appea l  where  ba i l  was granted ve ry  recent ly  to  say 

tha t  a l l  th is  was done w i th  Reserve  Bank approva l ,  no th ing  

was sp i r i ted  ou t  the  count ry,  e tce tera .   

So the  p i c tu re  tha t  h  i s  t ry ing  to  pa in t  w i th  respec t  10 

Mr  Wakeford  in  u t i l i s ing  ev idence and t ry ing  to  u t i l i se 

ex t rac ted  suppor t  h is  s tance in  regards to  h i s  obv ious  

d is l i ke ,  i f  one was to  pu t  i t  as  l i ke ly  as  tha t  fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  

we submi t  tha t  th is  cannot  be  used a t  th is  s tage because 

these are  no t  the  co r rec t  fac ts  tha t  he  is  pu t t ing  be fore  

you.   

And i f  he  wants  to  c rea te  fac t  we are  happy to  

prov ide  h im wi th  the  cor rec t  fac ts  and the  l iqu ida to rs  wou ld  

l i ke  tha t  oppor tun i ty.   I  spoke to  the i r  counse l  to  approach 

i f  necessary.   We do not  want  you to  –  I  know what  the 20 

purpose o f  th is  i s ,  we know what  you want  to  do ,  we  do not  

want  to  de lay  i t  fu r the r.   

But  they say they can be here  2  o 'c lock  because 

they need to  address -  they found i t  very,  very  -  and  I  th ink  

tha t  a f fec ts  no t  on ly  l iqu ida to rs  and not  on l y  a f fec t  Sect ion  
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417  o f  the  Companies  Act  bu t  a lso  the  pres id ing  

Honourab le  Judge Jo f fe  who dea l t  w i th  i t ,  th is  i s  go ing  to  

have a  huge impact  on  fu tu re  417 ’s  tha t  w i thout  

submiss ions and permiss ion ,  tha t  in fo rmat ion  is  now be ing  

put  in  the  pub l i c  domain  wh ich  takes away the  who le  

in fe rence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me say th is ,  anyth ing  re la t ing  to  

what  has been tes t i f ied  to  in  the  Sect ion  417 inqu i ry,  I  sa id  

le t  us  fo r  now not  dea l  w i th  i t ,  okay.   I  sa id  tha t  la te r  on  Mr  

Wakeford  cou ld  dea l  w i th  i t  a f te r  I  have app l ied  my mind to  10 

the  lega l  pos i t ion  and a f te r  I  have heard  everybody.   

But  s ince  say ing  tha t ,  I  have begun to  th ink  o f  a  

d i f fe ren t  way o f  dea l ing  w i th  th i s  and tha t  m ight  a f fec t  the  

quest ion  o f  whether  the  l iqu ida to rs  or  the i r  counse l  w i l l  

come here  o r  no t .   

I  am go ing  to  suggest  tha t  fo r  today,  le t  Mr  

Wakeford  g ive  h is  ev idence tha t  he  needs to  g i ve  and 

leave out  one ex t rac ts  f rom what  may be ev idence  in  the  

417 inqu i ry  o r  h is  unders tand ing  o f  what  ev idence has 

been g iven there  fo r  now,  and wha t  I  wou ld  propose  is  tha t  20 

maybe each s ide ,  your  s ide  and counse l  fo r  Mr  Wakeford  

and the  lega l  team,  and i f  the  l iqu ida tors  want  to  a lso  come 

in  there ,  tha t ' s  f ine .   

G ive  me some shor t  no tes  o f  the  re levant  

p rov is ions,  under  what  c i rcumstances what  can be done in  
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re la t ion  to  ev idence in  a  417 enqu i ry  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

look  a t  tha t  w i thout  the  pressure  o f  hav ing  to  a l l ow th i s  

today.   But  the  v iew,  the  idea wou ld  be ,  tha t  can be g iven  

to  me,  in  due course ,  and once I  have had a  look  a t  i t ,  I  

can  then ind i ca te  what  my pos i t ion  is  wh ich  m ight  no t  need  

ora l  a rgument  bu t  i f  I  th ink  i t  i s  necessary,  we can  take  i t  

f rom there .   

But  one wou ld  l i ke  to  d i spose o f  th is  w i thout ,  you 

know,  much un less  i t ' s  rea l l y  necessary  in  te rms o f  o ra l  

a rgument .   But  once I  have taken a  v iew,  then I  can  le t  you 10 

know and i f  I  mus t  make a  ru l ing ,  I  can make a  ru l ing  and i f  

the  ru l ing  is  such  tha t  the  ex t rac ts  can be wr i t ten  ou t ,  and 

the  –  or  a  summary can be g i ven o f  what  has been tes t i f ied  

to  in  the  inqu i ry,  then we can  take  i t  f rom there  i f  

necessary.   

I t  shou ld  no t  take  long i t  m igh t  be  less  than an hour  

o r  fo r  an  hour  fo r  Mr  Wakeford  to  come back and jus t  dea l  

w i th  tha t  o r  we m ight  jus t  a r range tha t  h is  counse l  can fo r  

the  sake o f  pub l i c ly  showing what  they be l ieve  suppor t s  Mr  

Wakeford ’s  ve rs ion  can then read out  the  ex t rac ts ,  20 

obv ious ly,  i f  I  conc lude tha t  they  shou ld  no t  be  read out  

and to  what  has been tes t i f ied  to  in  the  inqu i ry  shou ld  no t  

be  ment ioned he re ,  then obv ious l y,  tha t  i s  the  end o f  the  

mat te r  as  fa r  as  the  Commiss ion  is  concerned.   

So tha t  i s  what  I  have in  m ind.   So in  o ther  words,  tha t  we 
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do  no t  rush  to  do  every th ing  today.   Le t  me get  t ime,  we 

can agree maybe  as  to  when counse l  fo r  Mr  Wakeford  can 

submi t ,  I  do  no t  want  to  ca l l  i t  wr i t ten  submiss ions,  bu t  i t  i s  

wr i t ten  submiss ions bu t  when I  say  no te  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  

ind ica te  tha t  i s  a  ve ry  nar row issue,  you know,  bu t  i t  i s  

wr i t ten  submiss ions on  the  quest ion  o f  whether  Mr  

Wakeford  can read out  the  ext rac ts  tha t  a re  sa id  to  be  

ev idence tha t  was g iven a t  417  Inqu i ry,  tha t  i s  po in t  1 ,  

po in t  2 ,  whether  even i f  he  doesn ’ t  read out  ex t rac ts  

whethe r  he  can say what  he  unders tands to  be  ev idence 10 

g iven the re  in  h is  own words and  then I  can take  i t  f rom 

there ,  tha t  i s  wha t  I  have in  m ind.  

 What  do  you say is  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

ADV WITZ:    Cha i r  I  am more  than  sa t is f ied  to  do  i t  on  tha t  

bas is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WITZ:    I  have got  no  prob lem a t  a l l ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  

p rac t ica l  and I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  cor rec t ,  bu t  jus t  to  so r t  

ou t  fo r  record  pu rposes fo r  examp le  he  now wants  to  g ive  

ev idence,  Mr  Wakeford ,  about  c ryp to  cur rency and i l l ega l  –  20 

th is  was a l l  done  th rough Luno,  a l l  the  ev idence is  there ,  

so  he  i s  t ry ing  to  u t i l i se  and se lec t  cer ta in  par ts  tha t  he  

th inks  w i l l  suppor t  h is  vers ion  in  regards to  the  verac i t y  o r  

the  cred ib i l i t y  o r  the  so-ca l led  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Does tha t  fa l l  under  –  I  am so r ry  –  does  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 75 of 318 
 

tha t  fa l l  under  the  417 Inqu i ry  because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WITZ:    No i t  i s  now coming  to  mat te rs  re la t i ng  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  charge.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  f in ish  on  the  417 inqu i ry  f i rs t .  

ADV WITZ:    Yes  417 I  am happy  w i th  the  proposa l  and I  

th ink  the  l iqu ida tors ,  and I  w i l l  convey i t ,  the  l iqu ida to rs  

are  present  and the i r  a t to rneys,  and I  w i l l  convey i t  to  the i r  

counse l  and I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  a  cor rec t  approach and 

we can then put  fo rward ,  bu t  i t  is  jus t  d is tu rb ing  tha t  fo r  

whatever  reason secre t  documenta t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  i t  the  one tha t  

was on ly  g iven to  Mr  Agr izz i  yes te rday or  someth ing? 

ADV WITZ:    No he hasn ’ t  go t  i t  ye t  th is  morn ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Th is  one he go t  i t  th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh so  tha t  i s  why there  wou ld  no t  have  

been a  chance to  respond to  i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV WITZ:    But  we w i l l  respond to  i t  Cha i r  w i th  your  

permiss ion  and we w i l l  make su re  i t  i s  very,  very  qu ick .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WITZ:    In  a  t ime tu rna round to  respond so  we don ’ t  

de lay  the  Commiss ion  in  any way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WITZ:    And we wou ld  l i ke  to  cont inue w i th  our  
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coopera t ion  and  ass i s tance,  bu t  we on ly  go t  i t  th is  

morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Counse l  fo r  

Mr  Wakeford  417 is  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

ADV WILLS:   Thank you Mr  Cha i rman,  indeed i t  i s  a l though  

you pre t ty  much  dea l t  w i th  i t  ear l ie r,  th is  has been a  

reg re t fu l  in te r rup t ion ,  so  I  am in  agreement  w i th  tha t  bu t  

le t  me say th is  –  i t  i s  regre t tab le  tha t  my lea rned f r iend 

has in te r rup ted  my c l ien t ’s  g iv ing  o f  tes t imony,  ques t ion ing  

h is  ev idence as  g iv ing  ev idence a lmost  f rom the  Bar.    10 

 Mr  Agr izz i  can  come and be  cross-examined,  we 

look fo rward  to  i t ,  we inv i te  i t ,  we preva i l  upon  you Mr  

Cha i rman to  f ind  tha t  t ime to  dea l  w i th  Mr  Agr izz i  under  

c ross-examinat ion  and he can answer  to  a l l  o f  these th ings 

thereaf te r.    To  now f rom the  Bar  t o  c r i t i c i se  Mr  Wakefo rd  i s  

–  must  be  ob jec ted  to .   Thank you Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  what  –  we l l  I  want  to  say I  

unders tand tha t  o rd inar i l y  i f  th is  a ff idav i t  had been g iven to  

Mr  Agr izz i  o r  h i s  lega l  team qu i te  some t ime back they  

m ight  have been ab le  to  respond and put  the i r  vers ion ,  in  20 

wh ich  case Mr  Wakeford  wou ld  have been aware  o f  the i r  

response,  a t  leas t  a t  the  t ime o f  g iv ing  ev idence and wou ld  

dea l  w i th  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  vers ion  bu t  s ince  they go t  i t  today 

obv ious ly  there  hasn ’ t  been enough t ime,  bu t  obv ious l y  i t  

i s  no t  go ing  to  he lp  to  dea l  w i th  i t  now,  because Mr  Agr izz i  
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w i l l  respond,  bu t  i t  w i l l  be  impor tan t  obv ious l y  tha t  he 

responds,  so  le t  us  a l low Mr  Wakeford  to  cont inue  on the 

unders tand ing  tha t  Mr  Agr i zz i  m ight  have a  d i f fe ren t  

vers ion  and tha t  he  w i l l  respond.  

 I  th ink  what  may be necessary  –  what  may be 

necessary  i s  tha t  dur ing  the  break  maybe tha t  i ssue  can be  

d iscussed among  the  lega l  teams in  te rms o f  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  

response because obv ious ly  we shou ld  have i t  as  soon as  

poss ib le .  

 Okay,  and then I  can approve whatever  t imef rame 10 

can be ag reed,  okay,  a l r i gh t .    We l l  we have gone beyond 

ha l f  past ,  le t ’s  –  i t  i s  twenty  to  twe lve ,  le t ’s  take  the  tea  

break now,  bu t  I  had in tended to  say Mr  Wakeford  –  to  s top 

you a t  twe lve  so  tha t  Mr  Notshe cou ld  then put  quest ions 

up  to  one o ’c lock  and then we take the  lunch b reak,  o f  

course  out  o f  the  t ime I  had meant  to  g ive  you has been 

taken out  by  the  d iscuss ion ,  so  I  th ink  when we come back  

I  w i l l  g ive  you maybe about  f i f teen minutes  i f  you can t ry  

and dea l  w i th  what  remains  in  te rms o f  impor tan t  po in ts  the  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  a l low Mr  Notshe to  s ta r t  pu t t ing  ques t ions to  20 

you,  and then we proceed,  i s  tha t  f ine?   I s  tha t  f ine? 

MR WAKEFORD:    I  hope i t  i s  f ine  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  what  we  can do obv ious ly  when  

Mr  Notshe asks you quest ions he  w i l l  cover  some o f  the  

th ings tha t  you might  no t  have covered and when  he asks  
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you  quest ions you can then take  tha t  oppor tun i ty  when  you  

respond to  dea l  w i th  them,  bu t  a t  the  end o f  the  process i f  

there  i s  –  there  a re  i ssues tha t  you fee l  you have not  had a  

chance to  dea l  w i th  p roper t y  you can s t i l l  make the  request  

to  be  g iven tha t  chance,  a l r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we w i l l  then take  the  tea 

ad journment ,  le t ’s  resume a t  twe lve  o ’c lock .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr Wakeford let  me give you up to 

quarter past  twelve to … 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  the – the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To wrap up.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  before you al locate the t ime to him  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There are l i t t le issues which are just 20 

housekeeping we need to do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   During the adjournment the legal  

representat ives of  Mr Wakeford and Mr Wi l l is  and the 

l iquidators we got  together and we are t ry ing to put  together 
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what  the t imef rames..  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   For deal ing wi th th is  issue of  the 

t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   With your permission – wi th your 

permission we have agreed that  we would exchange between 

ourselves the submissions – but  the submissions wi l l  be 

submit ted to you by twelve o’clock on Tuesday the 11 t h.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The submissions by a l l  part ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then – and then Chai r  i t  is also 

pointed out  to me by I  th ink the l iquidators that  the – but  we 

need your guidance on this.  The – Mr Watson – Gerard 

Watson the one who has got  the t ranscr ipt  he got  i t  through 

an appl icat ion he made to the Commissioner  in  the 417 

proceedings and then he was al lowed by Judge Joffe – but  

Judge Joffe said i t  is only for –  for his purpose for Mr 

Watson’s purpose.    20 

The quest ion is that  I  have been asked to put  to your  

at tent ion that  there is a rul ing by Judge Joffe as a 

Commissioner that  th is is on ly for Mr Watson.   Now we are 

not  certain whether Judge Joffe  has an interest  in the 

exercise of  deciding whether th is should now be put  in publ ic  
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or not  but  we – we were are not  certain we seek your  

guidance in that  regard.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink that  he can be informed of  

what is happening here through I  th ink the whoever is  

appearing there.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The l iquidators.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Through – no whoever is appearing there – 

whoever is appearing there I  am looking at  what is counsel  

for Mr Agrizzi  I  do not  know or… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Judge the – Chairperson there are the 10 

gent lemen who are represent ing the l iquidators.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   He – wel l  I  do not  know who should 

inform h im but  I  am saying he can be informed of  what is 

going on here.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes 

CHAIRPERSON:   You know and i f  he wishes to say anything 

he would be f ree to do so but  I  do not  th ink i t  is compulsory 

for him to say something but  i f  he wishes to say something 

… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No that  is f ine.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine ja.   But  that  arrangement that  

you have made is in order so that  I  have al l  the sub – wri t ten 

submissions not  later than Tuesday the 11t h.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No that  is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  
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ADV WILLIS:   Sorry.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Chai rperson but  before … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay I  th ink before you say somebody 

wants to say something.  

ADV WILLIS:   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About th is ja.  

ADV WILLIS:   Mr Chairman by agreement between the 

part ies who had the discussions there wi l l  a lso be 

submissions f rom Mr Gerard Watson or should I  say Afr ican 

Global  Holdings because they are the ones.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine.  

ADV WILLIS:   With the – wi th the t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:   Between him and the company and the 

l iquidators.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine.  

ADV WILLIS:    Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is f ine.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  is r ight .   So what we have done 

during the break we have created a sub-bundle and which 20 

only contains the aff idavi t  of  Mr Watson together  wi th 

annexures.   With your leave i t  is  marked BOSASA Bundle 

4(A) and i t  is a smal l  bundle which… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay should I  take i t  that  i t  conta ins part 

of  what I  have got  in th is bundle but  also i t  has stuff  that  I  do 
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not  have? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes what i t  – what i t  does now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The annexures.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  contains the aff idavi t  together wi th  

annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  conta ins everything that  Mr Wakeford 

submit ted yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  want – you did not  want to just  

s lot  the annexures at  the back of  th is one?  Is  there not  10 

enough space? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   They did not  – not  enough – i t  is not  

enough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because that  is much more convenient .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  d id not  – there is not  enough space 

because Chair  i f  we do that  i t  is … 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink what we should do – no – 

because I  th ink you should slot  as many as you can slot  into 

th is aff idavi t  and then go onto the next  aff idavi t  – f i le i f  there 

are not  enough and then that  f i le can then be A.   You said 20 

this one is what?  Oh this one is 4 A – is that  ( inaudible).  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   4A – the main one – the main one – the 

big one we started wi th is 4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Right .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then we took the I tem 12 which 
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contains Mr Wakeford’s aff idavi t  and we put  i t  in 4(A) 

together wi th his annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  th is is 4(A) which I  have got .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  is – th is is  what  we have put  on 

your desk dur ing the break.  

CHAIRPERSON:   These? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   I t  is not  what you were work ing on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh … 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   So we took – we took… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are the annexures here now? 10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The annexures are there now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay but  that  is what – the one that  I  

had before tea was – or what? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We took – we took the one you had 

before tea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was what? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Which was – which was I tem – I tem 12 in 

the big f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No in terms of  bundle – bundle? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  was – we took i t  f rom Bundle 4.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  I tem 12 in  Bundle 4 we took i t  and 

put  i t  here in th is new sub-bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  do not  l ike the new thing unless i t  is a  

cont inuat ion of  the old thing.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wi l l  te l l  you what I  th ink I  would l ike – I  

would have l iked.   I  would l ike to cont inue to have what I  

had.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then you can add but  i f  there is no 

space to add then there can be another f i le where you then 

put  on the other  th ings then i t  is a – i t  is  a  cont inuat ion.   You 

can then make the new f i le you can give i t  a bundle number.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Fine Chai r.   Chai r  then… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  want  to make sure that  the 

references we have made are the same.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There wi l l  be no change  i t  is just  a 

change of  the – but  i t  is f ine Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Can – i t  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us do i t  that  way then i t  is much more 

simple.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Can we cont inue now with what we 

have? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Before us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And I  wi l l  – we wi l l  move the documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Alr ight  let  us keep what we have 
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and then we wi l l  add i f  we need to add but  let  us not  replace.   

Okay.   Al r ight  Mr Wakeford.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Chair  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay i t  is ten past  … 

MR WAKEFORD:   Chair  i f  I  could work wi th your concession 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR WAKEFORD:   What I  have to do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR WAKEFORD:   At  – f rom my counsel  have advised me 10 

that  I  must  get  through the substance of  the al legat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course.  

MR WAKEFORD:   And of  course my response to that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   So I  am going to f in ish off  on the 

mot ivat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Which is on page … 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  us talk about  – let  us talk about  the 

… 20 

MR WAKEFORD:   Th is one – 4901.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us talk about  the t ime.   

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What I  was proposing giving you f i f teen 

minutes to say whatever you need to say but  as I  said that  is  
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not  the end because when he quest ions you – when he 

quest ions you in re lat ion to certain matters that  you might  

not  have deal t  wi th or did not  deal  wi th adequate ly you can 

then answer ful ly.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Ja 

CHAIRPERSON:   And at  the end when you are done i f  there 

are aspects that  you feel  are important  and you have not  had 

the chance to deal  wi th them I  wi l l  g ive you that  chance.  But  

your  counsel  wi l l  be al lowed to re-examine you i f  he wishes 

to.  10 

MR WAKEFORD:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You understand.   So in the end I  do not  

th ink you wi l l  feel  that  there is something that  you have not  

had a chance to deal  wi th properly.   I t  is just  a way of  going 

about i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Just  understand my heart  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  understand.  

MR WAKEFORD:   But  my heart  is th is that  I  have wai ted for  

more than two years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  accept  that .  20 

MR WAKEFORD:   And the al leger  of  al l  of  th is had lots of  

lat i tude.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  wi l l  g ive you that  chance i t  is a  

quest ion of  when.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  in  the end when you are done the 

idea is that  you should be able to  feel  that  you have been 

given adequate t ime to deal  wi th issues.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Okay thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR WAKEFORD:   So to sum up Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A lr ight .  

MR WAKEFORD:   On the – the mot ivat ion of  Agrizzi .  

1.  He pr imar i ly wanted and I  am on page – sorry S ir  –  I  

am on page 901 – BOSASA 04901 start ing at  195.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh okay – okay – now I  th ink I  have the 

new f i le is i t  not? 

MR WAKEFORD:   I  can give you the other number as wel l .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  – the  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on – hang on.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson the – what he did we took 

what you have we took i t  f rom the o ld f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   You wi l l  see – you wi l l  see Chai r  we st i l l  

– i f  you see there is a st icker which is st icking out  i t  says 12.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  was i tem 12 in the old f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  i t  is s i t t ing now on the new cover.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  now you see you are confusing me 
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because remember I  said let  us cont inue wi th what we had – 

so you have taken out  the – the certain parts.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We have taken out  I tem 12 that  is Mr 

Wakeford ’s aff idavi t  and put  i t  in th is new f i le together  wi th  

i ts annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What was wrong with keeping what we 

had? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We thought – we thought because the 

annexures could not  f i t  in the old – in th is old th ick f i le 

instead of  having the aff idavi t  on i ts  own.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no we spending too t ime on th is .   Br ing 

back the old f i le.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We have –  

CHAIRPERSON:   We spending too much t ime on i t .   Yes,  ja 

okay.   Br ing back the old f i le and then – okay so that  is the 

old f i le and there is  a  separate f i le which we wi l l  go to i f  

necessary,  is that  r ight?  Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  is the f i le now with the exhibi ts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so when we need to go to exhibi ts we 

can go there.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.   Okay.   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you Chai r  I  am going to just  end off  

on the mot ivat ion because i t  is very important .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    

1.  He pr imar i ly wanted to destroy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said we must go to 9 something – 

page 9 something? 

MR WAKEFORD:   So i t  is page – Chair  901.  

CHAIRPERSON:   901.   Ja okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Start ing at  point  195 the last  sect ion of  i t  

– i t  is real ly a summary.  

1.  He pr imari ly wanted to destroy the reputat ions of  

Watson and the black board of  d i rectors at  BOSASA 10 

guided by his rac ism to create the percept ion that  the 

board of  the company would have no opt ion but  to  s tep 

down and appoint  him as the CEO of  the Group or r isk 

the business l iquidat ing.  

2.  Fai l ing that  Agrizzi  would want to see the Group 

l iquidate ut i l is ing his contacts wi thin the media and 

pol i t ical  st ructures so that  he may obtain the Group’s 

contracts in h is own ent i ty that  was Crearis and 

3.  When cr iminal  charges were opened against  him by his  

former employers however he clear ly thought i t  would 20 

be pol i t ical ly expedient  to ut i l ise the commission to  

both repackage his own discret ions whi le earning 

favour wi th the DA by impl icat ing the ANC in corrupt ion 

short ly before the general  e lect ion only four months 

later.    
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So Chair  that  – that  br ings to an end the al lega – the 

mot ivat ion,  the summary of  that .   Chair  I  have gone through 

the a l legat ions and some of  my responses to point  out  –  I  

opened with th is  but  in summary just  to say that  none of  the 

facts or the so cal led al legat ions that  he presented al igned 

with a real  t ime t imel ine and certainly did not  match up wi th 

the account ing records both in my books and e lsewhere 

including Af r ican Global  or BOSASA. 

 So Chai r  the disputed al legat ions I  am not  going to  

read through which start  on page – sorry Chai r  I  keep 10 

forget t ing  

CHAIRPERSON:   905.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Ja – the disputed al legat ions – you correct  

Chair  905.   I  am not  going to read through verbat im what 

was said.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   In January 2019 I  th ink we al l  know that  

he al leged that  I  was involved in  get t ing someone within 

SARS George Papadakis to f ix certain things wi thin SARS 

and to date there has been absolutely no evidence to that  20 

effect .   Number 1.  

2.  He said that  I  was paid R100 000.00 a month to do that  

which is  patent ly untrue and I  demonstrate that  wi th the 

account ing records and emai ls – st rangely enough 

provided by him in previous aff idavi ts which point  to the 
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fact  that  I  say you have not  paid me for  so many 

months when are we going to resolve th is?   

So al l  of  that  is provided in the evidence.   By the same token 

the Lindela contract  he states that  the main reason for – for 

corrupt ing Aniel  Radhakrishna was to get  an extension of  the 

contract .  

 Now no extension ever took p lace.   I f  you read the 

in i t ia l  cont ract  the f i rst  addendum, the second addendum 

there was never any such thing.  

 So Chai r  I  am not  going to – I  have given you a 10 

summary of  the al legat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Both by Vorster and Agrizzi  and in fact  

Agrizzi  on the cement matter refers to Vorster and says wel l  

you t idy i t  up and give the whole story because I  do not  have 

i t .  

 So i f  we move on Chai r  to the – now I  am talking to  

the substance of  my responses and that  is on page 910 

Chair  at  the bot tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  that .  20 

MR WAKEFORD:   Good.  I t  says:  

“The al legat ions made by Agr izzi  in  

paragraph 43.4 of  his aff idavi t  are false in 

every respect .   No such meet ing or  

discussion ever occurred.  Watson and Agrizzi  
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nor have I  ever to ld any part  wi th BOSASA or  

otherwise that  Papadakis could resolve any 

issues at  SARS.  No such agreement for the 

provision of  serv ices in relat ion to SARS 

invest  – ever  ex isted or  was entered into 

between me and BOSASA.”  

 No agreement between BOSASA and mysel f  for 

R100 000.00 per month ever existed ei ther.   That  – th is is 

why nei ther such an agreement  has been produced by 

Agrizzi .    10 

 As al ready addressed above over the per iod of  2006 

to Apri l  2015 I  had a consul tancy reta iner wi th BOSASA 

through my close corporat ion for an amount of  R50 000.00 

per month.   This is qui te evident  f rom al l  f inancial  records.   

 My records ref lect  that  inter al ia I  received a monthly 

retained of  R50 000.00 plus VAT and on – on the few 

occasions where payments received exceeded R50 000.00 

they ei ther related to expenses incurred on BOSASA’s behal f  

or arrears payments of  my monthly retainer.  

 At  no stage was – was I  ever contractual ly paid 20 

R100 000.00 per month whether to assist  SARS 

invest igat ions or for any other purpose.   The only months 

when I  received R100 000.00 was as a resul t  of  arrears 

payments or catch up payments on my monthly  retainer  f rom 

months when Agrizzi  had not  pa id me.  
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 The schedule of  invoices sent  and payments received 

f rom BOSASA companies and that  is annexed in EA218 – but  

Chair  I  am not  going to take you there in the interest  of  t ime 

I  am sure your  team are very able to scrut in ise that  as to i ts  

authent ic i ty and correctness ref lects that  Agrizzi  f i rst  

stopped paying my monthly invoice in December 2009.  

Subsequent ly when payments to me resumed on the 24t h of  

June 2010 double payments were processed to me as catch 

up payments.   Al l  amounts received by my CC have been 

conf i rmed by the commission to my bank statements.  10 

 I  further appointed independent  audi t ing f i rm Ful l  

Serve Chartered Accountants to analyse my f inancial  records 

for the purposes of  th is commission.  

 Here Ful l  Serve reviewed.  My CC bank account 

statements going back to 2009 and Apri l  2015 when my 

serv ices wi th BOSASA concluded.   BOSASA’s genera l  ledger 

of  payments to my CC from 2007 unt i l  Apr i l  2015 and my 

invoices and ledger of  receipts of  payments dur ing that  

per iod.  

 The let ter conf i rms inter al ia that  the escalated 20 

payments that  I  received were previously unpaid months 

together wi th the current  month hence a double payment for  

that  month and th is is  normal  business pract ice.   That  these 

payments were nothing more than catch up payments for  

previously unpaid invoices is c lear ly  ref lected in emai l  
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correspondence between me and Agrizzi  over the per iod.    

 Agr izzi  prov ided these emai ls to the commission 

previously in an at tempt to support  h is representat ions 

however cont rar i ly they actual ly proved the t ruth of  my own 

representat ions to  the commission.  

 In the emai l  correspondence of  21s t  August  2010 I  

said the fol lowing to Agrizzi .  

Hi  Angelo any conclusion on my July 2010 catch up 

payment?  Is there any matters I  am unaware of  –  i f  there 

are any please let  me know  -  no offence.  10 

 This reason was sent  –  th is – the reason this was 

sent  was as Agrizzi  had paid me my f i rst  catch up payment in  

June 2010 but  then once again did not  pay me an amount  for  

July 2010.  

 And Chai r  I  – I  go on and on quot ing di fferent  emai ls  

proving that  what  he said was an absolute l ie.   But  Chair  I  

am – I  am going to speak to the fact  that  – that  based on 

some of  the info we have that  Agr izzi  purposely held back 

payments due to me speaks to the relat ionship and why he 

has gunned for  me here.   I t  was speci f ical ly Agrizzi ’s  20 

protests that  prevented me f rom being paid on t ime.  

Payments due to me have – have had to be doubled up when 

they were – when they were not  paid wi th records of  th is 

evidence stat ing and there is an annexure to that  effect .  

 I  am not  going to  read f rom the 417 t ranscr ipts once 
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again Chai r  and I  am not  going to speak to – let  me just  te l l  

you what page i t  is – I  am moving qui te quickly Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.  

MR WAKEFORD:   We are on page 916.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  am going to – to speak to th is so cal led 

l ink because he said I  was paid to assist  wi th SARS.   So at  

the bot tom of  that  page I  sa id I  am re l iably  informed that  the 

depths of  Agrizzi ’s  l ies can be seen f rom other 

documentat ion which I  cannot  speak to now but  I  am sure 10 

you wi l l  make a rul ing on that  Chai r  because he has 

def in i te ly purged himsel f  on a number of  di fferent  occasions.  

 I  am not  going to  speak to  – to  Vorster ’s  stuff  

because i t  is real ly a repeat  of… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you have deal t  wi th that  ear l ier.  

MR WAKEFORD:   What he said.   Chai r  I  wi l l  –  I  need to 

touch on Lindela and the DHA which was the other major 

issue.  That  is on page 927 Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Thank you Chai r.   In  paragraph 44.4 of  his  20 

founding aff idavi t  to the commission Agrizzi  at tempted to 

incr iminate mysel f  and Aniel  Radhakrishna in mat ters of  

state capture by stat ing that  we both had been party to 

faci l i tat ing a f ive-year extension to the contract  between 

BOSASA and DHA for the operat ion of  the Lindela 
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Repatr iat ion Cent re.  

2.  More favourable contract  terms were included in the 

contract  for BOSASA.  

Again I  am re l iably – okay I  am not  going to refer to that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja – yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   And I  am not  go ing to refer to that .   The 

rev iew the fol lowing page under point  272 Chai r.   The review 

that  Agr izzi  refers to in paragraph 44.2 in his evidence 

re lates to  two addendums to the or ig inal  L indela contract  of  

2005.   These addendums the second and thi rd addendum to 10 

the 2005 cont ract  were concluded and signed on two 

di fferent  dates one being the 18t h of  February 2008 and the 

13t h of  March 2009 respect ively.  

 The or ig ina l  L indela contract  was for the provision of  

detent ion serv ices for i l legal  foreigners at  the Lindela 

Repatr iat ion faci l i ty inclusive of  accommodat ion,  meals and 

securi ty.  This contract  was concluded between Leading 

Prospect  Trading a subsidiary of  the BOSASA Group and the 

DHA and was for a ten-year  per iod Chai r  of  1  October  2005 

to 1 October 2015. 20 

 So there would have been no need in 2009 to 

concern onesel f  wi th an extension.   In 2007 the Home Affai rs  

turnaround project  was implemented involving large scale 

rest ructur ing of  the Department of  Home Affa i rs.   Fever Tree 

Consul t ing commonly known as Fever Tree was contracted 
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by the DHA to determine the scope of  the turnaround project  

and ident i f ied a comprehensive set  of  t ransformat ion 

projects for the Department including reviewing and 

renegot iat ing exis t ing cont racts.  

 Chair  th is was a very smal l  part  of  the overal l  

turnaround – minute in fact  i f  one had to look at  the scope 

and scale of  that  project  and Chair  th is project  won 

internat ional  awards.   We were even invi ted 00:27:13 of  

Fever Tree was invi ted to Pr inceton to del iver a paper  on 

this publ ic sector  project  and i t  was granted other  awards 10 

local ly as wel l .   I t  was in my view a shining example of  how 

you go about t ransforming a state ent i ty  

 In ear ly 2007 I  was contacted by the Minister of  

Home Affai rs who at  the t ime was Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula 

who requested me to oversee and then to oversee the then 

envisaged turnaround project .   Th is pro ject  was endorsed by 

cabinet  under the Presidency of  the former President  Thabo 

Mbeki .   This project  was endorsed by cabinet  giv ing the on-

going cr is is wi thin  Home Affai rs.  

 Due to a lack of  senior leadership numerous 20 

suspensions wi thin the DHA a legacy of  poor inf rast ructure 

and IT systems as wel l  as poor governance – a poor  

governance envi ronment Fever Tree the local  par t  of  AT 

Curley was appointed.  

 AT Cur ley were highly regarded due to thei r  previous 
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success wi thin the publ ic sector in South Afr ica namely at  

the South Afr ican Revenue Service – SARS and 

internat ional ly through successful  execut ion of  Home Affai rs  

re lated projects in  the USA, Belgium and Netherlands.  

 I  informed the Minister at  the t ime that  I  was 

providing consul t ing services to  the Premier of  the Eastern 

Cape Province as wel l  as advising the BOSASA Group of  

Companies.   My appointment as Minister ia l  Turnaround 

Advisor was through my Close Corporat ion.   This lasted for  

two years 2007 to 2009 and ended the month before the 10 

2009 general  e lect ions.  

 As stated above I  cont inued to consul t  to BOSASA 

and other cl ients in the pr ivate sector.    

 And one can even scrut in ise the hours I  put  in there – 

i t  was not  a fu l l  day because I  had other cl ients.  

 During the Turnaround Project  new and improved 

serv ice level  agreements commonly known as SLA’s were 

negot iated wi th al l  key suppl iers to  the Department  of  Home 

Affai rs including SETA which was a government ent i ty,  

Telkom – a government ent i ty,  SAPO – a government ent i ty,  20 

XPS – a government ent i ty owned by SAPO, Mtweze Double 

Ring,  GPW or Government Pr in t ing Work and Leading 

Prospects Trading.   Of  [word cut ]  only Mtweze Double Ring 

and Lindela had exist ing cont rac ts  in  p lace .   A l l  o ther  

cont rac ts  had exp i red  or  d id  no t  ex is t  w i th  DHA.   A t  a l l  
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mater ia l  t imes when in  re la t ion  to  BOSASA or  any o f  my 

c l ien ts  I  was mindfu l  o f  poss ib le  conf l i c ts  o f  in te res t  and 

w i thout  except ion  made fu l l  d isc losures  and recused  myse l f  

f rom any dec i s ions invo lv ing  or  re la t ing  to  my c l ien ts .    

 I  was the  m in is te r ’s  tu rnaround adv i so r  and 

programme manager  and indeed a t  the  he lm  o f  the  

Turnaround P ro jec t .   However,  I  oversaw 55 pro jec ts  and  

seven work  s t reams and was mon i to r ing  o f  these aga ins t  

cont rac ted  de l i ve rab les .   I  was a t  no  s tage,  whatsoever,  

even remote ly  invo lved in  the  L inde la  Cont rac t  10 

renegot ia t ions .    

 I  never  a t tended  or  took par t  w i th  any meet ing  

w i th  Agr izz i  o r  Watson concern ing  the  renegot ia t ions  o f  

L inde la .   I  am go ing  to  sk ip  a  b i t  o f  tha t  Cha i r  and move on  

to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine .  

MR WAKEFORD :    And move onto  283:  

“ I  had never  been par ty  to  any dea l  w i th  

Radhadkr i shna and/or  Agr izz i  and/or  Gav in  

Watson.  20 

Agr izz i  wou ld  have met  Radhakhr ishna a t  the 

respect ive  negot ia t ions  sess ions be tween the  

DHA and BOSASA.  

Once aga in ,   Agr i zz i  was a t  the  he lm. . . ”  

 I f  you  look a t  a l l  these cont rac ts  and the i r  
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addendums,  he  was the  s ignatory  to  a l l  o f  them not  Gav in  

Watson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    “The cu lm inat ion  o f  these negot ia t ions   

was the  second and th i rd  addendums to  the  

or ig ina l  2005 con t rac t  as  re fer red  to  above.    

As  a l ready s ta ted ,  I  was not  pa r t  o f  these 

negot ia t ions  in  any way.  

However,  I  have taken the  t ime to  rev iew the  

cont rac t  and the  two addendums conc luded 10 

wh i le  I  was an adv isor  to  the  Min is te r  o f  Home 

Affa i rs  on  the  ove ra l l  Turna round Pro jec t . . . ”  

 Cha i r,  tha t  the  sa l ien t  po in ts  o f  the  second  

addendum,  tha t  was in  2008,  a re :  

“1 .  The DHA wou ld  rece ive  a  month l y  sav ing  

o f  R 640 000,00.  

2 .  The min imum month ly  th resho ld  o f  3250 

persons w i th  the  DHA was l iab le  fo r  w i th in  the  

or ig ina l  2005 cont rac t  was reduced to  2500  

persons.    20 

Var iab le  cost  fo r  food wou ld  on ly  be  app l i cab le  

when a  number  o f  immigrants  he ld  a t  the 

fac i l i t y  exceeded  the  m in imum thresho ld  o f  

2500 pe rsons.  

Annua l  ad jus tments  to  p r ic ing  wou ld  be  based 
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on  the  p reva i l ing  CPIX ,  tha t  i s  your  in f la t ion  

fo rmula .  

Th is  cond i t ion ,  however,  was a l ready present  

in  the  or ig ina l  cont ract .  

The sa l ien t  po in t s  o f  the  th i rd  addendum,  and 

th is  i s  even bet te r  fo r  the  f i scus:  

1 .  The par t ies  and the  t r ip  to  meet  by  

Apr i l  2015 befo re  the  exp i ry  o f  the  or ig ina l  

cont rac t  in  October  2015 to  d iscuss the  

ex tens ion  o f  the  cont rac t  beyond the  in i t ia l  10 

per iod  o f  2005 to  2015.  

The DHA may a t  th is  t ime in  i t s  so le  d isc re t ion  

ex ten t  the  in i t ia l  per iod  un t i l  the  31s t  o f  

October  2018.  

I f  ex tended by  the  DHA,  the  cont rac t  wou ld  

cont inue on the  same te rms and cond i t ions  as  

the  cu r ren t  agreement .  

However,  the  month ly  charge payab le  by  the 

DHA wou ld  be  reduced by  the  cap i ta l  cos t  o f  

the  fac i l i t y  o f  R 1 ,8  m i l l ion  per  month .  20 

A reduct ion  o f  the  month l y  amor t i sa t ion  cost  o f  

the  fac i l i t y  payab le  by  the  DHA o f  R 42 000,00.  

I f  the  occupancy o f  the  fac i l i t y  was be low 50% 

of  the  m in imum thresho ld  o f  any 36-month  

per iod  the  DHA wou ld  be  ab le  to  reduce the  
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var iab le  cost  component  o f  the  month ly  

charge.  

The DHA were  g iven a  CPIX  ho l iday o f  6 -

months . . . ”  

 Which  ended up,  by  the  way Cha i r,  o f  becoming 

5-years  because Mr  Agr izz i  fa i led  to  imp lement  w i th in  h is  

own ju r isd i c t ion  and h i s  own company where  he  was Ch ie f  

Opera t ing  Off i cer  and de fac to  CEO,  he  fa i led  to  remember  

th is  c lause and in  fac t  benef i ted  the  s ta te  even more .  

“BOSASA wou ld  prov ide  add i t iona l  med ica l  10 

serv i ces  a t  no  add i t iona l  cos t  and BOSASA 

wou ld  spend an add i t iona l  R 5  m i l l ion  in  

upgrad ing  fac i l i t i es  and wou ld  prov ide  the  DHA 

wi th  remove access fac i l i t i es .  

The DHA wou ld  have an opt ion  dur ing  the  fu l l  

length  o f  tha t  cont rac t  to  purchase the  L inde la  

fac i l i t y  a t  a  p r ice  de termined by  a  reg is te red  

independent  va luer.  

The DHA wou ld  have a  r igh t  o f  f i rs t  re fusa l  on 

any o ther  to  purchase the  fac i l i ty  by  a  th i rd  20 

par ty.  

Each and every  ind iv idua l  cont rac tua l  te rm o f  

the  two addendums above was fo r  the  benef i t  

o f  the  DHA and not  the  benef i t  o f  BOSASA.   

I  pause here  to  d raw a t ten t ion  to  the  fac t  tha t  
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the  ex tens ion  re fer red  to  in  the  cont rac t  was 

on ly  to  be  de te rm ined by  the  DHA 6-years  a f te r  

the  s ign ing  o f  the  th i rd  addendum.  

A dec i s ion  to  be  made 6 -years  a f te r  myse l f  and 

Radhakr ishna were  no  longer  connected to  the  

DHA in  any way.  

No ex tens ion  was eventua l l y  awarded to 

BOSASA in  2015 anyway.  

In  fac t ,  Agr izz i  has a t tempted to  repurpose the  

demands h imse l f  made on the  DHA where  10 

Agr izz i  had s ta ted  to  the  DHA a t  the  t ime in  

2007 tha t  he  wou ld  on ly  cons ide r  reduc ing  the  

month l y  invo ice  to  the  DHA under  the  cond i t ion  

tha t  the  or ig ina l  cont rac t  be  ex tended fo r  f i ve  

years .  

Th is  addressed  in  page 9  o f  the  L inde la  

negot ia t ions  under  Outcomes,  Deep D ive ,  

wh ich  is  EA-295. . . ”  

 But  Cha i r,  I  am not  go ing  to  take  you there  in  the  

in te res t  o f  t ime.    20 

“A t  th is  t ime,  the  recommendat ion  was tha t  the  

DHA shou ld  on ly  cons ider  a  th ree  year  

po ten t ia l  renewa l  u l t imate ly  th rough Agr i zz i  

a l though Agr izz i  was never  a f fo rded the 

ex tens ion  he  demanded.  
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Regard ing  cost  sav ings imp lemented,  the  

repor t  o f  the  account ing  o f f i cer  in  the  2008 

annua l  f inanc ia l  s ta tements . . . ”  

 And you w i l l  remember  Cha i r  tha t  he  was the  

D i rec tor  Genera l ,  Mavuso Msimang,  a  man o f  g rea t  ca l ib re  

and who ran  tha t  depar tment  ex t remely  we l l  and he knew 

tha t  he  was in  charge,  no t  me,  no t  any DGB,  he  was in  

charge and he d id  h is  work  proper ly.  

“Th is  was based on the  annua l  sav ing  o f  

R 7 .68  mi l l ion  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  640 000  10 

month l y  sav ing  prov ided.  

Th is  wou ld  c rea te  fu tu re  cost  sav ings o f  

R 68 mi l l ion  on  the  remainder  o f  the  L inde la  

cont rac t .  

In  add i t ion  to  the  cost  o f  the  cont rac t  

decreas ing  immedia te ly,  i f  the  cont rac t  was 

ex tended a t  the  so le  d iscre t ion  o f  the  

depar tment  the  cost  wou ld  be  fu r ther  reduced  

by  an  annua l  R 1 .8  m i l l ion  per  month  reduc ing 

add i t iona l  sav ings,  fu tu re  sav ings o f  20 

R 112 mi l l ion .  

The Commiss ion ’s  invest iga tors  have 

subsequent ly  rev iewed ac tua l  b i l l i ngs  by  

BOSASA to  the  DHA and conf i rmed the  

fo l low ing.  
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Be fore  the  renegot ia t ions  commenced,  

BOSASA invo iced the  DHA 3250 pe rsons 

mul t ip l ied  by  30 .4  days because  tha t  i s  the  

average month  in  a  year,  mu l t ip l ied  by  R 79.90 

per  person wh ich  came out  a t  R 7 .8  m i l l ion  

month ly.  

A f te r  renegot ia t ion ,  the  two  addendums 

conc luded in  February  2009.  

BOSASA invo iced the  DHA 2500 persons x  

30 .4  x  99 .41  pe r  person wh ich  came out  a t  10 

R 7 .5  m i l l ion  mon th ly.  

One wou ld  ask ,  why the  i nc rease to  99 .41?  

That  i s  fac tor i ng  in  p r inc ip le  in f la t ionary  

increases wh ich  wou ld  have happened anyway.  

Th is  amount  remained the  same fo r  the 

fo l low ing 62-months un t i l  March  2014.  

Th is  means tha t  no  annua l  CPIX  increases 

were  imp lemented over  th is  f i ve  year  per iod .  

Th is  conf i rms tha t  the  pr ice  pa id  by  the  DHA 

over  the  two addendums was 333 000 less  20 

than the  DHA pa id  be fo re  negot ia t ion ,  c lear l y  a  

benef i t  to  the  DHA and not  BOSASA.  

However,  th i s  igno res the  fac t  tha t  the  

increase in  p r i ce  f rom R 79,00 to  R 99,00 per  

day was brought  about  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  CPIX 
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wh ich  I  have jus t  ment ioned.  

I f  th is  i s  cons idered the  t rue  pr ice  be fo re  

renegot ia t ion  fo r  compara t ive  purposes is  3250 

persons x  30 .4  x  99  wh ich  equa ls  R 9 .8  m i l l ion  

month ly.  

There fore ,  in  rea l i t y,  the  pr ice  a f te r  

renegot ia t ions  rep resents  an  immedia te  

decrease in  b i l l i ng  o f  R 2 .2  month l y  o f  

R 27 mi l l ion  annua l ly. . . ”  

 And Cha i r,  you w i l l  remember  when we spoke  10 

about  th is  in  January  2019,  he  was go ing  on about  how 

famous th is  was the  money mak ing  cont rac t  o f  BOSASA.   I t  

const i tu ted  a  smal l  par t  o f  the i r  t o ta l  tu rnover,  number  one 

and number  two,  c lea r ly  was not  a f te r  the  renegot ia t ion  the  

rea l  money mak ing  beast  tha t  he  spoke about  and Cha i r  

th is  i s  mere l y  pe rus ing  the  fac ts  and the  lega l  documents  

invo l ved.    

“Th is  exerc ise  was per fo rmed fo r  the  per iod  

2009 to  2015 when the  cont rac t  exp i red  and  

demonst ra tes  the  t rue  f inanc ia l  sav ing  by  the  20 

Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i r s  over  th is  per iod  

amounted to  R 325 mi l l ion . . . ”  

 Cha i r,  a  lo t  o f  money and tab le  tha t  to  p rove tha t  

Cha i r  i s  on  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    937.   I s  tha t  the  one?  
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MR WAKEFORD :    Ja ,  I  th ink  you  are  r igh t .   That  i s  r igh t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    937.   I  am go ing  to  go  th rough i t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Bu t  rea l l y  i t  d i f fe ren t ia tes  be tween what  

the  cont rac t  was  in  2005,  what  i t  became a f te r  the  2009 

second addendum and i t  p roves  beyond any reasonab le  

doubt  tha t  there  were  mass ive  sav ings fo r  the  s ta te  and fo r  

the  f i scus and hence the  awards g iven to  th i s  p ro jec t  10 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Wel l ,  when you sa id  deposed what  

the  cont rac t  was in  2005 but  I  see  the  tab le  seems to  s ta r t  

in  2009.  

MR WAKEFORD :    We –  Cha i r,  we  are  s ta r t ing  in  2009 but  

tha t  i s  when the  second addendum was comple ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR WAKEFORD :    So  you get  the  fu l l  benef i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD :    And we demonst ra te  tha t  over  a  per iod  20 

o f  s ix  years .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR WAKEFORD :    so  i t  was bas i ca l l y  ha l fway th rough the  

cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR WAKEFORD :    Tak ing  i t  to  the  end o f  the  cont rac t  and  

they cou ld  have cont inued w i th  the  sav ings and I  do  no t  

know why but  they d id  no t  then ex ten t  i t  a t  the i r  own  

d iscre t ion .   They  negot ia ted  a  new cont rac t .   Now I  do  no t  

know what  happened w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  jus t  to  ge t  

on to  Radhakr ishna.   I  am aware  tha t  Rahdakr ishna h imse l f  

comple te l y  den ies  Agr i zz i ’s  accusat ion  o f  an  agreement  

w i th  BOSASA for  the  payment  o f  R 7  m i l l ion  regard ing  the  10 

L inde la  renegot ia t ion .   However,  on  p la in  log ic ,  i t  appears  

tha t  un l i ke ly  tha t  a  consu l tan t  wou ld  be  rewarded w i th  

R 7  m i l l ion  hav ing  cost  them for  h is  so-ca l led  cor rup t  

tours(? ) ,  R 325 m i l l ion  because tha t  i s  what  they d id  no t  do  

as  a  resu l t  o f  the  sa le .  

“ I  fu r ther  p rov ided ex t rac ts  o f  the  income 

s ta tement  and the  annua l  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  

o f  lead ing  Prospect  Trad ing  wh ich  

demonst ra tes  tha t  be fore  the  renegot ia t ion  o f  

the  cont rac t  in  2007,  lead ing  Prospect  Trad ing  20 

earned an annua l  p ro f i t  o f  R 22.6  m i l l ion .  

A f te r  renegot ia t ion  th is  p ro f i t  cons i s ten t ly  

decreased year  on  year  un t i l  2012 and 2013 

when the  company ac tua l l y  made losses.  

These f inanc ia l  s ta tements  a re  i nd ica t ive  o f  
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the  pro f i tab i l i t y  o f  the  L inde la  cont rac t  as  

lead ing  Prospect  Trad ing  was a  s ing le  purpose 

ent i t y  exc lus i ve l y  fo r  the  opera t ion  o f  the  

L inde la  cont rac t .  

Agr izz i ’s  rep resenta t ions in  parag raph 44.4  o f  

h is  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion  are  fa l se  i n  

the i r  en t i re ty.  

1 .  He say the  L inde la  cont rac t  was not  

ex tended fo r. . . . ”  

 Oh,  so r ry  Cha i r.   I  am not  qu i te  sure  i f  th is  i s  10 

taken f rom the  417.   I s  th is  taken f rom the  417? 

COUNSEL :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Not .   Thank you .   I  w i l l  car ry  on  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR WAKEFORD :    “The L inde la  cont rac t  was not  ex tended  

fo r  f i ve  years  or  a t  a l l .  

The cont rac t  had a l ready been in  p lace  fo r  two 

years  pr io r  to  th is  rev iew and thus th is  d id  no t  

requ i re  Nat iona l  Treasury  approva l  as  a l leged 

by  Agr izz i .  20 

The DHA has a l ready conf i rmed  th is  to  the  

Commiss ion .  

No more  favourab le  cont rac t  te rms were  

inc luded in  the  cont rac t . . . ”  

 In  fac t ,  Agr izz i  h imse l f  no  longer  appears  to  ho ld 
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th is  c la im and I  won ’ t  say  why Cha i r.  

“The e f fec t  o f  the  negot ia t ions  and  rev iew was  

to  b r ing  the  cost  per  cap i ta  to  the  depar tment  

to  on ly  35% of  the  cost  per  cap i ta  o f  s im i la r  

serv i ces  prov ided  a t  p r iva te  p r isons,  and there  

are  some in  South  A f r i ca ,  and the  Depar tment  

o f  Soc ia l  Se rv i ces  as  addressed in  the  L inde la  

negot ia t ions . . . ”  

 And i t  i s  a l l  a t tached in  the  ev idence,  Cha i r.  

“As regards paragraph 44.6  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  o r  10 

Agr izz i ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  once more  re fe rs  to  

the  ex tended con t rac t .  

Th is  s ta tement  can on ly  be  fa lse  as  conf i rmed 

above,  the  cont rac t  was not  ex tended.  

Fur thermore ,  I  had a t  no  t ime had any  

d iscuss ions w i th  Agr izz i  about  the  benef i t s  o f  

an  ex tended L inde la  cont rac t .  

I  cannot  speak  on beha l f  o f  SCOPA or  

oppos i t ion  po l i t i ca l  par t ies .  

However,  i t  i s  on ly  log ica l  to  assume tha t  20 

anyone wou ld  look favourab le  upon the  DHA 

pay ing  less  and rece iv ing  more  as  the  te rms o f  

the  addendums d ic ta te . . . ”  

 And Cha i r,  o f  course ,  L inde la  as  a  concept  o r  a  

s ta te  po l i cy  has  i t s  opponents .   There  are  some peop le  
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who do not  be l ieve  tha t  you shou ld  repat r ia te  and tha t  you 

shou ld  de ta in  bu t  in  most  democrac ies  wor ldwide there  is  

some fo rm o f  de ten t ion  and repat r ia t ion  un less  you are  

dec la red a  re fugee.   And as  much as  peop le  jump up and 

down i t  i s  a  rea l i t y,  i t  i s  there  and we had to  dea l  w i th  tha t  

po l i ce  rea l i t y.   I t  i s  no t  fo r  s ta te  depar tments  to  quest ion  

government  po l i c i es ,  they jus t  have  to  imp lement .  

“ I t  i s  impor tan t  to  no te  tha t  Fever  Tree 

Consu l tan ts  opera te  in  Home Affa i rs  in  a 

suppor t i ve  capac i ty.  10 

They per fo rmed  research  and ana lyses  

fo l lowed by  spec i f i c  recommendat ions.  

As a  suppor t  consu l tan t  work ing  w i th  DHA 

o f f i c ia ls ,  Radhakr ishna was on ly  one member  

o f  a  team respons ib le  fo r  negot ia t ing  the  

sav ings.  

A l l  s ta tu tory  powers ,  however,  remained  

vested  in  the i r  account ing  au thor i t y  be ing  the  

d i rec tor  genera l  and h is  subord ina tes  in  te rms  

o f  the  respect ive  de legat ions o f  au thor i t y  fo r  20 

the  necessary  approva ls  inc lud ing  procu rement  

and cont rac t .  

S ign i f i can t  ou tcomes f rom the  tu rnaround 

inc luded reduced  tu rnaround t imes fo r  ident i t y  

documents  and fo r  passpor t s . . . ”  
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 And the  customer  cent re ,  Cha i r,  tha t  answered  

95% of  ca l l s  in  20  seconds and reso lved 90% of  ca l l s  on  

f i rs t  contac t .   I  do  no t  know what  the  s i tua t ion  is  now and  

we have a lways  spoke about  mak ing  the  t ransformat ion  

s t i ck  bu t  I  am su re  tha t  i f  you  speak to  Home Affa i rs  they  

w i l l  g ive  you an idea o f  what  is  tak ing  p lace now.  

“Agr i zz i  has a t tempted to  man ipu la te  rea l i t y  in  

suggest ing  any sur rep t i t ious  payments  were  

made to  Radhakr ishna by  BOSASA.  

Subsequent  to  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  L inde la  10 

negot ia t ions . . . ”  

 By  the  way Cha i r.   I  do  have cop ies  o f  Papadak is  

and Radhakr ishna ’s  a f f idav i t s .   We got  Papadak is ’ 

yes terday and Radhakr ishna,  we  w i l l  rece ive  permiss ion  

f rom the  work  s t ream to  ge t  i t  d i rec t l y  f rom h im.  

“Radhakr ishna i s  a  pub l i c  sec tor  f inance 

exper t  and I  wou ld  imag ine  i t  was fo r  th i s  

reason tha t  Agr izz i  approached them in  regard  

to  sent  a  p roposa l  on  the  8 t h  o f  October  2009,  

de ta i l ing  the  works  to  be  fo rmed and tha t  was  20 

fo r  a  f lee t  management  cont rac t  in  the  Eastern  

Cape th rough one o f  the i r  subs id ia r ies ,  

Opera t ion  Phak isa . . . ”  

 Cha i r,  I  am a lmos t  f in ished.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  
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MR WAKEFORD :    “My so le  invo l vement  in  th is  p rocess  

was tha t  Agr izz i  asked me fo r  input  on  the  

dra f t  p roposa ls  o f  Ke l l y  on  the  f lee t  

management  con t rac t  to  wh ich  I  in fo rmed h im 

tha t  he  shou ld  counter  the  o f fe r  w i th  more  

favourab le  te rms to  BOSASA.  

Regard ing  Radhakr ishna ’s  la te r  consu l t ing  to  

BOSASA one needs to  apprec ia te  tha t  an  

independent  bus iness consu l tan t  en joys  the  

same pro fess iona l  ag i l i t y  tha t  advocates  or  10 

a t to rneys do  and no ind iv idua l  c l ien t  owns tha t  

p ro fess iona l  perpetu i t y.   

Agr izz i  had suggested tha t  h is  re la t ionsh ip  

was de l ibe ra te l y  h idden by  some manner  by  

Radhakr ishna invo ic ing  BOSASA in  the  name 

o f  D is t inc t i ve  Cho ice  Wines a t  some la te r  

s tage.  

The Commiss ion ,  however,  has  conf i rmed tha t  

th is  on l y  occur red  in  Ju l y  2011 two years  a f te r  

Ke l l y  and Radhakr i shna ’s  company a l ready 20 

invo i ced BOSASA d i rec t l y  in  November  2009.  

I t  i s  counter - i n tu i t i ve  to  suggest  tha t  a  

re la t ionsh ip  wou ld  be  revea led  in  p la in  s igh t  

on ly  to  be  h idden  two years  la te r. . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am qu ick ly  look ing  a t  you r  
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submiss ions.   I t  looks  l i ke  they wou ld  jus t  be  a  repet i t ion  

o f  what  you have a l ready sa id  so  fa r,  a t  leas t  in  9 ,  page 

942,  i s  tha t  no t  so?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   Do you want  me to 

cont inue?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  I  am say ing  tha t  I  am br ie f l y  

look ing  a t  your  b r ie f  submiss ions . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a t  the  end and i t  looks  l i ke  they w i l l  

jus t  be  a  repet i t ion  o f  what  you have sa id .  10 

MR WAKEFORD :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  on ly  looked  a t  942 and i f  they  were  

go ing  to  be  jus t  a  repet i t ion ,  maybe you shou ld  no t  dea l  

w i th  them but  you  can round o f f .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  I  am happy to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    . . . to  end o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  round o f f .  

MR WAKEFORD :    And jus t  to  say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR WAKEFORD :    . . . jus t  based on  the  ev idence in  re la t ion  

to  SARS,  there  was no invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  i f  you  ask  me because I  saw 

Papadak is ’ s ta tement  yeste rday fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR WAKEFORD :    My so le  ro le  in  ass is t ing  Papadak is  in  

2008/2009 was because he was bu i ld ing  a  house.   I t  was 

pr io r  to  the  Wor ld  Cup.   There  was a  shor tage o f  cement ,  

and i f  you  a re  bu i ld ing  a  house and not  a  fac tory  o r  a  

shopp ing  cent re ,  you get  pushed to  the  back o f  the  queue.   

And as  I  unders tand  i t ,  he  had meet ings w i th  the  Watson ’s  

and he contac ted  me.    

 I  thought  tha t  they had shares in  A f r iSam,  so  

they cou ld  ge t  i t  much cheaper.   C lear ly,  they  d id  no t  do  10 

tha t  bu t  I  mere ly  re fe r red  the  bu i lder  o r  the  const ruc t ion  

manager  o r  whatever  he  is  ca l led .   He contac ted  me.   He 

obv ious ly  go t  my  number  f rom Papadak is .   I  re fe r red  tha t  

th rough to  Agr izz i  and he cou ld  have re fer red  tha t  to  

Voster.    

 From t ime to  t ime  I  was phoned to  say:   I  cannot  

ge t  ho ld  o f  these  guys.   Can you fo l low up fo r  me?   And I  

d id .   There  was noth ing  mal i c ious .   There  was no qu id  pro  

quo.   As  fa r  as  I  unders tand,  he  pa id  fo r  the  cement .   I t  

was done above board .   Jus t  he lp ing  a  f r iend who,  in  fac t ,  20 

was one o f  the  key invest iga tors  a t  the  Rand Commiss ion .    

 And so  I  have known th i s  man fo r  many years  

and I  had the  h ighest  respect  fo r  h im as a  man o f  in tegr i t y  

and honour  and as  a  man who has,  you know,  he  was a t  

the  Rand Commiss ion ,  he  was a t  the  P i l lay  Commiss ion .   
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He has been a  var ie ty  o f  commiss ions and done s ter l ing  

work  fo r  th is  na t ion  and fo r  th is  count ry.   And I  wou ld  no t  

never  pu t  h im in  such a  compromis ing  pos i t ion .    

 In  fac t ,  wh i le  he  was a t  SARS he d id  no t  need 

the  BOSASA peop le ,  as  fa r  as  I  know.   And yes I  d id ,  f rom 

t ime to  t ime,  v is i t  h im unre la ted  and I  never  asked  h im to 

in f luence a  mat te r  w i th in  SARS.   And I  d id  no t  even ask 

h im fo r  adv i ce  because we had some o f  the  best  adv isors  

in  the  count ry.   You know,  Advocate  So lomons SC.   We had  

–  I  ment ion  them in  my a f f idav i t s .   Some top ,  top  rank ing  10 

peop le .   So the  subs id ies  was a lso  present .   I t  was a lways  

present .    

 The issue fo r  me was to  keep a  wa tch ing  br ie f  on  

th rea ts .   What  th rea ts  were  there ,  perhaps fo rces w i th in  

SARS?  Were  there  fo rces w i th in  the  cr im ina l  jus t i ce  

sys tem?  Were  there  fo rces w i th in  the  med ia?  Were  there  

compet i to rs  t ry ing  to  undermine us?  That  was par t  o f  my 

br ie f  and I  make no bones about  tha t .    

 I  d id  –  I  wou ld  say to  h im:   George – i f  he  had  

t ime to  see me,  o f  course .   I  o f ten  asked fo r  a  meet ing ,  I  20 

never  go t  i t .   But  I  wou ld  say:   George,  f rom a  process 

v iewpo in t ,  you know,  admin is t ra t i ve  jus t i ce  s tu f f ,  how 

shou ld  we hand le  th is?   and h i s  –  fo r  ins tance,  I  th ink  he  

got  t i red  o f  me because I  kept ,  you know:   A re  we not  

under  a t tack  here?  Because I  d id  no t  know a  lo t  o f  the  
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th ings Agr i zz i  and h is  5 t h  Co lumn were  do ing  beh ind  the  

scenes.   I  had no  c lue .    

 So when we were  be ing  a t tacked  l i ke  tha t ,  I  d id  

–  I  fe l t  i t  incumbent  on  myse l f  to  engage w i th  the  d i f fe ren t  

p layers  in  the  market ,  do  some good bus iness in te l l igence,  

f ind  ou t  what  i s  go ing  on ,  and to  in  fac t  ac t  on  tha t  in fo .   

The le t te r  and Advocate  Notshe w i l l  show you qu i te  a  b i t  o f  

emai ls  and ev idence,  most ly  ou ts ide  o f  Papadak is ’ tenure  

a t  SARS.    

 He w i l l  show you s tu f f  bu t  even du r ing  h i s  10 

tenure ,  there  cou ld  be  one or  two ,  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  bu t  

even du r ing  h i s  tenure  i t  was admin is t ra t i ve .   You know,  

you got  the  r igh t  to  ob jec t .   You got  the  r igh t  to  appea l .   

Those were  the  th ings tha t  I  was  in te res ted  in  bu t  more  

impor tan t ly.   Why  are  we be ing  a t tacked a l l  the  t ime?  And  

I  even ass is ted  w i th  a  le t te r  wh ich  went  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  the 

Commiss ioner  o f  SARS.   F i rs t l y  to  the  ac t ing  commiss ioner  

and then to  the  commiss ioner  h imse l f .    

 And apparent ly,  there  was a  ve ry  good meet ing  

tha t  resu l ted  f rom i t .   So ,  Cha i r  I  have got  no th ing  to  h ide .   20 

I  rea l l y  do  no t  bu t  the  fa l lac ious  type o f  content  tha t  i s  

be ing  a l leged aga ins t  me had to  be  answered and  tha t  i s  

why I  want  to  thank you persona l ly  fo r  mak ing  i t  poss ib le  

fo r  me to  a t  leas t  have my say today.   Thank you,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Wakeford .   I  ended up 
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g iv ing  you more  than the  15-minutes  bu t  I  th ink  i t  is  okay.   

You have –  I  th ink  you have had the  oppor tun i ty  to  pu t  your  

s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   We a re  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  lunch now 

but  be fore  we do  tha t .   Counse l  fo r  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  I  guess  

you w i l l  on ly  have an idea o f  how much t ime,  i f  any,  you 

might  need to  re -examine a f te r  Mr  Notshe has f in ished h is  

quest ion ing ,  I  guess?  

ADV REG WILLIS :    Mr  Cha i rman ,  I  ga ther  you a re  ask ing  

tha t  quest ion  on  account  o f  your  la t te r  sess ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   In  the  end,  I  do  want  to  10 

make sure  tha t ,  you know,  everybody has  a  fa i r  

oppor tun i ty.  

ADV REG WILLIS :    A t  th is  junc ture  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV REG WILLIS :    . . . I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  ve ry  

long.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  ja .   But  then see how –  what  

comes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV REG WILLIS :    I t  m igh t  be  15 /20-minutes  a t  th is  

junc tu re .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV REG WILLIS :    Le t  us  see.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV REG WILLIS :    So  I  can g ive  you tha t  ind ica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 119 of 318 
 

ADV REG WILLIS :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine .   I  wanted to  say tha t  my 

exper ience in  th is  Commiss ion  has been over  the  years  

tha t  the  exper ienced prac t i t ioners  tend to  take  shor te r  on  

re-examinat ion .   [ laughs]   So when you say 15-minutes  or  

20-minutes ,  tha t  acco rd  w i th  what  I  wou ld  expect .  

ADV REG WILLIS :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   We are  go ing  to  take  the  lunch 

ad journment  now.   Unfor tunate l y,  we –  I  have got  to  a t tend  

to  someth ing  tha t  re la tes  to  the  Commiss ion  w i th  the  resu l t  10 

tha t  we w i l l  no t  resume a t  two as  we normal ly  wou ld .   We 

wi l l  resume a t  14 :30  so  tha t  I  can a t tend to  someth ing  

urgent  tha t  I  need to  a t tend re la t ing  to  the  Commiss ion  and 

then we w i l l  resume a t  14 :30  then and then we w i l l  

con t inue and see how every th ing  goes.    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV REG WILLIS :    As  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  i t  looks  l ike  –  ja ,  a t  leas t  m ine is  

work ing  now.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No,  m ine is  a lso  work ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Wakeford ,  i s  yours  work ing?   

Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    We have reached a  t ruce  w i th  my 

learned f r iends tha t  no  –  we have reached a  t ruce ,  no  mut i ,  

wh ich  i s  go ing  to  a f fec t  the  –  the  mut i  w i l l  [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  

must  no t  a f fec t  th is  [ ind is t inc t ]  agreement .   Thank you,  

Cha i r.   Mr  Wakeford ,  your  m ic .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You can keep your  m ic  on  th roughout ,  Mr  

Wakeford .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you,  S i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Le t  me s tar t  w i th  th is .   As  you know 

the  Commiss ion  is  invest iga t ing  the  issues o f  s ta te  capture  10 

and cor rup t ion  and a l l  tha t .   You unders tand tha t  and you 

unders tand tha t  an  in i t ia t i ve  can s ta r t  as  a  good in i t ia t i ve  

w i th  the  good in ten t ions bu t  somehow i t  m igh t  be  spo i l t .   

Do you unders tand tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  unders tand tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And a lso  –  I  am g lad  you are  ta lk ing  to  

the  Cha i r  a l though you are  re fe r r i ng  to  me.   And then,  Mr  

Wakeford ,  you a lso  see tha t  the  – our  const i tu t ion  rea l l y  i s  

one –  i t  p romotes openness and honesty  i n  government  

and inc lud ing  do ing  bus iness w i th  government .  20 

MR WAKEFORD:   Hundred percent ,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And I  am sure  be ing  invo lved in  

consu l ta t ion  w i th  government  depar tments  you know tha t  

i ssues look tender ing  fo r  government  a re  governed by  the  

const i tu t ion  wh ich  requ i res  fa i rness,  openness in  tender ing  
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p rocess.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r,  and compet i t ion .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And compet i t ion ,  ja .   And i f  one 

in te r fe res  w i th  tha t  i t  a f fec ts  i ssues o f  compet i t ion  and  

then the  pr i ce  ge ts  h igher  fo r  government  and i t  increases 

the  expenses,  tak ing  the  money tha t  have used somewhere  

to  somewhere  e l se .   You know tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you know tha t  the  in f luence,  what  

i s  a lso  be ing  invest iga ted  by  th is  Commiss ion ,  the  10 

in f luence can be  obta ined in  a  number  o f  ways.   In  a 

number  o f  ways and tha t  in f luenc ing  dec i s ion-makers  and  

hop ing  tha t  dec is ion  m ight  be  in  the  favour  o f  whoever  

seeks a  favourab le  dec is ion .   Do you unders tand tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Hundred percen t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am put t ing  these –  I  am br ing ing  th is  

up f ron t  because  o f  the  s ta tements  you have made how 

BOSASA s tar t ing  ass is t ing  a  t rue  b lack  empowerment  

company and to  –  jus t  want  us  to  go  to  some o f  the  

d is tu rb ing  fea tu res  I  found and then I  want  your  comment  20 

on  th is  and we w i l l  debate  i t .    

Now le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  issue o f  Home Affa i rs .   

Every  t ime o f  a  negot ia t ion  o f  the  cont rac ts ,  the  

Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs .   A t  tha t  s tage you were  the  

adv iser  to  the  Min is te r,  am I  r igh t?   You were  the  adv iser  
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Min is te r,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Tu rnaround adv i se r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Tu rnaround adv iser.   But  a t  tha t  t ime 

you were  a l so  on  re ta iner  o f  BOSASA.  

MR WAKEFORD:    One hundred percent ,  fu l l y  d isc losed,  

Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Was the  Min is te r  aware  o f  th is?  

MR WAKEFORD:    The Min is te r  was aware .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    That  you a re  on  re ta iner  o f  BOSASA? 

MR WAKEFORD:    Hundred percen t .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And the  Min i s te r,  was she  aware  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  the  company you were  re ta ined in  had a  cont rac t  

w i th  her  depar tment?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Was she aware  tha t  a t  some s tage 

wh i ls t  you were  tu rnaround adv ise r  you were  on  re ta ine r  of  

the  company tha t  was negot ia t ing  the  –  re look ing  a t  the  

cont rac ts  w i th  he r  depar tment?  

MR WAKEFORD:    She must  have been aware .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You are  no t  ce r ta in?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  who was the  Min i s te r  aga in  

a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR WAKEFORD:    Min is te r  Nos iv iwe Mapisa -Nqaku la .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and tha t  was –  she was a t  tha t  t ime 

Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Nos iv iwe,  Cha i r,  has no  re la t ion  w i th  

me,  i t  i s  jus t  m ine is  Viwe.   My name is  Viwe,  no  re la t ions .   

Now,  Mr  Wakeford ,  when you look  a t  jus t  a t  tha t  i ssue on 

i t s  own,  jus t  i t  no t  look  uncomfor tab le  tha t  you  are  on  

re ta iner  w i th  a  company wh ich  has a  cont rac t  w i th  the  

depar tment  in  wh ich  you a re  a  tu rnaround adv ise r.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  i f  I  cou ld  respond to  tha t .   F i rs t l y  

to  say the  per iod  o f  my invo lvement  w i th  Home Affa i rs  was 10 

o f  shor t  dura t ion  in  compar ison w i th  the  pe r iod  tha t  I  had  

been w i th  the  BOSASA Group a lbe i t  tha t  I  was –  i t  was a  

smal l  por t ion  o f  my to ta l  t ime.    

 In  add i t ion  to  tha t  there  is  someth ing  in  governance  

tha t  i s  ca l led  d i sc losure  and recusa l .   Both  o f  wh ich  were  

app l ied  by  myse l f  in  four  ins tances .   In  fac t  I  was parano id  

about  i t  and some peop le  even laughed every  t ime I  wou ld  

ge t  up  and wa lk  ou t  o f  a  room.    

 So I  do  no t  see the  -  you know,  as  I  spoke ea r l ie r,  I  

spoke about  p ro fess iona l  ag i l i t y,  you –  and I  am sure  as  20 

par t  o f  the  lega l  p rac t i ces ,  counse l ,  those are  i ssues tha t  

wou ld  be  d iscussed as  we l l .   There  was noth ing  un toward  

about  i t  whatsoever  and unders tand the  tu rnaround was  

such a  b ig  p ro jec t ,  a  55  pro jec t ,  seven work  s t reams,  you  

know,  the  renegot ia t ion  o f  cont rac ts  was very  –  i t  was 
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f rac t iona l  and I  d id  no t  par t i c ipa te  in  th is .   So tha t  wou ld  

be  my response to  tha t .   Some peop le  may say we l l ,  you  

know,  bu t  look  a t  the  pos i t i ve  cont r ibu t ion  tha t  was made in  

te rms o f ,  I  be l ieve ,  my leadersh ip  a t  the  tu rnaround and  

look a t  the  pos i t i ve  sp ino f fs  tha t  came f rom the  to ta l  

tu rna round [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .   So tha t  i s  my 

response,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now the  FeverTree,  the  company  

FeverTree.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And th is  company,  I  unders tand f rom 

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i ,  i t  was recommended by  you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    How d id  i t  ge t  to  appo in ted?  

MR WAKEFORD:    FeverTree was on r i sk  when I  a r r i ved.   I  

was appo in ted  on  the  2  May,  they were  appo in ted  on the  18  

May.   I  a r r i ved,  they were  there  a l ready.   They in  fac t  came 

wi th  ve ry  s t rong recommendat ion  f rom cab ine t  and because  

they had fo re ign  exposure  to  Home Affa i rs  t ype p ro jec t s  –  

in  fac t  the  fo rmer  Deputy  Pres ident  Ms Phumzi le  Mlambo-20 

Ngcuka,  she in  fac t  was on the  f ron t  page I  th ink  o f  the 

Sunday Times jus t  be fo re  I  a r r i ved to  say these are  the  

guys.   So my task  was to  manage and oversee,  my task  

was not  to  dec ide  who.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Te l l  me,  who recommended them to  
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cab ine t  then?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Who recommended them to  cab ine t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    FeverTree,  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  I  canno t  answer  tha t .   I  cannot  

answer  who recommended them to  cab ine t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then Mr  An i l… 

MR WAKEFORD:    Radhakr ishna . .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Radhakr ishna .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Anee l  Radhakr i shna,  who  10 

recommended h is  appo in tment  by  FeverTree?  

MR WAKEFORD:    H is  appo in tment  to  FeverTree was 

recommended by  myse l f .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    He was fo rmer ly  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  

Off i cer  o f  the  ECDC whi le  I  was the  CEO.   A f te r  my 

depar tu re  –  because remember  I  appo in ted  h im even  

though he was recommended by  the  board ,  I  had to  s ign  

h is  cont rac t .   He was scuppered and he d id  no t  have 

anyth ing  and he had moved up f rom Cape Town.   So when 20 

Sven de Kock,  the  CEO of  FeverTree requested a  pub l i c  

f inance sector  exper t  who was accred i ted  by  Nat iona l  

Treasury,  I  recommended h im wi th  abso lu te ly  no  

reserva t ion ,  in  the  f i rs t  ins tance.  

 In  the  second ins tance,  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  
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to  ment ion  th is ,  tha t  h is  b igges t  cont r ibu t ion  a t  Home 

Affa i rs  was to  t ake  them f rom a  d isc la imer  aud i t  to  an  

unqua l i f ied  aud i t .   That  was h is  in te rvent ion ,  he  i s  

par t i cu la r l y  good a t  what  he  does and I  have no 

reserva t ions in  recommending a  man o f  tha t  capab i l i t y  and  

s ta ture  w i th  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now te l l  me,  when you recommended  

h im he knew tha t  –  you recommended h im to  FeverTree 

and FeverTree was go ing  to  be  par t  o f  the  tu rnaround 

s t ra tegy.   That  i s  cor rec t?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    FeverTree had a  var ie ty  o f  

subcont rac to rs ,  one o f  wh ich  was Akh i le  be ing  the  

company tha t  Anee l  Radhakr i shna   worked fo r.   FeverTree,  

as  I  unders tood them,  f i rs t l y  they had a  la rge  in te rnat iona l  

cont ingent  f rom abroad who were  home a f fa i r s  exper ts  and,  

in  the  second ins tance,  they had a  very,  very  smal l  in  fac t  

loca l  cont ingent ,  a  core ,  and then they wou ld  b r ing  in  

spec ia l i s ts  as  they requ i red .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now jus t  te l l  me,  d id  you  

d isc lose  to  FeverTree and the  depar tment  tha t  the  Anee l  20 

recommending was someone you had worked w i th  be fore?  

MR WAKEFORD:    In  fac t  I  d isc losed i t  fu l l y  bo th  to  Sven 

de Kock and to  the  Min is te r  and Sven de Kock d id  h is  own  

in te r rogat ion  and assessment  o f  the  ind iv idua l  concerned.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now te l l  me,  d id  you no t  deem 

i t  necessary  tha t  you shou ld  warn  them aga ins t  i nvo lv ing  

Mr  Radhakr i shna  in  negot ia t ing  w i th  BOSASA because you  

are  on  re ta iner  in  BOSASA.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Bu t  how does tha t  impact ,  Cha i r,  I  am 

jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand?  He is  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  p ro jec t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Okay.  

MR WAKEFORD:    He is  par t  o f  a  team,  he  has no  power  

because he is  a  consu l tan t .   Remember,  the  consu l tan ts  

were  suppor t  peop le ,  they were  very,  very  good a t  what  10 

they d id  and they d id  a l l  the  ana lyses and made the  

recommendat ions  bu t  he  no  power  to  s ign  o f f  anyth ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  unders tand .   But  do  you unders tand  

tha t  he ,  wh i le  he  is  recommended  by  you and now he is  

negot ia t ing  w i th  a  company where in  –  tha t  has re ta ined 

you,  does tha t  no t  look  uncomfor tab le?   You recommended 

h im but  now he i s  s i t t ing  and negot ia t ing  w i th  a  company 

tha t  re ta ined you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Look,  i f  I  were  in  the  m ix  o f  i t ,  i f  I  were  

in  the  m ix  o f  i t ,  I  wou ld  fee l  very  uncomfo r tab le ,  bu t  I  was  20 

not  in  the  m ix  o f  i t  a t  a l l  and he was probab ly  the  best  

person to  save Home Affa i rs  R325  mi l l ion  over  the  las t  s ix  

years  o f  the  cont rac t .   He was by  fa r  the  most  exper ienced 

person to  do  tha t  and he can a t test  to  i t  as  o thers  on  the  

pro jec t  and you a re  we lcome to  speak to  the  l i kes  o f  Roe l f  
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Meyer,  to  Sven  de Kock,  to  the  shareho lders  even o f  

FeverTree.   There  was abso lu te ly  no  in f luence ga rnered 

f rom me whatsoever.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now you saw the  a f f idav i t  o r  

you must  have o f  Mr  Agr i zz i  when he responded  to  the 

a f f idav i t  o f  Anee l  Radhakr ishna .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  f lee t ing ly  had a  look a t  i t  las t  n igh t ,  

yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And he dea ls  a t  length  w i th  the  

negot ia t ions  and  h is  conc lus ion  is  tha t  there  was no 10 

sav ings.   Ins tead,  there  was some pro f i t  h idden by  

BOSASA.   So there  was an expense ins tead by  the  

depar tment .   D id  you see tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Look,  whethe r  I  saw i t  o r  no t ,  the  fac t  

tha t  he  says there  was no pro f i t  speaks to  the  fac t  –  

speaks to  the  fac t  tha t  the i r  revenue s t ream was dropp ing  

as  a  resu l t  o f  a  very  good dea l  negot ia ted  by  Home Affa i rs .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:     Bu t  he   -  sor ry.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   So I  am not  qu i te  su re  

where  we are  go ing  w i th  th is ,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  am qu i te  happy 20 

to  cont inue respond ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Where  I  am go ing  w i th  th is ,  he  says 

a l though on the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  looks  as  i f  there  was no pro f i t ,  

there  were  h idden costs  tha t  were  pu t  in  by  BOSASA,  bu t  i t  

cos t  the  depar tment  more .   So BOSASA made more  money.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  w i th  a l l  due respect ,  w i th  a l l  due 

respect ,  he  has proven to  be  a  l ia r  and he is  l y ing  aga in  

and he is  repeat ing  [ ind is t inc t ]  and o ld  s tu f f .   He needs to  

p rove –  i f  he  says tha t  a f te r  the  negot ia t ion  they  made 

more  money,  then  he needs to  say how and why.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  le t  us  t ry  and do tha t .   Perhaps 

le t  us  t ry  and unders tand i t .   Can you look a t  the  b ig  f i le  

you have?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sure .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can you go to  page 760?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    760?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  h is  a f f idav i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   Cha i r,  can I  jus t  s top  there ,  

someth ing  I  fo rgo t  and wanted to  dea l  w i th  i t  when we  

come back,  be fore  we go any fu r the r.   Do you have 760?  

That  i s  the  beg inn ing  o f  –  there  is  someth ing  I  fo rgo t ,  I  

shou ld  have dea l t  w i th  i t .   Do you conf i rm tha t  the  a f f idav i t  

we dea l t  w i th  be fore  the  lunch ad jou rnment ,  tha t  a f f idav i t  

and annexures i s  you r  a f f idav i t .   Remember  the  a f f idav i t  20 

you were  read ing  f rom? 

MR WAKEFORD:    My a f f idav i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  the  las t  a f f idav i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  i t  was a  conso l ida ted  a f f idav i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Dat ing  every th ing  and pu t t ing  i t  

together.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And i f  you jus t  go  back to  tha t  

a f f idav i t ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  the  smal l  f i le .   On page 944.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  do  you want  to  do  i t  p roper ly,  Mr  

Notshe,  because I  th ink  I  know what  you fo rgo t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  yes ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    S tar t  a t  the  beg inn ing  where  the  a f f idav i t  

s ta r ts  and then go to  –  be fore  you go to  the  las t  page.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  i t  i s  –  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  can we s tar t  10 

on  page 852?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Page 852?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Top r i gh t  o r  le f t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A lways the  b lack  numbers .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    B lack  numbers .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry,  8…? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    852.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And i f  you go to  853 and your  name –  

do  you see your  name appear ing  there?  

MR WAKEFORD:    853.   Yes,  I  have got  you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now put  your  f inger  there  and then go  

to  945.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    945?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    945.    

MR WAKEFORD:    945,  le f t  hey?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Le f t ,  ja .   A lways le f t ,  the  b lack  

numbers .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Sor ry,  944,  so r ry.  

MR WAKEFORD:    944?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  go t  i t .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    There  is  a  s ignature  there ,  i s  tha t  your  

s ignature?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now do you conf i rm tha t  th is  document  

I  have re fe r red  you s tar t ing  f rom 852 to  944,  945 is  you r  

a f f idav i t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And do you conf i rm tha t  the  a f f idav i t  –  

sor ry,  there  are  annexures to  tha t  a f f idav i t  and they fo rm 

par t  o f  i t .   The annexures tha t  go  w i th  i t  fo rm par t  o f  i t .  20 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you.   I t  i s  a  fo rmal  exerc i se  to  

demonst ra te  tha t  th is  i s  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Ja ,  i t  i s  jus t  an  exerc ise  to  –  jus t  to  
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con f i rm tha t  tha t  is  your  a f f idav i t .   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  must  s t i l l  request  tha t  be  

admi t ted ,  Mr  Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Oh,  so r ry.   Cha i r,  can we have the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Kev in  Wakefo rd  adm i t ted  as  EXHIBIT T33? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Exh ib i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    T33.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Kev in  Peter  Edwin  

Wakeford  s ta r t s  a t  page 852 w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  

and w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT T33.  10 

AFFIDAVIT  OF  KEVIN PETER EDWIN WAKEFORD 

STARTING AT PAGE 852 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  T33  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Now,  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  

le t  us  go  to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr i zz i  tha t  we s tar ted  on .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Page number?   Oh,  we were  there .   

Okay,  go t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  under  what  d iv ider ,  Mr  Notshe?  I  

had i t  ear l ie r .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  i s  under  8 ,  d iv ider  8 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now jus t  tu rn  to  page 770.    

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  770.   Where  Mr  Agr izz i  –  now he  

dea ls  w i th  the  issue o f  whether  the  cont rac t  was –  cost  the  

depar tment  more  and was lucra t i ve  to  BOSASA.   He says  
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th is .   He den ies  –  he  says:  

“ I  deny a l legat ions……[ in tervenes]  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry ,  s i r ,  770,  hey?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    770,  paragraph 26.  

MR WAKEFORD:    26 ,  hey?  Thank  you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    A re  you there?  Now i f  you look a t  

parag raph 26.2 ,  Cha i r ,  he  says:  

“The tu rnaround –  tu rnover  b i l l i ng  pre  the  

negot ia t ion  was approx imate l y  R7 .8  m i l l ion  w i th  a  

pro f i t  marg in  o f  35% on average y ie ld ing  22 .6  to  2 .9  10 

per  month . ”  

You hear  tha t .   But  he  says then:  

“Post  the  negot ia t ions  the  tu rnaround wou ld  drop to  

7 .5  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The tu rnover .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Sor ry .  

“…the tu rnover  wou ld  d rop to  7 .5  bu t  because…” 

Th is  i s  impor tan t ,  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  bu t  he  says:  

“…but  because o f  reduced occupancy leve ls  and  

reduced costs  re la ted  to  the  opera t ion  the reof ,  the  20 

pro f i t  marg in  increased between 55% and 61% 

y ie ld ing  an  average and net  p ro f i t  con t r ibu t ion  on  

average between 4 .1  to  4 .3  per  month . ”  

Do you see tha t?   What  do  you say  to  tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t .   F i rs t l y ,  I  do  no t  
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be l ieve  i t ,  Cha i r .   And second ly ,  I  th ink  i f  there  i s  d ispute  

around the  f igures ,  I  th ink  there  shou ld  be  a  proper  

fo rens ic  and everyone shou ld  have  access to  tha t  fo rens i c  

repor t ,  someth ing  we have asked fo r  repeated ly  and we 

have never  rece ived and we are  to ld  tha t  there  is  no  repor t  

anymore  and I  do  no t  unders tand tha t  because i t  quoted a t  

length  in  the  p re l im inary .    

 But  second ly ,  le t  me say,  Cha i r ,  tha t  the  task  team 

a t  Home Af fa i rs ,  as  I  unders tand,  were  tasked w i th  

reduc ing  a  bu rden to  the  f i scus.   Whether  Mr  Agr i zz i  and 10 

h is  cohor t s  were  mak ing  a  pro f i t  o r  no t ,  qu i te  f rank ly ,  

anyone runn ing  a  bus iness w i thout  a  p ro f i t  shou ld  no t  be  in  

bus iness bu t  whether  they were  mak ing  a  pro f i t  o r  no t  o r  

more  pro f i t ,  qu i te  f rank ly  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  us .   What  

i s  impor tan t  was we were  charged w i th  a  du ty ,  as  a  

tu rna round,  to  become more  e f f i c ien t  as  a  depar tment ,  

wh ich  we d id  in  te rms o f  tu rna round o f  IDs and passpor t s .    

 But  second ly ,  on  th is  spec i f i c  p ro jec t ,  wh ich  was  

one o f  55 ,  we were  tasked w i th  ge t t ing  be t te r  serv i ce  

e f f i c iency,  in  the  f i rs t  ins tance.   And,  in  the  second  20 

ins tance,  we were  requ i red  to  reduce the  burden  on the  

f i scus.  

 Now the  esca la t ion  and numbers  o f  peop le  

a t tend ing  o r  becoming res idents  a t  a  repat r ia t ion  cent re  i s  

no t  de te rmined by  government  o r  the  pr i va te  sector .   Qu i te  
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f rank ly ,  i t  i s  de termined on how many mig rants  a re  

conf ron ted by  the  au thor i t ies  and  taken to  the  repat r ia t ion  

cent re  and tha t  is  usua l l y  a  du ty  d ischarged by  the  po l i ce  

and immigra t ion  cont ro l ,  tha t  i s  i t .    

 Bu t  to  advocate  tha t  they negot ia ted  a  be t te r  dea l  

fo r  themse lves when we have gone a t  g rea t  lengths  to  

p rove tha t  in  fac t  the  benef i t s  were  m in iscu le  and in  fac t  in  

o ther  documents ,  Agr izz i ,  Agr izz i  h imse l f ,  says  i t  was 

about  the  ex tens ion  o f  the  cont rac t .   I t  was no t  about  

economic  benef i t s .   But  hopefu l l y  we w i l l  ge t  a  ru l ing  on  10 

tha t  very  soon so  we can have tha t  ev idence d i sc losed.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  te l l  me ,  Mr  Wakefo rd ,  so  your  

answer  to  th is ,  you a re  say we l l ,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  you as  

you s i t t ing  the re  to  d ispute  what  he  says un less  there  i s  a  

fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  on  i t .   I s  tha t  you r  answer?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry ,  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says he  does  not  be l ieve  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    He does not  be l i eve  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  do  no t  be l ieve  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  shou ld  be  invest iga ted  and  

everybody shou ld  see what  comes out ,  so… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  you r  p re roga t ive .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  
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MR WAKEFORD:    As  a  Commiss ion .   I f  you  want  to  do 

tha t .   My v iew is  i f  you  invest iga te  our  f igures  tha t  we have  

g iven you and go  th rough them ca re fu l l y  I  have no reason 

to  be l ieve  tha t  our  f igures  are  wrong.   In  fac t  my fo rens i c  

accountant ,  one o f  the  best  in  the  count ry ,  and he went  

th rough th is  w i th  a  too thcomb and I  cannot  be l ieve  tha t  Mr  

Agr izz i  has any account ing  serv ice .   I  cannot  be l ieve  tha t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You see,  th is  goes fu r ther  on  the  same 

page,  parag raph 26.4 ,  he  says th is :  

“ In  o rde r  to  d isgu ise  the  ac tua l  p ro f i t s  f rom the  10 

d i rec tors  and the  depar tment ,  Watson crea ted 

ingenuous ways  to  d i lu te  the  pro f i t s  by  ra is ing  

in te rcompany charges f rom nonper fo rming ent i t ies  

and there fore  pro f i t s  in  h igh  va lue  cont rac ts  such as  

L inde la  were  d i lu ted  so  tha t  a l though the  cont rac ts  

were  negot ia ted  and c l ien ts  requested to  see the  

f inanc ia ls ,  the  ac tua l  p ro f i t s  were  no t  re f lec ted .   

These were  f i c t i t ious  costs  re la t ing  to  the  fo l low ing:    

Secur i t y  cos ts ,  whereas secur i t y  was prov ided by  

employees on the  payro l l .    20 

Renta ls  were  exorb i tan t ly  cha rged by  BOSASA 

proper t ies ,  management  fees as  we l l  as  so f tware  

costs  were  bu i l t  by  the  ho ld ing  company.    

Var ious o ther  cos ts  were  in te rposed on lead ing  

prospects  t rad ing  i t  to  d isgu ise  ac tua l  p ro f i t .   Th i s  
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was a l so  done w i th  o ther  p ro jec ts  so  tha t  the  ac tua l  

p ro f i t s  were  d i lu ted  excess i ve l y . ”  

What  i s  your  comment  to  tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r ,  f i rs t l y ,  le t  me re i te ra te  and  

repeat  –  and I  unders tand Advocate  Notshe has to  do  h is  

job  and he has been g i ven someth ing  and he must  ask  

these quest ions bu t  w i th  a l l  due respect  to  the  au thor  o f  

th is  document  –  now the  au tho r  f i rs t l y  ignores the  fac t  tha t  

Home Af fa i rs  a re  no t  in te res ted  in  what  p ro f i t s  a re  be ing  

made,  Home Af fa i rs  a re  in te res ted  in  what  se rv i ce  has  10 

been prov ided and a t  what  cos t  and whether  they have  

su f f i c ien t  f lex ib i l i t y  in  the i r  budge t  to  do  a  [ ind is t inc t ]  fo r  

more  press ing  needs and issues and the  sav ings to  Home 

Af fa i rs  f rom a  f i sca l  v iewpo in t ,  R325 mi l l ion .   Now whethe r  

Mr  Agr izz i  –  he  says i t  i s  Mr  Gav in  Watson ’s  ingenuous 

ab i l i t i es .   Wel l ,  le t  me te l l  you ,  I  do  no t  know whe ther  Mr  

Gav in  Watson ever  read th is  cont rac t  and whether  he  was  

invo lved in  i t  a t  a l l  and i f  one p robab ly  goes back,  i t  i s  

h igh l y  l i ke l y  tha t  i t  was Mr  Agr izz i  h imse l f ,  tha t  i s  why he 

seems to  know so much about  the  underwor ld  o f  these  20 

mach ina t ions.   But  fo r  me to  concede to  h im on the  bas is  

o f  jus t  a  s ta tement  l i ke  tha t  wou ld  be  gross ly  neg l igent  

save to  say tha t  yes  we d id  pu t  in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  

to  show tha t  ove r  t ime there  was  a  shr ink ing  o f  the  pro f i t  

marg in ,  bu t  i f  Mr  Agr izz i  says  those –  a l l  those documents  
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were  in  fac t  cooked or  tampered  w i th  a t  the  t ime ,  a t  tha t  

po in t  in  t ime.    

I  cannot  g ive  a  counter  p roposa l  to  h im because he  

was probab ly  the  person tha t  d id  i t ,  bu t  o ther  than to  say 

tha t  Home Affa i rs  i s  no t  in te res ted  in  whether  you are  

mak ing  a  pro f i t  o r  no t ,  they  a re  in te res ted  in  sav ing  money 

and they d id  save  money,  p len ty  o f  i t .     

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  the  h igh  water  mark ,  can someone 

get  some water?   

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry  Cha i r  my mouth  is  very  dry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we l l  they  must  g ive  you two bot t les  

then.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No,  no  four  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  we know Mr  Notshe tha t  th is  has go t  

no th ing  to  do  w i th  your  quest ions because even  before  

lunch  

i t  was l i ke  th is .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  know.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No Cha i r,  bu t  Cha i r  no  i t  was long,  i t  

took  longer  fo r  h im to  f in ish  the  bo t t le  be fore  lunch.  Now,  20 

one,  a f te r  two quest ions he  f in ished the  who le  bo t t le .   Now 

Mr  Watson,  the…[ in tervene]  

MR WAKEFORD:    Wakeford ,  so r ry  Cha i r,  some peop le  do  

ca l l  me,  Kev in  Watson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    You know;  I  l i t e ra l l y  g rew up w i th  the  

fami ly.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No sor ry,  sor ry.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I t  does not  mat te r  i t  was a  Freud ian  

s l ip ,  Advocate  No tshe,  I  do  no t  m ind.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  have fa l len  in to  the  same th ing  I  

have been ca l led  Viwe Freeway and a l l .   Now Mr  Wakeford  

your  case and your  ev idence i s  th is  tha t  wha tever  -  

however  the  –  however  BOSASA reached the  pr i c ing  they  

reached i t  d id  no t  mat te r.   What  mat te rs  i s  tha t  the  10 

depar tment  made  a  sav ings,  tha t  is  your  h igh  watermark .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  s i r,  yes  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now I  want  to  take  you to  page 779.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Paragraph 43.3 ,  Cha i r  I  am not  go ing  

to  read th is  because aga in ,  he re  Mr  Agr i zz i  i s  showing 

how,  desp i te  the  pr ice  event ,  how BOSASA managed to  ge t  

to  tha t  bu t  s t i l l  make a  pro f i t .   I t  a lmost  –  i t s  bu i ld ing  Cha i r  

on  what  I  have a l ready asked.   So I  do  no t  want  to  de lay  by  

read ing  the  who le  pa rag raph but  you are  say ing  whatever  20 

ca l cu la t ions a re  here ,  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  is  tha t  the  

depar tment  fe l t  tha t  they have made a  sav ings,  i s  tha t  your  

answer?  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  the  depar tment  d id  make sav ings  

as  a t tes ted  to  in  the i r  annua l  repor ts ,  Cha i r  and as  
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a t tes ted  to  even  to  p resenta t ions to  the  Home Affa i rs  

Commi t tee  in  Par l iament ,  SCOPA etce tera .   I t  was very  

ev ident  tha t  they were  sav ing  money.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then a l so  i f  you  tu rn  to  page 783.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r  783 sor ry,  I  have gone one  

too  many,  there  we go.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    There  on  paragraph 49 Mr  Agr izz i  

wou ld  –  whereas  i f  you  go to  paragraph on page 784 over  

the  page paragraph 49.3 .   He says :  

“On average L inde la  wou ld  re f lec t  the  low pro f i t  to  10 

appease the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs  fo r  the  

Aud i to r  Genera l  shou ld  they invoke the  dec is ion  to  

eva lua te  the  f inanc ia l s  o f  lead ing  prospect  t rad ing .  

However,  the  ac tua l  p ro f i t s  genera ted  by  L inde la  

were  in  excess  o f  4 .5  per  month  post  the  

negot ia t ions .  Hence,  i t  remains  a  very  lucra t i ve  

cont rac t  and very  l i t t le  r i sk . ”  

Your  answer  i s  s t i l l  the  same as you gave.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  my response wou ld  be  beyond 

tha t .  I t  wou ld  be  very  in te res t ing  to  see i f  th is  i s  in  fac t  20 

t rue  how the  honourab le  Agr i zz i  wou ld  p rove i t  in  the  f i rs t  

ins tance,  bu t  he  seems to  be  aware  o f  in te r  account  –  le t  

us  ca l l  i t  an  in te r  account  f raud perhaps tha t  i s  what  he  is  

re fe r r i ng  to .   I  am not  aware  o f  any th ing  l i ke  t ha t  bu t  le t  me 

say th is ,  tha t  they re f lec ted  very  good pro f i t s  p r io r  to  th is  
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con t rac t ,  and the  two addendums,  espec ia l l y  the  two  

addendums and as  the  years  went  on  the i r  p ro f i t s  d ipped 

mass ive ly,  eventua l l y  runn ing  a t  a  loss .   

Now,  tha t  i s  what  they prov ided the  aud i to rs .  Those  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  were  aud i ted  bu t  who knows what  Mr 

Agr izz i  was up to  a t  the  t ime,  Cha i r  I  don ’ t .   I  was not  there  

to  w i tness i t ,  I  was not  there  bu t  le t  me say th is ,  I  am 

conf ident  tha t  Home Affa i rs  was sav ing  every  s ing le  month .  

DV NOTSHE SC:    Whethe r  you a re  say ing ,  whether  what  

Mr  Agr izz i  says  how they managed  to  ge t  a  p ro f i t  i s  cor rec t  10 

or  no t .  You are  unab le  to  say any th ing  we sa id ,  toward [? ]  

[06 ;04 ]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You know,  I  v is i ted  L inde la  as  a  young  

consu l tan t  when I  f i rs t  s ta r ted  in  2006.   I  th ink  i t  was 2000,  

yeah 2006 I  have popped in  there  and a  look and tha t  i s  

the  on ly  t ime I  ac tua l l y  go t  invo l ved w i th  L inde la  d i rec t l y  

bu t  sa fe  to  say tha t  Home Affa i rs  and i f  you speak to  Home 

Affa i rs .   The vas t  ma jor i t y  o f  peop le  who I  had dea l ings  

w i th  were  qu i te  sa t is f ied  w i th  the  serv i ce  tha t  we ge t t ing .   

And they came in  we l l  be low,  we l l  be low pr i va te  20 

pr isons,  we l l  be low soc ia l  deve lopment ,  fo r  youth  hoste ls ,  

e tce te ra ,  e tce te ra .   So I  am -  you know,  th is  top  team o f  

consu l tan ts ,  most ly  many f rom overseas,  and they d id  no t  

have too  much negat ive  to  say about  i t .   A l l  they  d id  was to  

cu t  the  pr i ce  and  to  s lash  i t  f rom an annua l  budget  spend  
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perspect ive  and the  budgets  spend d id  drop.   No one,  no t  

even the  Aud i to r  Genera l  wou ld  contes t  tha t ,  so  I  am not  

qu i te  su re  where  Agr izz i  i s  go ing  w i th  th is  o r  perhaps i t  

re f lec t s  an  inept i tude on h is  par t ,  I  am not  sure .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Look,  look  when you look a t  i t ,  when  

he says look we went  in ,  we negot ia ted  w i th  someone  

brought  in  by  Mr  Gav in  Watson,  someone b rought  in  by  Mr  

Gav in  Watson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you w i l l  remember  Mr  Notshe tha t ,  I  

have sa id  tha t  the  Ev idence Leader  who gets  the  w i tness  10 

name wrong th ree  t imes,  to  be  f ined.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  my f i rs t  t ime Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  the  second t ime.  [ laugh ing ]    

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Ja ,  I  am go ing  to  b i te  my tongue.   Mr  

Wakeford  remember  h i s  p remise  i s  th is  tha t  we heard  Mr 

Wakeford  on  a  re ta ine r,  Mr  Wakeford  i s  an  adv i so r  on  the  

tu rna round s t ra teg ies  by  Home Affa i rs .   We have a  cont rac t  

w i th  Home Affa i rs ,  we negot ia te  w i th  someone brought  by  

Mr  Wakeford ,  no  sor ry  le t  me rephrase tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Recommended  by  Mr  Wakeford  and on 

tha t  bas is  we made more  pro f i t s  than we have been  

mak ing ,  does i t  no t  look  bad?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  f i rs t l y,  I  w i l l  re i te ra te  the  CO o f  

FeverTree wou ld  have had to  sa t is fy  h imse l f .   
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    The,  sor ry?  

MR WAKEFORD:    The CEO of  FeverTree appo in ted  Ach i l le  

no t  a  new d i rec t i ng  Ach i l le  had var ie ty  o f  consu l t an ts  and 

s ta f f  members .   They spec ia l i sed  in  pub l i c  sec tor  f inance  

main ly  as  I  unders tood i t .   They qu i te  f rank ly  Cha i r  he  and 

h is  team had  to  sa t is fy  themse lves tha t  Anee l  

Radhakr ishna was the  r igh t  representa t i ve  and tha t  Ach i l le  

was the  r igh t  company.  

I  cou ld  no t  in te r fe re  in  tha t ,  I  cou ld  on l y  recommend 

and I  s tand by  my or ig ina l  response t ru th  response  10 

because many wou ld  deny i t ,  bu t  no t  me I  te l l  you  the 

t ru th .   He was se lec ted  by  the  FeverTree consu l tan ts  and I  

see abso lu te ly  no th ing  wrong w i th  a  pe rson who I  by  the  

way had no d i rec t  in f luence o r  cont ro l  ove r.   He was 

repor t ing  to  the  CO and I  had recused myse l f  f rom a l l  those  

processes.  

So fo r  the  l i fe  o f  me,  I  cannot  unders tand why h is  

t ry ing  to  d raw a  br idge or  a  nexus where  I  wou ld  in  the  

dark  shadows o f  Home Affa i r s  t r ied  to  in f luence someth ing  

l i ke  th is ,  when I  was be ing  measured by  the  Min i s te r  and  20 

the  DG and the i r  team on overa l l  per fo rmance o f  a  much  

b igger  tu rnaround  pro jec t  than procurement  renegot ia t ions .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see ,  you see what  i s  a l so  d i s tu rb ing  

is  the  fac t  tha t  BOSASA goes and  pays Mr  Radhakr ishna –  

no t  persona l ly,  bu t  in  some company,  w ine  company.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    May I  respond to  tha t  Cha i r?   Wel l ,  

f i rs t l y,  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  a t  some s tage,  you have a  

c loser  look  a t  Anee l  Radhakr ishna ’s  a f f idav i t  and then what  

I  say  i n  m ine as  we l l ,  bu t  sa fe  to  say the  f i r s t  –  and I  spoke  

about  i t  th is  morn ing .   

The f i rs t  payment  made to  h im,  accord ing  to  h i s  

a f f idav i t  was near  the  end o f  2009  fo r  h is  invo l vement  w i th  

f lee t  management  cont rac t  in  the  Easte rn  Cape and there  I  

a lso  spoke abou t  the  ag i l i t y  o f  consu l tan ts  tha t  no  one  

owns them.   They can move around and be h i red  gun fo r  10 

a lmost  anybody as  some lawyers  a re  bu t  Cha i r  as  fa r  as  I  

unders tand i t  and  you w i l l  have to…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  hang on,  a re  you say ing  anyth ing  

about  your  counse l?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Wel l  h is  fa i r l y  un ive rsa l  Cha i r,  Cha i r  the  

–  you know i t  i s  an  impor tan t  quest ion ,  even though i t  i s  I  

th ink  two to  th ree  years  a f te r  I  had le f t  and Anee l  

Radhakr ishna le f t  a  b i t  a f te r  me.   I  am not  qu i te  sure  

exact ly  when but  i t  was an ex tended per iod  o f  t ime a f te r  

we both  le f t  Home Affa i rs  and I  th ink  Agr izz i  took  qu i te  a  20 

l i k ing  to  th is  guy and had used h im in  a  var ie ty  o f  

capac i t ies ,  as  an  ex te rna l  consu l tan t .   

The nature  o f  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  I  cannot  comment  on  

because I  was no t  c lose  to  i t  bu t  mere ly  to  say th is  tha t  i f  

you  read h is  a f f idav i t ,  h is  responses tha t  he  was -  he  d id  
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no t  want  to  share  h is  consu l t ing  ac t iv i t y  on  tha t  par t i cu la r  

p ro jec t  in  2012,  whenever  i t  was w i th  Ach i l le  because he 

put  a l l  the  work  and e f fo r t  in to  i t  h imse l f  and there fore  he  

responded in  tha t  manner.   

Once aga in ,  tha t  i s  fo r  the  Commiss ion  and  

yourse l ves to  dec ide  as  to  how you see tha t ,  whe ther  you  

know more  than  I  do  bu t  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes,  I  

th ink  i t  was a  na tura l  bus iness response to  do ing  work  

ou ts ide  o f  the  scope o f  o ther  shareho lders  in  another  

par tnersh ip .   10 

I  do  no t  see i t  as  -  because he a l ready accepted a  

payment  in  Ach i l l e  in  2009.   So why wou ld  he  -  he  wou ld  be  

open about  i t  today and he wou ld  h ide  about  i t  two years  

la te r  when i t  had  abso lu te ly  no th ing  to  do  w i th  the  Home 

Affa i rs  cont rac t ,  I  do  no t  unders tand i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You see what  i s  –  what  I  f ind 

d is tu rb ing  persona l ly,  i s  tha t  i f  the  payment  was made to  

Mr  Radhakr i shna,  Anee l  Radhakr ishna I  w i l l  be  s tand ing  on  

my two h ind  legs in  ta lk ing  to  you about  th is  i ssue but  i t  i s  

made to  some w ine company and  he does not  come and  20 

say I  had so ld  w ine  to  BOSASA.   He says the re  were  some 

serv i ces  but  he  speak to  a  w ine  company,  wh ich  he  d id  no t  

do  bus iness.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yeah,  Cha i r  I  do  no t  want  to  ge t  in to  a  

deep d ive  on  th is  because I  th ink  i t  i s  incumbent  on  Anee l  
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Radhakr ishna to  respond to  th ings l i ke  th is .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No I  accept  tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Bu t  o ther  than to  say th i s ,  tha t  i f  you  

buy a  she l f  company,  you know,  some o f  them a re  ca l led  

g i ra f fe  o thers  a re  ca l led  e lephant ,  o thers  are  ca l led  

whatever.   Th is  one was ca l led  D is t inc t i ve  Cho ice ,  i t  never  

t raded in  w ine  as  I  unders tand i t .   I t  i s  a  she l f  company,  

they th rew some shareho lde rs  in  they have not  changed  

the  name ye t ,  I  do  no t  know.   

But  those are  the  quest ions I  wou ld  ask ,  those are  10 

the  quest ions I  wou ld  ask  o f  Anee l  Radhakr ishna and what  

am what  was the  purpose o f  the  company?  What  was i t  

gea red fo r?   Wha t  was the  in ten t  beh ind  i t  and why d id  you 

not  invo ice  th rough Ach i l le?  

H is  response,  as  I  sa id ,  I  have read h is  a f f idav i t .   

H is  response is  very  c lear  tha t  he  jus t  needed a  veh ic le  

ou ts ide  o f  Ach i l le ,  because he d id  no t  want  to  share  in  tha t  

tu rnover,  because he d id  a l l  the  work  by  h imse l f .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And las t l y  on  th is ,  aga in ,  unders tand  

me I  am not  expect ing  you to  answer  fo r  Mr  Radhakr ishna  20 

but  jus t  pu t t ing  what  looks…[ in tervene]  

MR WAKEFORD:    What  I  th ink .   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yeah,  and wha t  looks s t range and a lso  

the  o ther  payments ,  I  th ink  two payments  were  made to  h i s  

w i fe  fo r  hav ing  rendered serv ices .   I t  a l l  looks  as  i f  some 
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money is  be ing  h idden,  does i t  no t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Look,  why wou ld  you want  to  h ide  

money so  long a f te r  a  cont rac t?   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  have got  no  –  then las t l y  –  so r ry  i t  i s  

the  second las t ,  we l l  las t ,  las t .   Remember  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  

was ev idence is  tha t  Mr  Anee l  Radhakr ishna wanted  

R7mi l l ion  and he  was laughed o f f  and they s ta r ted  to  pay  

h im in  some ins ta lments  and in  some ins tances,  he  says 

ins tead o f  pay ing  you they pa id  h im.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  see  tha t .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  see  tha t  Cha i r,  in  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  new 

admiss ion ,  h i s  new admiss ion  because h is  s to ry  keeps 

chang ing .   I  am not  qu i te  sure  wh ich  one to  be l ieve  but  

o ther  than to  say tha t  sor ry,  Cha i r,  cou ld  I  jus t  ask  

advocate  no t  Cha i r  to  repeat  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No,  no  the  issue the  i ssue  I  was  

ra is ing  is  tha t  he  -  I  th ink  two payments  were  pa id  to  h is  

w i fe  who had not  tu rned tha t  se rv i ces.  20 

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  tha t  demands a  response f rom 

h im h imse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now le t  us  move f rom tha t ,  tha t  was 

the  Home Affa i r s .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now the  issue about  Mr  Papadak is .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Le t  me f i r s t  be fore  I  asked  fu r ther  

quest ions about  i t .   Mr  Papadak is  has re fused fo r  now to  

g ive  an  a f f idav i t  regard ing  h is  invo lvement  in  BOSASA and 

SARS he says the  Admin i s t ra t ion  Act  re fuses h im to  do  

tha t ,  p roh ib i t s  h im f rom do ing  tha t  but  fo r tunate ly,  the  

l iqu ida to rs  seem to  agree tha t  we can get  tha t ,  to  a l low h im 

to  g ive  us  in fo rmat ion  o f  what  he  d id  regard ing  BOSASA 10 

when he was a t  BOSASA.   

I  am jus t  pu t t ing  i t  to  you,  to  le t  you know.   Now le t  

us  take  the  ev idence is  tha t  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i  i s  

tha t  Mr  Papadak is  was compensated w i th  wet  and  dry  

cement .   You saw tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  saw tha t  Cha i r,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you ag ree tha t  you d id  tha t  to  

fac i l i ta te  the  cement  to  be  de l i vered a t  Mr  Papadak is ’s    

p lace ,  am I  r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Okay,  Cha i r  I  want  to  -  I  do  no t  want  to  20 

say yes o r  no ,  I  want  to  g ive  a  b igger  a  be t te r  response on  

tha t .   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR WAKEFORD:    F i rs t l y,  le t  me say th is  tha t  the  
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a l legat ion  is  tha t  he  managed BOSASA prob lems in te rna l l y  

in  BOSASA and fo r  tha t ,  fo r  a  major  invest iga t ion  

apparent ly,  he  was re imbursed w i th  wet  and d ry.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  i s  the  a l legat ion ,  we know f rom the  

invest iga to rs  repor ts ,  the  pre l im in  par t i cu la r  and o the r  

ev idence th rough  o ther  a f f idav i t s  f rom peop le  a t  RGS as  

we l l  as  a t  the  o ther  supp l ie r  I  fo rge t  the  name now,  Cha i r.

 That  they do  not  agree w i th  e i ther  Vors ter  o r  

Agr izz i ’s  quant i t ies  and tha t  the  quant i t ies  were  fa r,  much 10 

smal le r  and they were  dur ing  January  to  June,  I  th ink  2009  

tha t  was the  per iod  and i t  was a  per iod  where  the re  was 

no,  whatsoever  no  major  investment .   

So,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  -  I  th ink  tha t  i s  an  impor tan t  

contex t  be fo re  we take i t  fu r ther.   Papadak is  as  fa r  as  I  am 

know is  a  f r iend o f  cer ta in ly  some o f  the  Watson b ro the rs ,  

he  d id  no t  know Gav in  a t  a l l  bu t  he  d id  know,  Ronn ie  in  

par t i cu la r  and he  had met  me a t  the  Rand Commiss ion ,  he  

was the  lead invest iga tor  so  he  had to  in te rv iew me a  few 

t imes and he a l so  met  Ronn ie  Watson subsequen t  to  the  20 

Commiss ion .   

And Cha i r,  th is  i s  I  th ink  14  or  13  years  ago,  so  I  

am go ing  to  -  and I  on ly  saw Papadak is  th ing  yeste rday h is  

a f f idav i t  bu t  i t  i s  sa fe  to  say th i s  tha t  there  was Ronn ie  and  

George Papadak is  had met .  Ronn ie 's  one o f  h is  compan ies  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 150 of 318 
 

was invo lved in  the  cement  sector  in  the  Eastern  Cape,  

George Papadak is  had expressed  f rus t ra t ion  around the  

ac t iv i t ies  o f  cement  supp l ied  tha t  t ime because o f  the  

Wor ld  Cup,  and they were  mass ive  in f ras t ruc ture  pro jec ts  

a l l  over  and Ronn ie  cou ld  no t  respond because fo r  some 

reason,  I  th ink  the i r  company was no longer  invo lved in  

cement  by  the  t ime request  had come th rough and a  phone 

ca l l  came th rough to  me because Ronn ie  re fer red  the  

phone ca l l  to  me because a t  leas t  I  knew Gav in  and 

Papadak is  d id  no t .   10 

And I  spoke to  Agr izz i  and I  sa id ,  here  I  the  bu i lde r  

you guys ca r ry  on  w i th  tha t ,  so  i t  was,  as  fa r  as  I  can  

ascer ta in ,  i t  was an innocent  t ransfer  o f  re la t ionsh ip  

knowledge to  say,  here  is  a  need,  here  is  a  po ten t ia l  

supp l ie r  a t  tha t  t ime BOSASA was invo lved w i th  A f r i sam 

and one o f  the  empowerment  par tners ,  and the  purchase 

f rom another  major  in te rna t iona l  company ca l led  

Wholesome.   

But  the  long and the  shor t  o f  i t  i s  i f  you  look a t  the  

ev idence here ,  the  supp l ie rs  were  ac tua l l y  ex te rna l  to  20 

BOSASA and the  long and the  shor t  o f  i t  i s  tha t  a  payment  

was made.   I  do  no t  have a l l  the  de ta i l s  o f  tha t ,  bu t  I  am 

sure  tha t  you can get  tha t  d i rec t l y  f rom Mr  Papadak is  

h imse l f .  

But  yes the re  was a  supp l ie r,  i t  was not  a  qu id  pro  
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quo type s i tua t ion ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  i t  was a  s imp le ,  here  

and le t  us  he lp  and ass is t .   And the  bu i lder  dea l t  d i rec t l y  

w i th  a  company  and the  company fac i l i ta ted  because  

obv ious ly  they were  probab ly  –  BOSASA was a  la rge  

company in  those days so  they had some sway over  the  

supp l ie r.   That  i s  a l l  I  have to  say about  tha t  Cha i r.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Look,  le t  us  take  Mr  Wakeford  le t  us  

take  th is  s tep  by  s tep .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    D id  you not  want  to  be  caut ious about  10 

say ing  there  was  no invest iga t ion  by  SARS on BOSASA a t  

the  t ime o f  the  cement  i ssue.   You do not  know much o f  

what  was be ing  invest iga ted  by  SARS or  do  you?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Wel l ,  to  my knowledge Cha i r,  I  mean,  I  

am not  -  I  never  worked fo r  SARS but  to  my knowledge  

there  was no -  what  i s  an  invest iga t ion?  An invest iga t ion  

is  where  you rece ive  an  aud i t  le t te r  and then the  aud i t  

commences.  

In  th is  case,  the  aud i t  le t te r  was  near  the  end o f  

2010 and the  in i t ia t ion  o f  the  aud i t  and i f  I  am not  20 

m is taken,  i t  was Pezu lu [? ]  one o f  the  subs id ia r ies  invo lved  

in  fenc ing  a l though the  word  means sky  i f  I  am not  

m is taken.   

So yes Cha i r  the  -  no  knowledge a t  a l l ,  the  on ly  

knowledge I  have o f  an  invest iga t ion  was the  one  I  have 
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jus t  ment ioned and there  wou ld  never  have been a  qu id  pro  

quo type re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  George Papadak is .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you know,  whether  BOSASA or  

subs id ia ry  compan ies  had put  in  a  c la im,  a  tax  re fund 

c la im,  you know about  those th ings?  

MR WAKEFORD:    A tax  re fund?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  you do not  know abou t  those  

th ings.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I s  tha t  an  invest iga t ion ,  cha i r?   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am ask ing  the  issues abou t  SARS,  10 

you know whethe r  they wou ld  have c la imed a  tax  re fund,  

you do not  know tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  wou ld  no t  know about  tha t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am not  expec t ing  i t  f rom you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Hence I  say  Mr  Wakeford  the  h igh  

wate rmark  i s  tha t  as  fa r  as  you a re  concerned,  you  do not  

know whether  there  were  any invest iga t ion  o r  tax  to  f i le  

app l i ca t ions by  BOSASA at  tha t  t ime,  a  h igh  watermark.  

MR WAKEFORD:    A re  you re fer r ing  s i r  to  Cha i r  t o  2000 20 

January  to  June 2009?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    From 2009 unt i l  2013 when Mr  George 

Papadak is  le f t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    No,  no  you cannot  re fe r  to  tha t  a rea ,  

Cha i r  le t  me te l l  you  why because the  a l legat ion  is  ve ry  
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spec i f i c .   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    And i f  you read Agr izz i ’s  a l lega t ion ,  he 

says ve ry  c lear l y  tha t  there  was a  major  inves t iga t ion 

number  one,  and  as  a  compensat ion  fo r  tha t  invest iga t ion  

i t  must  have been pr io r  to  February  or  January  2009.   I t  

must  have been pr io r  to  tha t  because he was re imbursed 

fo r  h is  e f fo r ts ,  accord ing  to  h im.   Cha i r,  I  somehow do not  

unders tand why wou ld  one br ing  anyth ing  in  excess o f  tha t  

a l legat ion  in to  i t ,  even Frans Voste r  speaks to  i t .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So is  i t  you r  ev idence then,  tha t  you 

are  say ing  w i th  cer ta in ty  tha t  there  was no invest iga t ion  by  

SARS a t  the  t ime tha t  there  was  a  cement  i ssue,  is  tha t  

your  ev idence?  

MR WAKEFORD:    P lease repeat?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I s  i t  your  ev idence tha t  you a re  say ing  

now wi th  cer ta in ty  tha t  there  was no invest iga t ion  by  SARS 

on BOSASA o r  i t s  subs id ia r ies  du r ing  the  t ime o f  cement  

i ssue.   

MR WAKEFORD:    100%.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see ;  now on ly  cement  you know who  

pa id  fo r  the  cement?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  my  unders tand ing  is  tha t  

Papadak is  as  bu i lder  pa id  BOSASA d i rec t l y.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Your  lawyers  must  have in fo rmed you,  
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must  have shown you tha t  BOSASA pa id  fo r  i t ,  fo r  the  

cement .  

MR WAKEFORD:    From the  supp l ie r  bu t  you pa id  

BOSASA.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    BOSASA pa id  the  supp l ie r  o f  cement .  

MR WAKEFORD:    And you pa id  BOSASA,  who pa id  

BOSASA Cha i r?   In  o ther  words,  when you have  got  a  

supp le r  you cannot  expect  someone e lse  to  pay the  

supp l ie r,  they  a re  your  supp l ie r.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    So  the  supp l ie r  se t t les ,  i s  se t t led  by  the 

or ig ina l  c l ien t  tha t  p laced the  orde r  and then the  company  

tha t  p laced the  o rde r  tha t  has pa id  fo r  a  serv ice  tha t  i t  had 

never  go t  any benef i t  f rom then has to  pay -  then has to  be  

pa id  by  the  th i rd  par ty.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Then le t  us  use –  then le t  us  bee 

d i rec t  to  th is  case.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    BOSASA pa id  fo r  the  cement .  

MR WAKEFORD:    BOSASA pa id  the i r  supp l ie rs  and then 20 

what  happened a f te r  tha t ,  tha t  i s  my quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  le t  us  take  a  s tep  by  s tep ,  a t  th is  

s tage the  quest ion  is  do  you accept  tha t  BOSASA pa id  the  

supp l ie r?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  say I  accept ,  i t  i s  one scenar io .   

You might  say  no ,  tha t  i s  no t  t rue ,  tha t  i s  anothe r  scenar io  

o r  you might  say  I  do  no t  know whether  BOSASA pa id  the  

supp l ie r  o r  no t ,  then we can take  i t  f rom there .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r,  no  what  has been 

supp l ied  by  the  invest iga tors  and  by  fo rmer  employees o f  

the  [word  cu t ]  cement .   There  is  p lenty of  reading mater ia l  

that  speaks to  the supply of  cement  and the payment  of  

cement ,  much smal ler  quant i t ies  wi th in  a very  l im i ted  

t imef rame so the  actual  amounts  and the actual  receipts 10 

need to be – that  needs to  be deal t  wi th  by Papadakis  

because I  would not  have seen any of  that  o ther  than what  

has been provided me in  th is  pack.   But  the point  remains 

that  there was some assis tance and as fa r  as I  understand 

there was payment  for  i t  f rom Papadakis ’s  bu i lder.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Is  your  answer therefore that  you 

say you – you stood that  BOSASA paid the suppl ie r  or  is  the  

posi t ion that  you accept  that  BOSASA paid the suppl ier  but  

you are saying that  the person who benef i t ted f rom the –  

f rom th is  re funded BOSASA or  – so that  in  the end BOSASA 20 

d id not  lose – use any money in  the sense that  i f  i t  was 

paying for  h im – i f  i t  pa id for  h im and he refunded i t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   My understand ing Chai r  was that  the 

bui lder  had received the  cement  on s i te ,  pa id fo r  the cement  

at  some stage.   I  do not  know when – those th ings need to 
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be determined by other  par t ies not  by me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Okay a l r ight .  

MR WAKEFORD:   But  I  d id  – I  d id  pass on the deta i ls  to  – 

or  the bui lder  to  BOSASA and there was – there was 

def in i te ly  some communicat ion because I  was phoned once 

or  twice to  say I  cannot  get  ho ld of  these guys what  is  go ing 

on?  And I  made a phone cal l  that  is  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  as we speak as you are s i t t ing there  

you must  have seen – you must  have seen proof  o f  payment  10 

of  the cement  by  BOSASA and the suppl ier  o f  cement  you 

must  have seen i t?   The 00:02:39 must  have shown you 

that .  

MR WAKEFORD:   In  these packs? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes absolute ly  I  saw i t  in  these packs.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And I  am sure – but  you wi l l  –  there i s  a  

lo t  o f  paper here  – I  am sure you have not  seen proof  o f  

payment  by Papadakis ’ bu i lder ;  the suppl ie r  o f  cement  o r  

d id  you? 20 

MR WAKEFORD:   No.   No I  have not  . .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   For  th is  commission is  ( ta lk ing over  one 

another )  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  h im f in ish .  

MR WAKEFORD:   He has only sent  one aff idavi t  in  which 
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was last  year,  which I  on ly  saw yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You – okay – you… 

MR WAKEFORD:   So for  me to comment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You have not  had enough t ime.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Ja but  – but  that  is  rea l l y  for  not  – not  fo r 

me to respond to  or  to  va l idate or  ver i fy.   That  is  for  the 

commission to  establ i sh the payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes – f rom your  s ide obviously you only 

say what  you know.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  you do not  know you do not  know.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes Chai r  and I  am t ry ing to  do  that  to  

the best  o f  my abi l i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no that  i t  is  f ine.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Let  us deal  wi th  what  you do not  know.   

You do not  know whether  the bui lder  pa id cement  suppl ie r ;  

that  you do not  know.  

MR WAKEFORD:   That  –  no Cha i r  I  d id  not  work  for  the 

bui lder  so I  heard that  the bui lder  had paid.   That  is  a l l  I  

heard.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  what  you know today is  that  

BOSASA paid the suppl ie r.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Paid the or ig ina l  suppl ie r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The cement  suppl ie r.  

MR WAKEFORD:   What  – what  needs to  be ver i f ied  is  who 
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a t  BOSASA received the refund i f  a t  a l l .   Who received i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And again,  what  you do not  know is  

whether  there is  a  refund to BOSASA.  

MR WAKEFORD:   ( ta lk ing over  one another )  

ADV NOTSHE SC:  You d id not  come across anyth ing to  

that  e ffect?  

MR WAKEFORD:   No Chai r  to  – you know when you are to ld  

by somebody tha t  no i t  was paid – i t  was set t led – i t  was 

refunded I  –  who am I  to  get  involved or  to  d ispute that?  I  

cannot .   I  must  … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  must  a l low yourselves to  estab l ish the 

facts.   That  is  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes f rom your  s ide you – you can say th is  

is  what  I  was to ld .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  have no personal  knowledge whether  

i t  is  t rue or  not .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Hundred percent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  be l ieved i t  –  i f  you bel ieved i t .   20 

Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now as we s i t  today – as we are s i t t ing  

today,  we have th is  s i tuat ion  that  we have Mr Papadakis  

who is  work ing  at  SARS at  the t ime and h is  cement  

requi rements i s  pa id for  by BOSASA.   A taxpayer  who had a  
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query – i t  was quer ied by SARS that  is  the s i tuat ion we 

have today.   Am I  r ight?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Just  repeat  the last  par t  o f  i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   As we are s i t t ing here today.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We are s i t t ing here today what  we have 

is  th is  that  we have a person who was work ing for  SARS – 

Mr Papadakis h is  cement  requi rement  was paid  for  by  

BOSASA.   BOSASA a taxpayer  who was under invest igat ion  

by SARS that  i s  what  we have today,  am I  r ight?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:   Under invest igat ion by SARS where – 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink your  answer would be I  do  

not  know anyth ing  about  an invest igat ion i f  that  is  the  case.  

MR WAKEFORD:   To my knowledge there was no 

invest igat ion at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   No invest igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the balance of  what  Mr Notshe is  

saying what  do you say to  that?  You do not  know anyth ing 20 

about  the  invest igat ion but  the balance of  what  you are  

saying you have no issues wi th  namely a taxpayer  namely  

BOSASA who had a query – a tax query or  is  i t  –  was i t  a  

tax query? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   A tax query or  a  refund appl i cat ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR WAKEFORD:   Chai r  –  Chai r  could I  just  respond to 

that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Because  

CHAIRPERSON:   Respond to that .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Because one has got  to  be very  carefu l  

the a l legat ion was major  invest igat ion and at  that  t ime there 

was – there was compensat ion.   In  other  words,  there was a 

corrupt  act  and we a l l  know the per iod.   We must  be  carefu l  10 

not  to  s ta r t  ta lk ing about  other  th ings because no one has 

ever  spoken about  that  before.   No one has ever  a l leged 

that  there was a  tax refund.   No one has refuted the fact  

that  there was no invest igat ion at  the t ime.   Now we – we 

get t ing in to another  – i t  is  another  chapter  that  qu i te  f rankly  

I  am not  sure whether  I  should –  I  can even comment  on i t  

because when you star t  ta lk ing  refunds i t  was never  

a l leged.  When you star t  ta lk ing there was th is  qu iet  

invest igat ion,  I  do not  know i f  there was a quiet  

invest igat ion or  not .   What  I  do know what  that  which is  in  20 

the publ i c  domain there was noth ing.   And one would even 

quest ion whether  Papadakis knew i t  was being suppl ied by  

BOSASA or  not  because the communicat ion was in i t ia l l y  

wi th  Ronnie Watson he was t ry ing to  deal  wi th  the company 

that  Ronnie was deal ing wi th  that  had cement  and by the  
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way Ronnie is  a  taxpayer as wel l .   Everyone is  a taxpayer.   

I f  you are not  a  taxpayer  then you should not  be a  c i t izen 

qui te  f rankly  unless you unemployed or  no – or  no  reason 

that  –  fo r  –  a lo t  o f  people are unemployed because they 

cannot  he lp i t  bu t  i f  you are work ing then you shou ld be a 

taxpayer  and the  company should  be a taxpayer  as wel l .   

But  –  but  to  t ry  and – to  t ry  and say that  a  taxpayer  who is  

assis t ing someone work ing at  SARS is  – has created a  

natura l l y  cor rupt  re la t ionship I  do not  know – I  have a b i t  o f  

a  p roblem wi th that  in te rpretat ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe Mr  Notshe star t  w i th  the 

quest ion of  the invest igat ion now because I  do seem to  

th ink there may have been reference to i t  by e i ther  Mr 

Agr izz i  or  by some other  wi tness.  So maybe i t  is  bet te r  i f  

you star t  by  c lear ing that  i ssue whether  there was evidence 

to that  e ffect .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  in  –   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then we take i t  f rom there.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  in  fa i rness to  Mr Wakeford the  

issue of  the ex is tence of  the invest igat ion or  not  I  am not  20 

going to  delve in to that .   What  I  want  to  f ind out  f rom Mr  

Wakeford  we are  ta lk ing.  

ADV WILLIS:   Sorry Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:   Can I  come in  there and I… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV WILLIS:   I  just  fee l  very re luctant ly  and I  have been 

very pat ient  and I  be l ieve I  have g iven my learned f r iend 

some –  a  lo t  o f  la t i tude.   But  we had to answer the 

a l legat ions that  were made to Mr Agr izz i  by Mr Agr izz i .   You 

have heard f rom Mr Wakeford there is  not  a  shred of  

ev idence to prove anyth ing th is  man has sa id.   That  is  our  

content ion that  i s  the case we have argued to you when we 

make our  submissions he is  g iv ing  the evidence.   There – i t  

is  not  for  our  c l ient  to  prove a  negat ive.   There is  –  i f  there 10 

is  ev idence to be put  to  our  c l ient  then i t  must  be put  to  h im 

00:10:19 fo r  Mr Notshe to  aver  now or  to  submi t  he is  not  

go ing to  deal  wi th  that  a f ter  suggest ing there is  someth ing 

is  not  acceptable.   That  is  what  Mr Agr izz i  has done.   

Suggest ions,  cas t  d ispers ions but  no evidence.  I f  there i s  

someth ing e lse then i t  must  be put  to  Mr – the hear t  –  the 

ev idence – par t  o f  the d i rect  ev idence must  be put  to  Mr 

Wakeford and he must  be g iven an opportuni ty  to  deal  wi th  

even i f  we must  s tand down fo r  two minutes to  assis t  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine .    20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  do not  –  thanks for  my learned f r iend 

to  offer  fo r  two minutes I  do not  need i t .   I  w i l l  proceed 

wi thout  the two minutes he wants to  g ive me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  i t  is  important  just  to  make sure 

that  i f  there is  ev idence that  you want  to  put  to  h im to say 
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there i s  th is  ev idence that  i t  be made c lear.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Mr Wakeford  I  understand – I  accept  

that  I  cannot  expect  you to  respond on evidence which is  

not  there  on which you do not  know about .   Let  us  go  back.   

You know now as a fact  that  BOSASA paid fo r  the cement  of  

requi rements of  Mr Papadakis,  you know that .   I t  is  here in  

the document .  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  have seen that .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   You do not  know whether  Mr  

Papadakis refunded BOSASA,  you do not  know or  do  you? 

MR WAKEFORD:   Mr Papadakis refunded BOSASA. 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Ja for  the cement  they paid fo r.  

MR WAKEFORD:   No what  I… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   You do not  know that .  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  have been to ld  I  have not  been par ty  to  

the t ransact ions so I  would not  be  able to  p rovide you wi th  

the necessary ev idence.   A t  the t ime I  do remember the 

bui lder  saying that  he had paid or  and refunded fo r  a l l  the 20 

cement .   Whether  – and that  –  that  should be a  l ia ison 

between yourselves and the bui lder  and Mr Papadakis.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Who is  the bui lder  you ta lk  about?  

MR WAKEFORD:   H is  name was i f  I  am not  mistaken he 

was an ind igenous Greek type guy.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   Is  that  the surname Indigenous? 

MR WAKEFORD:   No,  no I  am just  descr ib ing h im.   He 

spoke wi th  a broken accent  and h is  – h is  name was Chr is  – 

Chr is tos someth ing – Chr is tos.  –  I  do not  –  I  d id  not  know 

h im.   I  mean the  guy phoned me – I  put  h im in  touch wi th  

Agr izz i  and that  i s  where my ro le ended.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I s  i t  in  your  ev idence that  there is  

noth ing wrong for  someone work ing at  SARS to have 

someth ing he needs to  be paid for  by taxpayers – someone 

work ing at  SARS – you say there is  noth ing wrong wi th  10 

that?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Wel l  f i rs t l y  Chai r  i f  there is  no a qui t  pro  

quo then I  mean f r iends do – th is  is  f r iends f rom t ime to  

t ime Number 1.  

2 .  I  would say that  there is  noth ing wrong wi th  ge t t ing or  

be ing provided w i th  a serv ice i f  you pay for  that  serv ice.   

Now are facts that  must  be establ ished by th is  commission  

not  by me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  am not  your  invest igator.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No I  understand.   But  i f  you do not  pay 

for  the serv ice you st i l l  –  there is  noth ing wrong wi th  that?  

MR WAKEFORD:   I f  you do not  pay? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Wel l  I  would say then that  could become 
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a  p roblem.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   I t  cer ta in ly  could  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And you wou ld expect  that  the person 

work ing for  SARS would declare that  to  SARS – you would  

expect  that?  To say whether  … 

MR WAKEFORD:   I f  you do not  pay for  i t  absolute ly.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now your  re la t ionship wi th  Mr  10 

Papadakis were you f r iends? 

MR WAKEFORD:   I  would say we were – we were f r iends.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Was he your  advisor?  

MR WAKEFORD:   H is n ickname – h is  n ickname was my 

Advisor.   Everyone – everyone who is  c lose to  me knew that  

Number 1.  

2 .  That  terms Advisor  was used wel l  in  excess of  h is  

departu re f rom SARS and I  have emai ls  to  p rove.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And te l l  me – te l l  the commission do you 

have h is  emai l  address? 20 

MR WAKEFORD:   No.   He worked -  you know wi th  

Papadakis i f  you wanted to  connect  wi th  h im he had a PA 

cal led Chr isna Engelbrecht ,  h is  wi fe  and Chr isna 

Engelbrecht  coord inated h is  l i fe  whi le  he was work ing at  a  

corporate pr ior  to  SARS and at  SARS as wel l  and post  
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SARS.  Up unt i l  and Chai r  I  d id  prepare an aff idavi t  in  

response to Chr isna Engelbrecht  but  I  was asked to  

wi thhold i t  unt i l  we got  a l l  the in format ion.   I  know that  she 

c la ims that  I  was never  f r iendly wi th  her  and that  we d id not  

rea l ly  have a c lose re la t ionship wel l  that  is  not  t rue Chai r.   

In  fact  I  was qui te  fond of  her  as a person.   Unfor tunate ly,  

the i r  marr iage d id  end and I  do not  want  to  get  in to that .   I  

th ink i t  was in  2017 the last  t ime I  saw her  was at  Barry  

Sergeant ’s  funera l  a t  St  John’s Col lege when Bar ry passed 

away of  cancer.   We were both  f r iendly wi th  Bar ry  and 10 

Chr isna Engelbrecht  was at  the funera l  as wel l  and we 

jo ined them for  some beverages or  whatever  af te r  the actual  

funera l .   That  is  the last  t ime I  saw her.   But  we had – and I  

have got  emai ls  to  va l idate i t  and I  wi l l  cer ta in ly  send that  

a ff idavi t  in  as soon as possib le  Chai r.   I t  is  a l l  ready i t  just  

needs to  be paginated etcetera bu t  the bot tom l ine is  there 

– there are numerous emai ls  between mysel f  and Chr isna 

that  had noth ing to  do wi th  George Papadakis where she fo r  

instance fac i l i ta ted a dog – an A lsa t ian for  –  because I  love 

dogs – I  ass is ted  her  wi th  some v isa appl i cat ions to  Home 20 

Affa i rs  th rough the VIP uni t  fo r  a  number of  the i r  c l ients at  

the t ime at  Mid land Shipping Company there is  some others  

as wel l .   I  am not  qu i te  sure why she wants to  d issociate 

hersel f  f rom me but  my v iew has a lways been that  she is  a 

– she – I  considered her  to  be a f r iend as wel l .   So yes I  d id  
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–  I  d id  send emai ls  to  her  because Papadakis was running 

around a l l  the t ime.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Do you have any par t icu la r  reason why 

you d id not  submi t  th is  aff idavi t  in  response to her  af f idavi t?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Because… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   So the we could see i t  in  t ime and deal  

wi th  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes – sorry Chai r  in  fact  Advocate Wi l l is  

can perhaps respond to that .  

ADV WILLIS:   Thank you Mr Chai r.   In  fact  an arrangement 10 

i t  is  recorded I  th ink maybe just  in  the moment  Mr Notshe is  

just  –  i t  s l ipped h is  mind but  there is  a  lo t  o f  

correspondence that  records us ho ld ing back on th ings unt i l  

we get  in  par t i cu lar  the Papadakis  aff idavi t .   I t  was not  so  

much the response by Agr izz i  a t  that  t ime i t  was the 

Papadakis aff idav i t  and the Radhakr ishna.   And – wel l  we 

only got  the Papadakis aff idavi t  yesterday morning  and the 

Chr isna Engelbrecht  a ff idavi t  was not  requi red of  us and i t  

is  not  there.   But  I  can conf i rm i t  was prepared i t  jus t  needs 

to  be commissioned at  some stage 00:18:09.   Thank you.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No Chai r  I  th ink  my learned f r iend – I  do 

not  know what  he is  ta lk ing about  when he sa id I  do not  

know whether  he  ins inuat ing that  I  sa id there must  be a  

delay in  submi t t ing a response to  Ms Engelbrecht .   There 

was no such an arrangement  wi th  h im.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   My understanding is  that  he is  do ing 

noth ing more than saying you ought  to  be aware o f  some 

correspondence about  them delay ing.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There is  no cor respondence about  

de lay ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you are aware of .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There is  no cor respondence about  

de lay ing in  submi t t ing a response to Ms Engelbrecht .   The 

delay was only in  respect  o f  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr  

CHAIRPERSON:   Agr izz i .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No Mr Anie l  and Mr Papadakis because 

we wanted a response f rom Mr  Agr izz i .   But  not  Ms 

Engelbrecht  there was never  an  ar rangement  that  they 

would delay.   In  any event  – in  any event  by yesterday af te r  

we le f t  here the  arrangement  was that  they are going to  

respond to everyth ing – they are going to  g ive us a  

comprehensive af f idavi t  o f  Mr Wakeford.  There was never  

an ar rangement  that  someth ing is  go ing to  be le f t  out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  wish… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  h im respond to that .  

ADV WILLIS:   Mr Chai rman there is  a  00:19:29 of  

correspondence that  deals wi th  these issues.   There were 

a lso deal ings between Mr Notshe and I  on a co l leg ia l  level  

which do not  form par t  o f  that .   I  would l ike the opportuni ty  
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to  re f resh h is  mind on th is  par t i cu la r  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.  

ADV WILLIS:   So I  understand tha t  we – I  understand that  

is  00:19:49 that  needs to  be done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV WILLIS:   As  to  p repar ing a comprehensive aff idavi t  for  

today he is  here to  deal  –  our  c l ien t  is  here to  deal  wi th  the  

a l legat ions by Mr Agr izz i  and Mr Vorster.   I f  there i s  

anyth ing e lse tha t  needs speci f i c  deal ing wi th  here  is  the  

opportuni ty  ask h im.   He is  here to  g ive h is  ev idence.   10 

Thank you Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Let  us say the two of  you wi l l  ta lk  

and t ry  to  ref resh each other ’s  memory in  the meant ime I  

am not  sure how much mater ia l  … 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  –  no Chai r  i t  is  th is  i ssue is  not  

rea l ly  an issue that  can delay us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   A l l  I  was put t ing was just  compla in ing to  

Mr Wakeford that  I  d id  not  get  i t  in  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  p lays a major  – a minor  ro le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  i t  is  par t  o f  the whole issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Mr Wakeford you know th is  is  my pause 
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before I  ca l l  your  name I  am worr ied about  the f ine I  do not  

want  to  – I  am le f t  wi th  one st r i ke  so I  pause before I  ca l l  

out  your  name.   Because i f  I  make a mistake now i t  wi l l  be a 

f ine for  me.   Now turn to  page 657.   Now 657 i t  is  an emai l  

f rom you – i t  an  emai l  f rom you to Ms Engelbrecht  and –  

and then you say:  

“Hi  Chr isna how are you.   P lease see below 

and ask Advisor  to  comment . ”  

You see that?  

MR WAKEFORD:   I  see that .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And the Advisor  you are refer r ing to  is  

Mr Papadakis?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Am I  r ight?  Why do you not  say  ask Mr 

Papadakis why d id you not  use h is  name? 

MR WAKEFORD:   Because that  is  what  I  a lways ca l led h im 

in  every s ing le emai l  Chai r.   Both post  and pr io r.   From 

when I  met  h im r ight  th rough.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Post  –  post  what?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Post  h is  leaving SARS and pr io r  to  h im 20 

going to  SARS.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then a lso… 

CHAIRPERSON:   How d id he acqui re the n ickname? 

MR WAKEFORD:   Chai r  he is  a  –  he is  a very 

knowledgeable man but  I  a lso ca l led h im a number of  o ther  
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th ings as wel l  when teasing h im.   I  ca l led h im Zorbo which  

is  a  name that  has an in f in i ty  wi th  Greek people as wel l  as I  

th ink a te rm the Hel len ic  because h is  ancest ry i s  Northern  

Greek where the  Hel len ic  people l ived.   But  in  the  main I  

ca l led h im Advisor  because of  h is  head space and h is  

knowledge.   He a lways has someth ing to  offer  in  terms of  

knowledge.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then on page 659 you see the same 

reference to the Advisor.  10 

MR WAKEFORD:   Hundred percent .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And I  suppose you have got  the same 

explanat ion? 

MR WAKEFORD:   Same explanat ion.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now Mr  Wakeford I  would  – got  

someth ing which is  d is tu rb ing here.   I  want  you to  deal  wi th  

i t  p lease.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Sure.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Can you tu rn to  page 153.  

MR WAKEFORD:   153.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   153.   Are you there?   

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now paragraph 4.9 – you on 4.9?  This  

is  again the aff idavi t  o f  Agr izz i .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   When he was responding to  your  

appl i cat ion.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He says someth ing which is  –  we need 

an explanat ion.   He says:  

“The fu r ther  emai l  is  re ferr ing to  

confect ionary”  

I  am reading Chai r  f rom there.  

“The fu r ther  emai l  is  re ferr ing to  

confect ionary and smart ies was refer r ing to  10 

money to be provided to  the Min is ter ’s  

Advisor  Mike Ramagopa for  benef i t  o f  

in teract ing on behal f  o f  BOSASA wi th the 

Min is te r  Nosiv iwe Nol tano Mapisa-Nqakula. ”  

She was the Min is ter  o f  –  she was the Min is te r  o f  

Cor rect ional  Serv ices at  the t ime.  You used the word  

confect ionary wh ich meant  money and smart ies was the 

n ickname you gave fo r  Mike  Ramagopa.   The reason for  the 

n ickname is  because he a lways changed h is  mind.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Chai r  I  –  I  d id  respond to th is  in  one of  20 

my pr ior  a ff idavi t s .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:   But  just  to  say the fo l lowing because my 

memory serves me very wel l  on mat ters l i ke th is .   F i rs t ly  my 

f i rs t  response was that  I  doubt  whether  the emai l  i s  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 173 of 318 
 

authent ic  because I  honest ly  d id  not  remember that  emai l .   

In  fact  f rom a Yahoo address.   Secondly Mike – h is  name 

Mike Ramagoma he or ig inates f rom the te rr i to ry of  Venda.   

Mike is  a  very smart  young man who was the advisor  to  the  

Min is te r  but  my re lat ionship wi th  the Min is te r  as  a very 

c lose co l league and f r iend d id not  requi re any in te r face or  

assis tance Mike Ramagoma wi th a l l  due respect .   And I  

th ink you have heard in  Agr izz i ’s  test imony and Van 

Tonder ’s  and others that  the te rm confect ionary d id not  

re fer  to  money.  When they were referr ing in  money in  a l l  10 

the i r  test imonies,  they spoke about  I  th ink  i t  was loaves of  

bread – they d id not  re fer  to  confect ionary.   I f  in  fact  that  

emai l  is  authent ic  the confect ionary probably refers to  the 

provis ion of  some form of  cater ing because they a lways 

spoi l t  the i r  guests when they ar r ived at  the HQ or  the  

premises.   Because Agr izz i  pr ided h imsel f  in  having some of  

the best  chefs in  the publ i c  –  serv ing the publ i c  sector.   And 

i t  was qui te  common for  them to bake and to provide guests 

wi th  eats.   But  Chai r  I  d id  not  requi re any serv ices f rom 

Mike Ramagoma.   My re lat ionship  wi th  the Min is te r  was a  20 

d i rect .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Look he –  he  at taches –  Agr izz i  

a t taches two emai ls  – copies  of  emai ls  you must  have seen 

them.  

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  is  on page 223.    

MR WAKEFORD:   Yes.   Sorry h is  –  Chai r  just  to  c la r i fy  th is .   

His – Agr izz i ’s  second aff idavi t  that  was never  p resented 

where  he in t roduces a whole lo t  o f  new – probably because 

h is  previous stuff  had been d iscredi ted he star ts  in t roducing  

new th ings which  were not  presented to  yoursel f  o r  to  th is  

commission.   Am I  requi red to  respond to or  I  wi l l  respond 

happi ly  but  i t  was an aff idavi t  sent  to  the commission but  i t  

was not  presented.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  to  the extent  that  –  to  the extent  that  10 

you are made to  understand that  i t  might  be inconsistent  

wi th  your  ev idence you should fee l  f ree to  deal  wi th  i t  

obviously i f  you need more  t ime then you make an aff idavi t  

i t  can be done in  due course.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And sorry Chai r  in  addi t ion to  that  Mr 

Wakeford you d id  rep ly to  th is .   I t  was – th is  I  am reading 

f rom the answer ing aff idavi t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   In  the appl i cat ion to  cross-examine you 

and he f i led a rep ly ing aff idavi t .   So he d id deal  wi th  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Respond to i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR WAKEFORD:    Ja so Chai r  th is  was never  p resented in  

the publ ic  domain  but  o ther  than fo r  me to say that  I  s tand 
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by what  I  have just  sa id and I  s tand by what  I  sa id in  my 

aff idavi t  in  response to i t .   And I  rea l l y  have noth ing fu r ther  

to  add.   I  th ink i t  is  innocuous qui te  f rankly  and – and real l y  

does not  bear  any re levance to – to  the a l legat ions.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Look – look… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i s  the not  –  is  not  one of  the  points  

about  i t  is  that  you – to  the extent  that  we can – i f  we were  

to  accept  that  i t  came f rom you that  emai l  and i t  was 

addressed to Angelo Agr izze to  the extent  – i f  we accept  

that  that  is  cor rec t  then isn ’ t  i t  that  i t  re f lec ts  tha t  you a l so  10 

used th is  te rm o f  confec t ionary  in  your  conversa t ion  w i th  

h im and he prov ided an exp lanat ion  fo r  what  i t  was used to  

mean in  parag raph,  I  th ink ,  4 .9  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . tha t  Mr  Notshe read ear l ie r  on .   So on 

the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  wou ld  seem to  me tha t  i f  i t  i s  indeed the  

emai l  tha t  came f rom you and went  to  Mr  Agr izz i ,  i t  re f lec t s  

tha t  you a lso  used th is  te rm tha t  he  ta lked about  in  h is  

a f f idav i t .   He gave a  cer ta in  mean ing  in  h is  a f f idav i t  as  to  20 

what  i t  meant  and tha t  may be impor tan t  aga ins t  what  you 

sa id  ear l ie r,  namely  you doubt  tha t  the  emai ls  a re  

au thent ic .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  I  sa id  in  my respond ing  a f f idav i t  

tha t  I  doubted whether  the  emai l  was authent ic  bu t  save to  
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say  tha t  the  te rm  confec t ionary  cou ld  mean a  who le  lo t  o f  

th ings.   I  do  no  remember  the  spec i f i c  emai l  in  the  f i rs t  

ins tance.   In  the  second ins tance,  he  a l leges  tha t  I  

requ i red  money to  pay Mike  Tsh ishonga.  

 Now qu i te  f rank ly,  Mike  Tsh ishonga was not  an  

in te rmed iary  and  was not  a  person I  needed to  in te rac t  

w i th  Nos iv iwe No lu thando  Map isa-Nqaku la  be ing  the  

Min is te r  o f  Cor rec t ions a t  the  t ime and I  was  not  a  

consu l tan t  to  Cor rec t ion  e i the r.   That  i s  another  s ta tement  

he  made tha t  I  was a  consu l tan t  to  Cor rec t ion  wh ich  I  was  10 

not  eve r.   I  was approached and I  never  took i t  up  because  

I  had o ther  ac t i v i t ies  a t  the  t ime.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe in  fa i rness to  Mr  Wakeford  

bu t  a lso  to  ge t  the  who le  p ic tu re .   Mr  Notshe,  you  shou ld  

take  us  to  h is  response . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  h is  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    I t  i s  on  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . response to  Mr  Agr izz i  in  connect ion  

w i th  th is .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC :    I t  i s  on  page 318,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    318?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am there .    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Paragraph 56.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Have you found i t ,  Mr  Wakeford?  

MR WAKEFORD :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes,  Mr  No tshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes,  in  parag raph 56.3  where  he  says 

–  you say:  

“ I  never  ca l led  or  re fe r red  to  Mr  Mike  

Tsh ishonga as  Smar t ies  and I  deny I  ever  re fe r  

to  money as  confec t ionary.  

These a re  fab r ica t ions o f  Agr i zz i . . . ”  

 That  i s  you r  answer.   And today you are  g i v ing  a  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  read the  next  one fo r  the  sake o f  

comple teness . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.   And then  5  po in t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .po in t  four  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . .56 .4 ,  he  says:  

“ I  fu r ther  deny tha t  I  ever  pa id  Mr  Michae l  

Tsh ishonga money to  in te rac t  w i th  the  Min i s te r,  

Map isa-Nqaku la  nor  i s  th is  acqu is i t ion  ass i s ted  

w i th  Agr i zz i ’s  own  a f f idav i t . . . ”  20 

 In  paragraph 4 .9  in  th is  a f f idav i t ,  Agr izz i  says  

tha t :  

“The money was  prov ided to  Tsh ishonga fo r  

the  benef i t  o f  in te rac t ing  on  beha l f  o f  BOSASA 

wi th  the  m in is te r. . . . ”  
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 However,  in  pa ragraph 4 .7 ,  Agr izz i  says :  

“Va lence Watson and myse l f  were  

communica t ing  w i th  the  m in is te r  d i rec t l y  over  

the  same per iod . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  one.   Mr  Wakefo rd ,  you do 

say you d ispute  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  emai ls .   Would  tha t  

s t i l l  be  the  pos i t ion?  I  th ink  ear l ie r  on  you d id  no t  pu t  as  

s t rong ly  as  tha t ,  namely  tha t  you d isput ing  i t .   My 

reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  you sa id  you wou ld  doubt  i t s  

au thent ic i t y,  because there  is  a  d is t inc t ion  be tween the  10 

two.   A re  you go ing  as  fa r  as  say ing  you a re  d ispu te  i t  o r  

a re  you say ing  you doubt  i t s  au thent ic i t y?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  when I  f i rs t  saw i t ,  I  d ispute  i t s  

au thent ic i t y,  number  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Number  two.   The te rms confec t ionary  

was never  used fo r  money and we  have heard  what  te rms 

they used fo r  money.   Th i rd ly,  I  d id  d ispute  because Mike  

Tsh ishonga has  a lways been ca l led  Mike  by  me,  no t  

Smar t ies .   And th i rd ly,  I  wou ld  –  you know to  pay Mike  20 

Tsh ishonga to  meet  the  m in is te r  a f te r  I  had spent  two years  

on  the  p ro jec t  p r i o r  to  tha t  a t  Home Affa i rs ,  repor t ing  to  the  

m in is te r.   I  jus t  cannot  unders tand  why I  wou ld  eve r  need 

to  pay Mike  Tsh ishonga fo r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  and in  fac t ,  

I  never  pa id  Mike  Tsh ishonga anyth ing  because I  d id  no t  
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need to .   And I  never  pa id  a  pub l i c  o f f i c ia l  anyth ing  

because I  never  needed to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  you ta lked about  –  you sa id  they  

never  used on the i r  ev idence the  word  confec t ionary  fo r  

money.   D id  you  ever  use the  word  confec t ionary  in  your  

in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Agr i zz i?  

MR WAKEFORD :    I f  I  used the  word  confec t ionary,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Mr  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  no t  have re fer red  to  

money.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD :    I t  wou ld  have re fer red  to  exact ly  what  i t  

i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  normal  mean ing .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    And. . .hmm  In  –  then when he deposed  

to  the  rep l y ing  a f f idav i t ,  why d id  you not  exp la in  tha t  you 

th ink  th is  re fe r red  to  the  cake tha t  they wou ld  normal ly  

serve  the  guests  as  you are  now exp la in ing?  Why d id  you  20 

not  then in  your  rep ly ing  a f f idav i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  repeat  your  quest ion .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    In  your  rep l y ing  a f f idav i t ,  why d id  you  

not  g ive  the  exp lanat ion  you are  g iv ing  today tha t  

confec t ionary  probab ly  re fe r red  to  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR WAKEFORD :    I  p robab ly  d id (? ) ,  Cha i r.   I  p robab ly  d id  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    I  do  no t  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   You are  respond ing  

d i f fe ren t ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   Maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    F in ish  the  quest ion .   Le t  h im f in ish .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    The quest ion  is .   In  the  a f f idav i t  on  

page 318:   Why d id  you not  g ive  the  exp lanat ion  you a re  10 

g iv ing  today?  Today he says confec t ionary  probab ly  meant  

the  cakes tha t  Agr izz i  wou ld  serve  peop le  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  says.   One,  he  –  i f  he  used the  

word  confec t ionary  in  h i s  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Agr i zz i ,  he  

wou ld  have used i t  in  i t s  normal  mean ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  he  is  no t  necessar i l y  say ing  he  d id  

use i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   In  the  a f f idav i t  –  in  h is  a f f idav i t  he 

sa id  he  d i sputes  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  emai l  and then he  

sa id  what  he  sa id .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    The quest ion  is  exact ly  tha t  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . .why d id  he  no t  g ive  the  exp lanat ion  

he  g ives  today to  say tha t  i f  I  used confec t ionary  I  wou ld  

have been re fer r ing  to  cakes and o ther  n i ce  th ings tha t  

Mr  Agr i zz i  wou ld  serve  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know because i t  i s  – 

Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  a f f idav i t  pu ts  a  cer ta in  case,  you know.   I  

asked h im the  quest ion :   D id  you ever  use i t?   And  he says 

i f  ever  he  used i t  he  seemed to  be  say ing  he  d id  no t  use  i t  

o r  he  d id  no t  remember  ever  us ing  i t  bu t  i f  he  used i t  he  10 

wou ld  no t  have used i t  in  any way  o ther  than in  i t s  normal  

mean ing .    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  am jus t  no t  sure  whether  he  wou ld  

have needed to  go  as  fa r  as  you a re  suggest ing  he  shou ld  

have but  i f  you  see someth ing  in  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  paragraph 4 .9  

tha t  suggests  tha t  he  shou ld  have  gone beyond o r  –  then 

you can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    No,  Cha i r  tha t  i s  the  h igh- leve l  I  cou ld  

take  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Now las t l y,  Mr  Wakeford .   The  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe you are  –  maybe you are  

too  qu ick  to  concede.   I  see  in  4 .9  Mr  Agr i zz i  says :  
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“We used the  word  confec t ionary  wh ich  meant  

money and Smar t ies  was the  n ickname we 

gave to . . .  

 What  i s  he  say ing  about  the  word  confec t ionary?   

Smar t ies  was the  n ickname tha t  he  says was g iven to  

Mr  Tsh ishonga but  confec t ionary  there  –  or  ea r l ie r  on  he  

says confec t ionary  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    He was re fe r r i ng  to  money.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He was re fer r i ng  to  money.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.   Confec t ionary  i s  money.   When  10 

he says confec t ionary  was money and Smar t ies  was the  

name g iven to  m is te r. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who is  the  we tha t  he  re fers  to   because  

i f  tha t  we re fers  to  Mr  Wakeford  as  we l l  then the  po in t  you 

are  mak ing  maybe one –  may be a  leg i t imate  one.   Who – 

do  you know who he is  re fe r r ing  to  when he says we in  

parag raph 4 .9?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Mr  Wakeford  –  Mr  Agr izz i  re fe rs  to  we 

and i f  you look a t  the  emai ls  we saw,  those emai ls  a re  f rom 

you.   Does not  mean tha t  he  – you and h im,  i s  the  20 

unders tand ing  we  have about  confec t ionary  and Smar t ies .  

MR WAKEFORD :    No,  Cha i r.   No,  Cha i r.   I  have  a l ready  

sa id  tha t  the  te rms Smar t ies  i s  a  n ickname.   I  have never  

used tha t  as  a  n ickname fo r  Mike  Tsh ishonga,  number  one.   

And number  two,  the  te rms confec t ionary.   The on ly  
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ope ra t iona l  word  fo r  confec t ionary,  par t i cu la r l y  when 

look ing  a t  a l l  the  fo rmer  ev idence g iven in  re fe rence to  the  

so-ca l led  p i les  o f  money tha t  were  apparent ly  t ranspor ted  

or  whatever  to  o thers ,  they re fer red  to  tha t  as  loaves o f  

b read both  Van Tonder  and . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  must  te l l  you  tha t  my reco l lec t ion  

tha t  they used d i f fe ren t  words no t  one word  to  re fer  to  

money . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  te rms o f  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  ev idence but  10 

loaves o f  b read wou ld  have been one o f  the  te rms.   Ja ,  ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    No,  fo r  me confec t ionary  means one 

th ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    I t  i s  confec t ionary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

MR WAKEFORD :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    And Smar t ies  be tween adu l ts .   I  mean,  

you and Agr i zz i  a re  ta lk ing  about  Smar t ies .   Espec ia l l y  i f  

you  look a t  224,  parag raph –  page  224.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  pa ragraph?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    The emai l  on  224,  page 224.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  one we are  look ing  a t  o r  

another  one?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes,  the  one we are  look ing  – the  
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second emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  there  a  re ference to  Smar t ies  t here?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.   Page 224.   KW-026.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    We see there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . . i t  i s  an  emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Smar t ies  conf i rmed.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.   I  am su re  Mr  Tsh ishonga  

agree ing  w i th  me.   Th i s  must  be  a  code.   I  mean,  the  two o f  10 

you are  adu l ts .   You are  ta lk ing  about  Smar t ies  as  we know 

them.   I t  must  be  a  code o f  some k ind .   Am I  r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Cha i r,  my contac t  w i th  Agr izz i  was  

l im i ted .   He d id  no t  par t i cu la r l y  l i ked  me and I  th ink  I  have  

proven tha t  beyond a  reasonab le  doubt .   I  do  no t  th ink  we  

wou ld  have any codes between us .   We d id  no t  have a  

proper  re la t ionsh ip  in  any event .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    And there fore ,  Cha i r,  p lease accept  tha t  

wh ich  my responses remain  my response.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   You see,  i f  the  emai ls  a re  

au thent ic ,  then one wou ld  look a t  the  contex t  to  say.   In  the 

emai l  a t  page 223,  what  i s  tha t  you wou ld  have been 

ta lk ing  about  when you sa id  to  Mr  Agr izz i :    

“ I  w i l l  be  check ing  ou t  the  confec t ionary  
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tomorrow morn ing . . . ”    

 And then you say :    

“Would  you l i ke  to  check  ou t  the 

a l legat ions (? )? . . . ”    

 And then in  the  next  page,  i f  tha t  emai l  i s  a lso 

au thent ic ,  you wr i te  to  Mr  Agr izz i  and say:    

“Smar t ies  conf i rmed.   Thanks. ”    

 So one wou ld  need to  say.   Cou ld  you be ta lk ing  

about  Smar t ies  i n  the  o rd inary  sense?  And in  t e rms o f  

confec t ionary,  cou ld  you be ta lk ing  about  confec t ionary  in  10 

the  normal  sense  or  cou ld  th is  be  as  Mr  Agr i zz i  suggests ,  a  

code fo r  someth ing  e lse?  But  tha t  i s  i f  the  emai ls  a re  

au thent ic .   So there  wou ld  need to  be  work  done in  regard  

to  es tab l i sh  au thent ic i t y.   Okay a l r igh t .   You do not  have 

anyth ing  to  add to  what  I  have sa id?  

MR WAKEFORD :    No,  Cha i r.   I  do  no t  see any l og ic  o r  

mot iva t ion  fo r  th is .   I ,  honest ly,  do  no t  see what  the  va lue  

is  here  and what  he  is  ac tua l l y  –  he  is  a l leg ing  tha t  I  gave  

Mike  Tsh ishonga  money.   That  i s  bas i ca l l y  what  he  is  

a l leg ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD :    I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand,  why 

wou ld  I  need to  do  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  what  he  i s  say ing ,  as  I  

unders tand h i s  a f f idav i t ,  he  is  say ing  there  was some 
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improper  bus iness go ing  on here  and in  o rde r  to  h ide  what  

we were  ta l k ing  about  in  the  emai l s ,  we d id  no t  wan t  to  use 

words l i ke  money.   We had to  come up w i th  some codes.   

We ta l k  about  Smar t ies ,  we ta lked about  confec t ionary  and  

in  e f fec t ,  we a l l  knew what  we were  ta lk ing  about .   When 

somebody confec t ionary  or  Smar t ies ,  we a l l  knew.    

 But  somebody who comes across  the  emai l  who  

does not  –  who is  no t  w i th in  our  c i r c les ,  w i l l  no t  know what  

we are  ta lk ing  about .   So he is  tak ing  ou t  o f  these  emai ls  

to  say:   You see,  even Mr  Wakefo rd  sent  me emai l s  where  10 

he used these codes because he knew what  we were  

ta lk ing  about .   So tha t  i s  what ,  as  I  unders tand.   That  i s  

what  –  tha t  i s  the  e f fec t  o f  i t .    

 So  where  you say:   I  was not  invo lved in  

anyth ing  tha t  was  improper  and there fo re  had no reason to  

use codes to  re fer  to  money.   I f  we ta lked about  money I  

wou ld  have used the  word  money because there  was  

noth ing  improper.   That ,  o f  course ,  wou ld  be  your  ve rs ion .    

 But  i f  the  emai ls  were  to  be  found authent ic ,  

then the  quest ion  wou ld  rea l l y  a r ise  to  say:   Wel l ,  why d id  20 

you used these words?  Because  i f  one g ives  them the i r  

normal  mean ing ,  they wou ld  no t ,  fo r  example  maybe,  app ly.   

So tha t  i s  as  I  see i t .   Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Notshe.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC :    And Mr  Wakeford ,  in  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  

the  emai ls  tha t  fo l low,  we w i l l  take  you to  them,  shows 

there  a re  a  number  o f  in te rac t ions .   You asked –  you t r ied  

to  ge t  a  job  fo r  some young lady f rom h im.   You d id  in te rac t  

w i th  h im on a  number  o f  occas ions.    

MR WAKEFORD :    Oh,  yes .   You know,  un for tuna te ly,  he  

was runn ing  the  sh ip .   And when you are  runn ing  the  sh ip  

you have got  to  communica te  w i th  the  capta in .   So,  yes ,  

tha t  was a  p ro fess iona l  –  I  saw i t  as  a  p ro fess iona l  

re la t ionsh ip ,  ce r ta in ly  no t  as  a  f r iendsh ip  or  a  c lose  10 

re la t ionsh ip .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    You are  no t  runn ing  a  –  what  –  you are  

no t  runn ing  an employment  agency o f  look ing  fo r  j obs  fo r  

peop le ,  were  you? 

MR WAKEFORD :    No,  I  was not .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Bu t  you were  look ing  fo r  a  job  fo r  

someone?  

MR WAKEFORD :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . . says  is  a  p ro fess iona l .  

MR WAKEFORD :    Ja ,  par t i cu la r l y  i f  there  a re  peop le  who 20 

are  ta len ted .   Jus t  as  I  ident i f ied  a  number  o f  bus iness  

oppor tun i t ies  as  we l l .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    H ’m.  

MR WAKEFORD :    You know,  i f  peop le  are  ta len ted  then  

you wou ld  l i ke  to  b r ing  them in to  the  organ isa t ion  i f  there  
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i s  space and a t  tha t  t ime or  in  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken,  i t  was  a  growing organ isa t ion  tha t  was labour  

absorp t ive  ra ther  than pro fess iona l (? ) .   So,  yes  Cha i r  there  

wou ld  have been  severa l  occas ions where  I  recommended 

peop le .    

 I  remember  some spec i f i ca l l y.   I  remember  

recommending a  gent leman by the  name o f  Guy R idge(?)  

who was a  PA in  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  in  the  Easte rn  

Cape,  a  very  competent  gent leman .   And you w i l l  f ind  to  a l l  

o f  those there  was no response,  number  one and number  10 

two,  no  employment  oppor tun i t ies  were  c rea ted fo r  anyone  

who was par t  o f  my network  c lea r ly  because there  was a 

long l i s t  o f  peop le ,  I  th ink ,  inc lud ing  fami l y  members  o r  

ind i rec t  fami ly  members  tha t  were  recru i ted  in  the  Agr izz i  

c lang.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    And jus t  to  re fe r  to  th is  wh ich  you do 

not  d ispute .   On  pages 227 and 228 and 299,  230.   I  am 

jus t  re fe r r i ng  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  be fore  you do tha t  

Mr  Notshe.   I t  may be necessary  to  look  a t  these  emai ls  20 

and the  use o f  these te rms and see whether  the i r  o rd inary  

mean ing  cou ld  f i t  in  w i th in  the  contex t  o r  whether  i t  wou ld  

no t  f i t  in .   Of  cou rse ,  i t  may be tha t  Mr  Wakefo rd  cannot  –  

h is  a f f idav i t  maybe does not  ass is t  in  tha t  regard  because  

in  h is  a f f idav i t  he  d isputed the  au thent ic i t y.    
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 And i f  they  a re  no t  p roved to  be  au thent ic  tha t  

wou ld  then suppor t  h im but  i f  they  are  proved to  be  

au thent ic  there  m ight  be  no th ing  he  puts  up  to  say:   Wel l ,  I  

used them to  mean th is  and tha t  and tha t .   Because I  th ink  

tha t  he  was say ing  i f  he  used those te rms  about  

confec t ionary  in  par t i cu la r.   I t  wou ld  have –  he  wou ld  have  

used in  the  ord inary  mean ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  may be tha t  the  exerc ise  cannot  be  

done because h is  pos i t ion  is :   I  d ispute  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  10 

the  emai l s .    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Cha i r,  I  take  i t  –  we can fo l low i t  up  on 

–  I  can get  the  invest iga tors  to  fo l low th is  i ssue up.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    And to  check on  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  

these emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Unfor tunate ly  and –  we l l ,  I  am not  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Maybe  le t  us  20 

proceed but  I  see tha t  we a re  ha l f -past  fou r.   We shou ld  

take  a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment .   Le t  us  have a  ten  m inutes  

ad journment .   We normal ly  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment  

every  two hours .   And then we can  cont inue a f te r  tha t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  have an even ing  sess ion  bu t  I  th ink  

we cont inue and s top  a t  a  cer ta in  t ime.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes.   Cha i r,  I  am a lmost  done.   Th i s  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    When we come back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    I  do  no t  th ink  I  w i l l  be  more  than 30-

minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  tha t  –  10 

wou ld  tha t  cover  what  you regarded as  impor tan t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes,  I  th ink  so .   I  th ink  i t  w i l l  cove r.   

But  i t  m igh t  –  my es t imat ion  is  30-minutes  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  no .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . . i t  m igh t  be  a  d i f f i cu l t  par t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    . . .quest ion ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Somet imes the  Cha i rpe rson  is  a lso  20 

ask ing  quest ions.    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    No,  bu t  a lso  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  takes t ime as  we l l .   [ laughs]    

ADV NOTSHE SC :    I  must  a lso  l im i t  my jokes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  take  a  ten  m inutes  break.   
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Bu t  le t  me ment ion  th is  pa r t ,  tha t  i f  –  when we ad journ  

there  i s  any fee l ing  on  anybody ’s  s ide  tha t  a re  impor tan t  

i ssues tha t  have not  been dea l t  w i th ,  I  m igh t  have  to  see 

where  we can squeeze t ime to take  care  o f  tha t .   I  see  tha t  

tomorrow is  no t  meant  fo r  any hear ing .   I t  i s  meant  fo r  

o ther  mat te rs  tha t  need to  be  dea l t  w i th .    

 I t  may we l l  be  tha t  i f  we need an hour  tomorrow 

or  some l im i ted  t ime to  f in ish  and  i f  everybody concern  is  

ava i lab le  we can look a t  tha t .   But  i f  we cannot  do  i t  

tomorrow and the re  is  a  need fo r  an  hour  o r  someth ing  l i ke  10 

tha t ,  we can –  I  can have a  look a t  the  t ime,  a t  the  days  

next  week and then we f i t  in  jus t  an  hour  o r  so  to  make  

sure  tha t  we do not  s top  in  c i r cumstances where  there  is  

somebody who s t i l l  fee ls  there  were  impor tan t  i ssues tha t  

were  no t  dea l t  w i th .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Yes,  thank you  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   Le t  us  take  an  

ad journment  and we w i l l  resume a t  quar te r  to  f i ve .  

ADV NOTSHE SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  th ink  we shou ld  cont inue unt i l  

ha l f  past  f i ve  and then i f  by  tha t  t ime – we l l ,  i f  you  f in ish  

ear l ie r  then we w i l l  ta lk  and see  whether  counse l  fo r  Mr  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 192 of 318 
 

Wakeford  w ishes  to  examine o r  fa i l ing  wh ich ,  we w i l l  have  

to  make t ime i f  he  w ishes to  re -examine in  due course  fo r  

h im to  do  so .   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  Wakeford ,  I  am not  go ing  to  –  I  do 

no t  want  us  to  waste  t ime.   You do conf i rm tha t  you sent  

emai ls  t r y ing  to  ge t  employment  fo r  one Pat r i c ia  Godf rey 

and …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  what  was the  answer?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    He says yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  sa id  yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  what  was the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  the  record… 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page are  you on?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  i t  i s  on  page 227  

and then 228.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And 229 and then 230.   One o f  the  

reasons,  Mr  Wakeford ,  I  am re fer r ing  you to  th i s ,  i t  i s  jus t  

mere ly  demonst ra te  tha t  you were  ta lk ing  to  Mr  Agr i zz i .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  was –  yes,  Cha i r,  I  was emai l ing  h im  20 

whenever  I  needed to  reach  the  p innac le  o f  the 

organ isa t ion .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  can you jus t  exp la in  th is ,  an  

emai l  I  cou ld  no t  unders tand,  on  page 257.  

MR WAKEFORD:    257?  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    257.   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And emai l  f rom you to  Mr  Agr izz i  and  

you say …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  ind ica te  the  da te  and the  sub jec t  

be fore  go ing  on.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Oh,  the  da te  i s  the  7  March 2011 and  

a t  11 .01 ,  i t  i s  f rom you,  Mr  Wakeford ,  to  Mr  Agr izz i  and the  

la te  Mr  Gav in  Watson.   You say:  

“Gents . . ”  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The sub jec t  i s?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Commi t tee  Secre tary  Contac t  Deta i l s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The he says:  

“Gents ,  [ ind is t inc t ]  a t  th is  week we need to  make a  

judgment  ca l l  on  th is  mat te r  u rgent ly .   And i f  you  

look down …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  says :  

“See be low,  emai ls  and then says …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  20 

“See be low emai ls . ”  

And then i f  you go down,  the  f i rs t  emai l  there  is  an  emai l  

f rom one Be l inda Trout ,  th is  seems to  be  the  house 

secre tary  o f  the  House Cha i rpe rson Commi t tee ’ s  Overs igh t ,  

ICT Nat iona l  Assembly  and i t  i s  to  you and he says:  
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“Mr  Wakefo rd ,  herewi th  de ta i l s  o f  PC on 

Correc t iona l  Serv ices . ”  

And then the  ema i l  a f te r  tha t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  Mr  Notshe,  I  th ink  you must  

jus t  read every th ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Oh,  sor ry .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Read the  content :  

“Commi t tee  sec re tary  i s  there  fo r  un i t  manager…”  

I  guess tha t  i s  –  those are  peop le  tha t  he  is  re fe r r ing  to .   

So the  emai l  to  you,  Mr  Wakeford ,  f rom Ms Be l inda  Trout ,  10 

execut ive  secre tary  House Cha i rperson Commi t tee ’s  

overs igh t  and ICT Nat iona l  Assemb ly ,  i t  i s  on  7  March 2011 

a t  11 .49 ,  the  sub jec t  i s  Commi t tee  Secre ta ry  Contac t  

Deta i l s .   I t  says :  

“Dear  Mr  Wakeford ,  he rewi th  de ta i l s  o f  PC on  

Correc t iona l  Serv ices . ”  

I  take  PC to  be  por t fo l io  commi t tee .   I t  then says:  

“Commi t tee  Secre tary ,  Ms S ing i  Ba l i (? ) . ”  

And then g ives the  te lephone deta i l s .  

“Un i t  manager  Ke i th  Wi l l iams”  20 

G ives contac t  de ta i l s .  

“Many thanks,  Be l inda. ”  

Ms Be l inda Trout .   That  emai l  addressed to  you seems to  

have been sent  a t  11 .49  on the  7  March 2011 and i t  wou ld  

appear  in  the  emai l  tha t  i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page tha t  
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you  then sent  an  emai l  to  Ms Be l inda Trout  on  the  same 

date  a t  10 .54  and the  sub jec t  is  Commi t tee  Secre tary  

Contac t  Deta i l s ,  so  the  same sub jec t .   You say:  

“H i  Be l inda,  thank you.   Cou ld  you send me emai l  

addresses as  we l l?   Regards,  Kev in . ”  

Yes,  you can take  i t  f rom there ,  Mr  Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then th is  emai l  –  and you then 

send th is  emai l  f rom Ms Trout  to  Mr  Agr i zz i  and Mr  Kev in  

Watson.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Say:  

“The hear ings a re  th is  week. ”  

Were  these por t fo l io  commi t tee  hear ings?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  to  be  f rank w i th  

you but  i f  i t  says  PC,  tha t  i s  por t fo l io  commi t tee .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  i s  how I  wou ld  see i t  and,  you 

know,  f rom t ime to  t ime,  because I  was a  t roub le  shooter ,  I  

wou ld  a le r t  them to  what  i s  tak ing  p lace both  in  the  

par l iamentary  sphere  and e lsewhere .   But  there  were  20 

hear ings,  the  con tex t  o f  those hear ings I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you say:  

“We need to  make a  judgment  ca l l  on  th is  mat te r  

u rgent ly . ”  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  I  see tha t ,  Cha i r .  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    You see tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now i f  we go back.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I f  you  go back to  the  emai l  f rom Ms 

Trout ,  she sends you the  emai ls  the  Prov inc ia l  –  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you know tha t  BOSASA had a  

cont rac t  w i th  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices .  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  th is  i s  a  por t fo l io  commi t tee  

regard ing  the  depar tment  where in  BOSASA had a  cont rac t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand  

re levance,  Cha i r .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The re levance is  th is ,  we see you 

say ing  a t  the  top :  

“We must  make a  judgment  ca l l ”  

About  th is  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  the  depar tment  where in  

we have a  cont rac t .   And what  was  tha t?  20 

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r ,  I  am not  sure  exact ly  what  the 

judgment  ca l l  wou ld  re fe r  bu t  I  p resume because the  

hear ings were  tha t  par t i cu la r  week,  I  th ink  the  judgment  

ca l l  wou ld  be  does one a t tend or  does one not  a t tend?  

And i t  cou ld  have been –  i f  I  am not  m is taken,  there  were  
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a l ready some u t te rances in  the  pub l i c  domain  and  w i th in  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  i f  I  am not  m is taken a t  tha t  po in t  in  

t ime about  BOSASA but  I  do  no t  have tha t  immedia te  

reco l lec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  can  te l l  you  th is  and th i s  m ight  

ass is t  you i n  te rms o f  your  memory  because I  have heard  

ev idence re la t ing  to  por t fo l io  commi t tees in  par t i cu la r   the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces .   

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And BOSASA.   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  in  10 

2009 the re  was a  genera l  e lec t ion  in  the  count ry  so  there  

wou ld  have been then a  new par l iament  a f te r  e lec t ions and  

the  new Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Correc t iona l  Serv i ces .   As  

I  reca l l ,  e i ther  be fore  the  end o f  2009 or  a t  the  la tes t  

towards the  end o f  2010,  accord ing  to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  

V incent  Smi th ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y ,  bu t  a lso  ev idence o f  

one or  o ther  MPs who gave ev idence here ,  the  S IU repor t  

in to  invest iga t ions a t  BOSASA and Correc t iona l  Serv i ces  

was presented to  the  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  and the  major i t y  i f  no t  a l l  the  members  were  20 

shocked by  the  i r regu la r i t ies  tha t  were  dea l t  w i th  in  that  

repor t .    

 So  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Correc t iona l  Serv ices  

was aware  o f  tha t  repor t  e i ther  f rom towards the  end o f  

2009 o r  some s tage in  2010.   So i t  may or  may not  be  tha t  
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th is  may have been in  connect ion  w i th  tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r ,  I  am not  –  Cha i r ,  I  can  say w i th  

abso lu te  honesty  tha t  the  judgment  ca l l  to  my mind o f  

th ink ing  wou ld  be  does one a t tend i t ,  i f  i t  i s  an  open ing  

hear ing ,  o r  does  one not  a t tend  i t?   And I  wou ld  have 

encouraged engagement  and a t tendance ra the r  than  

avo id ing  those.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    No mat te r  how hard  i t  may be.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Notshe?  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now –  and  but  you say you cannot  

reca l l?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Ja ,  we l l  th is  i s  what ,  2011,  tha t  i s  a  

good ten  years  ago.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now can you tu rn  to  page 252? 

MR WAKEFORD:    252?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.    

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now le t  us  s ta r t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  

page.   There  is  an  emai l  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  what  page? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Page 252.  

CHAIRPERSON :    252?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    252,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    Look a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  page,  an  

emai l  f rom Gav in  Bradshaw.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And to  you and he says:  

“Dear  Pro f  Wakeford ,  he rewi th  p lease f ind  as  

a t tachment  the  pos i t ion  paper  as  requested.   P lease  

fee l  f ree  to  make  cr i t i ca l  comment .   I  w i l l  be  happy 

to  make any ad jus tments  tha t  t ime w i l l  a l low.   K ind  

regards,  Dr  Gav in  Bradshaw. ”  

Who is  th is?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Dr  Gav in  Bradshaw a t  tha t  t ime worked  

fo r  the  Ins t i tu te  fo r  Conf l i c t  Reso lu t ion  a t  the  Un ivers i t y  o f  

Por t  E l i zabeth ,  today known as Ne lson Mande la  Un ivers i t y.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    What  was he ta lk ing  about?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    What  was he ta lk ing  about  in  th is?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Th i s  was a  pos i t ion  paper  on  pub l i c  

p r iva te  secto r  par tnersh ips .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then I  see tha t  a t  the  top  o f  tha t  

page on 252.   You sent  the  paper  to  Mr  Agr izz i ,  back to  Mr  20 

Bradshaw,  Gav in  Watson.   Do you see tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Say:  

“Dear  Ange lo ,  p lease check the  a t tached pos i t ion  

paper  fo r  the  b id  p rocess and comment  accord ing ly.   
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I  am sat is f ied  w i th  the  genera l  approach and we  

want  to  emphas ise  -  you want  more  emphas is  in  

cer ta in  a reas.   K ind  regards,  Kev in  Wakefo rd . ”  

You wanted Agr i zz i  to  comment  on  th is .  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  wanted everyone to  comment  tha t  I  

sent  i t  to ,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    For  what  pu rpose?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Wel l ,  a t  the  end  o f  the  day,  when  you  -  

you know,  tha t  was pr io r  to  submi t t ing  one ’s  b ids  fo r  a  

p r iva te  pr ison,  wh ich  never  happened,  o f  cou rse .   And one 10 

o f  the  key t reasury  ins t ruments  tha t  a re  used a re  pub l i c  

p r iva te  sector  par tnersh ips .   So tha t  was the  approach tha t  

the  team needed  to  unders tand,  tha t  i f  you  are  go ing  to  

inse r t  tha t  in  you r  b id ,  you need to  unders tand you  need a  

bas ic  –  you need a  common po in t  o f  depar tu re .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  th is  was fo r  –  so  tha t  you 

unders tand how the  b idd ing  was go ing  to  be?  Th is  was 

go ing  to  regu la te ,  the  BBBEE. 

MR WAKEFORD:    Th is  i s  to  unders tand what  the  team 

needs to  do  to  have a  competent  and e f f i c ien t  b id  i n  te rms 20 

o f  BBBEE and the  approach to  BBBEE.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Th is  –  there  a re  d i f fe ren t  v iews w i th in  

the  s ta te  on  wha t  one shou ld  use .   Some wou ld  advocate  

and abso lu te  pr iva te  en t i t y,  o thers  wou ld  advocate  a  pub l i c  
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p r i va te  secto r  par tnersh ip .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now le t  us  move o f f  top ic  and  

s tar t  –  and go to  page 231.  

MR WAKEFORD:    231?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   A re  you there?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom you –  okay,  i f  

you  s ta r t  a t  the  bo t tom.   You know,  I  a lways s t rugg le  w i th  

these emai ls ,  I  want  to  read a t  the  top  whereas they s ta r t  

a t  the  bo t tom.  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now the  emai l  on  the  8  October  2009  

f rom Agr i zz i  to  you.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  says :  

“Very  conf ident ia l ,  p lease do not  d iscuss. ”  

And then the  fo l low ing day on  the  9  October  2009 you then 

say:  

“Dear  Ange lo ,  why i s  th is  conf ident ia l?   Th is  i s  a  

genu ine  t ransparent  bus iness proposa l .   Rather  20 

d iscuss your  response verba l l y,  I  ha te  emai ls .   May  

I  suggest  tha t  the  cost ings are  ra ther  h igh ,  I  w i l l  go  

fo r  a  f i xed  re ta ine r  inc lus ive  o f  a l l  cos t s  a t  

R100 000 pe r  month ,  renewable  on  a  s ix  month ly  

bas is .   Regards. ”  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 202 of 318 
 

You.   You remember  th is  emai l?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  remember  i t .   I  commented on i t  in  my 

–  I  th ink  my second a f f idav i t  w i th  annexures.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And th i s  emai l ,  does i t  no t  conf i rm 

Agr izz i ’s  ev idence tha t  you were  pa id  a  re ta ine r  o f  

100 000?  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  I  was repa id?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You were  pa id .  

MR WAKEFORD:    No.   No,  th is  has go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

me.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    What  has i t  go t  to  w i th?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Th is  emai l  i s  –  what  you do not  see and  

what  he  fa i led  to  a t tach ,  Cha i r,  i s  an  a t tachment  on  the  

f lee t  management  cont rac t  and he d id  no t  want  me to 

speak to  Anee l  about  i t .   So  what  he  d id  was he sent  i t  to  

me.   Anee l  had sent  i t  to  h im d i rec t l y.   I  had no knowledge  

o f  i t  bu t  i t  i s  a l l  in  my –  I  th ink  i t  is  my second a f f idav i t  and  

I  ac tua l l y  went  as  fa r,  Cha i r,  as  to  ge t  the  ac tua l  p roposa l  

wh ich  he  fa i led  to  send and I  a t tached.   So Anee l  had –  

Anee l  Radhakr ishna had emai led  h im.   He then ema i led  me 20 

to  say:  

“Very  conf ident ia l ,  p lease do not  d iscuss. ”  

And then I  responded:  

“Why is  th is  very  conf ident ia l? ”  

And I  had suggested because Anee l  Radhakr ishna  



06 MAY 2021 – DAY 390 
 

Page 203 of 318 
 

p roposa l ,  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y,  was R18 000 a  day.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yoh!  

MR WAKEFORD:    And I  had sa id  I  cou ld  no t  suppor t  tha t ,  

i f  you  want  my input  I  wou ld  fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  p ro jec t  fo r  

i t s  dura t ion ,  I  wou ld  o f fe r  the  company R100 000 a  month .   

And tha t  i s  the  sum to ta l  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r,  and I  am qu i te  

happy to  gu ide  you to  the  ac tua l  document  in  one  o f  my 

fo rmer  a f f idav i t s .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Where  wou ld  we f ind  tha t  because I  

looked in  your  a f f idav i t ,  whose a f f idav i t  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  h is  counse l  m ight  be  ab le  to  

ass is t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    So  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  my team i f  they  

cou ld  ass i s t  w i th  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    313.  

MR WAKEFORD:    In  th is  b ig  pack.   In  my annexures?  

ADV WILLIS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  in  the  annexures tha t  a re  

be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  p laced  before  the  Commiss ion  

today,  Mr  Wakefo rd .   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am sor ry,  I  m issed tha t ,  what  i s  20 

the…? 

CHAIRPERSON :    313.  

ADV WILLIS:    313 o f  the  EA,  ev idence a f f idav i t ,  313.   I  do 

no t  know what  the  04  numbers  are ,  sor ry.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    313.  
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MR WAKEFORD:    So ,  Cha i r,  i f  you  go to  my pack.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  i s  1254.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Ja .   Sor ry,  154?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:     1254.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  I  am sor ry.   Okay.   Th i s  i s  

BOSASA bund le  4(a ) .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  bund le  w i th  the  

a f f idav i t s  –  I  am sor ry,  w i th  the  annexures,  these  are  the  

annexures to  Mr  Wakeford ’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  the  o ther  f i l e  tha t  he  ta lked 10 

about .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  f ina l  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on,  Mr  Wakeford ,  

o therw ise  we w i l l  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    …one anothe r.   Yes.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  Mr  No tshe,  so  th is  i s  the  o ther  

f i le .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The o ther  f i l e ,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  has go t  the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The annexures .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Annexures to  Mr  Wakefo rd ’s  a f f idav i t .   

That  they have been us ing  today.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   And what  we were  look ing  

fo r  was Mr  –  what  Mr  Wakeford  was look ing  fo r  was h is  

a f f idav i t  bu t  in  h is  a f f idav i t  he  was go ing  to  ge t  the 

proposa l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   You were  look ing  fo r  the  p roposa l .  

MR WAKEFORD:    So ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  proposa l  tha t  was 

a t tached to  th is  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on one second?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  a t  page 1253 o f  BOSASA bund le  4  we 

f ind  a  document  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  dra f t  p roposa l  sent  f rom 10 

Akh i le  to  Agr i zz i  and i t  i s  w r i t ten  Akh i le ,  i t  i s  da ted  8  

October  2009,  i t  i s  in  the  fo rm o f  a  le t te r,  i s  tha t  what  you 

are  ta lk ing  about ,  Mr  Wakeford?  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  i s  the  proposa l ,  d ra f t  p roposa l .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Th is  i s  the  proposa l ,  Akh i l e ,  8  October  

2009.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR WAKEFORD:    And th is  i s  the  emai l  sent  to  me the  

fo l low ing day w i th  tha t  a t tached on the  9  October  2009.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja .   I  see i t  says :  

“P roposa l  fo r  adv isory  se rv i ces  F lee t  Management  

So lu t ions. ”  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Notshe?  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    And ac tua l l y  in  the  emai l  o f  the  8 

October,  the  one  sent  to  you by  Mr  Agr izz i ,  the  top ic  i s  

d ra f t  p roposa l .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The head ing  is  d ra f t  p roposa l ,  so  i t  

l i nks  w i th  …[ in tervenes]  

MR WAKEFORD:    Wi th  th is .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Wi th  th is  wh ich  is  a  d ra f t  p roposa l .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Hundred percen t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  tha t  

d ra f t  p roposa l  appear ing  a t  page 1253 o f  BOSASA bund le  

or  was addressed to  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ions Off i cer  fo r  

[ ind is t inc t ]  f lee t  management  serv ices ,  fo r  the  a t ten t ion  Mr  

Ange lo  Agr i zz i  and i t  came f rom Anee l  Radhakr ishna ,  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i ce r,  I  th ink  o f  Akh i le .   Yes.   Okay,  cont inue.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now where  I  was,  I  was s ta r t ing  in  a 

d iscuss ion  –  the  reason I  re fe r red  you to ,  was s ta r t ing  a  

d iscuss ion  about  the  re ta ine r.   He  is  say ing  the  re ta ine r  –  

your  ev idence is  tha t  the  re ta iner  was not  100 000,  i t  was 20 

50 000.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then on page 11,  1159.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  wh ich  bund le  now?  The one tha t  has 
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go t  annexures?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The bund le  –  the  add i t iona l  bund le ,  

the  a f f idav i t ,  herewi th  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  bund le  4(a) .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    4 (a)  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    R igh t ,  what  page? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    1159,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  m ine  w i l l  no t  have –  oh  no,  11 ,  no t  

12 ,  1159.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  cont inue.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And there  you  w i l l  show a  schedu le  o f  

invo i ces and payments  rece ived f rom BOSASA,  rece ived by  

you,  am I  r igh t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And I  have not iced –  and p lease he lp  

me,  I  have not iced tha t  there  are  number  o f  payments  tha t  

a re  fo r  R114 000.  

MR WAKEFORD:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  bu t  i f  you  go and 20 

have a  c loser  look  a t  the  schedu le  you w i l l  no t i ce  tha t  

there  a re  cer ta in  months  tha t  a re  no t  pa id .   Le t  me g ive  

you an example .   The 25 February  2010 you w i l l  see  a  l ine  

there ,  new payment  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  Mr  Wakeford .   Mr  
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Notshe,  you sa id  1159?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    1159,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  have a  tab le  there ,  I  have got  

Mr  Venter ’s  a f f idav i t .  

ADV WILLIS:    Cha i rman,  I  a lso  do  not  have tha t  1159.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  no ,  I  am so r ry,  I  am 1059 ins tead o f  

1159.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  have got  i t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  now I  have got  i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  th is  i s  a  schedu le  

wh ich  goes over  t o  1160 and to  1161 and 1162.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Bu t  Mr  Wakefo rd  i s  exp la in ing .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  the  way  i t  has  been const ruc ted  

by  my fo rens i c  accountant  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  do  you want  h im to  exp la in?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  am want ing  to  exp la in  why there  were  

cer ta in  payments  fo r  114 000,  tha t  i s  a  100 000 p lus  VAT.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  you d id  tha t  in  the  morn ing ,  d id  

you not?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  d id  exp la in  i t  comprehens ive ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes,  he  exp la ined tha t  in  the  

morn ing .  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    And in  to ta l… 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    In  to ta l  how much were  you pa id  by  

BOSASA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  to ta l  over  wha t  per iod?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  gave an exp lanat ion  th is  morn ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    March  2009 to  …[ in tervenes]  

MR WAKEFORD:    No,  i t  was ac tua l l y  June 2006,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t ,  Mr  Notshe,  i s  there  an  issue  

about  the  to ta l  over  a  ce r ta in  per iod?  Was the  issue not  10 

on ly  about  what  he  was pa id  pe r  month?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  jus t  want  to  check how much the  to ta l  

amount  tha t  BOSASA expended on  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  what  a re  we go ing  to  do  w i th  

tha t ,  i f  i t  i s  no t  an  issue?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  in  d ispute .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Bu t  the  issue –  the  on ly  i ssue I  wou ld  20 

argue a t  the  end  tha t  in  the  re ta iner  he  go t  x  amount  and 

then you l ink  i t  w i th  work ing  w i th  the  depar tment  and –  my  

argument  in  the  end …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  tha t  can be  added up in  the  tab le  is  

i t  no t?  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    That  i s  a l l  I  have fo r  the  w i tness .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  a l l  the  quest ions you have fo r  

h im?   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.   What  i s  your  

pos i t ion  on  whether  you want  to  re -examine?  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  the re  are  a  coup le  o f  th ings  

tha t  I  th ink  I  wou ld  be  remiss  in  my duty  i f  I  d id  no t  a t tend 10 

to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  I  am sat is f ied  w i th  the 

ev idence tha t  Mr  Wakeford  has g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:    Bu t  you wou ld  have not iced tha t  the  

ev idence d id  no t  –  i t  was not  examined in  much re la t ion  to  

anyth ing  he  tes t i f ied  about  th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Bu t  in  re la t ion  to  mat te rs  tha t  we wou ld  say 20 

fa l l  ou ts ide  the  scope o f  the  a l legat ions made aga ins t  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:    In  those c i r cumstances,  I  am o f  the  v iew 

tha t  I  need to  be  re -examine.   I  expect  to  be  o f f  now,  I  w i l l  

no t  be  ask ing  quest ions o f  Mr  Agr i zz i  –  so r ry,  Mr  Wakefo rd .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Which  wou ld  requ i re  long answers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Bu t  I  have a  number  o f  po in ts  I  need to  

p i t ch  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  w i l l  reca l l  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  

regu la t ions the  re -examinat ion  is  fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  o f  

course .  

ADV WILLIS:    Indeed,  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  jus t  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  ja .  10 

ADV WILLIS:    That  i s  a l l  i t  i s ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we are  a t  quar te r  past  now.   That  w i l l  

no t  g ive  you th i r t y  m inutes  to  ha l f  past .  

ADV WILLIS:    I  can  a t tempt  i t  and I  th ink  we shou ld  and in  

the  in te res ts  o f  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  o f  course ,  I  am not  say ing  tha t  to  

say I  w i l l  no t  g ive  you the  chance  to ,  a l l  I  am look ing  a t  i s  

whethe r  i t  shou ld  be  now or  a t  ano ther  t ime.  

ADV WILLIS:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  a t tempt  to  do  i t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th in  15  minutes .  20 

ADV WILLIS:    In  15  m inutes ,  Mr… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .  

ADV WILLIS:    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Then jus t  

san i t i se  the  pod ium and then you can go there .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  i f  I  may  indu lge  you and  request  

some humble  c i t i zen  to  g ive  me some water  p lease? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  p lease ,  i s  there  some water?   

P lease g ive  h im  some wate r.   Wel l ,  Mr  Wakeford ,  Mr  

Notshe cannot  say  tha t  you d id  no t  make h im dr ink  water  

w i th  your  answers .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  saw h im dr ink ing  wate r  as  we l l .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r,  in  Xhosa we say ga le la  amanz i ,  

ga le la .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Counse l  fo r  Mr  Wakeford ,  you can go to  

the  pod ium.  

ADV WILLIS:    Sor ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  have jus t  los t  my  mask in  

and amongst  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  must  have fa l len  on to  the  f loor,  un less  

i t  i s  underneath  some . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  happened yes,  bu t  the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  away f rom mic ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  somebody i s  ab le  to  swi tch  o f f  h is  m ic  

p lease do so .   Yes.    20 

ADV WILLIS:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r  . . .  and to  t ry  and work  

in  reve rse  I  w i l l  ta lk  a  l i t t le  b i t  qu icker  than has been the  

prac t ice  un t i l  now,  I  w i l l  speed i t  up ,  i f  you  go to  BOSASA 

04767 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we go ing  to  be  a t  Bund le  4?  
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ADV WILLIS:    Yes tha t  i s  Bund le  4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay and the  ra te  i s?  

ADV WILLIS:    767.   Whi le  you  are  look ing  fo r  i t  th is  

re la tes  to  the  las t ,  the  penu l t imate  quest ion  o r  debate  

amongst  yourse l f  and Mr  Notshe and the  Cha i rman re la t ing  

to  Anee l  Radhakr ishna and Phak isa  and the  one so  the  

pages tha t  you ended up a t  were  1253 and 1254 in  the  

proposa l ,  do  you reca l l  tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    And tha t  spoke to  –  par t  o f  tha t  i ssue spoke  10 

the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mr  Anee l  Radhakr i shna and  

Sagren Na idoo is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t .  

ADV WILLIS:    And i f  you look a t  parag raph 21.11,  f i rs t  le t  

me te l l  you  what  th is  a f f idav i t  i s ,  th is  is  the  response by  Mr  

Agr izz i  to  Mr  Anee l  Radhakr ishna  wh ich  was fu rn i shed to  

Mr  Notshe I  th ink  yesterday or  the  n igh t  be fore  yesterday  

and we rece ived  tha t  yes terday morn ing ,  bu t  the  la tes t  

a f f idav i t  by  Mr  Agr izz i ,  and you can jus t  read tha t  in to  the  

record ,  paragraph 21.2  20 

MR WAKEFORD:    

“ I  deny these a l legat ions and w ish  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  

Anee l  Radhakr i shna appo in ted  the  then Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Off i ce r,  Sagren Na idoo  o f  Home Affa i r s  

in to  Ach i l le  as  a  consu l tan t  and he was la te r  co-
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op ted  in to  the  Easte rn  Cape F lee t  Management  

tender  by  bo th  the  La te  Gav in  Watson ab ly  ass is ted  

by  Kev in  Wakefo rd  bu t  th is  cont rac t  d id  no t  come 

in to  p lace  as  Corana Phak isa  d id  no t  per fo rm o r  

ob ta in  f inanc ing  to  execute  the  con t rac t . ”  

ADV WILLIS:    Very  qu ick ly  tha t  conf i rms the  re la t ionsh ip  

be tween Anee l  Radhakr ishna and Sagren Na idoo,  any 

fu r ther  comments?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Cha i r  jus t  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  Sagren  

Na idoo was an ac t ing  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r,  he  was on a  10 

shor t - te rm cont rac t  a t  Home Affa i rs  as  I  unders tand i t ,  he  

was male  and no t  female ,  because I  do  know in  p rev ious  

a f f idav i t s  Mr  Agr i zz i  re fe r red  to  h im as a  female ,  and tha t  I  

do  remember  see ing  Sagren opera t ing  w i th  Anee l  f rom t ime 

to  t ime post  and long a f te r  the  Home Affa i rs  cont rac t  tha t  I  

rea l l y  don ’ t  have  much more ,  bu t  th is  jus t  conf i rms tha t  

Agr izz i  requested Anee l  Radhakr ishna to  par t i c ipa te  in  a 

f lee t  management  cont rac t  and no t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ] .    I  th ink  what  Agr i zz i  was a l lud ing  to  o r  in  fac t  

say ing  emphat ica l l y  tha t  Anee l  Radhakr ishna was  get t ing  20 

compensat ion  fo r  hav ing  an  ex tens ion  o f  a  Home Affa i rs  

cont rac t ,  wh ich  is  abso lu te  rubb ish  Cha i r.   

ADV WILLIS:    I  no ted  tha t  the  da te  o f  tha t  p roposa l  and 

the  Cha i rman spec i f i ca l l y  read in to  the  record  I  th ink  i t  was 

addressed the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Off i cer  wh ich  was Mr  
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Agr izz i ,  was dated the  8 t h  o f  October  2009.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cor rec t .  

ADV WILLIS:    I  wou ld  l i ke  you  to  comment  on  tha t  in  

re la t ion  to  the  payments  to  D is t inc t i ve  One Cho ice .    

MR WAKEFORD:    D is t inc t i ve  One Cho ice  as  I  remember  

was 2012 accord ing  to  Anee l  Radhakr i shna ’s  a f f idav i t .  

ADV WILLIS:    Long t ime the reaf te r.  

MR WAKEFORD:    And I  th ink  the  pre l im repor t  re fe rs  to  

tha t  as  we l l .  

ADV WILLIS:   You were  a t  a  po in t  no t  too  –  i t  wasn ’ t  too  10 

long before  th is  debate ,  Mr  Notshe  sa id  to  you fo l low ing on 

some o the r  d iscuss ion  and he –  I  don ’ t  reca l l  i f  he  sa id  I  

pu t  i t  to  you but  he  was pursu ing  a  po in t ,  he  sa id  you were  

ta lk ing  to  Mr  Agr i zz i .    You then sa id ,  you then spoke to  the 

issue a t  hand,  yes  when reach ing  out  to  the  p innac le  

reach ing  up to  the  p innac le ,  you descr ibed i t  as  the  capta in  

prev ious l y  too ,  have you ever  den ied  tha t  there  are  lo ts  o f  

emai ls  be tween you and Mr  Agr izz i?   

MR WAKEFORD:    No I  have not ,  I  th ink  fo r  tha t  per iod  o f  

t ime there  isn ’ t  a  huge vo lume but  as  i t  spans a  per iod  20 

Cha i r  o f  2006 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Come c loser  to  the  m ic .  

MR WAKEFORD:   Sorry  i t  spans a  long pe r iod  o f  t ime,  i t  i s  

n ine  years  and yes o f  course ,  when you are  in  bus iness 

and you are  a  pro fess iona l  you don ’ t  take  th ings  
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persona l ly,  you dea l  w i th  the  man  in  charge,  and tha t  was  

Agr izz i ,  and I  had to  dea l  w i th  h im and in  fac t  Gav in  

Watson was enamoured w i th  Agr izz i ,  Agr izz i  had  

ingra t ia ted  h imse l f  to  such an ex ten t  tha t  Gav in  was a  

ceremonia l  CEO,  a t  most ,  he  ce r ta in ly  wasn ’ t  the  man 

mak ing  the  key dec i s ions in  the  o rgan isa t ion ,  bu t  I  th ink  I  

sa id  tha t  th is  morn ing  Cha i r.  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Wakefo rd  you  w i l l  reca l l  the  d iscuss ion  

around,  and i t  took  some t ime,  i t  t raversed a  number  o f  

d i f fe ren t  aspects  o f  the  ev idence re la t ing  to  Mr  Papadak is  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  th ink  I  must  jus t  ment ion  

th is  in  response to  –  in  re la t ion  to  what  you say,  tha t  i s  no t  

the  impress ion  I  go t  o f  Mr  Gav in  Watson f rom Mr  Agr izz i ’s  

ev idence,  I  go t  the  impress ion  tha t  Mr  Gav in  Watson was 

qu i te  ac t i ve l y  invo l ved in  d i rec t i ng  the  bus iness,  bu t  le f t  

i ssues o f  paperwork  and o ther  th ings to  Mr  Agr izz i  and  

o ther  peop le ,  bu t  I  go t  the  impress ion  tha t  he  had a  s t rong  

persona l i t y  and tha t  he  was in  charge o f  BOSASA but  in  

te rms o f  opera t i ons may have le f t  a  lo t  o f  tha t  to  o the r  20 

peop le .    I  d idn ’ t  ge t  the  impress ion  tha t  h is  pos i t ion  was  

jus t  ceremonia l .    I  th ink  I  must  jus t  ment ion  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD:   Cha i r  I  take  tha t ,  I  accept  what  you are  

say ing ,  Gav in  was an insp i ra t iona l  leader,  he  had a  great  
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v is ion ,  bu t  I  suppose i f  one had to  compare  when Pres ident  

Mande la  was runn ing  the  count ry,  h is  deputy  was Deputy  

Pres ident  Thabo Mbek i  a t  the  t ime,  and we a l l  know,  any  

s tudent  o f  po l i t ics  wou ld  te l l  you  tha t  Mad iba  was a  

char ismat ic ,  insp i ra t iona l  leader  who p romoted  

reconc i l ia t ion ,  who insp i red  peop le ,  bu t  the  man runn ing  

the  show a t  the  t ime was Deputy  Pres ident  Thabo  Mbek i .   

He was mak ing  sure  tha t  the  whee ls  o f  government  were  

we l l  o i led  and were  –  government  was mov ing  fa i r l y  

qu ick ly,  whereas Mad iba wou ld  appear  a t  d i f fe ren t  10 

funct ions,  he  wou ld  g ive  insp i ra t iona l  speeches but  the  

rea l  hear t  o r  management  o f  the  S ta te  was  Deputy  

Pres ident  Mbek i  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   

MR WAKEFORD:    Jus t  us ing  tha t  as  a  metaphor  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Cha i rman I  am us ing  the  bund le  wh ich  

was g i ven to  us  [aud io  d i s to r ted ] .   Mr  Wakefo rd  I  was jus t  

ask ing  in  re la t ion  to  the  d iscuss ions a round Mr  Papadak is ,  

there  was a  d iscuss ion  about  supp l ies ,  there  was a  20 

d iscuss ion  about  the  cont rac tor  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  jus t  to  remind 

but  you sa id  on  more  than one occas ion ,  you spoke about  

what  you were  to ld  o r  what  you knew or  what  you learn t  

words to  tha t  e f fec t ,  where  d id  you  learn  tha t  f rom? 

MR WAKEFORD:    I  tha t  f rom,  i f  I  am –  Cha i r  I  lea rn t  tha t  
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f rom Papadak is  h imse l f .  

ADV WILLIS:    Okay,  and when?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Years  ago.  

ADV WILLIS:    So  i f  you  go to  BOSASA . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD:    I  do  remember  h im contac t ing  me Cha i r  

and say ing  I  have se t t led ,  I  have  pa id  th is  th ing ,  because 

he was wor r ied  i f  I  reca l l  tha t  he  d idn ’ t  want  to  be  f inge red  

fo r  be ing  naughty  

ADV WILLIS:    04689 is  the  af f idav i t  o f  Mr  Papadak is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry  Cha i r  04?  

ADV WILLIS:    689.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r  I  have got  i t .  

ADV WILLIS:    I  th ink  we can c lear  th is  up ,  i f  you  read  

f rom paragraph 4 .2  and i f  you can read a  b i t  fas ter  than 

ear l ie r  so  tha t  we  can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry  f rom where ,  f rom what  paragraph?  

ADV WILLIS:    Paragraph 4 .2 .  

MR WAKEFORD:    4 .2?  

ADV WILLIS:    Yes,  read the  words o f  Mr  Papadak is  under  20 

oa th  in  h is  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  tha t ’s  page 609.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Okay,  he  says:  

“ I  met  Ronn ie  and Va lence Watson around th is  t ime.   

Accord ing  to  my reco l lec t ion  I  met  Gav in  Watson in  

la te  2014 a f te r  I  had le f t  the  employ  o f  SARS.   I  had 
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never  met  the  4 t h  b ro the r. ”  

ADV WILLIS:    Cou ld  you s top ,  when are  the  a l lega t ions in  

re la t ion  to  cement  be fore  th is  Commiss ion?  

MR WAKEFORD:    The a l legat ions re la t ing  to  cement  were  

in  la te  2008,  ear l y  2009.   

ADV WILLIS:    So  here  he  says he  on ly  met  Watson la te r,  

r igh t ,  4 .3?  

MR WAKEFORD:    4 .3 :  

“A t  no  s tage requested . . . ” . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:     I t  says  I  a t  no  s tage . . . [ in te rvenes]      10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry.  

“ I  a t  no  s tage requested or  was o f fe red  or  rece ived  

any f inanc ia l  inducement  o r  bene f i t  f rom Wakeford  

or  anyone e l se  in  re la t ion  to  BOSASA.   Whi ls t  

bu i ld ing  a t  Echo S ta te  –  a t  Echo S ta te  in  a  

d iscuss ion  w i th  Ronn ie  and Va lence they ind i ca ted  

tha t  they were  engaged w i th  a  major  cement  

manufac ture r  a t  the  t ime,  they ment ioned tha t  i f  I  

ever  encountered  d i f f i cu l t ies  w i th  cement  supp ly  I  

shou ld  le t  me know.    They l i ved  in  Por t  E l i zabeth  20 

and  to ld  me to  communica te  w i th  Wakefo rd  i f  

needed.   Dur ing  the  pe r iod  o f  const ruc t ion  I  was 

fu l l y  employed and as  such the  bu i ld ing  ac t iv i t ies  

were  a t tended to  by  my cont rac to rs ,  inc lud ing  the  

order ing  o f  mater ia ls .   I  cannot  reca l l  the  quant i t ies  
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o f  cement  o rdered,  bu t  towards the  la t te r  par t  o f  

2009 I  was prov ided w i th  an  amount  tha t  needed to  

be  se t t led  wh ich  was se t t led . ”  

ADV WILLIS:    Cont inue.  

MR WAKEFORD:    4 .5 :  

“That  i s  why when I  was imp l ica ted  by  . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  

Foste r  who tes t i f ied  tha t  de l i very  no tes  are  

ava i lab le  I  immedia te l y  requested access to  the  

same.   I  d id  so  as  the  quant i t ies  and va lues  

a t tes ted  were  incomprehens ib le  to  me.   The records 10 

subsequent ly  made ava i lab le  to  me conf i rmed the  

fa l lac iousness o f  the  a l legat ions in  tha t  no  

de l i ver ies  fo r  wet  cement  were  made  by  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  subsequent  to  the  10 t h  o f  Ju ly  2009 

and the  RTC reco rds re f lec t  an  invo ice  and de l i very  

da ted  in  February  2010 wh ich  was cred i ted  as  

goods not  even  be ing  ordered.   Other  than th is  

there  is  an  invo i ce  wh ich  on ly  re fe rs  to  de l i ve ry  to  

the  genera l  Masda le  area. ”   

ADV WILLIS:    You pa id  t r ibu te ,  I  th ink  i t  was in  th i s  regard  20 

to  the  invest iga tors  o f  the  Commiss ion  in  regard  to  

access ing  o f  the  records  f rom RGS I  th ink  i t  i s  and Wern ,  

the  supp l ie rs  to  supp ly  bu i ld ing  mater ia l s  to  BOSASA,  and 

you c red i ted  them access ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion ,  we know tha t  

they accessed the  s ta tements  by  ex-employees e tce tera ,  
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you  reca l l  tha t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.   

ADV WILLIS:    You have regard  to  tha t  ev idence  haven ’ t  

you?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry?  

ADV WILLIS:    You have regard  to  a l l  o f  tha t  ev idence  

haven ’ t  you?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Does any o f  i t  bea r  ou t  e i the r  the  numbers  

or  the  t ime per iod  in  re la t ion  to  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  you 10 

and Mr  Papadak is?  

MR WAKEFORD:   There  is  no  l inkage whatsoever  Cha i r.   

ADV WILLIS:    I f  you  cou ld  the  tu rn  in  th is  a f f idav i t  to  page  

702,  th is  i s  now in  re la t ion ,  I  want  you to  go  th rough 

paragraph 8 .1  o f  page 702,  th is  i s  in  re la t ion  to  what  Mr  

Foste r  had to  say.  

MR WAKEFORD:  Yes.    

ADV WILLIS:    8 .1  and 8 .2  o f  these – o f  th is  page  p lease  

read i t  in to  the  record  as  qu ick l y  as  you can.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Thank you Cha i r.  20 

“Foster  tes t i f ied  tha t  de l i ver ies  o f  wet  and dry  

cement  were  made dur ing  la te  2009 to  2010 fo r  

approx imate l y  one year.   These dates  are  c lea r ly  

incons is ten t  w i th  the  t imef rame in  h is  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t ,  in  h is  ze ro  –  sor ry  4 t h  o f  
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Apr i l  2019 supp lementary  a f f idav i t  Foster  seeks to  

change the  per iods o f  the  a l leged de l i ve r ies  to  

be tween 2009 and 2011 to  the  best  o f  h is  

reco l lec t ion .   The house to  wh ich  the  de l i ve r ies  

were  a l leged ly  made had been bu i l t  by  la te  2009 

wh ich  is  we l l  be fo re  2011.   Th is  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t ion  

must  be  cons ide red aga ins t  Foste r ’s  ev idence tha t  

he  main ta ined a  book o f  amounts  orde red.   I t  i s  

incomprehens ib le  tha t  hav ing  th is  book ava i lab le  to  

h im Foster  cou ld  tes t i f y  tha t  the  de l i very  per iod  was 10 

la te  2009  to  2010,  and then changed h is  ve rs ion  to  

2009 and 2011,  and tha t  th is  i s  t o  the  best  o f  h is  

reco l lec t ion .    His  l ie  becomes apparent  f rom the  

Goog le  Ear th  image  o f  27  December  2009 wh ich  

c lea r ly  shows tha t  by  th is  da te  the  house a l ready 

had a  roo f  on .    On any const ruc t ion  the  a l legat ion  

tha t  wet  cement  was de l i vered a t  leas t  subsequent  

to  27  December  2009 is  a  pure  fabr ica t ion . ”  

ADV WILLIS:    And you reca l l  tha t  the  tes t imony was tha t  

in  the  reg ion  o f  R600 000 wor th  o f  cement  was supp l ied  to  20 

Mr  Papadak is .    On the  records as  you reco l lec t  what  i s  the  

c losest  f igure  tha t  the  invest iga tors  have been ab le  to  f ind 

there  was ev idence o f?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  I  speak  under  co r rec t ion  bu t  i t  

was around R200  000.  
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ADV WILLIS:    You have tes t i f ied  you . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  pa id  fo r  

i t  tha t ’s  what  you  unders tood.    I f  we –  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to 

change to  page 760.   Thank you Cha i r,  jus t  s tay  w i th  me,  

th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i  and there  was a  shor t  

d iscuss ion ,  debate  be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Notshe around  

the  verac i t y  o f  f igures  pu t  fo rward  by  Mr  Agr i zz i  and i f  you  

w i l l  bear  w i th  me to  f ind  i t .   Now –  sor ry  i t  was  a t  th is  

s tage tha t  –  and I  don ’ t  reca l l  the  pages,  bu t  my no tes  jus t  

ind ica ted  tha t  i t  was here  and tha t  Mr  Notshe put  to  you Mr 

Agr izz i ’s  quest ion ing  o f  p ro f i t s  and the  l i ke .  10 

 Your  –  you have  dea l t  w i th  th is  in  fac t  Mr  Notshe  

put  i t  to  you in  tes t ing ,  as  a  method to  tes t  your  ev idence  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  you had g i ven th is  morn ing  and  i f  you 

cou ld  go  there  Mr  Wakefo rd  you might  f ind  i t ,  look  a t  296,  

parag raph 206 and then we w i l l  g ive  everybody the  

re ference I  th ink  i t  i s  page 83 o f  your  a f f idav i t  I  be l ieve ,  

yes  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in  wh ich  bund le  i t  

i s?  

ADV WILLIS:    I t  i s  04 ,  i t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR WILLIS:    Th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  th is  

morn ing  04934.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and the  page?  

MR WILLIS:    That  i s  934,  the  pa ragraph is  a t  295.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    The paragraph is  295.  

ADV WILLIS:    Can you conf i rm  we go to  295.1  in  th is  

f igure  there ,  you go to  295.  [00 .20 .34]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am so r ry,  I  th ink  I  don ’ t  th ink  I  

wou ld  have pa rag raph 295,  o r  i s  tha t  the  page number?  

MR WAKEFORD:   Sorry  Cha i r,  can I  jus t  c la r i f y  tha t .    I s  

th is  an  a f f idav i t  d ra f ted  by  Ange lo  Agr izz i?  

ADV WILLIS:    Th is  i s  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:   My af f idav i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The one tha t  i s  under  d i v ide r  12 .  10 

ADV WILLIS:    Yes under  12 ,  you r  a f f idav i t  936.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 852 o f  

Bund le  4 .  

ADV WILLIS:    852?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and you sa id  i t  i s  paragraph 205,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

ADV WILLIS:    295 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay 295 is  a t  page 23 –  page 934,  

parag raph 295 is  a t  page 94 and you are  we are  us ing  the  

b lack  pag ina t ion .  20 

ADV WILLIS:    934 b lack  pag ina t i on  numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:    These two ca l cu la t ions in  296.1  and  296.2  

are  you ab le  t o  conf i rm tha t  those are  in  fac t  the  

invest iga to rs  to ta ls  tha t  they wr i te  there .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  sor ry,  I  am s t i l l  s t rugg l ing  here .  

ADV WILLIS:    No prob lem.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Where  are  we on my a f f idav i t?  

ADV WILLIS:    Your  a f f idav i t  re la tes  to  934 in  the  bund le .  

MR WAKEFORD:    934?  

ADV WILLIS:    In  the  bund le  yes.    Your  paragraph,  we a re  

now us ing  the  bund le  Cha i r  fo r  everyone ’s  conven ience,  

924,  sor ry  Cha i r  I  know you a re  t i red  now.  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  am hav ing  the  s l igh t ,  the  same sor t  o f  

d i f f i cu l t ies  because we had to  th is  morn ing  swi tch  over  to  10 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and we had our  own yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  f ine .  

ADV WILLIS:    Sor ry  Cha i r  934 I  am on tha t  page,  296,  and 

296.1  and 296.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh tha t  i s  295,  no t  296 on mine.  

ADV WILLIS:    Sor ry,  295.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  paragraph number.  

ADV WILLIS:    295 and 295.2 ,  do  you see those numbers?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes I  see them.  

ADV WILLIS:    You tes t i f ied  to  those ca l cu la t ions,  la te r  on  20 

Notshe took you  to  paragraphs in  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  a f f idav i t  

wh ich  d isputed your  f igures .   These f igures  here  can you 

conf i rm tha t  these come f rom the  invest iga to rs  o f  th is  

Commiss ion?  

MR WAKEFORD:    100% Cha i r.  
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ADV WILLIS:    And you have broken these ca lcu la t ions  

down,  back in to  what  they are  v i s -a-v is  numbers  o f  persons 

tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  ca tered fo r,  gave you  

ra tes  e tce te ra ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    100% Cha i r.  

ADV WILLIS:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  cou rse  you  have gone beyond 20  

minutes  so  I  shou ld  ment ion  tha t .  

ADV WILLIS:    Yes,  then Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  end ,  and I  

won ’ t  waste  t ime now,  there  is  a  t ime l ine  wh ich  was  le f t  out  10 

o f  the  bund le ,  ou t  o f  our  pack o f  documents ,  the re  is  a  

t ime l ine .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Wakeford  are  you aware  o f  th is  t ime l ine  

tha t  was prepared?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I  am aware  o f  the  t ime l ine  tha t  i s  

p repared.  

ADV WILLIS:    Does th is  t ime l ine  speak to  what  i s  in  you r  

a f f idav i t?  

MR WAKEFORD:    S i r  i t  even has the  necessary  re ferences 20 

th roughout .  

ADV WILLIS:    And I  w i l l  i f  I  cou ld  a f te rwards I  w i l l  make 

sure  you get  a  copy Mr  Cha i rman and everyone  e lse ,  I  

won ’ t  de lay  w i th  tha t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   And o f  course  a l so  
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when you put  in  your  wr i t ten  submiss ions i t  can  make use 

o f  those re ferences.  

ADV WILLIS:    Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:    Indeed.    Mr  Cha i rman might  I  jus t  make a  

no te ,  because I  had made i t  in  my notes  here  and I  d id  no t  

have the  t ime to  do  i t  th is  morn ing  in  h is  ev idence,  Mr  

Wakeford  moved  on pre t ty  fas t ,  and there  were  some 

paragraphs there  tha t  i f  I  had the  t ime I  wou ld  take  h im 

back to ,  I  am not  go ing  to  do  tha t ,  bu t  I  know tha t  you w i l l  10 

have regard  and as  you have jus t  sa id  we w i l l  se t  tha t  ou t  

in  our  submiss ions.  

 I  jus t  –  you w i l l  reca l l  th is  morn ing ,  i t  was a t  the  

t ime tha t  Mr  Woods ob jec ted  to  ev idence,  he  spoke o f  

amounts  o f  money be ing  removed  f rom the  count ry,  there  

was a  n ine  m i l l ion  and someth ing  e lse ,  R91mi l l ion  I  th ink  

fo r  Mr  Agr izz i  and o the rs ,  he  even  spoke to  h is  w i fe  tak ing  

ou t  the  count ry,  Mr  Woods ’ ob jec t ion  was to  say tha t  we l l  

tha t  was taken ou t  w i th  Reserve  Bank approva l .    

 What  i s  your  comment ,  what  i s  i t  tha t  you have an 20 

issue w i th  here?  

MR WAKEFORD:    No Cha i r  i t  i s  mere l y  to  demonst ra te  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Wakefo rd  can  I  jus t  in te r rup t  you,  a re  

you in te res ted  in  how i t  was taken out  the  count ry,  do  you  
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d ispute   how i t  was . . . [ in te rvenes]    

MR WAKEFORD:    No I  don ’ t  d ispu te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:    What  i s  i t  tha t  –  what  was the  po in t  you 

wanted to  make?  

MR WAKEFORD:    The po in t  i s  very  s imp le ,  the re  were  

huge vo lumes o f  money be ing  taken out  o f  the  coun t ry,  the  

source  o f  wh ich  you can be su re  was BOSASA.  

ADV WILLIS:    Very  br ie f l y,  I  jus t  want  to  g ive  you an 

oppor tun i ty  I  wan t  you to  keep i t  very  shor t .   What  i s  your  

compla in t  in  respect  o f  Mr  Agr i zz i  and Lord  Ha in?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  Cha i r  you ru led  in  ea r ly  2019,  in  

par t i cu la r  a f te r  there  was a  soc ia l  med ia  re lease w i th  

every th ing  tha t  was go ing  to  be  d i scussed here  in  January  

2019,  and you made an o rder  as  a  Judge tha t  no  one may 

use any o f  th is  mater ia l  in  the  med ia  pr io r  to  i t  be ing  

fo rmal ly  p resented in  the  pub l i c  f o rum l i ke  th is .    And I  

have adhered to  tha t  w i thout  quest ion  Cha i r.    In  face  I  

have made two compla in ts  to  the  press  on  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  I  

have been awarded both  in  my favour,  the  Sunday  Times 

and an NGO pub l ica t ion  ca l led  New Frame,  bu t  more  20 

impor tan t ly  Cha i r  in  th is  case he took an  in te rna l  document  

wh ich  I  have fo rmal ly  compla ined to  the  Commiss ion  about ,  

tha t  re la ted  to  the  pre l im inary  repor t  on  th is  mat te r  and i t  

was sent  to  Lord  Peter  Ha in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:    Be fore  i t  was sent  was there  a  warn ing  f rom 
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the  Commiss ion  to  everybody,  spec i f i ca l l y  f rom the  work  

s t ream dea l ing  w i th  th is  mat te r?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes,  in  fac t  there  was a  le t te r  f rom 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:   Mr  N ickson?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Mr  N ickson,  A lan  N ickson,  one  o f  the  

invest iga to rs  who ind ica ted  tha t  i f  anyone d i s t r ibu tes  the  

pre l im repor t  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  regarded as  a  c r im ina l  ac t ,  

so  Cha i r  fo r tunate ly  Lord  Peter  Ha in  s i t s  on  a  Board  w i th  

me and he qu ick ly  responded and revea led  to  me what  was 10 

tak ing  p lace,  I  then repor ted  i t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  I  

jus t  you needed to  see and know about  tha t  Cha i r  jus t  in  

case someone hasn ’ t  a le r ted  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me jus t  unders tand tha t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say somebody took a  document  tha t  

you had submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion  and gave i t  to  peop le  

cont rary  to  an  order  tha t  I  had made?  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Cha i r  to  cu t  to  the  chase i t  i s  in  the  

a f f idav i t  and in  s imp le  l ines  i t  doesn ’ t  fo rm par t  o f  the  20 

ev idence,  i t  i s  an  in te rna l  repor t  by  the  invest iga tor  

c i rcu la ted  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  oh .  

MR WILLIS:    Mr Agr i zz i  in  de f iance o f  your  o rde r,  in  

de f iance o f  the  warn ing ,  o f  the  ru les  o f  th is  Commiss ion  
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and the  warn ing  by  Mr  N ickson in  wr i t ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  an  

a f f idav i t ,  sent  tha t  to  Lord  Ha in  in  the  Un i ted  K ingdom on 

h is  par l iamenta ry  emai l  address,  tha t  i s  the  compla in t  tha t  

we have made,  I  want  to  ask  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  was not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV WILLIS:    I t  w i l l  p robab ly  come to  your  a t ten t ion  a t  

some s tage aga in  because i t  i s  in  the  Secre tar ia t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    Bu t  Mr  Wakeford  what  i s  compla in t ,  what  do  

you be l ieve  Mr  Agr izz i  was do ing  by  do ing  tha t?  10 

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  he  was,  look  I  s i t  on  the  Board  o f  

DNG which  is  an  energy company,  I  am Cha i rman  o f  tha t  

company,  Lord  Peter  Ha in  rep resents  us ,  he  s i t s  on  the  

Board  to  represent  the  fo re ign  s takeho lde r  base,  because 

DNG i s  a  gas company i t  i s  fa i r l y  la rge  and i t  i s  headed up 

by  the   CEO A ldwor th  Mba la t i ,  who happens to  be  someone 

who g ives me hope concern ing  the  fu tu re  o f  th is  count ry,  

and I  th ink  he  d id  i t  to  f i rs t l y  de fame me,  second ly  to  cu t  

o f f  my income,  because i t  has  been a  fa i r l y  d i f f i cu l t  two 

years  fo r  me,  and th i rd ly  I  th ink  i t  demonst ra tes  h i s  ha t red  20 

fo r  me,  wh ich  I  have a lways advocated and he has  a lways  

advocated he was my b ig  mate  wh ich  he  wasn ’ t .  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Wakeford  you  have re fer red  to  Mr  Peet  

Venter ’s  a f f idav i t .  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yes.    
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ADV WILLIS:    You gave ev idence before  the  Cha i rman,  

there  i s  a l so  Mr  Andre  van Tonder ’s  a f f idav i t .   Who  was Mr  

Andre  van Tonder  aga in ,  what  was h is  pos i t ion?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Andr ies  van Tonder  was the  CFO.  

ADV WILLIS:    And Mr  Peet  Vente r  what  was h is  ro le?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Peet  Venter  was  a  tax  consu l tan t .  

ADV WILLIS:    He was a  tax  consu l tan t  bu t  he  wasn ’ t  

employed w i th in  the  company,  he  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR WAKEFORD:    Wel l  he  was  a  –  ja  an  independent  

cont rac tor  bu t  v i r tua l l y  employed.  10 

ADV WILLIS:    So  they dea l t  w i t h  the  f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs  o f  

the  company?  

MR WAKEFORD:     100%.   

ADV WILLIS:    I  no te  tha t  ne i ther  o f  them tes t i f ied  aga ins t  

you in  re la t io  to  mat te rs  o f  tax  and BOSASA e tce te ra .  

MR WAKEFORD:    100%.  

ADV WILLIS:    What  do  you have to  say about  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  guess tha t  wou ld  be  the  las t  one? 

ADV WILLIS:    One more  to  the  las t .    

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  those two ind i v idua ls  yes i t  i s  20 

cor rec t  they d id  no t  tes t i f y  tha t  I  was invo lved w i th  any 

shenan igans w i th  SARS and Cha i r  qu i te  f rank l y  they had 

cont rac ted  someone [word  cu t ]  ou t  o f  the  count ry  I  spoke 

about  tha t  th is  morn ing ,  the  substance o f  the i r  SARS 

submiss ions,  I  am not  a  tax  pro fess iona l ,  never  have been,  
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never  p ro fessed to  be ,  bu t  they –  in  the i r  a f f idav i t s  they 

make i t  ve ry  c lea r  who d id  what  and those a f f idav i t s  were  

a l l  c ra f ted  s t range ly  enough,  i f  I  am not  m is taken,  most  o f  

them by Agr i zz i  h imse l f  in  November  2017.  

ADV WILLIS:    And i f  –  i f  there  was someone who  was to  

ass is t  BOSASA in  re la t ion  to  SARS,  someth ing ,  some p lan  

o f  ac t ion ,  who a t  BOSASA wou ld  have been invo lved in  tha t  

p lann ing?  

MR WAKEFORD:    I t  wou ld  have  been Peet  Venter,  the  

CFO.  10 

ADV WILLIS:    No,  Andr ies  van Tonder  was the  CFO.  

MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry  Andr ies  van Tonder,  and then they  

used –  I  fo rge t  the  guy ’s  name,  an  ex terna l  tax  

pro fess iona l  and  then they a l so  used Advocate  –  I  fo rge t  

the  name –  So lomon,  So lomon.  

ADV WILLIS:    One –  the  las t  quest ion ,  you spoke o f  the 

f i f th  co lumn . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Def in i te ly  the  las t  one,  tha t  w i l l  be  the 

las t  one?  

ADV WILLIS:    Yes,  you spoke to  the  f i f th  co lumn,  fo r  the 20 

benef i t  o f  the  Cha i rman jus t  pu t  the  names to  who  the  f i f th  

co lumn suggests  you say?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Cha i r  the  f i f th  co lumn was Agr izz i ,  

c lea r ly  the  leader  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV WILLIS:    Jus t  the  names Mr  Wakeford .  
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MR WAKEFORD:    Sor ry  Andr ies  van Tonder,  Leon van  

Tonder,  Peet  Venter  and there  was one o the r  Cha i r,  I  

cannot  remember  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Cha i r  be fo re   I  re lease th is  m icrophone  

we wou ld  apprec ia te ,  I  have no doubt  and I  have no t  had a  

chance to  jus t  ment ion  th is  to  Mr  Notshe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV WILLIS:    And I  am sure  he  w i l l  do  i t ,  bu t  i f  f rom your  

s ide  i f  tha t  cou ld  be ,  a  guard  cou ld  be  put  in  p lace  tha t  th is  10 

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Wakeford ’s  i s  no t  by  way o f  an  er ror  be  

up loaded onto  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV WILLIS:    . . .webs i te  because i t  conta ins  the  417 

inqu i ry  ex t rac ts  and we wou ld  no t  want  th is  mat te r  to  be  

b lown any more  ou t  o f  p ropor t ion  than what  i t  needs to  be  

and we w i l l  make those submiss ions by  twe lve  o ’ c lock  on  

Tuesday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  I  was a l i ve  to  tha t  bu t  thank you fo r  

ra is ing  i t .    Mr  Wakeford ’s  a f f idav i t  and I  am ta lk ing  about  20 

the  one to  wh ich  he  deposed –  oh  –  I  see i t  has  go t  –  i t  

doesn ’ t  have a  da te  bu t  where  the  da te  i s  supposed to  be  

pu t  in  i t  i s  le f t  b lank bu t  i t  says  was s igned and so  on  to  – 

a t  P re tor ia  a t  on  th is  the  dash day o f  February  2019,  I  

thought  th is  i s  qu i te  recent  so  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  i s  th is  
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a f f idav i t .  

ADV WILLIS:    I s  tha t  h is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The one tha t  you were  us ing  th is  

morn ing .  

ADV WILLIS:    The one tha t  we were  us ing  th is  morn ing ,  

bu t  tha t  was Commiss ioned in  my presence yeste rday 

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  tomor row.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  doesn ’ t  have a  da te ,  we l l  i t  does  

have February  2019,  so  anyone read ing  i t  wou ld  th ink  i t  

was deposed to  in  February  2019.  10 

ADV WILLIS:    So  maybe fo r  the  record  Cha i rman i f  I  cou ld  

jus t  go  to  the  end o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  here ,  yes  so  tha t  wasn ’ t  

cor rec ted ,  un for tunate ly  th is  does happen o f ten ,  so  Mr  

Cha i rman fo r  the  record  Mr  Wakeford  ear l ie r  on  Mr  Notshe 

took you th rough th is  a f f idav i t ,  you ident i f ied  your  

s ignature  to  the  a f f idav i t  and  the  las t  page  is  the  

Commiss ioner ’s  s ignature  and h i s  s tamp,  Wi l l iam  Richard  

Cre igh ton ,  when d id  you meet  Mr  Cre igh ton?  

MR WAKEFORD:    Yesterday.  

ADV WILLIS:    Yeste rday and wha t  was yesterday ’s  da te?  20 

MR WAKEFORD:    The 5 t h .  

ADV WILLIS:    Mr  Cha i rman I  can conf i rm tha t ,  th is  

a f f idav i t  was deposed to  on  the  5 t h ,  I  am go ing  to  inscr ibe  

i t  on  my copy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  ac tua l l y  needed the  da te  fo r  
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purposes o f  iden t i f y ing  so  tha t  whoever  m ight  see  i t  they  

must  know i t  i s  the  one tha t  shou ld  no t  be  pub l i shed  or  pu t  

ou t  to  the  pub l i c  fo r  now,  so  I  am go ing  to  say i t  i s  an 

a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  marked Exh ib i t  T33 ,  so  Mr  Notshe w i l l  have  

to  make sure  tha t  i t  i s  so  marked  in  te rms o f  the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  i s  in  the  Commiss ion ,  so  tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  no t  to  be 

pub l i shed or  made ava i lab le  to  the  pub l i c  w i thout  the  

Cha i rperson ’s  wr i t ten  consent  un t i l  I  have made an order  

a l low ing i t  to  be  made up and we contempla te  tha t  tha t  

shou ld  no t  take  too  long.  10 

ADV WILLIS:    Yes by  twe lve  o ’c lock  Tuesday the  

submiss ion  w i l l  be  be fore  you and  thereaf te r  e i ther  i t  w i l l  

go  up  as  is  o r  i t  w i l l  be  redacted appropr ia te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV WILLIS:    Thank you Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  we  –  I  say  

on  beha l f  o f  a t  leas t  the  th ree  counse l  and lega l  teams tha t  

have been he re  be fore  you today thank you fo r  your  

indu lgence and your  pa t ience,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ve ry  much.   Thank  you to  

everybody fo r  your  coopera t ion ,  we w i l l  –  I  w i l l  now ad journ  20 

the  day sess ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  proceed ings,  I  w i l l  take  

a  f i f teen minute  ad journment  and then I  w i l l  come back to  

s ta r t  the  even ing  sess ion  w i th  regard  to  ev idence re la t ing  

to  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government ,  so  thank you to  

everybody fo r  the i r  coopera t ion .  
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ADV WILLIS:    Sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    Jus t  one aspect ,  jus t  fo r  

record  pu rposes,  we w i l l  be  prov id ing  bes ides Tuesday as  

agreed between myse l f  and my learned f r iends,  we w i l l  

a lso  be  do ing  a  respond ing  a f f idav i t  because the re  i s  –  and  

we w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  main  po in ts ,  bu t  a  lo t  o f  un for tunate  

persona l  a t tacks  and venom f rom Mr  Wakeford  tha t  we w i l l  

jus t  shor t l y  dea l  w i th  and tha t  w i l l  a lso  be  in  our  

respond ing  a f f idav i t  jus t  fo r  record  purposes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  f ine .  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    And Mr  Agr izz i  w i l l  be  f i l i ng  

and in  regards to  what  i s  now be ing  coached  on w i th  

respect  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  as  we l l  in  our  respond ing  

a f f idav i t .  

 Thank you fo r  your  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    Sorry  I  was requested to  

remove my mask,  so  I  jus t  hope i t  came out  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  d id  hear  you ja ,  I  d id  hear  you.   20 

Thank you ve ry  much.  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    We were  go ing  to  a r range  

dates  be tween the  respect ive  pa r t ies  to  do  a  response,  we 

don ’ t  to  fu r ther  burden i t  bu t  in  v iew o f  Mr  Wakefo rd ’s  

persona l  a t tacks  and the  venom tha t  he  came out  w i th  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    I t  has  to  be  dea l t  w i th  and we  

w i l l  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  in  the  main  

po in ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You w i l l  respond  ja .     

 We ad journ .  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    Thank  you Cha i r.  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good evening Ms September,  good 

evening everybody.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Good evening Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes are you ready? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes we are Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Chai r  today the wi tness before you is  

that  of  Mr Kopung Frans Ral ikontsane.  He is the Di rector  

General  of  the Off ice of  the Premier of  the Free State.   To 20 

locate his evidence i t  is  important  for  me to p lace the 

fol lowing on record.    

 His evidence is located as ar is ing out  of  the evidence 

of  Mr Mxol is i  Dukwana who test i f ied before this commission 

on the 5t h of  Apri l  2019 and again on the 27t h and 28t h of  
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August  2019.  

 Mr Dukwana’s test imony was based on three 

aff idavi ts.   One of  those aff idavi ts dated the 27t h of  June 

2019 referred to Mr Ral ikontsane and i t  was pursuant  to that  

that  he received a Rule 3.3 Not ice together wi th re levant  

extracts for the aff idavi t  p lus one annexure.    

 In a nutshel l  Mr Dukwana al leged – al leges rather  

that  Mr Ral ikontasane was involved in a project  which he 

termed Internat ional  Scholarship Program and which he 

informed is one the Free State Provincial  Government 10 

projects that  Mr Dukwana deemed to be an act  of  state 

capture at  the behest  of  and I  quote this  

“At  the behest  of  al l  pol i t ical ly  sponsored by 

the then  Premier  of  the Free State Mr El ias 

Sekgobela Magashule.”  

The al legat ions against  th is wi tness are essent ia l ly  

central ised to this  part icular project  termed the Internat ional  

Scholarship Program and the operat ion of  that  program.  

 This wi tness appl ied to give evidence before this  

commission and h is appl icat ion was granted.   I t  is important  20 

to just  place on record that  in his aff idavi t  which founds the 

appl icat ion the wi tness in i t ia l ly  took issue wi th  having 

received only ext racts of  the aff idavi t  but  he appreciated that  

the Rules permit ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is Mr Ral ikontsane legal ly represented? 
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ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes Chai r  he is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja let  us al low h is legal  representat ive to  

place himsel f  or hersel f  on record.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   As Chai r  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You may do that  f rom where you are i f  your  

mic is working.    

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:   I  th ink i t  is working Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Chair  my name is 00:03:09 and I  

indeed am represent ing Mr Ral ikontsane on instruct ions of  10 

00:03:17.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   Thank you.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    As you please.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   In re lat ion to the issue that  was taken i t  

is no longer an issue based on the submissions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What was the issue? What was the issue 

that  was raised? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   The wi tness in his aff idavi t  took issue 

wi th the fact  that  he only received certain extracts of  the 

aff idavi t  and only one annexure.   He wanted the ent i re 20 

aff idavi t .   But  in h is aff idavi t  i tsel f  he concedes that  i t  was in 

fact  wi thin the Rules to permit  h im only receiving part  of  i t  

and in any event  Chai r  the ent i re exhibi t  for Mr Mxol is i  

Dukwana is in fact  on the Chai r  – on the commission’s 

websi te.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  the quest ion is whether he was 

given al l  that  he needed to be given.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes Chair  he was given the relevant  

extracts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he – he has no compla ints at  the 

moment about  not  having being given some port ions of  the 

aff idavi t  that  he might  have thought were necessary as far as 

you know? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   As far as I  know no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Chai r  i f  I  may ask this? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    The point  that  was raised wi th the 

lack of  pul l  I  t rusted of  Mr Dukwana’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Was that  they were extracts of  that  

aff idavi t  that  I  bel ieved – my learned col league deemed 

necessary or relevant  to Mr Ral ikontsane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    But  what then appeared that  we had 20 

was that  we did not  know what was said before any of  those.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Extracts and hence the request .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    For fu l l  aff idavi t  which was never 
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provided.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  at  th is stage do you have any 

concerns that  you might  not  have been given everyth ing you 

were supposed to get  or there is no concern – you accept  

that  . .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    We do not  have concern in as far as 

i f  indeed the l ine of  quest ioning stays wi thin the bounds of  

what has been revealed to the – to the wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay no.   Because the important  th ing 

is s imple whether by vi r tue of  the absence of  whatever 10 

documents you were not  g iven you are ambit  in. . .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Indeed. 

CHAIRPERSON:   In being heard but  probably i f  you were 

hampered you would have said look we cannot respond to 

th is because i t  is  c lear that  there is an annexure which we 

have not  been g iven and then you would ins isted on that  I  

would imagine.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    More so a lso Chai r  i f  one looks at  

the reply that  was provided to Mr Dukwana i t  indeed i t  

e l ic i ted any other  issues that  were not  covered in the main 20 

aff idavi t  and as I  said i f  indeed the quest ioning is not  

conf ined to what is before the wi tness then of  course that  

concern wi l l  be ra ised.   One does not  come here pre-empt ing 

exact ly the quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    That  you are going to be asked.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.  So i f  there are any 

issues we wi l l  hear and take i t  f rom there.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Indeed so Chai r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ms September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Chai r  before you there are two bundles.   

There is one lever arch bundle which is marked on the spine 

as Exhibi t  X8 forming part  of  the FS22 bundle contains the 

wi tness’ statement and together wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   There is Bundle FS22.  10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes Chai r  and that  puts… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the – that  is the only bundle I  have.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And that  bundle in i tsel f  conta ins both 

the statement of  the wi tness together wi th an aff idavi t  which 

was deposed to one year later which is substant ia l ly the 

same to the statement provided together Mr Dukwana’s 

response to that  and some other documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where is Mr Dukwana’s or ig inal  aff idavi t?  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   His or ig inal  aff idavi t  and in part icular  

re levant  extracts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The one where he – he would have – is i t  

the one at  page 145? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   No Chai r  the one at  page 1- bear wi th  
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me the page – the one at  page 145 is Mr Dukwana’s 

response to the wi tness’ appl icat ion papers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  there is one 244.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   The one at… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Start ing at  246 which was done in 2019 

that  must  be the one? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Correct  Chai r.  And that  excerpts of  h is 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  a lso contains some addi t ional  10 

informat ion relat ive to the statements.   What you wi l l  a lso 

f ind before Chai r  is a smal l  bundle.  I t  is bound wi th steel  

b inder of  sorts and i t  is  th is l i t t le bundle that  the legal  team 

would l ike to rely  on in that  i t  contains documents that  was 

brought to the legal  team’s at tent ion dur ing the course of  

last  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  has got  a  memo that  is addressed 

to me.  I t  cannot  have something that  is addressed to me 

and i t  is not  given to the other – to the wi tness’ legal  team.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   The bundle of  documents was in fact  20 

given to the wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the memo to me?  I f  i t  is before me 

then i t  must  be before them as wel l .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I  am not  sure what  memo Chair  is 

referr ing to.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  is wri t ten by you.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I f  that  is  the memo that  Chai r  refers to 

of  yesterday then that  is certain ly not  before the wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is dated 4 – 4 May 2021.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  should not  have anything here that  is 

not  publ ic.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I  am not  qui te sure why that  memo is  

there Chair  but  having said that  fo l lowing the discussions we 

had yesterday we have in fact  prepared a condonat ion 10 

appl icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  … 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Relevant  to th is l i t t le bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have taken that  memo out  because 

obviously i t  was not  meant to be part  of  the appl icat ion.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when you put  something here you have 

to know that  i t  is has got  – they have got  to have that .   You 

do not  put  here something that  is meant for me only.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I  was not  aware of  the – I  was not  aware 20 

that  the memo was st i l l  before you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  whatever is here.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You must  have seen – you must  make sure 

you see what i t  is in f ront  of  me as the evidence leader.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because anything that  is put  here must  be 

because you have said i t  should be put  here because you 

are the evidence leader you know what I  am going to need.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  must  be before me so nobody must  

put  before me something that  you do not  know because you 

are the evidence leader.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Apologies then for that  memo being 

before you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So when I  see something here.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  ought  not  to  be.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  assume you have caused i t  to  be put  

here.   So tel l  me what is the story about the smal l  bundle? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Chai r  the smal l  bundle contains 

documents that  was provided to the legal  team last  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By who? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   By one of  the invest igators in the 

commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Unfortunately  the legal  team or not  the 

legal  team but  the evidence leaders to th is wi tness – to th is  

evidence does not  have the support  of  an a l located 

invest igator.   Notwithstanding that  we received those 

documents the documents were then considered and the 
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re levance of  those documents to the evidence of  th is  wi tness 

was found to be cr i t ical .   In consider ing those documents i t  

was establ ished that  in context  of  the ev idence i t  is possible  

that  some people may be impl icated in the evidence of  th is  

wi tness.    

As a precaut ionary step and in being prudent to the 

leading of  th is evidence the evidence leaders decided to 

send Rule 3.3 Not ices to six people who may be impl icated 

by the evidence.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And where are those Rule 3.3 Not ices? 10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   The Rule 3.3 Not ice – as in a copy of  

the 3.3 Not ices Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I f  you could just  bear wi th me.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Chai r  i f  I  may? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    I f  I  understand my learned 

col league correct ly.   She seems to be saying that  the 

evidence that  might  – is going to led might  be of  impl icated 

matter to some people.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    But  the ev idence of  th is  evidence is 

al ready before the commission in  – of  answering aff idavi t  to 

(speaking over one another).  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  she is  saying i t  is addi t ional  
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evidence that  … 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    I  am coming to that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    The – she also has ment ioned the 

aff idavi t  – these documents were del ivered to the 

commission only last  week and were considered.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    This wi tness has not  had a chance 

– a chance at  al l  to consul t  wi th legal  because they were 

only ( ta lk ing over one another).  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am st i l l  going to  raise wi th her.   I  am 

st i l l  going to ra ise that  wi th her.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:    Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Bundle of  documents was immediately  

sent  to th is wi tness and then i t  was subsequent ly sent  to the 

state at torney’s off ice who is represent ing this wi tness.   That  

was done on Monday.  Rule 3.3’s were prepared and within 

the conf ines of  the l imi ted resources that  we have having 

redact ions being done to certain annexures i t  was then sent  20 

off  on Tuesday by no later than hal f  past  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   This appears to be let ters.   These appear 

to be correspondence and some invoices and so on.   Is that  

r ight? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  is a … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Emai ls.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  is a compi la t ion of  emai ls.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Predominant ly  some let ters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you want to… 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And also a t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you want to use – to quest ion the 

wi tness on them? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In relat ion to what he is going to be giving 10 

evidence about? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the di ff icul ty is that  I  do not  – I  do not  

know what – what  they are about.   Can you te l l  me what they 

are about?  I  am not  – you think they are cr i t ical  I  might  not  

th ink they are even relevant  I  do not  know you see and when 

you come with them so late – and is there a wi tness who 

have test i f ied about them? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   No Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you see.  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And i t  is – i t  is as a consequence of  the 

fact  that  we do not  have an invest igator we had Ms Rang – 

Bei tseng Rangata who had provided an aff idavi t  which just  

not  only set  the context  for the evidence the relevance of  the 

evidence,  the authent ic i ty  of  the ev idence,  the source of  the 
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documents but  certainly gave clar i ty to how important  that  

evidence is to th is  l ine of  evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no I  do not  th ink you should use 

this evidence today.  Get i t  done properly.   I f  the wi tness – i f  

he – i f  I  consider  i t  is important  enough the wi tness might  

come back or the wi tness might  be asked to depose to an 

aff idavi t  to deal  wi th whatever ar ises f rom them.   

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I t  is just  too short  not ice.   I  do not  

know what is involved.  No witness has given evidence about 10 

them f rom what you say.  They – you say you sent  them – you 

sent  th is to the state at torney on what – on Monday 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes to both the wi tness himsel f  and to  

the state at torney.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay no I  th ink i t  wi l l  have to be deal t  

wi th di fferent ly.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Might  I  even be permit ted to place on 

record how that  evidence is in  fact  re levant  to the evidence 

of  today? 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink let  us deal  wi th that  later on 20 

otherwise i t  is new – I  have not  seen i t  – I  do not  know i f  

they have seen i t  – no wi tness has test i f ied about i t .   I t  just  

needs to be deal t  wi th in a proper way – in a di fferent  way.   

For now let  us deal  wi th what we can today.   I t  is  in the 

evening I  have – we have al ready kept  everybody wai t ing 
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because of  the day session.   I t  is twenty past  seven.   I f  we 

are going to take another th i r ty minutes about the appl icat ion 

we wi l l  – we wi l l  not  start .    

So let  i t  be looked at  properly and then I  can be – I  

can be advised – I  can be informed of  exact ly what the story 

is and who – whether there should be another wi tness who 

test i f ies to  i t  or whether the wi tness – this wi tness should be 

asked to depose to an aff idavi t  and deal  wi th the issues.   

You wi l l  have to apply your mind to that .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Wel l  we certainly did Chair  which is why 10 

we placed the bundle before you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You did what? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Apply our mind as to whether or not  we 

would l ike this wi tness to comment to those documents 

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  – i t  is  enough not ice that  is the 

problem.  I  do not  know what is in there and I  do not  want to  

si t  here and start  deal ing wi th that  instead of  deal ing wi th 

the issues that  we cal led this wi tness for.    

You see.   I  said this wi tness should come because he 

made an appl icat ion – he made an appl icat ion to adduce 20 

evidence.   That  appl icat ion I  have granted.   Now you want to 

ask him some quest ions that  is legi t imate but  i t  comes so 

late.   I  have not  looked at  i t  – at  th is .    

So do not  deal  wi th i t  today – this evening;  apply 

your mind as to how as i t  can be deal t  wi th.   I  am saying one 
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approach is to ask him to prepare an aff idavi t  and deal  wi th 

whatever issues ar ise f rom that  correspondence.   Okay.   

There might  be another way but  you can deal  wi th that  later.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   As i t  p leases Chai r.   There is one last  

bundle before you and that  is rela t ing to evidence that  was 

previously presented before this commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do not  have a th i rd bundle.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  is Exhibi t  X7 which is the evidence of  

Ms Cholot ta.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  i t  does not  need to be given to me 10 

now i f  – unless you are going to start  wi th i t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   No we wi l l  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Let  us get  started wi th – wi th his 

evidence.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Unless there is anything e lse?  I f  the 

wi tness could be sworn in please? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja please administer the oath or 

aff i rmat ion.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Mr Ral ikontsane would you prefer the 

oath or the aff i rmat ion? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the Registrar  would have checked.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   I  wi l l  take an oath.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   The Registrar would have checked 

what he wi l l  take.    

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:   Kopung Frans Ral ikontsane.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   No I  do not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath binding on your 

conscience? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you solemnly swear that  the evidence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 10 

God. 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   So help me God. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you Mr Ral ikontsane and thank you 

for avai l ing yoursel f  to assist  the commission.   Okay alr ight .   

You can then start  Ms September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Mr Ral ikontsane – thank you Chai r.   Mr 

Ral ikontsane before you is a bundle which is  marked Exhib i t  

8 and I  have just  reminded mysel f  that  wi th your leave i f  

Exhibi t  H could be admit ted into the record p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  cannot be admit ted unt i l  you have 20 

done the formal i t ies.   Do the formal i t ies f i rst .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Sure Chai r.   Thank you.   Mr 

Ral ikontsane i f  I  could ask you to turn to page 4.    

CHAIRPERSON:   She wi l l  be making use of  the black 

numbers on the top lef t  of  each page Mr Ral ikontsane.   So 
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when she says page 4 i t  is – you wi l l  f ind i t  as 004 – FS22-

004 but  she wi l l  just  say 4.   Okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   I  was made aware Chai r  so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Al r ight .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Thank you very much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SEPTEMBER:   S i r  do you recognise this document? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Yes I  do.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Can I  ask you to turn to page 27 please.   

Is i t  correct  that  that  is your signature? 10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Yes that  is my signature.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And so this document is a statement 

that  you then signed on the 23r d  of  August  2019 is that  

correct? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Can I  ask you to turn to page 63 please.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry th is is not  an aff idavi t  but  a  

statement is that  r ight?  I  thought i t  was an aff idavi t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  is in fact  a s tatement Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is a statement  Mr Ral ikontsane and not  20 

an aff idavi t  is that  r ight?  You d id not  take an oath when you 

signed this aff  – th is document,  is that  r ight? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Ja that  was a statement Chai r  

responding to the Rule 3.3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:   And then later on I  deposed to an 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you did and conf i rm what  is  in  the 

statement? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Yes.   The page 63 that  we have been 

di rected to now i t  is my… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Thank you.   Cont inue Ms 

September.  10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   At  page 63 is i t  correct  that  you do 

recognise th is to be your document  Sir? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Yes I  do Chair.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Can I  ask you turn to page 79 then.   At  

the top of  79 is that  your signature Sir? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   I  conf i rm that  is my signature 

Chairperson.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And so i t  is correct  that  you deposed to 

th is aff idavi t  before a Commissioner of  Oaths on the 7t h of  

August  2020? 20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Chair  – no – apologies.   Sir  subject  to 

any correct ions that  you may address dur ing this hearing do 

you conf i rm that  what is stated in  your statement and the 

aff idavi t  is t rue and correct? 
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MR RALIKONTSANE:   Yes I  conf i rm that .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   With your leave Chai r  may this  bundle 

then be admit ted as Exhibi t  X8? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  the bundle the statement on i ts own 

and the aff idavi t  on i ts  own.   Does the statement have 

annexures? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Yes i t  does Chair  both the statement 

and the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  What exhibi t  number must  the statement 

be? 10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   The statement subject  to you Chai r  

could be marked Exhibi t  X8a.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you see i t  can be just  X8 because the 

aff idavi t  is not  an at tachment to the statement is i t  not .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   No i t  is not  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is on i ts own – is there – is  there an 

Exhibi t  X9 that  is – that  al ready exists? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   No not  as far as I  am aware Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then the statement wi l l  be Exhibi t  X8 and 

then the aff idavi t  wi l l  be Exhib i t  X9 together wi th i ts 20 

annexures.   The statement by Mr Kopung Frans Ral ikontsane 

which starts at  page 4 together wi th i ts annexures wi l l  be 

admit ted as Exhib i t  X8 and the aff idavi t  of  Mr Kopung Frans 

Ral ikontsane that  starts  at  page 63 wi l l  admit ted together 

wi th i ts annexures as Exhibi t  X9.   Okay.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Ral ikontsane is i t  

correct  that  when you provided your statement you provided 

i t  in response to the Rule 3.3 Not ice that  you received out  of  

the evidence of  Mr Mxol is i  Dukwana? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   And is  i t  a lso correct  that  in your 

statement i tsel f  i f  I  may turn you or di rect  you sorry to page 

5 of  th is bundle.   I t  is page 5.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Oh page 5 of  the [?] .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Not  tab 5 Si r.  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Sorry.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Page 5.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Oh page 5 of  the – page 5.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Paragraph 4 on page 5 informs that  th is  

is just  a short  statement before the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you say paragraph 4? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Paragraph 4 on page 5 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  have paragraph 4 on page 5.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:   1.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  1.4.  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   Oh sorry I  scratched over 1 – apologies 

i t  is 1.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   At  page – paragraph 1.4 humble 

apologies.    
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“You were informed that  th is short  statement  

is a summary of  the ful l  version that  I  present  

at  a later  stage.   I  would request  the 

evidence leaders to draw Mr Dukwana’s 

at tent ion to my vers ion detai l ing events in  

th is statement. ”  

And i t  is then pursuant to th is statement that  you f i led the 

aff idavi t  which has now been accepted as Exhibi t  X9.   Is that  

correct? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   That  is correct .  10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I f  we can then work f rom Exhibi t  X9 and 

in doing so I  wi l l  take you to parts of  the statement which 

may not  necessar i ly be incorporated or may di ffer f rom the 

aff idavi t  in i tsel f .    

CHAIRPERSON:   You know Ms September i t  might  work 

faster th is way because as far as I  recal l  the whole issue 

that  concerned Mr Ral ikontsane is the issue of  the 

scholarship the 00:28:32.   Maybe – i t  might  be faster  i f   

1.  We let  h im talk – give evidence about the role and 

funct ion of  the Di rector General  in the Premier ’s off ice 20 

which appears at  page 6 and – and he can ta lk about  

the basic values which are at  page 8 and then he then 

tel ls me what he would l ike to  te l l  me about the 

scholarship scheme – the bursary scheme.  

When he is done then you can put  quest ions to h im and 
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d i rect  him to whatever you might  wish to ask him on.   I  th ink 

i t  might  be quicker that  way.   Is that  f ine wi th you? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I t  certa inly al igns wi th the quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:   I  had planned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So let  us do that  way.   Mr 

Ral ikontsane do you want to te l l  me about the role and 

funct ion of  a DG in the Premier ’s off ice? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:   Thanks Chai r  I  have in my statement  

indicated that  as head of  the Department  of  Off ice of  the  10 

Premier I  am responsible for eff ic ient  management and 

administ rat ion effect ive ut i l isat ion and t raining of  staff ,  

maintenance of  d iscipl ine,  provide – promot ion [word cut ]  

re lat ion,  p roper  use and ca re  o f  s ta te  proper ty  and then in  

add i t ion  to  any power  o r  du ty  en t rus t  tha t  was s igned by  or  

under  the  Pub l ic  Serv i ce  Act  o r  any o the r  law to  the  head 

o f  the  depar tmen t  o f  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier.   I  am a lso  

the  Secre tary  o f  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  by  v i r tue  o f  be ing  

the  DG in  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  and sub jec t  to  Sect ion  

85(2)  and 125(e)  o f  the  Const i tu t ion .  20 

 I  am a lso  respons ib le  fo r  in tegra l  re la t ions  on  

admin is t ra t i ve  leve l  be tween the  re levant  p rov ince and  

o ther  p rov inces,  as  we l l  as ,  na t iona l  depar tments  and 

nat iona l  government  components  and a lso  fo r  in t ra  

government .   I  am in  be tween the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  and  
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the  depar tment  in  the  prov ince and I  am a lso  con t inue to  

coord ina te  ac t i v i t ies  o f  government  inc lud ing  the  

leg is la t ion  tha t  m ight  be  a f fec ted .   So Cha i r,  tha t  i s  

bas ica l l y  i t  in  te rms o f  my respons ib i l i t i es .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  the  va lues and p r inc ip les  o f  

govern ing  admin is t ra t ion ,  do  you want  to  te l l  me anyth ing  

bu t  obv ious l y  I  can see tha t  tha t  comes f rom Sect ion  195  

o f  the  Const i tu t ion  bu t  i s  there  someth ing  tha t  you  want  to  

emphas ise  there?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  I  have  brought  10 

them forward .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Because  o f  the  issues tha t  were  

tab led ,  I  had  to  ind ica te  tha t  in  execut ing  my 

respons ib i l i t i es  a l l  the  t ime,  I  am a l igned(? )  195 o f  the  

Const i tu t ion  to  p romote  e f f i c ien t ,  economic  and e f fec t i ve  

use o f  resources  and a lso  to  p rov ide  se rv i ces  impor tan t ly,  

fa i r l y,  equa l ly  and w i thout  b ias  to  make Pub l ic  

Admin is t ra t ion  accountab le  and a lso  to  fos ter  t ransparency 

be tween –  by  prov id ing  the  pub l i c  w i th  t ime ly,  access ib le  20 

and accura te  in fo rmat ion  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  195(1) (a)  o f  

the  Const i tu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   And I  am a lso  then the  

Account ing  Off i ce r  o f  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premie r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    As  I  had ind ica ted  and d i rec ted  on 

account ing  mat te rs  by  the  Pub l i c  F inance Management  Act .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And then  jus t  te l l  me in  your  own  

words what  these bursary  p rogramme was,  scho larsh ip  

scheme was a l l  about .   That  I  have heard  ev idence about  

f rom Mr  Dukwana and o the r  w i tnesses in  the  Prov inc ia l  

Government  o f  the  Free S ta te  and par t i cu la r l y  in  the  

Premier ’s  o f f i ce  because my unders tand ing  is  tha t  i t  was a  

programme or  a  programme tha t  was dr i ven  by  the  10 

Premier ’s  Off i ce .   That  i s  the  unders tand ing .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Cha i r,  i f  I  may?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    I  do  have a  few quest ions o f  c la r i t y  in  

re la t ion  to  the  ro le  and the  respons ib i l i t i es  o f  th is  w i tness 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You have come . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SEPTEMBER :    . . . in  o rder  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  come back to  h im when she – he  

is  f in ished,  then I  w i l l  g ive  you a  lo t  o f  t ime.   Then you can 20 

ask  h im f rom the  ro le  o f  the  DG and the  va lues and 

every th ing .   Then  i t  w i l l  be  qu icke r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    As  i t  p leases .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So you w i l l  be  ab le  –  when he is  

done,  to  ask  h im on any aspect .  
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ADV SEPTEMBER :    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Cha i r,  I  have ind ica ted  where  the  

bursa ry  programme comes  f rom.   I t  i s  ove r  20-years  now.   

I t  i s  f rom the  near ly  the  year  2000 or  i t  cou ld  be  ear l ie r  

when the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government  s ta r ted  an  

aggress ive  programme o f  bu rsar ies  to  s tudents .   And i t  

went  on  un t i l  in  2014 when we in t roduced what  we  ca l l  an 

In te rnat iona l  Bursary  Programme.    

 So the  or ig ina l  p rog ramme f rom 2000 up to  10 

near ly  2014 was based on loca l  un i vers i t ies  and ou r  

p r imary  focus was on our  two un ivers i t ies  in  the  prov ince,  

the  Free S ta te  s tudents  admi t ted  a t  the  Free S ta te  

Un ivers i t y  and s tudents  tha t  we get  a t  the  Cent ra l  

Un ivers i t y  o f  Techno logy.   That  was bas i ca l l y  our  f ocus bu t  

i t  p rogressed un t i l  we were  ab le  to  a lso  f ind  s tudents  

ou ts ide  the  prov ince tha t  were  a lso  in  o ther  un ivers i t ies  in  

the  count ry.   That  was the  prov inc ia l  one.    

 So the  in te rnat iona l  one s tar ted  in  2014 when 

the  Execut ive  Counc i l  o f  the  Free  S ta te  reso lved to  take  20 

the  s tudents  abroad.   Th i s  was a f te r  an  ex tens ive  v is i t  o f  

the  Execut ive  Counc i l  s ince  2011,  be tween 2010 /2011 to  

var ious count r i es .   And every  t ime we wou ld  v is i t  those  

count r ies  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  wou ld  a l so  ensure  tha t  

amongst  a re  members  o f  the  Bursary  Techn ica l  Commi t tee  
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who are  par t  o f  the  team o f  the  Premier  v is i t ing  a  pa r t i cu la r  

count ry  o r  MEC’s  des ignated so  tha t  we cou ld . . .  

 We wi l l  a lways request  an  embassy to  ensure  

tha t  we have un ivers i t ies  in  tha t  count ry,  a  v i s i t  tha t  they 

are  ab le  to  engage w i th  to  be  par t  o f  our  count ry  in  v is i t ing  

those un ivers i t ies  and s tar t ing  to  negot ia te .   So the 

negot ia t ions  about  in te rna t iona l  bursar ies  s ta r ted  in  

2012/2013 and the  ac tua l  o f  the  programme was in  2014.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   Is  tha t  a l l  you  wanted to  

say about  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  want  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  bursary  scheme? 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  want  to  ment ion  fu r ther  Cha i r  tha t  

when we came in to  th is  p rogramme,  we s tar ted  broaden ing  

our  th ink ing  no t  on ly  t o  be  conf ined to  s tudents  tha t  wou ld  

be  la te r  on  work ing  fo r  government .   Our  in ten t ion  was now 

to  broaden the  Free S ta te ,  a  ne t  o f  peop le  tha t  cou ld  be  

ab le  to  o f fe r  p roper  sk i l l s  and there fore  we were  then ab le  

to  unders tand our  bu rsary  to  an  ex ten t  where  we wou ld  

look  a t  peop le  tha t  can p rov ide  scares  sk i l l s  no t  on ly  to  20 

government  bu t  in  the  prov ince,  b road ly  speak ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    And how long have you been D i rec tor  

Genera l  in  the  Premier ’s  Off i ce?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    S ince 2013,  September  

Cha i rperson.   2013.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Ms  September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  

you have jus t  conf i rmed tha t  you  have been the re  s ince  

1  September  2013 in  the  Off i ce  o f  –  in  the  pos i t ion  o f  DG 

in  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premie r.   I t  i s  cor rec t  thought  tha t  

be fore  tha t  f rom the  11 t h  o f  March 2013 unt i l  the  

31 s t  o f  August ,  you in  fac t  ac ted  in  tha t  pos i t ion  be fore  you 

were  permanent ly  appo in ted .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now how long Mr  Ra l i kontsane were  you  10 

–  have you been work ing  fo r  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  

Government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  have worked fo r  the  Free S ta te  

Prov inc ia l  Government  s ince  –  a t  a  h igher  leve l  o r  any  

o ther  leve l?  

CHAIRPERSON :    When you s ta r ted .  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Ja .   Maybe I  wi l l  s ta r t  when I  jo ined 

the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government .   I  re - jo ined i t  aga in  

in  2005 as  Head o f  the  Depar tment  fo r  Corpora te  

Governance and Prov inc ia l  A f fa i rs  and Human Set t lement  20 

bu t  then i t  was ca l led  the  Depar tment  o f  Hous ing ,  Loca l  

Government  and Hous ing .    

ADV SEPTEMBER :    So  you have been par t  o f  the  

prov inc ia l  government  fo r  severa l  years?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER :    There  is  someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  

you to  exp la in  to  me or  ra ther  to  the  Cha i r.   You have g iven 

an overv iew o f  what  your  ro le  and  respons ib i l i t i es  a re .   In  

parag raph 7 .3  o f  your  a f f idav i t  you r  c lear l y  asse r t  and I  w i l l  

read i t  to  you.   You say:  

“ I  am represent ing  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Execut ive  

Head o f  the  Prov ince,  i .e .  the  Premier  be fo re  

th is  Commiss ion . . . ”  

 Now in  o rder  fo r  us  to  fu l l y  apprec ia te  the  

ev idence you g i ve  to  the  Commiss ion ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  10 

fo r  you to  exp la in  to  us  the  prac t ica l  ro le  and the  repor t ing  

s t ruc tures  o f  the  DG in  the  arch i t ec tu re  o f  the  Free S ta te  

Prov inc ia l  s t ruc tu re .   To  ass is t  th i s  d i scuss ion ,  can I  ask  

tha t  you look a t  the  Reference Bund le  be fore  you?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    The one I  have now? 

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Yes,  i t  wou ld  be  marked FS-23.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  answer  

tha t  quest ion  w i thout  look ing  a t  anyth ing .   He knows who  

he repor ts  to .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    No prob lem Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who do you repor t  to?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  repor t  to  the  Premier  o f  the  Free  

S ta te  Prov ince.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    I f  I  may then re fer  to  th is  document?    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SEPTEMBER :    I t  i s  a  document  tha t  we took the 

l iber ty  o f  p r in t ing  f rom the  o f f i c ia l  webs i te  o f  the  Premier  o f  

the  Off i ce  o f  the  Free S ta te .   You are  we lcome to  fo l low i f  

you so  w ish .   I t  i s  a t  page 501 o f  the  Refe rence Bund le .  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SEPTEMBER :    What  i t  h igh l igh ts  in  here  i s  par t s  o f  

what  you have a l ready ment ioned .   That  i s  –  tha t  there  10 

essent ia l l y  four  main  ro les ,  i f  I  am unders tand ing  th is  

cor rec t l y.   The one is :  

1 .  You are  the  Account ing  Off i ce r  o f  the 

Depar tment  o f  the  Premie r.    

2 .  You are  the  Head o f  the  Prov inc ia l  

Admin is t ra t ion  o f  the  Free S ta te .  

3 .  You are  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Execut ive  

Counc i l  and  you coord ina te  the  

imp lementa t ion  o f  Exco reso lu t ions and 

dec is ions.  20 

4 .  You are  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Forum o f  

Heads o f  Depar tments  and you coord ina te  

the  imp lementa t ion  o f  those dec is ions,  

recommendat ions  and prog rammes.  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    That  ce r ta in l y  p resents  a  broad scope 

o f  you r  ro le  and respons ib i l i t i es  in  tha t  i t ,  i f  I  am 

unders tand ing  i t  cor rec t l y  and p lease cor rec t  me i f  I  am 

wrong,  i t  dea ls  w i th  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  the  execut i ve  and 

the  admin is t ra t ion  w i th in  the  prov ince.   Am I  unders tand ing  

cor rec t l y?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Now are  the re  any mat te rs  then tha t  

fa l l  w i th in  the  prov inc ia l  government  tha t  you wou ld  no t  be  10 

o f f i c ia l l y  in fo rmed  o f  by  v i r tue  o f  these expans ive  ro les  tha t  

you ho ld?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    There  wou ld  be  issues,  mat te rs  tha t  

take  p lace Cha i r  in  the  depar tments  and the re  wou ld  be  

mat te rs  tha t  wou ld  be  de l ibera ted  on a t  Forums o f  Heads o f  

Depar tments  wh ich  I  w i l l  be  aware  o f  and then the re  wou ld  

be  mat te rs  tha t  I  wou ld  have served in  the  Execut ive  

Counc i l  wh ich  I  wou ld  be  aware  o f  and my ro le  wou ld  be  to  

ensure  tha t  the  dec is ions o f  the  Forum o f  Heads o f  

Depar tment  and the  dec is ions o f  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  a re  20 

car r ied  ou t .   Tha t  i s  how fa r  I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  have an  

unders tand ing  o f  what  i s  go ing  on  in  government .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Wou ld  i t  be  a  fa i r  s ta tement  to  say 

tha t  you have a  genera l  ove rv iew o f  the  execut ive  i ssues in  

re la t ion  to  the  Free S ta te  Government  as  we l l  as  the  
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admin is t ra t ion  issues in  re la t ion  to  the  Free S ta te  

Government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Who repor ts  to  you?  And excuse my 

ignorance on th i s .   We accept  tha t  you repor t  to  the  

Premie r  o f  the  p rov ince but  who –  wh ich  pos i t ions  repor t  to  

you,  s i r?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  have  th ree  Deputy  D i rec tor  

Genera ls  who repor t  to  me.   One is  fo r  P lann ing  and/or  

mat te rs  re la ted  to  P lann ing  and  S t ra tegy P lann ing  and 10 

Overa l l  In teg ra ted  P lann ing  in  the  prov ince.   One wou ld  be  

respons ib le  fo r  Corpora te  Admin i s t ra t ion  and one wou ld  be  

respons ib le  fo r  Mon i to r i ng  and Eva lua t ion .   The four th  

d i rec t  repor t  wou ld  be  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  who may  

not  necessar i l y  be  a t  the  leve l  o f  the  DG but  repor t s  

d i rec t l y  to  me.    

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Thank you,  s i r.   One th ing  wh ich  

puzz led  me a  l i t t le  in  th is  document  i s  tha t  re fe rence i s  

made to  what  i s  ca l led  a  Spec ia l  P ro jec t  Un i t .   Can you  

p lease exp la in  t o  the  Cha i r  what  i s  th is  inso fa r  as  i t  20 

concerns your  ro le  w i th in  the  prov ince?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    The i n teg ra ted  p lann ing  component  

had a  component  ca l led  Spec ia l  P ro jec ts  and th is  

emanated f rom what  i s  ca l led  S t ra teg ica l l y  In f ras t ruc ture  

Programmes o f  government  o f  Nat iona l  Government  wh ich  
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we adopted w i th  the  Nat iona l  Deve lopment  P lan .   So the  

s t ra teg ic  p ro jec ts  wou ld  ac tua l l y  be  eva lua ted f rom tha t  

perspect ive  in  te rms o f  the  component  as  fa r  as  what  we 

ca l led  -  as  fa r  as  the  In f ras t ruc ture  Pro jec ts  a re  

concerned.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And when was th is  un i t  es tab l i shed?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms September,  remember  tha t  th is  who le  

th ing  is  about  the  bursary  scheme,  the  scho la rsh ip  scheme.   

So as  you put  your  quest ions,  jus t  bear  in  m ind tha t  i s  

what  I  am rea l l y  in te res ted  in ,  the  bu rsary  scheme,  the 10 

scho larsh ip  scheme.   G ive  h im the  ev idence tha t  

Mr  Dukwana gave about  how the  bursa ry  scheme or  

scho larsh ip  scheme was be ing  hand led .   So as  you ask  

quest ions,  I  am jus t  say ing  jus t  bear  tha t  in  m ind.   That  i s  

what  I  am rea l l y  in te res ted  in .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    I  w i l l  cer ta in . . .   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Wel l ,  I  w i l l  move on then.   I f  I  cou ld  

ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 74?   

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Go back to  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Oh,  sor ry.   Page 74 o f  the  main  

bund le  wh ich  is  X -8 .    

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Okay.   Page 74?  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  I  am there  Cha i r.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER :    A t  parag raph  4 .18  you ta lk  about  your  

au thor isa t ion  in  te rms o f  Regu la t ion  77 :  

“To  g rant  f inanc ia l  o r  any ass i s tance fo r  s tudy 

t ra in ing  or  research  fo r  par t - t ime  or  fu l l t ime 

ac t iv i t ies  a t  e i ther  loca l  o r  in te rna t iona l  

ins t i tu t ions . . . ”    

 You go fu r ther  to  s ta te  tha t :  

“ I  am a lso  au thor ised to  g rant  bursa r ies  to  

bo th  employees and non-employees. . . ”  

 Who do you mean  by  non-employees?  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Non-employees are  s tuden ts .   That  

wou ld  be  s tudents  tha t  wou ld  have  app l ied  fo r  bursa r ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  s tudents  who are  no t  employed 

by  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  w i l l  be  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  government ,  P rov inc ia l  

Government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Ja ,  tha t  wou ld  be  s tudents  who 

have gone th rough the i r  mat r i c  and  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    . . . tha t  wou ld  be  non-employees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  the  scho la rsh ip  prog ramme,  

bursa ry  p rogramme.   D id  you have employees  o f  the 

Prov inc ia l  Government  who wou ld  be  granted scho larsh ips  

or  bursar ies  to  go  and s tudy and come back and cont inue 
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w i th  the i r  employment  w i th  the  Prov inc ia l  Government  o r  

were  these scho larsh ips  a lways s imp ly  g ranted to  peop le ,  

to  s tudents  who  were  no t  a t  tha t  s tage employed by  

government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Most  ins tances i t  has  been s tudents  

–  I  mean employees who were  s tudy ing  on  pa r t - t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Employees o f  the  Prov inc ia l  

Government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    O f  the  Prov inc ia l  Government  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    . . . s tudy ing  on  par t - t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  i s  why you wou ld  d i s t ingu ish  

be tween employees and non-employees?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . some o f  the  peop le  who wou ld  be  

granted scho la rsh ips  wou ld  be  peop le  who are  no t  

employed by  the  Prov inc ia l  Government  bu t  o thers  wou ld  

be  the  employed by  the  Prov inc ia l  Government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    P rec ise ly.   Because we had a  par t -20 

t ime bursary  fo r  employees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    And the  case in  po in t  here  tha t  

Advocate  September  i s  re fe r r ing  to  i s  w i th  regard  to  a  

spec i f i c  employees . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    . . . tha t  were  sent  ou ts ide  o f  the 

count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Ms  September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The reason why i t  

puzz les  me a  l i t t le  i s  tha t  Regu la t ion  77  spec i f i ca l l y  ta lks  

to  employment  mat te rs  and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  re fe rs  to  

non-employees by  cross- re ference .   I t  re fe rs  to  peop le  who 

have been ident i f ied  as  par t  o f  the  opera t iona l  needs,  i f  I  

can  ca l l  i t  tha t ,  w i th in  government .   Would  tha t  then  be the  10 

conf ines o f  non-employees as  you  have suggested in  your  

parag raph?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  bu t  i t  goes fu r ther  in to  our  

po l i cy.   We ind ica te  tha t  we wou ld  be  look ing  a lso  a t  

d iscre t ion  in  address ing  sk i l l s  across  the  prov ince.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Were  you the  o f f i c ia l  o f  the  government  

who had the  power  to  g rant  o r  re fuse a  request  fo r  

bursa r ies  or  scho larsh ips?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Th i s  on ly  came to  the  Off i ce  o f  the  

Premie r.   Th is  was bas ica l l y  cent ra l i sed  in  educat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    For  some t ime,  I  wou ld  say s ince  

2009/2010 Cha i r  tha t  th is  was cent ra l i sed  in  the 

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE :    And around twenty. . .  i t  was  

December  2017,  th is  was then cent ra l i sed  to  the  Off i ce  o f  

the  Premier  in  re l iev ing  the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion  to  

concent ra te  on  a  score  mandate  o f  bas ic  educat ion .   And 

when th is  was looked a t ,  i t  was  found but  the  bursa ry  

programme then cou ld  be  in  the  Off i ce  o f  the  P remier  fo r  

some employees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am –  I  f ind  –  what  I  f ind  

in te res t ing  is  you r  reason why i t  was taken away f rom the  

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion .   I t  says  to  a l low the  Depar tment  10 

o f  Educat ion  to  focus on  i t s  core  funct ion .   But  the  

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  i f  any  depar tment  i s  the  most  

su i tab le  one to  dea l  w i th  bursa r ies  because bursar ies  i s  

about  educat ion .    

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  Cha i r  I  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    What  then happened was the  

por t ion  o f  educat ion  fo r  non-employees was a lmost  seemed 

to  be  a  bu rden in  te rms o f  the  focus tha t  educat ion  was 

hav ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    And to ensure  tha t  th is  was ,  I  wou ld  

say l inked fu r the r  w i th  the  work  tha t  we were  do ing  in  the 

in tegra l  mandated  re la t ion  component  in  the  Premier ’s  

depar tment ,  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  dec ided tha t  th is  –  f rom 
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2017 th is  funct ion  w i l l  ac tua l l y  come to  the  Off i ce  o f  the 

Premie r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They dec ided  tha t  i t  shou ld  be  the 

Premier ’s  Off i ce  tha t  shou ld  be  burdened w i th  th is .  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  as  opposed to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion ,  they  dec ided tha t  ra the r  than burden  the  

Depar tment  fo r  Educat ion  w i th  th is  task  they shou ld  burden  

the  Premier ’s  Off i ce .  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  had my own v iews Cha i r  bu t  i t  was 10 

reso lved . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    . . . the  Off ice  o f  the  Premie r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .   Ms September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now may be a  

prudent  t ime fo r  us  to  look  a t  the  po l i c ies  you prov ided to 

the  Commiss ion  a  l i t t le  b i t  c lose r.   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you  to  tu rn  

to  page 155?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes?  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Do you recogn ise  th is  document?  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I  recogn ise  th is  document .   Th is  i s  

an  Execut ive  Counc i l  reso lu t ion .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And i t  i s  cor rec t  then tha t  th is  i s  in  

re la t ion  to  a  prov inc ia l  bu rsary po l i cy  wh ich  was adopted a t  

the  Cab ine t  meet ing  on  the  19 t h  o f  November  2008?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    A t  the  bo t tom o f  th is  page,  i t  i s  no ted  

tha t  i t  has  been s igned o f f  by  the  Premie r  on  the  

9 t h  o f  December  2008 in  add i t ion  to  the  Secre tary  o f  the  

Execut ive  Counc i l  on  the  3 r d  o f  the  twe l f th  2008.    

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Paragraph –  page 161 o f  th is  bund le  

and in  par t i cu la r  C lause 5 .   A t  C lause 5 ,  5 .1  appears  to  

ident i f y  the  d i f fe ren t  methods o f  f inanc ia l  ass is tance wh ich  

is  l i s ted  as :  10 

-  fu l l t ime bursary,   

-  par t - t ime bursa ry,   

-  fu l l t ime s tudy a id ,   

-  s tudy on  ass ignment ,   

-  chance l lo r  and takeover  o f  bursary  w i th  

s tudy loan ob l iga t ions.    

 What  fo l lows on  th is  i s  tha t  each o f  those  

methods wh ich  you obv ious l y  wou ld  know about ,  be t te r  

than me,  the  cr i t e r ia  fo r  each o f  these methods are  be ing  

out l ined.   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  th is  po l i cy  does not  regu la te  20 

in te rnat iona l  bursar ies?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  a t  tha t  t ime th is  –  we la te r  

amended ou r  po l i cy  in  2014/2015  but  then s igned  o f f  in  

2016 to  p rov ide  fo r  in te rna t iona l  bursar ies .  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And in  fu r therance o f  what  you are  
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say ing ,  can I  then ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 198,  p lease? 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number  Ms September?  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    198.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV SEPTEMBER :    A re  you there ,  s i r?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  the  sa l ien t  fea tures  

o f  th is  document  –  or  be fore  we go  there .   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  

th is  document  i s  t i t led  as  Sub jec t  Amendment  o f  the  

Prov inc ia l  Bursary  Po l i cy?  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And is  i t  a lso  cor rec t  tha t  i t  was 

s igned o f f  on  the  16 t h  o f  May 2016? 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Who s igned o f f  on  th is  po l i cy?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    I t  was s igned o f f  by  the  D i rec tor  

Genera l  and the  Premie r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And wou ld  t ha t  D i rec to r  Genera l  be  

yourse l f ,  s i r?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  wou ld  be  myse l f .  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER :    So tha t  i s  your  s ignature  as  i t  appears  

on  page 199?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And who was  the  Premier  a t  the  t ime? 

MR RALIKONTSANE :    The Premier  was Prem ier  Ace  
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Magashu le .    

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Thank you.   The sa l ien t  fea tures  o f  

th is  document ,  wh ich  hopefu l l y  you can he lp  us  unpack a  

l i t t le ,  i s  i f  we look a t  –  i f  we go back to  page 198 and we  

look a t  paragraph  1(b) :  

“The pu rpose o f  th is  document  i s  to  ob ta in  

approva l :  

b .   That  the  amended po l i cy  be  app l ied  

to  app l i ca t ions rece ived fo r  the  2015 and la te r  

academic  years . . . ”  10 

 That ,  however,  appears  to  be  in  cont rad i c t ion  

w i th  parag raph 5  on  page 199 wh ich  reads tha t :  

“The amended Prov inc ia l  Bursa ry  Po l i cy  w i l l  be  

d is t r ibu ted  to  a l l  p rov inc ia l  depar tments  fo r  

imp lementa t ion ,  fo r  app l i ca t ions fo r  the  2016  

academic  year  onwards on  approva l  by 

Exco. . . ”  

 What  i s  the  cor rec t  yea r  f rom wh ich  th is  po l i cy  

app l ied ,  s i r?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    The po l i cy  e f fec t i ve ly  became 20 

app l i cab le  in  2016 and I  th ink  we were  ac tua l l y  –  w i th  po in t  

A dea l ing  w i th  the  prev ious year  a lso  on  mat te rs  tha t  we 

wou ld  a l ready have ident i f ied  s tudents  espec ia l l y  those  

tha t  wou ld  have  been par t  o f  an  in te rnat iona l l y  bursary  

programme for  2015.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER :    Okay.   Wha t  i s  impor tan t  about  th is  

document  o r  a t  leas t  what  appears  to  be ,  i s  tha t  the  

contex t  fo r  th is  document  i s  se t  ou t  in  parag raph 2  on  page 

198 where  i t  in fo rms tha t :  

“The Prov inc ia l  Bursary  Po l i cy  was  approved  

in  November  2008. . . ”  

 And tha t  i s  the  document  tha t  we re fer red  to  

ear l ie r.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    Yes.  10 

“Due to  the  changes on the  a l loca t ion  o f  

bursa r ies  i t  i s  there fo re  necessary  to  amend 

the  po l i cy  to  su i t  the  present  env i ronment  in  

capac i ta t ing  and empower ing  the  f ree  s ta tus .  

The p rocess to  rev iew the  po l i cy  commenced 

dur ing  2014. . . ”  

 A re  we then to  unders tand tha t  i t  took  two years  

to  f ina l i se  an  amended po l i cy?  

MR RALIKONTSANE :    Yes,  there  has been consu l ta t ion  

around tha t  p rocess because  the  in ten t ion  was to  20 

unders tand the  opera t ions o f  the  in te rnat iona l  bu rsary  in  

par t i cu la r  Cha i r  because th is  was pure ly  based on an  

Execut ive  Counc i l  reso lu t ion  and we wanted to  b r i ng  th is  

now in to  a  po l i cy.   So there  wou ld  have been ear l ie r  

consu l ta t ion  la te  2014 and 2015  in  the  depar tment  o r  in  
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government  here  rea l l y  and i t  was –  i t  on ly  found space to  

be  –  to  serve  in  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  fo r  cons idera t ion  

and then approved f ina l l y  on  –  in  May 2016.  

ADV SEPTEMBER :    And in  fu r therance then o f  what  you 

say i t  a l igns  to  the  mot iva t ion  a t  parag raph 4(c )  on  page 

199 wh ich  in fo rms tha t :  

“The major  amendments  made to  the  po l i cy  

a re  as  fo l lows:  

See in  par t i cu la r  be ing  the  a l loca t ion  [word  

cu t ]  and In te rnat i ona l  Bursar ies . ”  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Now in  the  contex t  o f  the  a l legat ions  

in  re la t ion  –  ra ther,  in  the  contex t  o f  Mr  Dukwana ’s  

a l legat ions regard ing  the  in te rnat iona l  scho larsh ip  

programme we a re  then to  unders tand tha t  there  was no  

po l i cy  tha t  app l i ed  to  in te rna t iona l  bursa r ies  be fore  th i s  

po l i cy.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  wou ld  say so .   As  I  have  

ind ica ted ,  Cha i r,  the  reso lu t ions o f  the  execut ive  counc i l  

do  serve  as  gu idance unt i l  a  po l i cy  i s  f ina l i sed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  answer  i s  yes  to  the  ques t ion  bu t  

you then add the  reso lu t ions o f  the  execut ive  commi t tee  

prov ide  gu idance when the re  is  no  po l i cy.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Fo l lowing your  ev idence g iven  ear l ie r  
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wh ich  in fo rmed  the  in te rnat iona l  bursary  scheme was  

in i t ia ted  in  2014 ,  wh ich  you recorded in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

p lease he lp  us  to  unders tand how in te rnat iona l  bursar ies  

were  then granted when the re  was no po l i cy  in  p lace  unt i l  

2016?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  had ind ica ted  tha t  th is  i ssue o f  

p rov id ing  in te rna t iona l  bursar ies  Cha i r  –  the  d iscuss ions  

s ta r ted  around 2012.   Wi th  the  2011/2012 w i th  v is i t s  to  

var ious count r i es  and in  2014  we a l ready had an 

oppor tun i ty  to  send a  few s tudents  to  Turkey and I  th ink  a  10 

few s tudents  to  Ch ina  a t  a  par t i cu la r  t ime wh ich  were  the  

count r ies  tha t  a l ready –  un ivers i t ies  tha t  were  a l ready 

v is i ted  by  the  team o f  the  Premier  and members  o f  the 

execut ive  counc i l  and some members  o f  the  bursary  

techn ica l  team and w i th  tha t ,  a f te r  tha t  v is i t  and  repor ts  

rece ived,  Exco reso lved tha t  we cou ld  ac tua l l y  s ta r t  w i th  

the  in te rnat iona l  bursa ry  p rogramme.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     So  what  se lec t ion  or  qua l i f i ca t ion  

cr i te r ia ,  fo r  example ,  wou ld  have been app l ied  on  the  

award ing  o f  an  in te rnat iona l  bursary?   Who wou ld  be  20 

e l ig ib le  to  app ly  fo r  an  in te rnat iona l  bursary?   How was i t  

regu la ted?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    A lmost  –  the  cr i te r ia  was  a lmost  

s im i la r  to  the  loca l  bursa ry,  I  wou ld  say,  b road ly  speak ing .   

The fac t  was on ly  tha t  now s tudents  are  go ing  to  be  abroad 
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and the  second aspect  tha t  we had to  b r ing  in  was  tha t  we 

are  look ing  a t  Ind ian  s tudents  and i f  we were  look ing  a t  

Ind ian  s tudents ,  how are  they go ing  to  surv ive  broad i f  we 

have on ly  pa id  fo r  tu i t ion ,  accommodat ion  and a l l  o ther  

re la ted  issues,  how are  they go ing  to  su rv i ve  on  a  

purchase o f  necess i t ies  tha t  a re  needed and tha t  we 

brought  in  what  we ca l led  a  s t ipend  in to  tha t  par t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  ta lks  to  the  amount .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  ta lks  to  the  amount .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  her  quest ion  is  on  how –  what  10 

cr i te r ia  you used.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    We app l ied  the  same cr i te r ia  as  

what  we do w i th  the  loca l  bu rsar ies ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms September?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Can you p lease then take  us  to  

where  we wou ld  f ind  an  out l ine  o f  what  those c r i te r ia  wou ld  

be?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Jus t  go  back to  po l i cy,  your  pages  

are  confus ing  me.   Le t  us  go  back to  the  po l i cy.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     No prob lem.   Which  po l i cy  a re  you 20 

look ing  fo r,  S i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  po l i cy  i s  a t  page 157,  Bursary  

Po l i cy  Framework  fo r  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l   

Government .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  157.  
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ADV SEPTEMBER:     That  was the  f i rs t  one and then the  

second one,  i f  I  may jus t  add to  tha t ,  wou ld  s ta r t  on  page 

170.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Ja ,  fu l l t ime bu rsary  ho lders ,  tha t  i s  

the  cr i te r ia .   That  wou ld  be  se lec t ion  c r i te r ia  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  i s  i t  the  one a t  157 tha t  he lps  

you or  i s  i t  the  o ther  one?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    The 1 .163 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    163.   Wel l ,  tha t  is  the  page.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Ja  and we cou ld  a lso  go  to  the  10 

amended one i f  tha t  i s  he lp fu l  to  the  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So the  cr i te r ia  a re  se t  ou t  a t  page  

163.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

“The se lec t ion  c r i te r ia  a re  inc luded in  the  Persa l  

compute r  p rog ramme,  ge t  de termined the  po in t  and  

where  to  be  a l loca ted  to  each  ca tegory  o f  the  

fo l low ing cr i te r ia  and d isab i l i t y,  the  s ta te  res ident  

income o f  pa rent . ”  20 

Do you know whe ther  tha t  –  I  guess tha t  income,  R40 000,  

R70 000 obv ious l y  has to  be  per  annum? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  wou ld  be  per  annum,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes because i f  i t  was not  then they  

wou ld  no t  be  ind igent .   Number  o f  ch i ld ren . . . .   Yes,  okay,  
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tha t  i s  where  the  cr i te r ia  a re  to  be  found.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms September?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I f  we go fu r the r,  i f  i t  i s  on 

in te rnat iona l l y  bu rsa ry,  i t  can  then  –  tha t  i s  why I  say  the  

cr i te r ia  remains  a lmost  the  same.   We had brough t  in  the  

in te rnat iona l  bu rsa r ies  in  our  new po l i cy  i n  2016,  

Cha i rperson,  and  bursar ies  fo r  in te rna t iona l  s tudents  are  

awarded  to  the  Free S ta te  c i t i zens  to  address the  shor tage  

o f  sk i l l s  i n  the  p rov ince,  to  ident i f y  deserv ing  s tudent  in  10 

te rms o f  the  cr i te r ia  approved by  Exco,  wh ich  is  the  cr i te r ia  

tha t  i s  in  the  po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Bu t  w i th  respect ,  Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  i f  

you  are  re fer r i ng  to  page 184 – un less . . .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  am in  page 184.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Were  you re fer r ing  to  page 184? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    184.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     And in  par t i cu la r  c lause 7 .1 .4?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  7 .1 .4 .  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     I s  tha t  where  you were .   Okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  was ta lk ing  about  the  new po l i cy  

now tha t  came in to  p lace .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Indeed.   I  was par t i cu la r l y  in te res ted  

to  know the  cr i te r ia  tha t  was be ing  app l ied  in  re la t ion  to  
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in te rna t iona l  bursar ies  where  the  po l i cy  wh ich  was  s igned 

o f f  in  2016 d id  no t  ex is t  and in  answer  to  tha t  you  took us  

to  the  o ld  po l i cy.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    The o ld  po l i cy,  tha t  was app l i cab le  

in  te rms o f  ident i fy ing  s tudents .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     So  jus t  to  make su re  I  unders tand 

what  you a re  say ing  co r rec t l y,  be fore  the  new po l i cy  came 

in to  p lace  in  2016 the  cr i te r i a  tha t  was used in  re la t ion  to  

the  award ing  o f  in te rna t iona l  bu rsa r ies  was exact ly  the  

same as tha t  wh ich  is  l i s ted  under  c lause 7 .2  o f  the  o ld  10 

bursa ry.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     In  re la t i on  to  fu l l  t ime bursa ry  

ho lders  exc lud ing  ident i f ied  ach ievers .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Okay.   And the  Cha i r  h igh l igh ted  tha t  

the  income is  cer ta in ly  one o f  the  cons idera t ions in  

cons ider ing  the  award ing  o f  a  bursary.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  you wou ld  see tha t  

the  cr i te r i a ,  Cha i r,  goes up to  –  t ha t  wou ld  be  7 .   I t  wou ld  20 

not  be   5 ,  6 ,  7 .   V3 in  te rms o f  the  Roman f igu res  used,  I  

mean i t  goes up to  ix .   Roman f igu re  ix .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cha i r,  i f  I  may ass is t .   The  

quest ion  re la ted  to  the  cr i te r ia  tha t  was used before  the  

in te rnat iona l  bursar ies  came in to  be ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    That  w i l l  be  found in  page 18.   I  

th ink  the  w i tness  is  a  b i t  unsure  about  –  no t  unsure ,  as  

such,  bu t  tha t  goes w i th  the  quest ion  as  i t  was  posed 

because in  the  a f f idav i t  i t  c lear ly  s ta tes  as  to  how before  

th is  in te rna t iona l  bursary  scheme in to  opera t ion  what  

c r i te r ia  was then used and tha t  w i l l  be  found on FS22.013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say 2 .13?  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Yes,  13 ,  zero  one th ree .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ze ro  one th ree?  10 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    013 a t  7 .6 ,  Cha i r.   I t  reads :  

“S tudent  par t i c i pa t ing  in  in te rna t iona l  bursa ry  

programme were  se lec ted  th rough a  number  o f  

methods wh ich  inc luded…” 

Because the  quest ion  re la tes  main ly  to  be fore  the  scheme 

tha t  was adopted in  2016 came in to  e f fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes ,  yes ,  I  see tha t ,  ja .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  ass i s t ing  in  

the  sense in  wh ich  you use tha t  bu t  le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t .   20 

Mr  Ra l i kontsane?  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cha i r,  i f  I  may say the  quest ion  

re la ted  to  a  per iod  be fore  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no ,  I  accept  tha t ,  I  do  no t  know –  

I  do  no t  want  to  say why I  am say ing  what  I  am say ing ,  i t  i s  
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okay.   Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  you see –  have you looked a t  

parag raph 7 .6?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  par t  o f  the 

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What  do  you say about  pa rag raph  

7 .6  in  re la t ion  to  the  answer  you have g iven?  What  do  you 

say about  pa ragraph 7 .6?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Ja ,  I  do  ind ica te  tha t  the  –  we 

requested nominat ions f rom wel l -pe r fo rm ing schoo ls  and 

request ing  nominat ion  f rom communi ty  do ing  ou t reach  10 

programme and cons ider ing  app l i ca t ion  f rom prospect ive  

s tudents  approach ing  the  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  

Government  d i rec t l y.   We a lso  d i s t r ibu ted  adver t i sements  

inv i t ing  prospect ive  s tudents  to  app ly  fo r  in te rna t iona l  

bursa r ies  and bo th  prog rammes were  in i t ia l l y  managed by  

the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  as  I  have ind ica ted ,  and in  

acco rdance w i th  the  reso lu t ion  by  the  execut i ve  counc i l  the  

management  o f  bo th  p rogrammes were  t ransfer red  to  the  

Off i ce  o f  the  P remier  w i th  e f fec t  f rom the  1  December  

2017.   17 .6 ,  Cha i r,  i f  you  may a l low? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Whi ls t  the  ind ica te  the  recru i tment  

p rocess bu t  the  c r i te r ia  wou ld  ac tua l l y  remain  the  same in  

te rms o f  f ina l l y  now ident i f y ing  the  s tudents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you g ive  the  cr i te r ia  to  the  schoo ls  
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to  say  when you  se lec t  use  th is  c r i te r ia  o r  d id  you app ly  

the  cr i te r ia  yourse lves and a l l  you  needed f rom the  schoo ls  

a re  we l l -per fo rm ing cand ida tes?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    We needed we l l -per fo rm ing  

cand ida tes  f rom schoo ls .   Those,  the  we l l -per fo rm ing  

cand ida tes ,  l i ke  the  loca l  bursar ies ,  wou ld  no t  be  sub jec ted  

to  a  quantum o f  guard ian ’s  income or  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  w i l l  be  l i ke  your  top  100 in  

educat ion  where  we do not  de term ine quantum.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  i s  jus t  top  100,  we a l loca ted  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  top  per fo rmers .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Top pe r fo rmers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you  fe l l  w i th in  the  ca tegory  o f  top  

per fo rmers  i t  was  i r respect ive  o f  whether  you  were  ind igent  

o r  no t .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was granted a  bursary.  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    You wou ld  be  granted a  bursary  to  

s tudy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  –  and  then i f  you d id  no t  fa l l  

under  tha t  ca tegory  then …[ in tervenes]  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    You wou ld  be  sub jec ted  to  the 
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c r i te r ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  Ms September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     P lease c la r i f y  confus ion  tha t  may be 

on my par t  inso far  as  you are  re fer r i ng  to  the  top  

per fo rmers  versus the  app l i ca t ion  o f  the  cr i te r ia .   But  

be fore  we get  there ,  7 .6  appears  to  be  the  process  

methodo logy in  te rms o f  wh ich  peop le  wou ld  be  –  s tudents  

wou ld  be  se lec ted .   I s  tha t  unders tood cor rec t l y?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Bu t  i t  does not  de t rac t  f rom your  10 

ear l ie r  ev idence and tha t  i s  tha t  the  cr i te r i a  tha t  was used 

to  se lec t  the  ind iv idua ls  i s  the  same as the  fu l l t ime bu rsary  

ho lders  under  the  o ld  po l i cy.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Which  app l ied  to  the  award ing  o f  

loca l  bursar ies .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Which  app l ied  to  the  award ing  o f  

loca l  bursar ies .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Okay.   Now when you ta lk  about  the  

top  100 per fo rmers  d id  tha t  app ly  to  in te rna t iona l  bursar ies  20 

as  we l l  because accord ing  to  the  po l i cy  i t  appears  to  on ly  

app ly  to  the  loca l  bursar ies .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No.   One can say we wou ld  ident i f y,  

Cha i rperson,  the  top  100 f rom schoo l  and then they w i l l  

then be sub jec t  because you do not  –  you wou ld  no t  ge t  a  
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number  tha t  wou ld  be  equ iva len t  to  what  a  par t i cu la r  

count ry  o r  a  par t i cu la r  un i vers i t y  in  a  fo re ign  count ry  has  

agreed to .   So we wou ld  have to  do  assessment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Even i f  they  a re  the  top  pe r fo rmers .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Ms September,  jus t  remember  

we do not  have –  to  bo ther  ourse lves about  the  bu rsa ry  o r  

scho larsh ip  scheme un less  there  seems to  have  been 

someth ing  cor rup t  about  i t  o r  the  way in  wh ich  i t  was run  

so  –  or  connected w i th  s ta te  capture .  So we are  no t  10 

in te res ted  in  jus t  see ing  how they ran  i t  un less  th is  i s  what  

appears  to  be  the  case.   So tha t  i s  what  i s  impor tan t .    

Le t  me ask you th is  quest ion .   Be fore  the re  was a  

po l i cy  fo r  g ran t ing  scho larsh ip  o f  bursary  s tudent ,  

in te rna t iona l  s tudents  or  s tuden ts  who wou ld  s tudy a t  

in te rna t iona l  un i vers i t ies ,  what  was the  lega l  bas i s  fo r  

g ran t ing  bursar ies  or  scho la rsh ips  to  s tudents  who s tudy a t  

in te rna t iona l  un ivers i t ies?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    We re l ied  bas i ca l l y  on  the  

execut ive  counc i l  reso lu t ion  and obv ious ly  the  d iscre t ion  20 

tha t  i s  there  g iven to  the  account ing  o f f i cer  then who was  

in  educat ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  the  execut ives  counc i l  cannot  –  

the  execut ive  counc i l  a re  no t  the  l aw,  they are  no t  the  law,  

i s  i t  no t?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  needs to  be  a  lega l  f ramework .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     To  say th is  may be done,  th is  may 

not  be  done.   The execut ive  counc i l  i t se l f  must  opera te  

w i th in  the  law.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t s  own reso lu t ions must  fa l l  w i th in  the  

law.   I f  there  i s  no  law a l lowing fo r  someth ing  to  be  done,  

they cannot  themse lves.   I t  cannot  be  lawfu l  because they 10 

dec ide  i t  shou ld  be  done.   You unders tand tha t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  am say ing  –  maybe I  shou ld  say  

we wou ld ,  in  par t i cu la r,  be  look ing  a t  the  Sect ion  27  o f  the 

Pub l ic  Serv ice  regu la t ion .   I t  wou ld  ac tua l l y  empower  the  

head o f  the  depar tment  to  take  dec is ions cons is ten t  w i th  

the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  execut ive  counc i l .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Ja ,  I  th ink  what  I  am look ing  fo r  i s  

th is .   Look ing  a t  your  a f f idav i t  i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  you –  20 

there  was a  l ega l  f ramework  fo r  the  DG,  the  head –  I  th ink  

yourse l f ,  to  g ran t  bursa r ies ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   Or  maybe 

each head o f  depar tment?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Each head o f  the  depar tment  and  

tha t  i s  why i t  happened in  educat ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    In  educat ion ,  yes ,  yes .   A t  the  t ime when 

i t  was –  th is  scheme was based or  loca ted  in  the 

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  wou ld  the  DG in  the  P remier ’s  

o f f i ce  have any power  to  g rant  any bursa r ies  a t  a l l  o r  on ly  

the  head o f  depar tment  in  the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  the  head o f  Depar tment  in  

Educat ion  wou ld  respons ib le  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then when i t  was moved  o t  the  10 

o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  then d id  the  DG and the  P remier ’s  

o f f i ce  have the  power  to  g rant  these bursar ies?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.   Remember,  the  power  has 

a lways been inherent  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  77  o f  the  Pub l ic  

Serv i ce  Act .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Bu t  the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  execut ive  

counc i l  these were  cent ra l i sed  a t  educat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    None o f  heads o f  depar tment  were  20 

a l lowed to  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  g rant  bursar ies .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    To  g rant  bursar ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  impor tan t .   Sect ion  

77 ,  d id  i t  g ran t  the  power  to  the  DG in  the  Premier ’s  
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o f f i ce?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    A t  the  t ime when I  made  

a l loca t ions,  Cha i r,  i t  g ran ted me tha t  power.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When the  bursary  scheme p laced or  

loca ted  in  the  Premier ’s  o f f i ce?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    In  the  Premier ’s  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And before  tha t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    The head o f  the  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion  a l so  exerc i sed tha t  respons ib i l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  the  –  was the  source  o f  tha t  power,  10 

say …[ in tervenes ]  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Inherent  f rom the  same… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  Sect ion  77  he re?  D id  you 

re fer  to  i t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  re fe r red  to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh no,  there  i s  the  Pub l ic  Serv ice  Act  

here .   Or  was i t  in  the  o ther  bund le?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     I s  Cha i r  perhaps re fer r ing  to  

Regu la t ion  77?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  regu la t ion  o r  Sect ion  77?  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Regu la t ion  77  o f  the  Pub l ic  Serv ice  

Act .   Regu la t ion .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Regu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  have got  tha t .   Jus t  read i t  i f  you  

have got  i t .   Or  what  d id  i t  say  as  you unders tood ,  as  you  
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remember  i t?   Regu la t ion  77 ,  what  d id  i t  say?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  empowers  the  head o f  

depar tment  to  a l loca te  bu rsar ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  each depar tment?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Fo r  each depar tment ,  fo r  

employees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  in  tha t  depar tment .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    And nonemployees.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  -and then the  DG in  the   

P remier ’s  o f f i ce ,  wou ld  he  have had tha t  power  as  we l l?  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    The DG wou ld  have had tha t  power  

inhe rent  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  we l l .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   So each head o f  

depar tment  had tha t  power  and the  DG in  the  Premier ’s  

o f f i ce  a lso  had tha t  power.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.   I t  was on ly  th rough a  

reso lu t ion  tha t  i t  was agreed tha t  th is  wou ld  be  managed in  

educat ion  and a t  an  appropr ia te  t ime sh i f ted  to  the  o f f i ce  

o f  the  Premie r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Now tha t  regu la t ion  d id  i t  make any  20 

d is t inc t ion  in  te rms o f  where  the  s tudents  wou ld  s tudy tha t  

wou ld  be  granted?  In  o ther  words,  d id  i t  make a  d is t inc t ion  

be tween s tudents  who s tudy loca l l y  in  the  count ry  o r  w i th in  

the  prov ince o f  the  Free S ta te  or  those who s tudy  ou ts ide  

o f  the  count ry?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:    There  was  no d is t inc t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  was no d is t inc t ion .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    There  is  no  d is t inc t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  sa id  you can  grant  powers  to  I  guess  

deserv ing  s tudents  or  those meet  cer ta in  c r i te r ia .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Ja ,  to  employees and  

nonemployees.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nonemployees  but  they needed to  be  

res idents  o f  the  Free S ta te .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    They needed  to  be  res iden ts  o f  the  10 

Free S ta te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  what  we brought  in to  po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   So is  the  pos i t ion  

there fo re  tha t  be fore  there  was  a  po l i cy  re la t i ng  to  

in te rna t iona l  bu rsar ies ,  bursar ies  fo r  s tudents  who s tud ied  

ou ts ide  o f  South  A f r i ca ,  there  was  no po l i cy  bu t  Regu la t ion 

77  was there ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was a lways there .  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  was a lways there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say i t  was w ide  enough to  

enab le  the  head o f  a  depar tment  to  g rant  a  bursa ry.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  a  s tudent  who is  a  res iden t  o f  the 
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Free  S ta te  prov ince w i thout  res t r i c t ing  as  to  where  they 

wou ld  be  s tudy ing .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  was –  we were  

very  c lear  in  te rms o f  the  208 po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i t  w i l l  be  s tudents  in  the  Free 

S ta te  and in  par t i cu la r  they w i l l  s tudy a t  the  un ive rs i t ies  o f  

the  Free S ta te  wh ich  I  ment ioned ear l ie r  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   I t  was the  genera l  ru le  Free S ta te  

un ivers i t ies  bu t  there  cou ld  be  except ions.  10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    There  cou ld  be  except ions because 

top  100 s tuden ts  wou ld  have  to  go  to  any  o f  the  

un ivers i t ies ,  maybe Free S ta te  wou ld  on l y  o f fe r  a  hundred 

and they wou ld  go  anywhere  e l se  fo r  s tudy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I s  there  anyth ing  usefu l  

tha t  you f ind  in  Regu la t ion  77?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     In  fac t  the  regu la t ions are  be fore  us ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Regu la t ion  77  tha t  you re fe r red  to ,  20 

Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  i s  da ted  2016.   So in  fac t  i t  on ly  app l ies  

as  f rom 2016 as  i t  wou ld  then app ly  in  a l ignment  w i th  the 

second po l i cy  wh ich  you ment ioned  ear l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  do  we f ind  i t  f i rs t ,  le t  us  f ind  i t  

f i rs t .  
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ADV SEPTEMBER:     No prob lem,  Cha i r.   The 2016  –  what  

we rea l i sed jus t  be fore  the  hear ing  s ta r ted  w i th  tha t ,  we  

d id  no t  have a  fu l l  copy bu t  i t  has  s ince  been p laced on  

f i le ,  i t  jus t  does not  have –  i t  i s  no t  p roper l y  pag ina ted.   So  

apo log ies  fo r  tha t ,  Cha i r.   A t  page 53 – a f te r  535  in  the  

re ference bund le  Cha i r  shou ld  f ind  a  copy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  read i t  in  the  meant ime.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     No prob lem,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  in  te rms o f  content?   Is  there  

anyth ing  d i f fe ren t  f rom what  he  has to ld  me? 10 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Somewhat ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Paragraph  77 wh ich  is  spec i f i c  to  

t ra in ing  ass is tance and wh ich  fa l l s  under  the  chap ter  tha t  

dea ls  w i th  employment  mat te rs ,  in fo rms:  

“That  fo r  the  purposes o f  enhanc ing  the  

per fo rmance o f  the  work  o f  the  depar tment ,  a  head  

o f  depar tment  may g rant  f inanc ia l  o r  o ther  

ass is tance fo r  any s tudy t ra in ing  o r  research  where  

an  employee …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  are  you read ing  f rom?  Oh,  th is  i s  

no t  pag ina ted.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Unfor tunate l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Pub l i c  Serv i ce  Regu la t ions,  then  I  must  

go  to  77?  
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ADV SEPTEMBER:     Yes,  Cha i r,  apo log ies  fo r  tha t ,  we  

jus t  d iscovered i t  was not  inc luded  in  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Tra in ing  ass i s tance?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :     

For  the  pu rposes  o f  enhanc ing  the  per fo rmance o f  

the  work  o f  the  depar tment ,  a  head o f  depar tment  

may g rant  f inanc ia l  o r  o ther  ass is tance fo r  any 

s tudy t ra in ing  o r  research  where  an  employee 

under takes the  s tudy,  t ra in ing ,  research  on the  10 

in i t ia t i ve  o f  the  depar tment  o r  the  employee as  

requested.   Any  such ass i s tance fo r  the  s tudy,  

t ra in ing ,  research  is  re la ted  o t  the  employer ’s  sk i l l s  

requ i rements ,  a  head o f  depar tment  may gran t  

f inanc ia l  o r  o ther  ass i s tance to  employees fo r  pa r t -

t ime or  fu l l t ime ac t iv i t ies  a t  e i ther  loca l  o r  

in te rna t iona l  ins t i tu t ions .   The head o f  depar tment  

may a lso  grant  ass is tance fo r  s tud ies  in  t ra in ing  

th rough t ra in ing  in te rvent ions.   A head o f  

depar tment  may [ ind is t inc t ]  any reasons fo r  ex t ra  20 

expenses [ ind i s t inc t ]  t reasury  regu la t ions. ”  

Ja ,  okay,  you were  say ing  –  you are  pu t t ing  to  Mr  

Ra l ikontsane tha t  th is  was promulgated in  2016? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     On ly  f rom 2016,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  do  you say to  tha t ,  Mr  
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Ra l i kontsane?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r,  I  wanted to  see  where  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  to  f ind  i t .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Where  to  f ind  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Has he got  the  re ference bund le?  

Have you not  go t  a  re ference bund le  fo r  the  w i tness? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     He does have a  re ference  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Somebody must  go  and ass is t  h im i f  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Because in  the  208 po l i cy,  a l ready 

re fer r i ng  to  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Whi le  they  are  look ing  there ,  Ms  

September,  how much more  t ime do you th ink  you need? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     We have some to  ge t  th rough .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  p ropose to  g ive  you more  

than 15 minutes  un less  you rea l l y  persuade me tha t  I  

shou ld… 

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Wel l  then  le t  me s tar t  persuad ing  20 

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  f i rs t  le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  

regu la t ions th ing  bu t  we –  you see ,  as  I  was say ing  to  you,  

we a re  look ing  a t  th is  bursary  scheme s imply  in  te rms o f  

the  te rms o f  re fe rence o f  the  Commiss ion ,  whether  i t  was  
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be ing  imp lemented fo r  cor rup t  purposes,  s ta te  captu re  

purposes and so  on .   So we are  no t  look ing  a t  i t  just  to  see  

how they were  imp lement ing  th is ,  there  is  tha t  purpose and 

I  am –  so  when you ask ,  use  the  t ime tha t  I  am go ing  to  

g ive  you,  tha t  needs to  be  the  focus.   Okay,  bu t  le t  us  dea l  

w i th  the  regu la t ion .   Have you found i t  Mr  Ra l i kontsane?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  found i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r  I  am unab le  to  conf i rm 

whethe r  th is  i s  an  amendment  because th is  Government  10 

Gazet te  the  29  Ju ly,  Pub l i c  Serv i ce  Regu la t ion  2016,  Cha i r  

I  may not  –  I  do  no t  have a t  the  moment  in fo rmat ion  a t  my 

d isposa l  to  immedia te ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Answer  the  quest ion .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Answer  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

COUNSEL FOR MR RALIKONTSANE:    Thank you Cha i r,  

Cha i r  in  fac t  I  was about  to  say I  a lso  share  the  Cha i r ’s  

sent iments  i n  as  fa r  as  my learned  co l league s ta r ted  o f f  by  

say ing  tha t  there  are  a l legat ions o f  an  incr im inat ing  na ture  20 

and so  fa r  the re  has no t  been any.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

COUNSEL FOR MR RALIKONTSANE:    And the  o the r  

p rob lem is ,  i f  you  look a t  the  s ta tements  tha t  were  made by  

Mr  Dukwana nowhere  is  Mr  Ra l ikontsane imp l ica ted  and  
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a lso  they s ta r t  o f f  by  –  i t  s ta r t  o f f  by  say ing  tha t ,  in  o the r  

words,  Mr  Dukwana has not  la id  a  pr ima fac ie  case aga ins t  

Mr  Ra l i kontsane  but  s ta r ted  o f f  by  say ing  we suspected 

th is ,  i t  was more  specu la t i ve  and hence the  d i f f icu l t y  in  

t ry ing  to  ge t  a  response f rom Mr  Ra l ikontsane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  you see,  the  idea is  tha t  Mr  

Ra l ikontsane app l ied  fo r  leave to  g ive  ev idence about  the  

scheme.   So I  have a l lowed h im because Mr  Dukwana gave 

ev idence about  the  scheme,  in  par t  o r  ma in ly  to  ge t  

somebody w i th in  the  prov inc ia l  government  to  come and 10 

g ive  me a  cer ta in  perspect ive  abou t  the  scheme.  

Now,  in  do ing  tha t ,  my eyes are  on  whether  there  

seems to  be  any th ing  cor rup t  about  i t ,  o r  the  way  i t  was  

imp lemented.   So but  f i rs t  and fo remost ,  i t  was to  g i ve  h im 

and the  p rov inc ia l  government ,  the  oppor tun i ty  to  exp la in  

the  scheme because Mr  Dukwana gave ev idence about  th is  

bursa ry  scheme in  a  ce r ta in  way.   

So but  I  am jus t  a le r t ing  Ms Sep tember  tha t  tha t  

must  be  the  focus -  I  do  no t  wan t  us  to  spend too  much 

t ime i f  tha t  i s  no t  the  focus,  okay.  20 

ADV SEPTEMBER:    I  am happy to  move on Cha i r,  bu t  the  

quest ions are  rea l l y  to  unders tand,  pe rhaps and –  to  

unders tand the  poss ib le  contex t  w i th in  wh ich  Mr  Dukwana  

gave ev idence,  and i f  I  may,  h is  ev idence spec i f i ca l l y  ta lks  

to…[ in tervene]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  Mr  Dukwana.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  the  manner  in  wh ich  he  gave  

h is  ev idence was suggest ing  to  say the  least ,  tha t  the 

bursa ry  scheme was be ing  used in  a  cer ta in  way.   I  do  no t  

know whether  he  seemed a lso  to  be  say ing ,  serv ice  

prov iders  hope who got  tenders  wou ld  then be asked to  

cont r ibu te  to  the  bursa ry  scheme.   That  i s  the  -  I  th ink  tha t  

i s  the  contex t ,  you know.   So I  do  no t  know i f  you went  

beyond tha t  bu t  i f  tha t  i s  the  contex t ,  tha t  i s  what  we must  10 

look a t .   

ADV SEPTEMBER:    I  am happy to  jus t  de f ine  i t  w i th  

re fe rence to  h is  a f f idav i t  in  fac t ,  i f  we tu rn  to  page  266,  he  

in fo rms a t  paragraph 110:  

“ I  suspect  tha t  th is  p rogram is  a  way o f  tak ing  

money out  o f  the  count ry,  under  the  gu ise  tha t  the  

government  i s  pay ing  fo r  s tudents  to  s tudy abroad. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you see…[ in tervene]  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    He goes fu r ther…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see i f  i t  is  jus t  susp ic ion ,  tha t  i s  20 

what  counse l  fo r  Mr  Ra l ikontsane was say ing ,  you know,  i f  

i t  i s  jus t  a  susp ic ion .   So but  you can ask  quest ions a imed 

a t  c la r i f y ing  wha t  the  pos i t ion  is  whether  o r  no t  there  is  

anyth ing  tha t  fa l l s  w i th in  our  te rms o f  re fe rence w i th  regard  

to  i t  as  a  scheme or  two to  i t s  implementa t ion ,  how i t  was  
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imp lemented.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Okay,  in  tha t  case,  le t  us  move a long  

to  how th is  p rog ram was funded.   I f  we look a t  what  you 

s ta ted  in  your  s ta tement  and your  a f f idav i t ,  maybe  fo r  the 

benef i t  o f  t ime you have in fo rmed tha t  dur ing  2019,  a  

s tudent  who was awarded a  loca l  bursa ry  cost  R85  066,06.   

In  2019 an  in te rnat iona l  s tudent  cos t  R202  

thousand…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  hang on Ms September  I  wou ld  l i ke  

your  ear l ie r  ques t ion ,  as  genera l  as  i t  was,  be fore  you go  10 

in to  any spec i f i cs  about  spec i f i c  s tudents .   How was the  

bursa ry  scheme or  scho larsh ip  funded?  Was the  money a l l  

coming f rom government  o r  was the  money coming f rom the  

pr iva te  secto r  and ind iv idua ls ,  how was i t…[ in te rvene]  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    There  was money appropr ia ted  

Cha i r,  fo r  loca l  and in te rnat iona l  bursar ies  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  f rom governments?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    From government .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  budgets .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    From governments  budgets .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  so  i t  was a  c lear  

appropr ia t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  was the  money tha t  was 

obta ined f rom se rv ice  p rov iders  o r  ind i v idua ls  ou ts ide  o f  
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government  tha t  was used to  a lso  ass is t  the  s tudents?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r,  I  had th is  when ev idence 

was led  here  about  some o f  the  o ff i c ia ls  who were  work ing  

in  Premie rs  o f f i ce  w i th  regard  to  s tudents  tha t  were  be ing  

ass is ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Bu t  in  our  in i t ia l  p rocess,  

espec ia l l y  bu i l t  up  to  2010,  we es tab l i shed what  was ca l led  

the  Opera t ion  H lase la  Fund,  th is  was reg i s te red as  a  non-

pro f i t  o rgan isa t ion .   Th is  was bas ica l l y  to  he lp  s tudents  10 

tha t  were  no t  a l loca ted  bu rsar ies  and were  ind igen t  in  the 

sense tha t  they d id  no t  -  the  budget  was conf ined to  a  

par t i cu la r  number  and then you wou ld  then have to  ass is t  

o ther  s tudents  fo r  purposes o f  the i r  accommodat ion  where  

the i r  parents  now a re  unab le  to  a f fo rd ,  the  f i t t ing  a t  the  

un ivers i t y  and so  on .   

 And in  the  process,  we were  cau t ioned tha t  th is  -   

a l though th i s  NPO is  opera t ing ,  i t  cou ld  cause some 

conf l i c t  w i th  what  p rogram tha t  we are  runn ing  a t  tha t  

moment ,  wh ich  was a  methodo logy o f  engag ing  our  20 

communi ty  i s  ca l led  Opera t ion  H lase la .   So tha t  was  

bas ica l l y  what  tha t  tha t  bas ica l l y  meant .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  t ry  and get  c la r i f i ca t ion .  

There  was an o f f i c ia l  government  bursary  scheme,  okay.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Appropr ia te .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    And the  money used fo r  tha t  bursa ry  

scheme was in  the  budget  o f  the  p rov inc ia l  government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and once the  scheme was sh i f ted  to  

the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r,  you were  the  account ing  o f f i cer  in  

regard  to  tha t  money as  we l l?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    The budget  was then a lso  sh i f ted  to  

the  o f f i ce  o f  the…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  your  o f f i ce ,  yes .   When the  bursa ry  

scheme was loca ted in  the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  the  10 

Head o f  Depar tment  a t  the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion  was 

the  account ing  o f f i cer  in  regard  to  tha t  money as  we l l?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    And the  budget  was appropr ia ted  to  

the  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  okay,  a l r igh t .   Now,  you wou ld  

have kept  records ,  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  o f  a l l  the  s tudents  who  

you had g ranted bursa r ies  under  the  government 's  o f f i c ia l  

bursa ry  scheme.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  how much  was g i ven to  whom and 20 

in  wh ich  i ns t i tu t ion  tha t  s tudent  was s tudy ing .  What  the  

s tudent  was s tudy ing ,  and whethe r  they were  mak ing  good  

progress,  you wou ld  have a l l  o f  those repor ts  I  wou ld  

imag ine .   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now you have to ld  me about  

Opera t ion  H lase la  and f rom wha t  you have to ld  me i t  

appears  tha t  Opera t ion  H lase la  may have been meant  to  be 

a  para l le l  bursary  scheme.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Not  necessar i l y,  i t  was meant  to  be  

an  in te rvent ion  to  ass is t  s tudents ,  the  needy s tudents  who 

may not  have qua l i f ied  fo r  government  bursary  scheme.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  when I  say  para l le l  bursary  scheme,  

I  mean i t  se rved the  same papers  as  your  o f f i c ia l ,  

p rov inc ia l  government  bursary  scheme,  bu t  to  a  ca tegory  o f  10 

s tudents  who d id  no t  qua l i f y  under  the  o f f i c ia l  p rov inc ia l  

governments  scheme,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and who –  you sa id  i t  was run  by  an  

NPO,  is  tha t  r igh t?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  was an NPO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and who was runn ing  the  NPO? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  was an o f f i c ia ls…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    A government  person?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  was o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  20 

Soc ia l  Deve lopment ,  there  were  ou ts ides.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  a lso  had peop le  f rom the  banks 

as  par t  o f  the  NPO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  bu t  was the  NPO a 
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government  in i t ia t i ve?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  i t  was bas i ca l l y  a  government  

in i t ia t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A government  in i t ia t i ve?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and how was money ra i sed tha t  

was used by  the  NPO to  g ive  bu rsar ies  to  s tudents?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    There  were  qu i te  a  number  o f  

peop le  tha t  were  donat ing  to  the  NPO in  var ious  ways,  

Cha i rperson and then the  banks,  some o f  these banks a lso  10 

cont r ibu ted ,  I  th ink  to  the  fund,  in  one or  the  o ther  to  

ass is t  some o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  NPO s t i l l  i n  ex is tence a t  the  

moment?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I t  i s  dormant  I  wou ld  say tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When d id  they s top  opera t ing?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  th ink  in  2018.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  2018?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How long had i t  been opera t ing  by  tha t  20 

t ime?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    From 2010,  i t  was ca l led  ear l ie r  on  

Fr iends o f  the  Poor  and then Opera t ion  H lase la  Fund,  and  

then i t  was –  i t  then became Fr iends o f  the  Free S ta te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why does i t  look  l i ke  the  moment  the  

then Premier  was  no longer  the re  i t  became dorman t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  say…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  no t  the  d r iv ing  fo rce  beh ind  i t?  

COUNSEL FOR MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r,  I  am sor ry  to  

in te r jec t .   Cha i r,  the  ev idence tha t  was led  and I  need to  

caut ion  he re  be tween the  use  o f  the  word  as  Mr  

Ra l ikontsane t r ied  to  exp la in  ear l ie r  on ,  he  used a  word  

in te rvent ion  ra ther  than bursa ry,  when i t  re la tes  to  10 

Opera t ion  H lase la  and the  NPO.   And He fu r the r  sa id ,  tha t  

scheme was des igned to  ass is t  s tudents  tha t  were  a l ready  

in  s tud ies ,  and the i r  parents  came shor t  on  many mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  hang on,  he  must  g ive  ev idence 

not  you.  

COUNSEL FOR MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  

what  he  a l ready sa id  Cha i r  so  I  was jus t  caut ion ing  about  

the  unders tand ing  o f  the  word  bursary  in  re la t ion  to  the  

NPO.  He might  t ry  to  confuse the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  you cou ld  re -20 

examine h im la te r  on  to  c la r i f y  i f  necessary.   So I  was jus t  

say ing  was the  P remie r  the  dr i v ing  fo rce  beh ind  i t  because  

now,  i t  looks  l i ke  when he was no longer  the  Premie r,  i t  

d ied ,  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Not  necessar i l y  Cha i r  because we,  
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in  2018,  there  was then a  dec is ion  taken tha t  we are  go ing  

to  reduce our  budget  and our  a l loca t ion  to  s tudent  and tha t  

was even the  t ime we now agreed tha t  we w i l l  s top 

a l loca t ing  in te rna t iona l  s tudents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  was  ta lk ing  about  the  NPO,  

no t  to  the  o f f i c ia l  p rov inc ia l  government  bu rsary.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  I  am say ing  maybe tha t  i s  why 

i t  la te r  on  became dormant .   I t  m igh t  have been the  issue 

tha t  we were  now in  fu l l  con t ro l  o f  a lmost  eve ry th ing  tha t  

the  prov inc ia l  government  was to  fund.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am not  sure  i f  I  have fo l lowed  

tha t .  A t  a  cer ta in  s tage,  you had the  NPO which  was  

runn ing  a  bu rsary  scheme fo r  s tudents  who d id  no t  qua l i f y  

under  the  o f f i c i a l  government ,  bursa ry  scheme,  i s  that  

r igh t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  the  NPO was not  bas i ca l l y  

on ly  meant  fo r  bursa r ies  i t  had  o ther  respons ib i l i t i es  o f  

wh ich  the  Board  wou ld  dec ide  upon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  one o f  them was thee bursa ry  

scheme?  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and wh i le  tha t  bursary  scheme was  

be ing  run  by  the  NPO,  the  government  was runn ing  i t s  own 

bursa ry  scheme as we l l .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yeah,  I  had tha t  respons ib i l i t y  to  
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run .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was opera t iona l l y  a t  the  same t ime.   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  had the  respons ib i l i t y  to  run  the 

government  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you say the  NPO and i t s  

bursa ry  scheme o r  the  bursa ry  scheme o f  the  NPO came to  

an  end in  2018,  they s topped.   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yeah,  they bas ica l l y  s topped 

engag ing  and I  th ink  the re  was a  t ime where  i t  became 

dormant  and obv ious l y  i t  may have in  one or  the  o ther  10 

become dereg is te red.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now the  award ing  o f  bursar ies  by  the  

NPO,  d id  tha t  happen separa te l y  f rom the  government?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  i t  happened th rough the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Through the  Board?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Th rough i t s  to  own Board .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  there  was ev idence g i ven here ,  

i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  inc lud ing  ev idence,  I  th ink  g iven by  

Mss Cho lo ta  who was PA to the  Premie r  then  wh ich  

suggested tha t  o r  a t  leas t  emai ls  wh ich  suggested tha t  20 

cer ta in  serv i ce  prov iders  or  ind iv idua ls  were  asked to  

p rov ide  fund ing  fo r  s tudents ,  bu t  a t  leas t  some o f  those 

appear  to  have been asked to  do  tha t  a f te r  ge t t ing  some 

tenders ,  o r  some cont rac ts ,  government  cont rac t s .   Do you 

know anyth ing  about  tha t?  
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MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  tha t  par t  I  heard  when ev idence 

led  he re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you do not  know anyth ing  about  i t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  as  I  say,  we had a  bursa ry  

scheme,  and ou r  in te rvent ion  was th rough the  NPO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  du r ing  the  asbestos  p ro jec ts ,  

were  you the  DG in  the  Premie r ' s  o f f i ce?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Because I  th ink  par t  o f  tha t  ev idence  

re la ted  to  the  t ime o f  the  asbestos  pro jec t ,  and i t  re la ted  to  10 

somebody who was a  par tner  to  the  -  one o f  the  d i rec to rs  

o r  pa r tne r,  the  one who passed  on I  th ink ,  I  cannot  

remember  h i s  name.   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  re la ted  to  tha t ,  and the  emai ls  were  

be ing  exchanged  between h im o r  h is  o f f i ce ,  and the  o f f i ce  

o f  the  Premie r  and they have been  d i rec ted  to  the  PA to  the  

Premie r,  and the  PA to  the  Prem ier  was send ing  emai ls ,  

and I  th ink  when she gave ev idence here ,  she sa id  she was 

send ing  those emai ls ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  because the  20 

Premie r  had asked he r  to  do  tha t ,  so  you knew noth ing  

about  tha t?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  I  have abso lu te ly,  I  had 

abso lu te l y  no  knowledge o f  tha t  I  read when I  say  ev idence 

was led  I  was ab le  to  read the  s ta tements  tha t  were  made 
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here ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  th is  may have 

happened fo r  qu i te  some t ime  -  I  am wonder ing  why 

somebody who is  the  DG in  the  Premier ' s  o f f i ce ,  wou ld  no t  

have known about  i t ,  un less  there  was a  de l ibera te  

in ten t ion  to  keep i t  away f rom h im.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  do  no t  know Cha i r  whether  th is  

was kept  away f rom me de l ibe ra te ly,  I  had  

heard…[ in tervene ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know i t  i s  money.   10 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yeah.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And you are  the  account ing  o f f i ce r.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yeah,  bu t  tha t  had noth ing  to  do  

w i th  our  bursa ry  program.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Which  I  had a  cont ro l  o f ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course ,  I  th ink  the  suggest ion  may  

have been made tha t  the  serv ice  prov iders  were  asked to  

d i rec t  the  money s t ra igh t  to  the  s tudents  or  to  the  

un ivers i t ies ,  I  am not  sure  w i thout  the  money coming to  the 20 

o f f i ce  o f  the  P remie r,  I  th ink  there  may have been 

someth ing  a long those l ines .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Bu t  tha t  is  bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  why we 

wou ld  no t  -  i f  the  money was not  w i th  us ,  we wou ld  no t  be  

ab le  to  know about  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  Ms September.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Thank you Cha i r,  Mr  Ra l i kontsane are  

you -   as  the  Cha i r  has ment ioned,  these are  th i rd  var ian ts  

to  th is  f inanc ia l  ass i s tance concep t .   On the  one hand,  you  

are  ta l k ing  about  the  o f f i c ia l  bursary  scheme,  on  the  o ther  

hand,  you are  ta lk ing  about  the  NPO and then the  th i rd  

scheme as such is  the  one wh ich  was re fer red  to  by  Ms 

Cho lo ta  and c lear ly  d i f fe ren t ia t ing  tha t  f rom the  o f f i c ia l  

one,  when she says:  

“That  she must  d raw a  d i f fe ren t ia t ion  be tween the  10 

bursa ry  scheme run  by  and d isseminated by  the  

Free S ta te  Depar tment  o f  Educat ion  and f inanc ia l  

ass is tance d isseminated to  s tudents  in  need by  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Prem ier. ”  

By  v i r tue  o f  the  ro le  tha t  you p layed,  hav ing  been invo lved  

in  the  Free S ta te  Prov ince fo r  severa l  years ,  a re  you  

in fo rming the  Cha i r  tha t  you had abso lu te l y  no  knowledge 

o f  th is  f inanc ia l  ass is tance program be ing  run  ou t  o f  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Prem ier?   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  Cha i r  I  wou ld  no t  say  no,  20 

because the  –  I  wound not  have been approached  in  any  

way by  the  needy s tudents ,  I  was runn ing  a  bursa ry  

program and fund ing  was a  par t i cu la r  amount ,  Cha i r,  and  

when tha t  amoun t  i s  exhausted,  there  is  no th ing  tha t  we 

are  ab le  to  do  anymore .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Okay,  and then,  i f  we –  what  we have  

done Cha i r  tha t  in  the  re ference bund le ,  we have ex t rac ted  

a l l  o f  the  Appropr ia t ion  Act  re la t i ve  f rom the  per iod  o f  

2014,  up  un t i l  –  2014,  2015,  17 ,  19 ,  and 2020.   We have 

conso l ida ted  tha t  though,  in to  a  shor t  document ,  by  your  

leave my I  hand i t  up?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  what  i s  s ign i f i can t  about  i t ,  what  

does i t  p rove or  what  does i t  show? 

ADV SEPTEMBER:    I t  in fo rms Cha i r  tha t  the re  was,  one 10 

abso lu te l y  no  fund ing  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  up  and 

unt i l  2017,  where  there  was ve ry  incrementa l  increase,  

spec i f i ca l l y  a l loca ted  to  bursar ies  and I  wou ld  l i ke  the  DG 

jus t  to  comment  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  tha t .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:     Cha i r,  the  ev idence before  us  

th rough the  w i tness ’s  a f f idav i t ,  ta lks ,  spec i f i ca l l y  to  a 

bursa ry  scheme and in  do ing  so ,  i t  ta lks  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  

Premie r  ment ioned has a l so  been made o f  the  Depar tment  

o f  Hea l th ,  the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re ,  and the  20 

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion .   

I t  i s  in  the  contex t  o f  tha t ,  tha t  the  Appropr ia t ion  

Acts  were  looked  a t  to  es tab l i sh  what  the  t rends were  in  

the  a l loca t ion  o f  funds to  the  prov inc ia l ,  to  the  Free S ta te 

Prov inc ia l  Government .   
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The o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r  has no t  been a l loca ted  

any fund ing  unt i l  2017 and so  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  unders tand  

where  exact ly  the  fund ing  came f rom,  by  v i r tue  o f  the 

scheme tha t  th is  w i tness had been  manag ing  before  then.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe put  the  quest ion  f i rs t  and le t  

us  see what  the  DG says because before  we can  look a t  

the  documents .   You heard  what  Ms September  says? 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    I  have heard  what  she has been  

say ing  and tha t  i s  cor rec t  because we were  no t  runn ing  a  

bursa ry  scheme unt i l  the  funct ion  was t ransfer red  to  us  in  10 

2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  were  the  years  tha t  you  ta lked  

about?  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    2014,  2015,  2016,  2017 and then 

2019 and 2020,  re la t i ve  to  the  a f f idav i t s  o f  the  w i tness.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  she is  say ing  even 2019 there  was 

not  any a l loca t ion .  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  there  has been an a l loca t ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    From 2018?  20 

MR RALIKONTSANE:    From 2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  bu t  she ment ioned 2017 and  2019.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    There  has been an a l loca t ion  f rom 

2017 and beyond.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we do not  want  the  ones where  there  
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was a l loca t ion .   So,  he  has go t  an  answer  fo r  you,  because  

he is  say ing  there  w i l l  be  no  a l loca t ion  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the 

Premie r  be fore  2017 because the  bursa ry  scheme had not  

been sh i f ted  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Yes,  a l l  the  fund ing  was in  

educat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    And accord ing ly,  we jus t  wanted to  

ge t  c la r i t y  as  to  where  exact ly  the  fund ing  was com ing f rom 

before  2017?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you looked a t  the  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion  because she says tha t  i s  where  i t  was.  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Cha i r,  we had a l loca ted  money to  

the  Depar tment  o f  Hea l th  fo r  the  Cuban p rograms,  fo r  

bursa r ies  the  Cuban p rograms tha t  s ta r ted  in  2012.  I t  was  

an in te rnat iona l  p rogram run th roughout  a l l  p rov inces.   So 

we had a l loca ted  money to  them for  tha t  purpose.   We 

a l loca ted money to  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Educat ion  to  run  the  

bursa ry  p rogram.  

On ly  beyond 2017,  when some par t  o f  agr i cu l tu ra l  20 

s tudents  were  sent  to  Be larus  and Por tuga l  was then  

agr i cu l tu re  g i ven  some fund ing  to  be  ab le  to  spec i f i ca l l y  

focus on  agr i cu l t u re  s tudents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  want  us  t o  s top .   

What  -  how much t ime d id  you fee l  you w ish to  have?   
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Wel l ,  so  fa r,  the re  is  very  l i t t le ,  i f  any th ing  tha t  goes in to  

what  I  am look ing  fo r,  bu t  the  main  th ing  was to  g ive  Mr  

Ra l ikontsane as  the  rep resenta t i ve  o f  the  p rov inc ia l  

government  to  come and exp la in  how the  bu rsary  scheme 

happened.   

So i f  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  the  invest iga tors  o r  the  

lega l  team wants  to  invest iga te ,  le t  them invest iga te  f i rs t  

and then le t  us  look a t  i t  i f  necessary,  Mr  Ra l ikontsane can 

come back bu t  i t  wou ld  have to  be  someth ing  qu i te  we igh ty.  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  regre t tab le  tha t  we cannot  10 

re ly  on  the  add i t iona l  documents  to  tha t  ex ten t  you on ly  

res t r i c ted  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you can s t i l l  use  them la ter  i f  I  a l low 

i t ,  so  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  you got  them la te  tha t  i s  the  -  bu t  those  

whatever  quest ions ar i se  f rom tha t ,  f rom them can  be put  

to  h im,  he  can depose to  you an a f f idav i t  and we can look  

a t  the  a f f idav i t  and take  i t  f rom the re .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    May I  jus t  have a  second qu ick ly?  

Regre t tab ly  ou r  hands are  t ied  a t  th is  s tage and  we w i l l  

have to  exp lo re  what  op t ions there  are  in  o rder  to  address 20 

the  add i t iona l  documents  bu t  there  is  no th ing  fu r ther  w i th in  

the  conf ines o f  what  we can do.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  we can do i s  a l so  l ook a t  what  

you have,  and then p repare  a  memo for  me tha t  ind ica tes  

what  you sugges t  you shou ld  –  you wou ld  l i ke  to  do  in  
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te rms o f  tak ing  whatever  i ssues fo rward  and i f  a  request  

must  be  made to  Mr  Ra l ikontsane to  pu t  up  an  a f f idav i t  and 

answer  cer ta in  quest ions tha t  cou ld  be  looked a t  as  we l l .   

I f  necessary,  he  can be asked to  come back,  then I  

am su re  he  can come back bu t  I  wou ld  have jus t  have to  

see because as  I  say  the  main  purpose fo r  g ran t ing  h is  

app l i ca t ion  was to  g ive  an  oppor tun i ty  to  the  prov inc ia l  

government  o f  the  Free S ta te  to  exp la in  the  bursa ry  

scheme,  wh ich  he  has done in  the  a f f idav i t  he re  bu t  to  a lso  

pu t  quest ions.   10 

But  what  we are  in te res ted  in  i s  rea l l y  to  see  

whethe r  the  scheme was –  i f  there  was anyth ing  cor rup t  

about  i t  o r  whether  i t  was imp lemented cor rup t ly  o r  in  any  

i l l ega l  way tha t  fa l l s  w i th in  our  te rms o f  re fe rence,  so  you 

can work  on  tha t .   

But  I  th ink  we can s top  now.   I f  necessary  we w i l l  

take  i t  fu r ther  l i ke  tha t  bu t  i t  seems to  me tha t  when we  

have spent  about  two hours ,  and there  i s  no th ing  tha t  so  

fa r  seems concre te ,  le t  us  s top .  

ADV SEPTEMBER:    As  i t  p leases Cha i r,  w i t h in  the  20 

conf ines o f  wha t  we can dea l  w i th  we have no more  

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  you wou ld  be  

need ing  to  re -examine,  o r  do  you w ish  to?  

COUNSEL FOR MR RALIKONTSANE:    No,  no  we do not  
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need to  re -examine Cha i r  w i th  the  ev idence as  is ,  thank 

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  know tha t  i t  i s  f ine .   So you  

unders tand Mr  Ra l ikontsane,  you have been g iven a  

chance,  you have  exp la ined what  you have exp la ined.   You 

have been asked  quest ions,  bu t  you unders tand what  the  

Commiss ion  is  look ing  a t  in  te rms o f  S ta te  Cap ture  and 

cor rup t ion  and –  bu t  you may be  asked,  you might  ge t  a  

request  to  say,  can you answer  the  fo l low ing quest ions or  

can you exp la in  the  fo l low ing?  10 

There  are  some documents  tha t  Ms September  

wanted to  use probab ly,  though you might  ge t  quest ions or  

cop ies  o f  some o f  the  cor respondence tha t  she wanted to  

use,  and you may be asked to  g ive  exp lana t ion  or  

in fo rmat ion  by  way o f  an  a f f idav i t ,  is  tha t  a l r igh t?  

MR RALIKONTSANE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  and then i f  necessary  you 

might  come back bu t  i f  no t ,  you wou ld  jus t  supp ly  

in fo rmat ion  under  oa th ,  okay.   

MR RALIKONTSANE:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  thank you very  much to  

everybody.  Thank  you,  Ms September  and your  team.   

ADV SEPTEMBER:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you to  the  techn ic ians and the  

s ta f f .  Thank you,  Mr  Ra l ikontsane  and your  counse l .   We 
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a re  now go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  the  day,  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the 

pub l i c  tomor row the  Commiss ion  w i l l  no t  be  s i t t ing  bu t  i t  

w i l l  s i t  on  Monday.    

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 10 MAY 2021  


